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Terms Used in this Annual Report

Unless otherwise indicated or the context othenngsgiires, references in this annual report tthé)“Company,” “we,” “our” and “us”
refer to, prior to the consummation of the IPO, NCarporation Ltd. and its subsidiaries and afterlfhO, Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings
Ltd., or “NCLH" and its subsidiaries, (ii) “NCLC"afers to NCL Corporation Ltd. and its subsidiafiés“Norwegian Cruise Line” or
“Norwegian” refers to the Norwegian Cruise Linetaand its predecessors and “NCL America” or “NCLrAfers to our U.S.-flagged
operations, (iv) “Apollo” refers to Apollo Global &hagement, LLC and its subsidiaries and the “Apleillads” refers to one or more of NCL
Investment Limited, NCL Investment Il Ltd., AIF \WNCL (AlV), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV 1), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV Ill), L.P. and AlF VI
NCL (AIV IV), L.P., AAA Guarantor C-Invest VI (B), L.P., Apollo Overseas Partners @weéhre) VI, L.P., Apollo Overseas Partners
(Delaware 892) VI, L.P., Apollo Overseas Partnersl\MP. and Apollo Overseas Partners (Germany)L\R,, (v) “TPG Global” refers to TPG
Global, LLC, “TPG” refers to TPG Global and itsiifftes and the “TPG Viking Funds” refers to onemore of TPG Viking I, L.P., TPG
Viking Il, L.P., TPG Viking, L.P., TPG Viking AlV |L.P., TPG Viking AlV Il, L.P., and TPG Viking AIVII, L.P. and/or certain other
affiliated investment funds, each an affiliate &f@, (vi) “Genting HK” refers to Genting Hong Kongnhited and/or its affiliates (formerly Star
Cruises Limited and/or its affiliates), and (viiffiliate(s)” or “Sponsor(s)” refers to Genting Hikhe Apollo Funds and/or the TPG Viking
Funds. References to the “U.S.” are to the UnitedeS of America, “dollars” or “$” are to U.S. daif and “euros” or “€” are to the official
currency of the Eurozone. Unless otherwise indiiatethis annual report, the following terms hétve meanings set forth below:

» Adjusted EBITD/ EBITDA adjusted for other income (expense), impant loss and other supplemental adjustments €fee yoL
to “Item 7— Management’s Discussion and Analysi§ioiancial Condition and Results of Operatiofts”a calculation of Adjuste
EBITDA).

e Adjusted EBITDA Margil. Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of total revel

» Berths. Double occupancy capacity per cabin (single oanap per studio cabin) even though many cabinsacaommodate three
or more passengel

e Capacity DaysAvailable Berths multiplied by the number of crudsys for the perioc

» Charter.The hire of a ship for a specified period of timeship is “chartered-in” by an end user and “chatieout” by the provider
of the ship

» Constant CurrencyA calculation whereby foreign currency-denominateenue and expenses in a period are convertbe at.s.
dollar exchange rate of a comparable period inrameliminate the effects of the foreign exchafigetuations.

» Dry-dock.A process whereby a ship is positioned in a laagrbwhere all of the fresh/sea water is pumpedroatder to carry out
cleaning and repairs of those parts of a ship warehbelow the water lin

« EBITDA.Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation amorézation.

 GAAP. Generally accepted accounting principles in th®.

e Gross Cruise CosThe sum of total cruise operating expense and rtiagkegeneral and administrative exper

» Gross TonsA unit of enclosed passenger space on a cruisg sinip that one gross ton = 100 cubic feet or 2d8®lc meters
» Gross YieldTotal revenue per Capacity D¢

» IMO . International Maritime Organization, a United ldats agency that sets international standardshippag.

» IPO.The initial public offering of 27,058,824 ordinashares, par value $.001 per share, of NCLH, whiah @onsummated on
January 24, 201:

* Major North American Cruise Branct. Norwegian Cruise Line, Carnival Cruise Lines, BRlo@aribbean International, Holland
America, Princess Cruises and Celebrity Crui

* Net Cruise CosiGross Cruise Cost less commissions, transportatidmther expense and onboard and other exg

1
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* Net Cruise Cost Excluding FuiNet Cruise Cost less fuel expen
* Net Revenu¢Total revenue less commissions, transportationoginel expense and onboard and other exp
* Net Yield Net Revenue per Capacity Dz

» Occupancy Percentagerlhe ratio of Passenger Cruise Days to Capacitys D& percentage in excess of 100% indicates traet
or more passengers occupied some ca

» Passenger Cruise Da. The number of passengers carried for the pendtiplied by the number of days in their respeetiv
cruises.

* SEC. U.S. Securities and Exchange Commiss

» Shipboard Retirement PlarAn unfunded defined benefit pension plan foraertrew members which computes benefits based ¢
years of service, subject to certain requireme

Industry and Market Data

This annual report includes market share and imgaistta and forecasts that we obtained from inglymtblications, third-party surveys and
internal company surveys. Industry publications|uding those from Cruise Lines International Asation (“CLIA”") and surveys and
forecasts generally state that the information aioed therein has been obtained from sources leeligvbe reliable. CLIA is a non-profit
marketing and training organization formed in 183%romote cruising. All CLIA information, obtaindtbm the CLIA website “cruising.org,”
relates to CLIA member lines, which represent 2éhefmajor North American cruise lines includingridegian, which together represented
97% of the North American cruise capacity as oféaloer 31, 2012. All other references to third parfgrmation are publicly available at
nominal or no cost. We use the most currently abél industry and market data to support statensnts our market position. Although we
believe that the industry publications and thiatty sources are reliable, we have not indepehdeetified any of the data. Similarly, while \
believe our internal estimates with respect toindustry are reliable, our estimates have not beeified by any independent sources. While
we are not aware of any misstatements regardingnalugtry data presented herein, our estimatgsiiticular as they relate to market share
and our general expectations, involve risks anetiamties and are subject to change based onugf@etors, including those discussed unde
“ltem 1A—Risk Factors” and “ltem 7— Management'ssBussion and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®s of Operations” in this
annual report.

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Staements

Certain statements in this annual report constfarigard{ooking statements intended to qualify for the daebor from liability established |
the Private Securities Litigation Reform act of 298Il statements other than statements of hisabfarcts in this report, including, without
limitation, those regarding our business stratéiggncial position, results of operations, plamagpects and objectives of management for
future operations (including development plans aljgctives relating to our activities), are forwdodking statements. Many, but not all of
these statements can be found by looking for wikds‘expect,” “anticipate,” “goal,” “project,” “pan,” “believe,” “seek,” “will,” “may,”
“forecast,” “estimate,” “intend” and “future” anaif similar words. Forward-looking statements do gudrantee future performance and may
involve risks, uncertainties and other factors Whiould cause our actual results, performance lueaements to differ materially from the
future results, performance or achievements expdessimplied in those forwarkboking statements. Examples of these risks, uaitgigs an
other factors include, but are not limited to:

» the adverse impact of the worldwide economic downand related factors such as high levels of uheyngent and
underemployment, declines in the securities andestate markets, and perceptions of these conditizat decrease the level of
disposable income of consumers or consumer cordé)

» changes in cruise capacity, as well as capacitpggsin the overall vacation indust

» intense competition from other cruise companiesebas non-cruise vacation alternatives which ragigct our ability to compete
effectively;
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» our substantial leverage, including the inabildygenerate the necessary amount of cash to sewiaxisting debt, repay our cre
facilities if payment is accelerated and incur sabtal indebtedness in the futu

» changes in fuel prices or other cruise operatirgis;

» the risks associated with operating internation:

» the continued borrowing availability under our dtédcilities and compliance with our financial enants
e our ability to incur significantly more debt despdur substantial existing indebtedne

« the impact of volatility and disruptions in the lghd credit and financial markets which may adversédiect our ability to borrow
and could increase our counterparty credit rigksuiding those under our credit facilities, derivas, contingent obligations,
insurance contracts and new ship progress paynuemnagtees

» adverse events impacting the security of travel ey affect consumer demand for cruises suchrewitg acts, acts of piracy,
armed conflict and other international eve

» the impact of any future changes relating to hawet agents sell and market our cruis
» the impact of any future increases in the priceopfmajor changes or reduction in, commercial rériervices
» the impact of the spread of contagious disez

» accidents and other incidents affecting the heatifety, security and vacation satisfaction of tgies causing damage to ships,
which could cause the modification of itinerariesancellation of a cruise or series of cruis

« the impact of any breaches in data security orradlsturbances to our information technology arteohetworks

e our ability to attract and retain key personnel godlified shipboard crew, maintain good relatiaith employee unions, maintain
or renegotiate our collective bargaining agreementtavorable terms and prevent any disruptionsark;

» the continued availability of attractive port destions;
» the control of our Company by certain of our shatéérs whose interests may not continue to be efigmith ours

» the impact of problems encountered at shipyardgiedisas, any potential claim, impairment loss,@@lation or breach of contract
in connection with our contracts with shipyar

» changes involving the tax, environmental, healtifiety, security and other regulatory regimes inchhwe operate
e our ability to obtain insurance coverage on ternas &re favorable or consistent with our expeatati
» the lack of acceptance of new itineraries, prodactervices by our targeted gue:

* our ability to implement brand strategies and duiplsuilding programs, and to continue to expandlwands and business
worldwide;
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» the costs of new initiatives and our ability to ieele expected cost savings from our new initiati'
» changes in interest rates and/or foreign curreatssi

» increases in our future fuel expenses related peimenting IMO regulations, which require the usaigher priced low sulfur fue
in certain cruising area

» the delivery schedules and estimated costs of h@yg ®n terms that are favorable or consistent withexpectations

« the impact of pending or threatened litigation angstigations

» the impact of changes in our credit ratin

» the possibility of environmental liabilities anchet damage that is not covered by insurance orett@teds our insurance covera
e our ability to attain and maintain any price in@esfor our product:

» the impact of delays, costs and other factors tiegulrom emergency ship repairs as well as scletitdpairs, maintenance and
refurbishment of our ship

« the implementation of regulations in the U.S. reiggi U.S. citizens to obtain passports for traeehdlditional foreign destination
» the impact of weather and natural disasters;
» other factors set forth und”Risk Factor¢”

The above examples are not exhaustive and neweaisksge from time to time. Except as required Iy lae undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staénts, whether as a result of new information,reievents or otherwise. Such forward-
looking statements are based on our current beislimptions, expectations, estimates and projectegarding our present and future
business strategies and the environment in whiclwit@perate in the future. These forward-lookistgtements speak only as of the date of
this annual report. We expressly disclaim any @blan or undertaking to release publicly any upslaterevisions to any forward-looking
statement contained herein to reflect any changaiirexpectations with regard thereto or any chagvents, conditions or circumstances or
which any such statement was based.
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PART I.

Item 1. Business
History and Development of the Company

Norwegian Cruise Line commenced operations out iafiilin 1966. In February 2000, Genting HK acquicedtrol of and subsequen
became the sole owner of the Norwegian Cruise bperations.

In January 2008, the Apollo Funds acquired 50%hefdutstanding ordinary share capital of NCLC. A pf this investment, the Apollo
Funds assumed control of NCLC’s Board of Directédso, in January 2008, the TPG Viking Funds acepliin the aggregate, 12.5% of
NCLC's outstanding share capital from the Apollo FunSisa result of the aforementioned transactioresyéfative ownership percentages of
NCLC's ordinary shares were as follows: Genting HK (80), the Apollo Funds (37.5%) and the TPG Vikingh&si (12.5%).

Our Sponsors
Apollo

Apollo is a leading global alternative investmeraimager with offices in New York, Los Angeles, HaustLondon, Frankfurt, Luxembourg,
Singapore, Hong Kong and Mumbai. As of Decembe2812, Apollo had assets under management of $illidhbnvested in its private
equity, capital markets and real estate businesgedlo owns a controlling interest in Prestige Sas International, Inc. which operates
through two distinct upscale cruise brands, Oce@nisses and Regent Seven Seas Cruises. Invesinmeistmanaged by Apollo also have
current and past investments in other travel aistile companies, including Caesars EntertainmemiaiGVolf Resorts, Vail Resorts, AMC
Entertainment, Wyndham International and other lhoteperties.

TPG

TPG is a leading global private investment firmrfdad in 1992 with more than $54.5 billion of assetder management as of September 30,
2012. TPG has extensive experience with globalipainld private investments executed through leetdgiyouts, recapitalizations, spinouts,
joint ventures and restructurings. TPG seeks teshin worlc-class franchises across a range of industriesr Bnid current investments
include Alltel, Burger King, Caesars Entertainméntinental, Fairmont Raffles, Hotwire, J. Crevgildan Marcus, Sabre, Seagate, Texas
Genco, Energy Future Holdings (formerly TXU) andivision.

Genting HK

Genting HK was founded in 1993 and through its &liéig/, Star Cruises Asia Holding Ltd., operatdeading cruise line in the Asia-Pacific
region. Its headquarters are located in Hong Kamitis represented in more than 20 locations dweide, with offices and representatives in
Asia, Australia, Europe, United Arab Emirates amelt).S. Genting HK currently has a fleet of fivépshwhich offer various cruise itineraries
in the Asia-Pacific region.

Corporate Reorganization

In February 2011, NCLH, a Bermuda exempted limiigblility company, was formed with the issuancel®f000 ordinary shares at $.001 per
share. On January 24, 2013, NCLH completed the IR@onnection with the consummation of the IPO LG ordinary shares were
exchanged for the ordinary shares of NCLH's, and N®ecame the owner of 100% of the ordinary sh&egsresenting a 97.3% economic
interest) and parent company of NCLC (the “CorpoiRéorganization”). The Corporate Reorganization eféected solely for the purpose of
reorganizing our corporate structure. NCLH had padgr to the completion of the Corporate Reorgatian, conducted any activities other t
those incidental to its formation and to preparaitor the Corporate Reorganization and the IPQowing the IPO, the relative ownership
percentages of NCLH’s ordinary shares were asv@idsenting HK (43.4%), the Apollo Funds (32.5% TPG Viking Funds (10.8%) and
public shareholders (13.3%). NCLH is treated asrparation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
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NCLC is treated as a partnership for U.S. federedine tax purposes, and the terms of the partiesitluding the economic rights wi
respect thereto) are set forth in an amended atdteel tax agreement for NCLC. Economic interest$CLC are represented by the
partnership interests established under the teeeagent, which we refer to as “NCL Corporation Uhit$he NCL Corporation Units held by
NCLH (as a result of its ownership of 100% of thidioary shares of NCLC) currently represent a 97e2¥%nomic interest in NCL(

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization LRG outstanding profits interests granted underRhofits Sharing Agreement to
management (or former management) of NCLC, inclyidire Ordinary Profits Units described below in f@mensation Discussion &
Analysis,” were exchanged for an economically eglgmat number of NCL Corporation Units. We refetttie NCL Corporation Units
exchanged for profits interests granted under thét® Sharing Agreement as “Management NCL CorponaJnits”. The Management NCL
Corporation Units received upon the exchange dtantling profits interests are subject to the séime-based vesting requirements and
performance-based vesting requirements applicaltleet profits interests for which they were excleahgrhe Management NCL Corporation
Units issued in exchange for the profits interestsently represent a 2.7% economic interest in NCL

NCL Corporation Units are not transferrable withbBl@LH’s prior consent and do not entitle the holderartyg voting, pre-emptive, or sinking
fund rights. Any distributions (other than the thistributions described below) made by NCLC arecated on a pro rata basis to NCLH and
the holders of the Management NCL Corporation Uhigsed upon the total number of NCL CorporatioitdJincluding Management NCL
Corporation Units) outstanding. Distributions by NICto NCLH or holders of Management NCL Corporatidnits do not entitle holders of
ordinary shares of NCLH to any portion of suchritisttion or to any additional distribution by NCLH.

NCLC does not have any current plans to make astyildlitions, other than tax distributions which nwegur in the future. To the extent fur
are legally available, NCLC will make cash disttibas, which we refer to as “tax distributions,”Holders of the NCL Corporation Units
(including the Management NCL Corporation Unitspufnership of the NCL Corporation Units gives tigd).S. taxable income for the holc
The U.S. taxable income attributable to NCLH’s ovehép of NCL Corporation Units may be differentrfighe relative U.S. taxable income
attributable to the Management NCL Corporation klriit that case, tax distributions may be made oorapro rata basis with the holders of
Management NCL Corporation Units possibly receivielgtive tax distributions greater than the testritiutions received by NCLH.

Holders of NCL Corporation Units (including the Magement NCL Corporation Units prior to exchangedialinary shares of NCLH, as
described below) may be entitled to recover on aetof the economic interest represented by thods in a bankruptcy or other insolvency
event of NCLC or NCLH (even if NCLH incurs debtather claims that are senior to its ordinary sHatescontrast, the rights of the holder:
NCLH'’s ordinary shares will be potentially junior teetdebt or senior claims (if any) incurred by NCliHai bankruptcy or other insolvency
event. In this respect, the NCL Corporation Unitel(gding the Management NCL Corporation Units) nhayconsidered, in some cases, to be
potentially structurally superior to those of th@ders of ordinary shares of NCLH in a bankruptcpther insolvency event for NCLH and
NCLC.

Subject to certain procedures and restrictiondyding the vesting schedules applicable to the Mangent NCL Corporation Units and any
applicable legal and contractual restrictions) hdaalder of Management NCL Corporation Units walMe the right to cause NCLC and NCLH
to exchange the holder's Management NCL Corporatioits for ordinary shares of NCLH at an excharagfe equal to one ordinary share for
every Management NCL Corporation Unit (or, at NC&@lection, a cash payment equal to the valuesoéxchanged Management NCL
Corporation Units), subject to customary adjustméot stock splits, subdivisions, combinations aimilar extraordinary events. Any non-pro
rata tax distributions made to a Management NCLpGa@tion Unit Holder will reduce the amount of NCkHbrdinary shares (or cash) that the
holder would otherwise receive upon exchange. Kebange right described above is subject to (i¥ittng and effectiveness of an applicable
registration statement by NCLH that, in its deteration, contains all the information which is raguli to effect a registered sale of its ordinary
shares and (i) all applicable legal and contrdatestrictions, including those imposed by the logkagreements described elsewhere in this
annual report. NCLH has reserved for issuance aeuwf its ordinary shares corresponding to thebemof Management NCL Corporation
Units to be outstanding. Following the expiratidriB80-day lockup agreements entered into in connection with B, INCLH intends to file
registration statement with the SEC to registea @ontinuous basis the issuance of the ordinamestia be received by the holders of
Management NCL Corporation Units who elect to exgfea
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If and when any holder of a Management NCL Corponat/nit exchanges such unit for one of NCLH’s oatly shares (or a cash payment
equal to the value of one of its ordinary sharg® relative economic interests of the exchangi@d. lCorporation Unit holder and the holders
of ordinary shares of NCLH will not be altered. New NCLC profits interests or Management NCL Cogpion Units will be issued; howevw
NCLH has granted options to acquire its ordinagreh to our management team under its new-term incentive plan.

NCLH'’s executive officers and directors are the sanmth@gxecutive officers and directors of NCLC ifeef immediately prior to the
Corporate Reorganization. Within 90 days followthg consummation of the IPO, our board of direcf{tBeard of Directors”) will consist of
nine directors, including five directors designaltgdhe Apollo Funds, two directors designated fntihg HK and two independent directors
(one designated by the Apollo Funds and one desgrzy Genting HK). We refer you to “ltem 13— CantRelationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence.”

Additional Information

We are incorporated under the laws of Bermuda.r€gistered offices are located at Cumberland Hdtbek-loor, 1 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. Our principal executive offices breated at 7665 Corporate Center Drive, Miami il 33126. Our telephone number is
(305) 436-4000. The website for Norwegian Cruigseelis located at www.investor.ncl.com. Informatammtained on our websites is not
incorporated by reference into this or any othporefiled with or furnished to the Securities exthange Commission. Daniel S. Farkas, the
Company’s Senior Vice President and General Couisseur agent for service of process at our ppialcéxecutive offices.

Our Company

We are a leading global cruise line operator, offgcruise experiences for travelers with a wideetg of itineraries in North America
(including Alaska and Hawaii), the Mediterranedrg Baltic, Central America, Bermuda and the Casiob&Ve strive to offer an innovative
and differentiated cruise vacation with the goabafviding our guests the highest levels of ovesatisfaction on their cruise experience. In
turn, we aim to generate the highest guest loyaity greatest numbers of repeat guests. We credistirective style of cruising called
“Freestyle Cruising” onboard all of our ships, whige believe provides our guests with the freedathfeexibility associated with a resort
style atmosphere and experience as well as moirgdiptions than a traditional cruise. We estallisthe very first private island developed
by a cruise line in the Bahamas with a diverseroffeof activities for guests. We are also the arlyise line operator to offer an entirely inter-
island itinerary in Hawaii.

By providing such a distinctive experience and afipg combination of value and service, we stradidith the contemporary and premium
segments. As a result, we have been recognizeslifarchievements as the recipient of multiple hanpawards mainly consisting of reviews
tabulated from the readers of travel periodicathsas Travel Weekly, Condé Nast Traveler, and Traveisure. We were rated as the favc
cruise line by Budget Travel, and best for familyises by Family Circle, Yahoo! Travel, and Todagvel. In addition, we were recognized as
Europe’s leading cruise line five years in a rowtly World Travel Awards and identified as the sedine with the best use of a social media
platform by Travel + Leisure. Our newest ship, Negian Epic, was recognized as “Best Overall IndigldCruise Ship” by the Travel Weekly
Readers’ Choice Awards two years in a row.

We offer a wide variety of cruises ranging in lénffom one day to three weeks. During 2012, we ddak approximately 114 ports
worldwide, with itineraries originating from 15 gerof which 11 are in North America. In line withrostrategy of innovation, many of these
North American ports are part of c*Homeland Cruising’program in which we have homeports that are closeajor population centers, st
as New York, Boston and Miami. This reduces thadrfee vacationers to fly to distant ports to embarka cruise and helps reduce our guests
overall vacation cost. We offer a wide selectiomwdtic itineraries outside of the traditional sing markets of the Caribbean and Mexico;
these include cruises in Europe, including the Mgthnean and the Baltic, Bermuda, Alaska, andnithestry’s only entirely inter-island
itinerary in Hawaii with our U.S.-flagged ship, &ei of America. This itinerary is unparalleled i #ruise industry, as all other vessels from
competing cruise lines are registered outside ti$ &hd are required to dock at a distant foremm when providing their guests with a
Hawaii-based cruise itinerary.

Each of our 11 modern ships has been purposetbuitinsistently deliver our “Freestyle Cruisingbguct offering across our entire fleet,
which we believe provides us with a competitiveamtage. By focusing on “Freestyle Cruising,” we dnédeen able to achieve higher onboard
spend levels, greater customer loyalty and thetwlbd attract a more diverse clientele.
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As a result of our strong operating performance tive last four years, the growing demand we seedodistinctive cruise offering, and the
rational supply outlook for the industry, we bekethat it is an optimal time to add new ships toftaet. In 2010, we placed an order with
Meyer Werft GmbH of Papenburg, Germany (“Meyer Wfbr two new cruise ships, Norwegian Breakawag &lorwegian Getaway, which
are scheduled for delivery in April 2013 and Jag014, respectively, in order to continue to gt Norwegian brand and drive shareho
value. Most recently, in October 2012, we reachedgreement with Meyer Werft to build a new crigbe for delivery in the fourth quarter
2015 with an option to build a second ship witreapected delivery date in spring 2017. Currentfgnred to as “Breakaway Plus,” this new
ship will be the largest in our fleet and will bengar in design and innovation to Norwegian Breaks and Norwegian Getaway. The contract
cost of this ship is approximately €698.4 millian,$921.4 million based on the euro/U.S. dollathexe rate as of December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, we have one of the mostemmofleets of cruise ships in the industry amdregMajor North American Cruise
Brands, with a weighted-average age of 8.1 yeaitowing the delivery of Norwegian Breakaway andriNegian Getaway, which are

currently under construction, we will have the ygest fleet amongst the North American Cruise Bramtlese new ships are the next
generation of “Freestyle Cruising” and include savhthe most popular elements of our recently éebd ships together with new and
differentiated features.

Our senior management team has delivered consgtenth and has driven measurable improvementpénating metrics and cash flow
generation across several different operating enwiients. Under the leadership of our PresidentCinief Executive Officer, Kevin M.
Sheehan, we significantly differentiated the Norigedorand, largely with the “Freestyle Cruisingincept that accelerated revenue growth
contributed to improving our operating income masgby approximately 1,370 basis points since tiggniming of 2008. Our management te
was augmented in key areas such as Sales, MarkEiirigl Operations and Finance and has since imgaiéed major initiatives such as
enhancing onboard service and amenities acrogketieexpanding our European presence and ovegseaiewbuild program that included
the successful launch in June 2010 of our lardepttse date, Norwegian Epic.

Our Industry
We believe that the cruise industry demonstratesdtiowing positive fundamentals:

Strong Growth with Low Penetration and Significant Upside

Cruising is a vacation alternative with broad appasiit offers a wide range of products and sewio suit the preferences of vacationing
guests of all ages, backgrounds and interestse3i880, cruising has been one of the fastest gopesgments of the North American vacation
market. According to CLIA, in 2012 approximately.2illion passengers took cruises on CLIA membwead versus 7.2 million passenger:
2000, representing a compound annual growth ras@pifoximately 7.5%. Based on CLIA’s research, ekebe that cruising is under-
penetrated and represents approximately 12% dfithith American vacation market. As measured infB&erbr room count, the cruise industry
is relatively nascent compared to the wide varidtsnuch more established vacation travel destinatacross North America.

According to the Orlando/Orange County ConventioWi&itors Bureau and the Las Vegas Convention aisitors Authority, there are
approximately 268,000 rooms in just Orlando and Vagas combined. By comparison, the estimated Mégth American Cruise Brands’
capacity in terms of Berths is approximately 238,3@ addition, according to industry researchy@% of the U.S. population has ever ta
a cruise and we believe this percentage shouléaser. The European vacation market, the fastesirgganarket globally, remains under-
penetrated by the cruise industry, with approxityat& of Europeans having taken a cruise in a gixgar, compared with 3% of the
population in the U.S. and Canada. We believeithatoving leisure travel trends along with a relaly low supply outlook in the near term
from the Major North American Cruise Brands leadumoattractive business environment for our Compgargperate in.
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Attractive Demographic Trends to Drive Cruising Growth

The cruise market is comprised of a broad spectiuguests and appeals to virtually all demographiegories. Based on CLIA’s 2011 Cruise
Market Profile Study, the target North Americaniseumarket, defined as households with income 6f@D or more headed by a person who
is at least 25 years old, is estimated to be 18&I®n people. Also according to the study, themage cruise customer has a household incon
of $109,000. It is our belief that “Freestyle Cimgs’ will help us attract the younger generations whabekeve are more likely to enjoy gree
levels of freedom from our “Freestyle Cruising” duet offering than was traditionally offered withime cruise industry.

Significant Value Proposition and High Level of Gust Satisfaction

We believe that the cost of a cruise vacationfikeddo a comparable land-based resort or hotedti@t in Orlando or Las Vegas, offers an
exceptional value proposition. When one consideasa typical cruise, for an all-inclusive pricéfess its guests transportation to a variety of
destinations, hotel-style accommodations, a gesatduersity of food choices and a selection ofydaittertainment options, this is compelling
support for the cruise value proposition relativ@ther leisure alternatives. Cruises have becoree more affordable for a greater number of
North American guests over the past few years tfiidbe introduction c“Homeland Cruising,” which eliminates the cost afare commonly
associated with a vacation. According to CLIA’s 2Gtudy, approximately 70% of persons who havertakeruise rate cruising as a high-
value vacation alternative. In this same surveyiAQleported that approximately 80% of cruise pagses agree that a cruise vacation is a {
way to sample various destinations that they mai &gain on a land-based vacation.

High Barriers to Entry

The cruise industry is characterized by high besrie entry, including the existence of severalgisgshed and recognizable brands, the large
investment to build a new, sophisticated cruise,shie long lead time necessary to construct nepssind limited newbuild shipyard capacity.
Based on new ship orders announced over the pastadgears, the cost to build a cruise ship cagedrom approximately $500 million to
$1.4 billion or approximately $200,000 to $425,@@0 Berth, depending on the ship’s size and quefigroduct offering. The construction
time of a newbuild ship is typically between 27 rtitnto 36 months and requires significant upfrashcpayments to fund construction costs
before revenue is generated. In addition, the sfilighihg industry is experiencing tightened capaaisythe size of ships increases and the
industry consolidates, with virtually all new cajijp@dded in the last 20 years having been builbihg of three major European shipbuilders.

Varied Segments and Brands

The different cruise lines that make up the glalvaise vacation industry have historically beemsexgted by product offering and service
quality into “contemporary,” “premium” and “luxuryirands. The contemporary segment generally insladgises on larger ships that last
seven days or less, provides a casual ambiancks é&sb expensive on average than the premiunxarytsegments. The premium segment is
generally characterized by cruises that last fremen to 14 nights with a higher quality productafiig than the contemporary segment,
appealing to a more affluent demographic. The eggment generally offers the highest level ofiserand quality, with longer cruises on
the smallest ships. In classifying our competitoithin the Major North American Cruise Brands, ttentemporary segment has historically
included Carnival Cruise Lines and Royal Caribbkd@rnational. The premium segment has historidaltjuded Celebrity Cruises, Holland
America and Princess Cruises. We believe that veeldle the contemporary and premium segments dsaweffer a unique combination of
value and leisure services to cruise guests. Qurdooffers our guests a rich stateroom mix, whicuides single studios, private balconies,
luxury suites with personal butler and conciergwise as more recently enhanced by The Haven. Asopaur “Freestyle Cruising”
experience, we also offer various specialty diniagues, some of which are exclusive to our suiteTdre Haven guests. Based on fleet count
as of December 31, 2012, the Major North Americamse Brands together represent approximately 9D8teoNorth American cruise market
as measured by total Berths.
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Our Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following business strengthsemiable us to execute our strategy:
Leading Cruise Operator with High-Quality Product Offering

We believe that our modern fleet provides us wiibrational and strategic advantages as our etggetas been purpose-built for “Freestyle
Cruising” with a wider range of passenger amenitiagtive to many of our competitors.

We believe that in recent years the distinctiontieen blurred between segments of the market luatiyrknown as premium and
contemporary, with the Major North American Crugmnds each offering a wide range of onboard egpeds across their respective fleets.
With the completion of our fleet renewal initiatiwge believe that based on a number of differertiosethat directly impact a guest’s onboard
experience, we compare favorably against the ditegor North American Cruise Brands, with many prodattributes that are more in line
with the premium segment.

» Modern Fleet. With a weighted-average age of 8.1 years as of Mbee 31, 2012 and no ships built before 1998, we luae of the
most modern fleets among the Major North Americani€eé Brands, which we believe allows us to offéigh-quality passenger
experience with a significant level of consisteacyoss our entire fleet.

* Rich Stateroom Mix. As of December 31, 2012, 48% of our stateroomsphnidte balconies representing a higher mix ofidets
balcony staterooms than the other contemporarydstdn addition, five of our ships offer The Haveiith suites of up to 570 square feet
each. Guests staying in The Haven are provided péthonal butler service and exclusive accesgtivate courtyard area with a private
pool, sundecks, hot tubs, and a fitness centerofSixir ships also offer luxury garden suites otap,694 square feet, making them the
largest accommodations at sea.

* High-Quality Service. We believe we offer a very high level of onboardsgz and to further enhance this service we have
implemented the Norwegian Platinum Standards progiis program introduces specific standards esiphmey dedicated service,
consistency in execution, and overall guest satiigfa which we believe will promote customer loyalt

* Diverse Selection of Premium ltinerariesFor 2012, approximately 50% of our itineraries,@gpacity Days, were in more exotic,
underpenetrated and less traditional locationsudtieg Alaska, Hawaii, Bermuda and Europe, compaogtie other contemporary brai
which are focused primarily on itineraries in thariBbean and Mexico. This mix of destinations igenconsistent with the brands in the
premium segment, and these itineraries typicathaett higher Net Yields than Caribbean and Mexmitirgys.

We believe that this high-quality product offeripgsitions us well in comparison to the other Majarth American Cruise Brands and
provides an opportunity for continued Net Yield gtb.

“Freestyle Cruising”

The most important differentiator for our brandhie “Freestyle Cruising” concept onboard all 1bof ships. The essence of “Freestyle
Cruising” is to provide a cruise experience thédieisf more freedom and flexibility than any otheditional cruise alternative. While many
cruise lines have historically required guestsite ét assigned group tables and at specified titfesestyle Cruising” offers the flexibility
and choice to our guests who prefer to dine whew tant, with whomever they want and without havimglress formally. Additionally, we
have increased the number of activities and difaegities available onboard, allowing guests titotatheir onboard experience to their own
schedules, desires and tastes.

All of our ships have been custom designed andqagqbuilt for “Freestyle Cruising,” which we beleedifferentiates us significantly from our
major competitors. We further believe that “Frestruising” attracts a passenger base that préfertess structured, resort-style experience
of our cruises. Building on the success of “FreesBruising,” we implemented across our fleet “[Stgke 2.0” featuring significant
enhancements to our onboard product offering. Teakancements include a major investment in tta diing experience; upgrading the
stateroom experience across the ship; new widangrapboard activities for all ages; and additiorglognition, services and amenities for
premium-priced balcony, suite and The Haven gu¥gith Norwegian Epic we have enhanced “Freestyl@sing” by offering what we belie\

to be unmatched flexibility in entertainment, offgy guests a wide variety of activities and perfantes to choose from at any time of day or
night.
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Established Brand Recognition

The Norwegian Cruise Line brand is well establisimethe cruise industry with a long track recorddefivering a world class cruise product
offering to its guests. We achieve high-qualitydieack scores from our guests in the areas of dwssmalice, physical ship attributes, onboard
products and services, food and beverage offeangsoverall entertainment and labdsed excursion quality. Based on recent guestiexype
and loyalty reports, the quality of our guests’ ex@nce generates high levels of customer loyaltydemonstrated by the fact that
approximately 33% of our guests are repeat guest§ 8% say they would recommend Norwegian Cruige ko their friends and family.
Brand recognition is also strong with over 92% mfigers reporting familiarity with Norwegian. Adidibally, our brand is known for freedom,
flexibility and choice, all highly valued benefitgthin the cruise industry demographic.

Strong Cash Flow

Nearly all of our capital expenditures, other tifaose related to our newbuild projects (which atesgantially financed) and the reci
renovation of our private island, relate to themmance of our modern fleet and shoreside opestiehich includes investments in our IT
infrastructure and business intelligence systemes héle obtained export credit financing for Breadga®Ius, Norwegian Getaway and
Norwegian Breakaway which will fund approximately?8 to 90% of the required f-delivery and delivery date construction paymeass;
such, we expect the cost of our newbuild projeztsave a minimal impact on our cash flow in therrieam.

We are able to generate significant levels of ¢kt due to our ability to pre-sell tickets and ede customer deposits with long lead times
ahead of sailing. We also offer our guests theatghd advance book and prepay for certain serviteaddition, we believe that the favorable
U.S. federal income tax regime applicable to iraéional shipping income enhances our cash flow foperations which continues to
contribute significantly to deleveraging our balarsheet.

Highly Experienced Management Team

Our senior management team is comprised of exexutiith an average of 16 years in the cruise, tréeisure and hospitality-related
industries. Our executive team has streamlinedogyanization and instilled a results-driven managetnphilosophy that promotes direct
accountability and a more nimble decision-makinijuca that contributed in driving approximately Z08basis points of operating income
margin expansion since the beginning of 2008. Wiew® our stock incentive plan closely aligns thieerest of our management team and our
stockholders.

Strong Sponsors with Extensive Industry Expertise

Our Sponsors or their affiliates have extensiveseignce investing in the cruise, leisure and tragklted industries. Affiliates of the Apollo
Funds have invested significant equity and resautc¢he cruise and leisure industry with its ingent in Prestige Cruises International, Inc.
which operates through two distinct upscale crbrsends, Oceania Cruises and Regent Seven Seas<inigddition, affiliates of both Apol
and TPG have investments in Caesars Entertainnmpb@ation (“Caesars Entertainment”), with whomhee created a marketing alliance.
Affiliates of TPG are also significant investorsSabre Holdings, a leading GDS (global distribugstem) and parent of Travelocity.com.
Genting HK, headquartered in Hong Kong, operatesding Asian cruise line through its subsidiatgr&ruises Asia Holding Ltd., with
destinations in Malaysia, Singapore, Hong KongwBai, Japan, Vietnam, China and Thailand. We belieaethe synergies and purchasing
power obtained through these affiliates have redult better price negotiations for us and outiafés for selected supplies and services.

Our Business Strategies

We seek to attract vacationers by offering new petgland services and creating differentiatedrsines in new markets through new and
existing modern ships with the aim of deliveringedter, value-added, vacation experience to oustguelative to other broad-based or land-
based leisure alternatives. Our business strategikgle the following:
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Attractive Product Offerings

We have a long history of product development amdvation within the cruise industry as one ofthest established consumer brands. We
became the first cruise operator to purchase aferigland in the Bahamas and offer a private beapkrience to our guests; and we were the
first to introduce a 2,000-Berth megaship into @sibbean market in 1980. More recently, we pioegerew concepts in cruising over the lasi
decade with the development of “Homeland Cruisiagd the launch of “Freestyle Cruising.”

We continued to enhance our product offering whil delivery of Norwegian Epic in June 2010, whidters 21 dining options, a diverse rai

of accommodations and what we believe is the widesly of entertainment at sea. In addition to sshadifferentiated full-service
complimentary dining rooms, Norwegian Epic alsadeas specialty restaurants including a classiksteuse, sushi, Japanese teppanyaki,
Brazilian churrascaria, Asian noodle bar, trad#iio@hinese, fine French and Italian. Guest acconatimas on Norwegian Epic include the
groundbreaking Studios, 128 staterooms designesblortravelers centered around the Studio Louageivate two-story lounge for studio
guests. On its top decks, Norwegian Epic offershag' within a ship” in the largest suite complexseh; The Haven includes two decks with 6(
suites and penthouses, a private pool with multipletubs and sundecks, a private fitness centbst@am rooms, fine dining in the Epic Club
restaurant, casual outdoor dining at the Court@ill, and 24-hour concierge service, all exclugner guests of The Haven. Entertainment
onboard Norwegian Epic includes a wide variety rafriled entertainment for guests to choose fronydirg exclusive engagements with
Blue Man Group, Cirque Dreams & Dinner, Legend€ancert, Nickelodeon and the improvisational comiedype, The Second City.

Building on the success of Norwegian Epic, Norwaddaeakaway will include many of her most populengents, while maintaining the
innovative spirit of “Freestyle Cruising” by intrading new and differentiated features. These irellide Haven and a quarter-mile oceanfron
boardwalk, The Waterfront, which will create outdseating areas for many dining venues and loungelsiding our first seafood restaurant,
“Ocean Blue by Geoffrey Zakarian.” The centrallgdted “678 Ocean Place” will connect three enteéekd of daytime and nighttime
entertainment. Master Baker Buddy Valastro, ofgbpular TLC series “Cake Boss,” will open an exten®f Carlos Bake Shop onboard. V
will offer our guests many of the popular enteniaémt venues of Norwegian Epic such as the duelagos of “Howl at the Moon” and new
jazz and blues venues, and will also feature tI's-inspired rock musical “Rock of Ages,” ballroorantte experience “Burn the Floor” and
“Cirque Dreams & Dinner Jungle Fantasy.” We haweused a strategic partnership with the Radio Cibgkettes who will christen Norwegian
Breakaway. This relationship includes a marketiagmership that names Norwegian as the officiaiseriline of the Rockettes and Radio City
Music Hall and an exhibit showcasing the Rockettiisbe integrated into the ship. This relationshipo includes two Rockettes sailing on
select voyages and offering special fitness claasdphoto opportunities.

We have recently completed a $25 million renovatmour private island, Great Stirrup Cay, whicblinles a new marina, dining and bar
facility to enhance the guest experience, as veelifiers new activities such as wave runners aivaiter cabanas. The enhancements provide |
with additional revenue-generating opportunitiestomisland.

Maximize Net Yields

We are focused on growing our revenue through uarioitiatives aimed at increasing our ticket psied occupancy as well as onboard
spending to drive higher overall Net Yields. To nmaixe passenger ticket revenue, our revenue managestrategy is focused on optimizing
pricing and generating demand throughout the bap&urve. We utilize a base-loading strategy todiilf capacity by booking guests as early
before sailing as possible.

Base-loading is a strategy that focuses on seltimgntory further from the cruise departure dateutijzing certain sales and marketing tactics
which generate business with longer booking windd@®ese-loading allows us to fill our ships earlighich prevents discounting close to
sailing dates, in order to achieve our targetedupancy Percentages. Our specific initiatives tdeachthis include:

» Casino Player Strategy As part of this strategy, we have non-exclusivarsgements with approximately 100 casino partners
worldwide including Caesars Entertainment, in waéfiliates of both Apollo and TPG have investmemthereby loyal gaming
guests are offered cruise reward certificates maddéde for cruises on our ships. Through propergnspred events and joint
marketing
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programs, we have the opportunity to market cruisgsaesars Entertainment’s guests. These arramgemvih our casino partners
have the dual benefit of filling open inventory aedching guests expected to generate above avenégard revenue through the
casino and other onboard spendi

» Strategic Relationships Our base-loading strategy also includes strateg@tionships with travel agencies and internaticoat
operators, who commit to purchasing a certain le¥@ventory with long lead time

* Meetings, Incentives and ChartersWe are increasing our focus on the meetings, ingehtind charters channel, which typically
books very far in advance and can represent afisigni portion of the ship, or even an entire sgiliin one transactiol

We continue to focus on various initiatives to drimcreased onboard revenue across a variety a$.gdreom the year ended December 31,
to the year ended December 31, 2012, our net odtzoat other revenue yield increased by approxim&el7% from $40.58 to $51.84
primarily due to strong performance in casino, lbage sales, shore excursions and specialty di@lngstrategy for further driving increased
onboard revenue includes, among other things, géngradditional casino revenue through our arraxeggs with our casino partners,
including Caesars Entertainment and Genting HK s€lerangements incorporate marketing resouradsliteer cross-company advertising
and marketing campaigns to promote our brand. & falcus on optimizing the utilization of our st restaurants and pre-booking and
pre-selling additional onboard activities. In addit Norwegian Epic has created additional onboavénue opportunities based on our
premium entertainment offerings.

Brand Expansion Through Disciplined Newbuild Program

We have three new ships on order and an optionitd & fourth, all of which would be delivered tugh 2017. Norwegian Breakaway and
Norwegian Getaway are under construction with M&yerft and are scheduled for delivery in April 204r8d January 2014, respectively, i
each will approximate 144,000 Gross Tons and 4B#ths with an aggregate cost of approximately ®ili®n, or $1.7 billion based on the
euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of December@12.20ur financing arrangements provide for finagdior approximately 90% of the
contract price of these two ships.

In October 2012, we reached an agreement with M@egft to build a new cruise ship for delivery letfourth quarter of 2015 with an option
to build a second ship with an expected deliveng daspring 2017. Currently referred to as “Brea#g Plus,” this new ship will be the largest
in our fleet at approximately 163,000 Gross Tond 4200 Berths and will be similar in design anglowation to our current Breakaway class
ships. The contract cost of this ship is approxatya€698.4 million, or $921.4 million based on t#o/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of
December 31, 2012. We have obtained export crie@dib€ing for Breakaway Plus that provides finandmg80% of the contract price of the
ship. In addition, we have an option in place fgpat credit financing for the second ship on santerms. We believe that these ships will
allow us to continue to expand the reach of ounthnahile driving shareholder value by positioning €ompany for accelerated growth with
an optimized return on invested capital.

Improve Operating Efficiency and Lower Costs

We are continually focused on driving financial mypement through a variety of business improvenmatiatives. These initiatives are focu:
on reducing costs while at the same time improtmegoverall product we deliver to our guests. Siteebeginning of 2008, we have
significantly reduced our operating cost base thhovarious programs including contract renegotietj@mverhead rationalization, and fuel
consumption reduction initiatives. We hedge out fugchases in order to provide greater visibitifyour fuel expense. As of December 31,
2012, we had hedged approximately 69%, 48% anddf08ar projected metric tons of fuel purchases2@t 3, 2014 and 2015, respectively.
We have also reduced our maintenance expenseesaslfaf our fleet renewal program, as younger,enmodern ships are typically less costly
to maintain than older ships. Adjusted EBITDA gren$555.6 million for the year ended December 31,2from $332.3 million for the year
ended 2009 with an increase in Adjusted EBITDA Niautg 24.4% from 17.9%, respectively, (we refer yodltem 7— Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” for a calculation of AdjustEBITDA). In addition, we expect the
economies of scale from Norwegian Breakaway, Norare@etaway and Breakaway Plus to drive furtheratp®y efficiencies over the long
term.
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Expand and Strengthen Our Product Distribution Chamels

As part of our growth strategy, we are continudigking for ways to deepen and expand our cust@aless channels. We continue to invest in
our brand by enhancing our website and our redervdepartment where our travel agents and guests tie ability to book cruise vacations.
We also restructured our sales and marketing azgtian, which included the recruiting of a new axec leadership team, to provide better
focus on distribution through our primary channé&Retail/Travel Agent,” “International,” and “Meetgs, Incentives and Charters.”

» Retail/Travel Agent. We introduced our “Partners First” program, in whige have invested in travel partners’ success with
additional technology booking improvements and meavketing tools, improved communication and coofpezanarketing
initiatives. We also have implemented close to ib@didvidual projects specifically designed to impeoaur efficiency with the travel
agency channels and our guests, ranging from nmaedyt commission payments to aggressive call cejtatity monitoring. We
restructured our travel agent sales force with ifipezxpertise and we also gain access to a sicanfly larger number of travel
partners through an outbound call center basediifiami headquarters. We believe that our tragelra partners have witnesse
material improvement in our business practicesasall communicatior

* International. We have an international sales presence in Eunopeepresentatives covering Latin America, Ausdraind Asia.
We are primarily focused on increasing our busiiesse European market, which has grown signifilgain recent years but
remains underpenetrated. In Europe, we offer liticedraries year-round and our “Freestyle Cruising% been well received. We
expanded our sales force in Europe which allowt® ukevelop our distribution in Europe in a manrignilar to our U.S. operation.
In support of this European strategy, we deploy@dnewest and most sophisticated ship, Norwegiao, EpEurope for an
extended summer season in 2011 and again in 20&2réforging a closer distribution partnershigwv@enting HK, to develop
product distribution across the Asia Pacific reg

* Meetings, Incentives and Charters. This channel focuses on full ship Charters a$ agetorporate meeting and incentive travel.
These sales often have very long lead times andiltarsignificant portion of the ship’s capacityr even an entire sailing, in one
transaction. In addition, it strengthens base-logdivhich allows us to fill our ships earlier, raththan discounting close to sailing
dates, in order to achieve our targeted OccuparogeRtages. In addition, we recently acquired $igih, a company specializing
in developing and delivering music-oriented chaitarcluding productions from KISS, Kid Rock ané tBayamo festival, a cruise
featuring a wide variety of popular and emerginggseriters.

Across every distribution channel we are underkinmajor effort to grow demand with a targeteésaind marketing program for our
premium stateroom categories, including our balcamy other premium stateroom categories, with Bgodatr emphasis on our suites and The
Haven, which have increased as a percentage abtalinventory as a result of our fleet renewal.

Our Fleet

Our ships are purpose-built ships that enable psdeide our guests with the ultimate “Freestyl@i€ing” experience. Our ships have state-of
the art passenger amenities, including up to 2ihgdiaptions together with hundreds of private bajcetaterooms on each ship. As of
December 31, 2012, 48% of our staterooms havetgrhaconies representing a higher mix of outsideesooms with balconies than the other
contemporary brands. Private balcony stateroomsesepopular with guests and offer the opportufdtyincreased revenue by allowing us to
charge a premium. Five of our ships offer accomrtioda in The Haven, with suites up to 570 squae¢, fehich provide personal butler
service and exclusive access to a private courtyaad with private pool, sundecks, hot tubs, atmeééis center. In addition, six of our ships |
luxury garden suites with up to 6,694 square f@etking them the largest accommodations at seaeTlbrary garden suites offer three
separate bedroom areas, spacious living and dinoimg areas, as well as 24-hour, on-call butleranttierge service.
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We place the utmost importance on the safety oboests and crew. Every crew member is well traingtle Company’s stringent safety
protocols and participates in weekly safety dolidoard every one of our ships. In addition, oupshtilize operational closed circuit
television systems, and we use an advanced, intbased Safety and Environmental Management Sy§®EMS”) for shipboard and
shoreside procedures and self-improvement standards

Our new ships on order are the next-generatiofrdéstyle Cruising” and include some of the mostiytar elements of our recently delivered
ships together with new and differentiated featu@se such feature is The Haven, which consistsxafry suites included on our Jewel-Class
ships, as well as Norwegian Epic. We are also éhicing The Waterfront, a quarter-mile oceanfrorarbavalk which will create outdoor
seating areas for many dining venues and loundescéntrally located “678 Ocean Place” will conrtecee entire decks of daytime and
nighttime entertainment.

Continuing our tradition of new product developmant the extension of the Norwegian Cruise LinathrdNorwegian Breakaway will offer
our guests many of the popular entertainment veafiB®rwegian Epic such as the dueling pianos afWiHat the Moon” and new jazz and
blues venues, and will also feature the 80’s-irsphock musical “Rock of Ages,” ballroom dance eigrece “Burn the Floor” and “Cirque
Dreams & Dinner Jungle Fantasy.” Norwegian Breakawidl homeport year-round in New York City with mga elements of New York
incorporated into its offerings.

The hull art design is by famed New York artistdrdilax, New York-based celebrity chef Geoffrey Zada will create our first seafood-
centric dining venue, “Ocean Blue by Geoffrey Zakalt and master baker Buddy Valastro of the “Cake® television series will have a
bakery onboard. The Radio City Rockettes will dierisNorwegian Breakaway and an exhibit showcadiegRockettes will be integrated into
the ship. This relationship also includes two Raigsesailing on select voyages and offering spéitiass classes and photo opportunities.
Continuing our commitment to Miami, Norwegian Gegawsister ship to Norwegian Breakaway, with huihvark designed by Miami artist
David “LEBO” LeBatard, will homeport year-round Miami along with Norwegian Sky.

The table below provides a brief description of ships and areas of operation based on 2012 itinsra

Ship(1) Year Built Berths Gross Ton: Primary Areas of Operation

Norwegian Epic 201cC 4,10( 155,90( Caribbean, Europ

Norwegian Gen 2007 2,40( 93,50( Bahamas, Bermuda, Caribbean, Canada and
New Englanc

Norwegian Jad 200¢ 2,40( 93,60( Europe

Norwegian Peal 200¢ 2,40( 93,50( Alaska, Bahamas, Caribbean, Pacific Coastal
and Panama Can

Norwegian Jewe 200t 2,38( 93,50( Alaska, Bahamas, Caribbean, Pacific Coastal
and Panama Can

Pride of Americe 200¢ 2,14( 80,40( Hawaii

Norwegian Dawr 200z 2,34( 92,30( Bermuda, Caribbean, Canada and New Eng

Norwegian Sta 2001 2,35( 91,70( Bermuda, Caribbes

Norwegian Sur 2001 1,94( 78,30( Caribbean, Europ

Norwegian Sky 199¢ 2,00( 77,10( Bahamas

Norwegian Spirit 199¢ 2,02( 75,30( Caribbean, Europ

(1) The table does not include Norwegian Breakawaywegian Getaway and Breakaway Plus that are scheétidéuture delivery
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Itineraries

We offer cruise itineraries ranging from one dayhieee weeks calling on over 100 worldwide locadidncluding destinations in the Caribbe
Bermuda, the Bahamas, Mexico, Alaska, Europe, HalNeiv England, Central America, North Africa anchSdinavia. We have developed,
and are continuing to develop, innovative itinexario position our ships in new and niche marketsell as in the mainstream markets
throughout the Americas and Europe. For the yede@®ecember 31, 2012, approximately 50% of oneitiries, by Capacity Days, were in
more exotic, under-penetrated and less traditimtaltions (areas outside of the Caribbean and Bakpwhich we believe allows us to
generate higher Net Yield.

Ports and Facilities

We have an agreement with the Government of Bermndmeby two of our ships are permitted weeklyscallBermuda through 2018 from
Boston, Baltimore, Charleston and New York. In éiddi we own a private island in the Bahamas, G&iatup Cay, which we utilize as a
port-of-call on some of our itineraries. We haweoatract with the New York City Economic Developrh@uwrporation pursuant to which we
receive preferential berthing rights on specifierpiat the city’s passenger ship terminals. Thestegential berthing rights provide us with the
ability to elect specific terminals, piers, and @iing days 15 months in advance of such schedutace sailings. Furthermore, we have
contracts with the Port of New Orleans and the BbMiami pursuant to which we receive preferentiafths to the exclusion of other vessels
for certain specified days of the week at the sittguise ship terminals. The preferential berthiigdpts provide us with priority use of selected
cruise ship terminals and operating days 12 manthslvance of such scheduled future sailings. We laaconcession permit with the U.S.
National Park Service whereby our ships are peenhitb call on Glacier Bay 22 times through Septem308e 2019 during each summer cru
season. We believe that our facilities are adedoateur current needs, and that we are capabdbtafining additional facilities as necessary.
The $25 million renovation to our private islande@t Stirrup Cay, includes a new dining and baitifato enhance the guest experience, as
well as offering new activities such as wave rusrard private cabanas. The enhancements will praxgdvith additional revenue generating
opportunities on the island.

Revenue Management Practic

Our cruise ticket prices generally include cruiseefand a wide variety of onboard activities ane@ities, including meals and entertainment.
In some instances, cruise ticket prices includedetuip airfare to and from the port of embarkatiBnices vary depending on the particular
cruise itinerary, stateroom category selected hadiine of year that the voyage takes place. Wermgés additional revenue on our ships
principally from casino operations, beverage sapscialty dining, shore excursions, gift shop pases, spa services and other similar items.

Passenger Ticket Revenue

We base our ticket pricing and revenue managenreatstrategy that encourages travelers to book ead secure attractive savings. This is
accomplished through a revenue management systeignée to maximize Net Yield by matching projecéedilability to anticipated future
passenger demand. We perform extensive analyses ofatabases in order to determine booking histad/trends by sailing, stateroom
category, travel partner, market segment, itinesany distribution channel. In addition, we estdblisset of stateroom categories throughout
each cruise ship and price our cruise fares obaisés of these stateroom categories. Typicallyirtii@l published fares are established at leas
18 months in advance of the departure of a cruisdevel which, under normal circumstances, waurttide a high occupancy. If the rate at
which stateroom inventory is sold differs from egagions, we will raise or lower the prices of eatteroom category accordingly. This can
be done through promotions, special rate codesiiogand closing categories, or price changes.réwgnue management tool, which is
typical of what is used by our major competitordNiorth America, tracks and forecasts overall bogldemand and provides optimal pricing
and selling limit recommendations on a daily babise system allows us to better optimize our bogkinrve and shorten the time to
implement pricing decisions, and is designed tinuge revenue for the full range of stateroom catesg, thereby reducing the need for last
minute discounting to fill ships.
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Onboard and Other Revenue

Ticket prices typically include cruise accommodasiomeals in certain dining facilities and many aenid activities such as entertainment,
poolside activities and various sports programs. Wegga additional revenue on our ships principatiyf casino operations, beverage si
specialty dining, shore excursions, gift shop pasgs, spa services and other similar items. Onlaoatather revenue is an important
component of our revenue base representing 29.584rd?012 total revenue. To maximize onboard regeme use various cross marketing
and promotional tools and are supported by poirgadé systems permitting “cashless” transactionghi®e sale of these onboard products and
services. Food and beverage, gaming and shorestosiare managed directly by the Company whiklrshops, spa services, art auctions
and internet services are managed through contréittghird-party concessionaires. These contracts generdiljeaus to a fixed percentage
the gross sales derived from these concessions.

Seasonality

The seasonality of the North American cruise indugenerally results in the greatest demand foisesuduring the summer months. This
predictable seasonality in demand has resulteldi@tufations in our revenue and results of operatidime seasonality of our results is increase
due to ships being taken out of service for redylscheduled Dry-docks, which we typically scheddilging non-peak demand periods.

Sales and Marketing
Product Distribution Channels and Sales

We sell our product through our primary distribatichannels: retail/travel agent, international erektings, incentives and charters. The
retail/travel agent channel represents the majofityur ticket sales. Guests utilizing this chanvmbk their cruises through independent travel
agents who sell our itineraries on a non-exclusieemission-based basis. Given the importanceeofdtail/travel agent channel, a major
focus of our marketing strategy is motivating angmorting our travel agent partners. Our travetn@rbase is comprised of an extensive
network of approximately 23,000 independent tragencies including brick and mortar, internet-basedi home-based operators located in
North America, South America, Europe, Asia and Aal&t.

We implemented close to 100 projects specificatlgigned to improve efficiency with our travel parmand guests, ranging from more timely
commission payments to aggressive call centertyualdbnitoring. We also restructured our travel agees force, allowing us to more
effectively support the larger accounts with sge@kpertise and also gain access to a signifigdatger number of travel partners through an
outbound call center.

Outside of the U.S., we have an international sgalesence in Europe and representatives coveritig America, Australia and Asia. We are
primarily focused on increasing our business inUhé&ed Kingdom and Continental Europe markets,ciwtiiave grown significantly in recent
years and where we now offer local itineraries -round. We have modified our itineraries to inceedemand by appealing to guests in
different markets including the United Kingdom JytaGermany and Spain. We have had success witbase-loading initiatives in Europe,
where our “Freestyle Cruising” has been well reedj\and are in the process of building our salesefin Europe.

Finally, our meetings, incentives and charters obafocuses on full ship Charters as well as cafgomeeting and incentive travel. These ¢
often have very long lead times and can repressigiraficant portion of the ship, or even an ensiafling, in one transaction. In addition, it
strengthens base-loading, which allows us to il ships earlier, rather than discounting closgaiting dates, in order to achieve our targeted
Occupancy Percentages.

Across all channels, we are also undertaking a medifort to grow demand with a targeted sales aadketing program for our premium
stateroom categories, including The Haven, whickehacreased significantly as a percentage of aiat inventory as a result of our fleet
renewal.

Supporting our sales efforts across several digftah channels are our call centers located inid#grArizona, the United Kingdom and
Germany with approximately 700 personnel orientadards servicing travel agents. We believe thatdiverse locations should minimize
risks associated with natural disasters, labor etar&nd other factors which could impact the oj@maif our call centers.
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Marketing, Brand Communications and Advertising

Our marketing department works to enhance our baavateness and increase levels of engagement aedstending of our product and
services among consumers, trade and travel partbers areas within the department include braradesjy, advertising and media, marketing
communications, direct marketing, customer loyaligpsite/interactive and market research. All mimgesupports our comprehensive brand
platform created expressly to leverage our unidtreéstyle Cruising” concept. With this emphasis |lausmched a new brand platform in
October 2011, “Cruise Like a Norwegian,” whichrnigended to develop community around Norwegian @rlise and communicates our
commitment to providing an exceptional vacationazignce. The media mix has included televisiomtpradio, digital, enail and direct mai

In addition to our NCL University online, which @ informative travel partner education programjmeduced a new component to our
travel partner marketing, “Partners First.” As aulg a survey with travel agents indicates we himgroved in ease of doing business.

We have made significant progress in expandingiarketing reach with our online products and sewi©ur website, www.ncl.com, serving
both our travel agency partners and guests, hasde®jor focus of this momentum. We are contiguatihancing our website to ensure that i
communicates our brand promise, promotes relevalust information and aligns with our “Cruise LieeNorwegian” and “Freestyle
Cruising” messages. Our consumer and travel ageartgier booking engine provides travel agency pastand guests the ability to shop and
purchase any of our worldwide cruise itinerariethvai more intuitive and informative online expedenWe continue to develop additional
functionality and tools to serve our travel agepaytners and guests.

Sustainable customer loyalty of our past guesas isnportant element of our marketing strategy.Bkeve that attending to our past guests’
needs and motivations creates a cost-effective snebattracting business, particularly to our némeraries, because past guests are familiar
with our brand, products and services and ofteurmeb our ships. The Norwegian Cruise Line loygitggram has been improved and is now
known as Latitudes Rewards. Improvements to theltgyrogram include incentives and rewards allgypeople to earn points based on the
number of cruise nights, level of accommodatiors @rtain booking windows. Members of this prograeeive periodic mailings with
informative destination information and cruise puadimns that include special pricing, shipboard @sednd onboard recognition. Also, avid
cruisers can use our co-branded credit card togagrades and discounts.

Customer feedback and research is also a critizajprtant element in the development of our overarketing and business strategies. In
2008, we instituted a process for measuring aneénstahding key drivers of customer loyalty ands$atition from our guests that provides
valuable insights into the cruise experience. VWrilaly initiate custom research studies among batvel partners and consumers to asse!
impact of various programs and/or to solicit feedkbthat helps shape future direction.

Ship Operations and Cruise Infrastructur
Ship Maintenance

In addition to routine repairs and maintenanceqvaréd on an ongoing basis and in accordance witlicaible requirements, each of our ships
is generally taken out of service, approximatelgrg\24 to 60 months, for a period of one or morekgdor scheduled maintenance work,
repairs and improvements performed in Dry-dock.-Bogk duration is a statutory requirement contbllader the chapters of SOLAS and to
some extent the International Load Lines Conventitmder these regulations, it is required thatsspager ship Dry-dock twice in 5 years anc
the maximum duration between each Dry-dock canxceed 3 years. However, most of our internatiohgdssqualify under a special
exemption provided by the Bahamas (flag state) afieeting certain criteria set forth by the Bahaoadry-dock once every 5 years. To the
extent practical, each ship’s crew, catering anelrstaff remain with the ship during the Dry-dquériod and assist in performing repair and
maintenance work. We do not earn revenue whilesship Dry-docked. Accordingly, Dry-dock work is iyally performed during non-peak
demand periods to minimize the adverse effect vamege that results from ships being out of seniing-docks are typically scheduled in
spring or autumn and depend on shipyard availgbilit

Suppliers

Our largest capital expenditures are for ship gontbn and acquisition. Our largest operating exiieres are for fuel, food and beverage,
travel agent services and advertising and markehiftogt of the supplies that we require are avadldldm numerous sources at competitive
prices. In addition, owing to the large quantitiest we purchase, we can obtain favorable pricesfmy of our supplies. Our purchases are
denominated primarily in U.S. dollars. Payment tigranted by the suppliers are generally custortesinys for the cruise industry.
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Crew and Passenger Safety

We place the utmost importance on the safety ofoests and crew. We operate all of our vessetsetet and exceed the requirements of the
SOLAS convention and the International Safety M@&magnt Code maritime standards, the internatiorfatyseequirements which govern the
cruise industry. Every crew member is well traiirethe Company’s stringent safety protocols, pgréiting in weekly safety drills onboard
every one of our ships.

Our Captains are experienced seafarers. We fuetigire that our Captains regularly undergo rigosimsilation training on navigation and
bridge operations. To assist our Captains and @fiwhile at sea, we have extensive navigatioropads in place. Our bridge operations are
based on a two-person team approach. Accordirugyetare always two officers in charge of bridgerafions, mandating strict adherence to
operating procedures. Furthermore, our bridge tdatimsv pre-set voyage plans which are thorouglelyiewed and discussed by the Captain
and bridge team prior to port departures and deiva addition, all of our ships employ the latette-of-the-art navigational equipment and
technology to ensure that our bridge teams haventist accurate data regarding the planned itinerary

Prior to every cruise setting sail, we hold a maoigasafety drill for all guests during which impant safety information is reviewed and
demonstrated. We also show an extensive safety widiéch runs continuously on the stateroom telewisi Our fleet is equipped with modern
navigational control and fire prevention and cohsystems. In recent years, our ships have contisiydeen upgraded and include internal
external regulatory audits. We have installed Hig=€prinklers in the engine rooms of the ships inflaet, as required by the IMO regulation.
The navigation centers on our ships are also eqdippth voyage data recorders (“VDRs"), which arilar in concept to the black boxes
used in commercial aircraft. The VDRs permit uamalyze safety incidents. Our ships utilize operali closed circuit television systems that
enhance our training, assist in investigationsarport the safety of guests and crew.

We have developed the Safety and Environmental iyemant System (“SEMS”). This advanced, intraneebaystem establishes the
policies, procedures, training, qualification, dtyalcompliance, audit, and self-improvement stadddor all employees, both shipboard and
shoreside. It also provides real-time reports afahimation to support the fleet and risk managendeotsions. Through this system, our seniol
managers, as well as ship management, can focosnsistent, high quality operation of the fleeteTSEMS is approved and audited annually
by our classification society Det Norske VeritadN\D), and the system also undergoes regular inteudits as well as an annual audit by the
U.S. Coast Guard. We screen and train our crewgare crew familiarity and proficiency with the ssf equipment onboard. Various safety
measures have been implemented on all of our siigsgdditional personnel have been appointed isloiproperations departments. We
believe that we are in compliance with current tieahd safety rules and regulations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we employed approxim&¢l@0 full-time employees worldwide in our shoresaperations. We also employed
approximately 11,700 shipboard employees. Alsorefer you to “Risk Factors— Amendments to the aiile bargaining agreements for
crew members of our fleet and other employee midtisues may adversely affect our financial re8titr more information regarding our
relationships with union employees and our collechargaining agreements that are currently ineplac

Insurance

We maintain insurance on the hull and machineryurfships, which are maintained in amounts reltadtie estimated market value of each
ship. The coverage for each of the hull and mackipelicies is maintained with syndicates of insum@ underwriters from the European and
U.S. insurance markets.
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In addition to the insurance coverage on the mdl machinery of our ships discussed above, we tgelaintain comprehensive insurance
coverage at commercially reasonable rates andvedii@t our current coverage is at appropriatel$eeeprotect against most of the accident-
related risks involved in the conduct of our busméNe carry:

» Protection and indemnity insurance (that covensl-party liabilities), including insurance againskrisf fuel spill;

* Hull and machinery insurance, war risk insuraneeluding terrorist risk insurance, on each shipnmamount equal to the total
insured hull value, subject to certain coveragétindeductibles and exclusions. The terms of car nigk policies include
provisions where underwriters can give seven dagste to the insured that the policies will beagled in the event of a change
of risk which is typical for policies in the marimedustry. Upon any proposed cancellation the ieisshall, before expiry of the
seven day period, submit new terr

« Tour operator insuranc
» Insurance for cash onboard; &
» Insurance for our shoreside property and genexailiby risks.

We believe that all of our insurance coverage udiclg those noted above, is subject to market-stahidmitations, exclusions and deductible
levels.

The Athens Convention Relating to the Carriageasfdengers and Their Luggage by Sea (1974) (theet&tonvention”) and the Protocol to
the Athens Convention Relating to the Carriageasfsengers and Their Luggage by Sea (1976) (thes"B8dtocol”) are generally applicable
to passenger ships. The U.S. has not ratified thess Convention; however, with limited exceptidhg, 1976 Protocol may be contractually
enforced with respect to cruises that do not d¢adl d.S. port. The International Maritime OrganiaatDiplomatic Conference agreed to a new
protocol to the Athens Convention on November D2@he “2002 Protocol”). The 2002 Protocol, whiws not yet entered into force,
establishes for the first time a level of compuwsiaisurance which must be maintained by passerngeroperators with a right of direct action
against the insurer. The timing of the entry irdcé of the 2002 Protocol, if achieved at all,ikmown. No assurance can be given that
affordable and secure insurance markets will bdable to provide the level and type of coveragguieed under the 2002 Protocol. If the 2002
Protocol enters into force, we expect insurancésossuld increase.

On December 31, 2012, the EU Passenger LiabiliuRéion became effective and requires us to caminimum level of financial
responsibility per passenger per incident.

Trademarks

We own a number of registered trademarks relatngmong other things, the names “NORWEGIAN CRULSHEE,” “CRUISE LIKE A
NORWEGIAN. the names of our ships (except where trademapkicgiions for these have been filed and are pey)dincentive programs
and specialty services rendered on our ships agdladfy accommodations such as “THE HAVEN BY NORWE®S.” In addition, we own
registered trademarks relating to the “FREESTY L&thily of names, including, “FREESTYLE CRUISING,” REESTYLE DINING” and
“FREESTYLE VACATION.” Other significant marks include our SCHOOL OF FIBHSIGN marks that display one fish swimming aga&
school of fish. We believe our “NORWEGIAN CRUISENE,” “CRUISE LIKE A NORWEGIAN,” “THE HAVEN BY NORWEGIAN”"
“FREESTYLE CRUISING,” “FREESTYLE DINING,” and “FRE&TYLE VACATION,” the names of our ships as wellthe SCHOOL OF
FISH DESIGN and CRUISE LIKE A NORWEGIAN logos arédely recognized throughout North America and Eerapd have considerable
value.

Competition

We compete in the multi-night global cruise vaaatiedustry. Although this sector has grown sigrifitty over the past decade, it still remains
a relatively small part of the broadly defined glbbacation market that has historically been dated by land-based vacation alternatives.
The different cruise brands that make up the glohsike vacation industry historically have beegnsented by product offering and service
quality into contemporary, premium and luxury casisThe contemporary segment generally includdseswn larger ships that last seven
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days or less, provides a casual ambiance andsilgrensive than the premium or luxury segments.premium segment generally is
characterized by cruises that last from seven toigHts with a higher quality product offering thidwe contemporary segment, appealing to a
more affluent demographic. The luxury segment gaheoffers the highest level of services and gyaliith longer cruises on the smallest
ships. We compete primarily with the other MajorrtioAmerican Cruise Brands, which together compaigproximately 90% of the North
American cruise market as measured by total Befthese brands include Carnival Cruise Lines andaRGgribbean International which
comprise the contemporary segment and Holland AragRrincess Cruises and Celebrity Cruises whielpart of the premium segment. A«
December 31, 2012, Norwegian Cruise Line accoufttedpproximately 11% of the Major North AmericaruGe Brandstapacity in terms ¢
Berths. We compete against all of these operatamsipally on the quality of our ships, our diffetéated product offering, selection of our
itineraries and value proposition of our cruise® &0 face competition from nandise vacation alternatives, including beach tissgolf anc
tennis resorts, theme parks, land-based gamingtipes, and other hotels and tourist destinations.

Regulatory Issue:
Registration of Our Ships

Ten of the ships that we currently operate aresteggd in the Bahamas. One of our ships, Pridenadrica , is a U.S.-flagged ship. Our ships
registered in the Bahamas are inspected at leasb#y pursuant to Bahamian requirements. Our tk§istered ship is subject to laws and
regulations of the U.S. federal government andatgous U.S. federal regulatory agencies, including,not limited to, the U.S. Public Health
Service and the U.S. Coast Guard. Our U.S.-flagpulis also regulated by the Food and Drug Adriaiion (“FDA”) and U.S. Department
of Labor.

Our entire fleet is also subject to the health saféty laws and regulations of the various porales where the ships dock. The U.S. and the
Bahamas are members of the IMO and have adopteigueimented the IMO conventions relating to ocgamg passenger ships. U.S. law
generally requires ships transporting passengeissxely between and among ports in the U.S. tbuik entirely in the U.S., documented
under U.S. law, crewed by Americans and owned byiemnthat are at least 75% owned and controlletd I5. citizens. We have been granted
specific authority to operate in and among thenidéaof Hawaii under legislation, known as the “Hawauise Ship Provision,” which was part
of the “Consolidated Appropriations Resolution, 308nacted in 2003 (Public Law 108-7, Division Btld |, General Provisions—
Department of Commerce, Section 211 (February @Q03p(117 Stat. 11,79)). The Hawaii Cruise Shipvigion permitted two partially
completed ships (originally contracted for condfiarcin a U.S. shipyard by an unrelated partyheéacompleted in a shipyard outside of the
U.S. and documented under the U.S. flag even ibttveer does not meet the 75% U.S. ownership reaaing, provided that the direct owning
entity is organized under the laws of the U.S. mmeets certain U.S. citizen officer and directomiegments. Presently, only one of the two
ships completed in compliance with the Hawaii Geuship Provision, Pride of America, operates as&-flagged ship. The other, Pride of
Hawal'i, was transferred to the Bahamas registy @gperates as Norwegian Jade. The Hawaii Cruige Bfovision also authorized the re-
documentation under the U.S. flag of one additidoadign-built cruise ship for operation betweerslUports in the islands of Hawaii, Pride of
Aloha. In May 2008, Pride of Aloha was transfertedhe Bahamas registry and operates as NorwedianT®e Hawaii Cruise Ship Provision
imposes certain requirements, including that anmywarranty work be performed in the U.S., exceptdare of emergency or lack of
availability, and that the ship operates primabigtween and among the islands of Hawaii. As a re$ahis exemption, our U.S.-flagged ship
deployed in Hawaii is able to cruise between U@tspin Hawaii without the need to call at a forejuprt.

Health and Environment

Our various ports of call subject our ships torin&tional and U.S. laws and regulations relatingrteironmental protection, including but not
limited to MARPOL. Under such laws and regulations, are prohibited from, among other things, disgimg certain materials, such as
petrochemicals and plastics, into the waterwayecHipally, in the U.S., we comply with the newipplemented U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency’s Vessel General Discharge permit

Also in the U.S., we must meet the U.S. Public He3Ekrvice’'s requirements, including ratings bypistors from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (“CDC”) and the FDA. We beB we rate at the top of the range of CDC and BBa#kes achieved by the major cruise
lines. In addition, the cruise industry and the URP8blic Health Service have agreed on regulation®od, water and hygiene to assist cruise
lines in achieving the highest health and sanitastandards on cruise ships.
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In 2012, we received our International OrganizafmmStandardization’s (“1ISO”) 9001:2008 certificat which is the primary globally
accepted standard for quality assurance and quumdifprmance. This is a milestone which sets thgesfor quality operations and guest
satisfaction. Furthermore, Norwegian is certifiedier the ISO 14001 Standard. This voluntary stahdats requirements for establishment
implementation of a comprehensive environmentalagament system which we have adopted for our apasatCurrently we operate under
an Environmental Management Plan that is incorgdratto the SEMS program.

Pursuant to FMC and U.S. Coast Guard regulatioashave covered our financial responsibility witBpgect to death or injury to passengers
and water pollution by providing required guarastffem our insurers with respect to such poteffiailities. This includes obtaining
Certificates of Financial Responsibility requiredthe U.S. Coast Guard relating to our ability atisfy liabilities in cases of water pollution.

Permits for Glacier Bay, Alaska

In connection with certain of our Alaska cruise @t®ns, we rely on concession permits from the. ll&ional Park Service to operate our
ships in Glacier Bay National Park and Preserve cWeently hold a concession permit allowing for@ls per summer cruising season
through September 30, 2019. However, there caml@ssurance that such permit will be renewed wieeessary or that regulations relatin
the renewal of such permit will remain unchangethafuture.

Security and Safety

Pursuant to provisions adopted by the IMO, allsiships were required to be certified as havifgfysarocedures that comply with the
requirements of the International Management Codéhe Safe Operation of Ships and for Pollutioevention (“ISM Code”). We have
obtained certificates certifying that our shipsiareompliance with the ISM Code. Each such cedi is granted for a five-year period and is
subject to periodic verification.

We believe that our ships currently comply withraljuirements of the IMO and the U.S. and Bahartégs, including but not limited to
SOLAS, MARPOL and STCW. The SOLAS requirementsaanended and extended by the IMO from time to tiRoe.example, the
International Port and Ship Facility Code (“ISPSI€Y, was adopted by the IMO in December 2002 angiges for measures strengthening
maritime security and places new requirements aeigonents, port authorities and shipping compainieslation to security issues on ships
and in ports. We comply with the ISPS Code.

In addition to the requirements of the ISPS Codde,U.S. Congress enacted the Maritime Transpont&exurity Act of 2002 (“MTSA"),

which implements a number of security measure®ws jin the U.S. including measures that apphhipsregistered outside the U.S. docking
at ports in the U.S. The U.S. Coast Guard has ghsdi MTSA regulations that require a security tarevery ship entering the territorial
waters of the U.S., provide for identification r@g@ments for ships entering such waters and estabhirious procedures for the identification
of crew members on such ships. We believe our i@t compliance with the requirements imposedruipbdy the MTSA and the U.S. Coast
Guard regulations. The Transportation Workers lifieation Credential is a federal requirement foc@ssibility into and onto U.S. ports and
U.S.-flagged ships. We are in compliance with thiguirement.

Amendments to SOLAS required that ships construicteatcordance with pre-1974 SOLAS requirementslhautomatic sprinkler systems
by December 31, 2005. Failure to comply with thd 86 requirements with respect to any ship will, amg®ther things, restrict the operatis
of such ship in the U.S. and many other jurisdittsioVe are in compliance with these requirements.

IMO adopted an amendment to SOLAS which requireggbdulkheads on stateroom balconies to be ofecmmbustible construction. Existit
ships are required to comply with this SOLAS ameadtiy the first statutory survey after July 1, 08Il of our ships are in compliance w
the SOLAS amendment. The new SOLAS regulation amgtiRange Identification and Tracking (“LRIT") engerinto force on January 1,
2008. This allows SOLAS contracting governmentgaryo set up and test the LRIT system and shipatgrs a year to start fitting
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the necessary equipment or upgrading so thatsh@s can transmit LRIT information. Ships constedoon or after December 31, 2008 must
be fitted with a system to automatically transrhé tdentity of the ship, the position of the sHaiifude and longitude) and the date and time o
the position. Ships constructed before Decembe@08 must be fitted with the equipment not labantthe first survey of the radio
installation after December 31, 2008. We are ingitance with these requirements.

Financial Requirements

The FMC requires evidence of financial respongipfor those offering transportation on passeng@ssoperating out of U.S. ports to
indemnify passengers in the event of non-performariche transportation. Accordingly, we are reedito maintain a $15.0 million thindarty
performance guarantee on our behalf in respedaloilities for non-performance of transportatiordarther obligations to passengers. Propose
regulations would revise the financial requirememith respect to both death/injury and non-perfamoeacoverages. Also, we have a legal
requirement for us to maintain a security guarabsesed on cruise business originated from the diitagdom and have a bond with the
Association of British Travel Agents currently vatuat British Pound Sterling 3.2 million. We alse gequired to establish financial
responsibility by other jurisdictions to meet likitlyiin the event of non-performance of our obligas to passengers from those jurisdictions.

Taxation
Taxation of Operating Income: In General

This discussion is based on the Internal Revenuwe ©61986, as amended (the “Code”), existing faxal temporary regulations thereunder,
and current administrative rulings and court decisj all as in effect on the date of this filinglal of which are subject to change, possibly
with retroactive effect. Changes in these auttemithay cause the tax consequences to vary subditafitm the consequences described
below. The following discussion does not purporbéoa comprehensive description of all of the Ee8eral income tax considerations
applicable to us.

Unless exempt from U.S. federal income taxatidioraeign corporation is subject to U.S. federal meotax in respect of any income that is
derived from the use of vessels, from the hiringgasing of vessels for use on a time, voyage et charter basis or from the performanc
of services directly related to those uses, callett referred to as “shipping income,” to the axtéhat the shipping income is derived from
sources within the U.S.

For these purposes, shipping income attributabteattsportation that begins or ends, but that doe¢s®oth begin and end, in the U.S., which
we refer to as U.S.-source international shippiogpime, will be considered to be 50% derived fronrses within the U.S.

The legislative history of the transportation in@source rules suggests that a cruise that begiherads in a U.S. port, but that calls on one c
more foreign ports, will derive U.S.-source incoamdy from the first and last legs of such cruisewgver, since there are no U.S. Treasury
Regulations or other U.S. Internal Revenue SerfieS”) guidance with respect to these rules, thplizability of the transportation income
source rules described above is not free from doubt

No portion of shipping income attributable to trpogation exclusively between r-U.S. ports will be considered to be derived fravarses
within the U.S. Such shipping income will not béat to any U.S. federal income tax. Shipping meaattributable to transportation
exclusively between U.S. ports will be consideeti¢ 100% derived from U.S. sources.

Unless exempt from tax under Section 883 of theeC¢iflany U.S.-sourced shipping income or any oieome that is considered to be
effectively connected with the conduct of a U.&d# or business (“effectively connected incomes)discussed below under “—Taxation in
Absence of Section 883 Exemptiontpuld be subject to federal corporate income taxabin a net basis (generally at a 35% rate) and ate
local taxes, and NCLH’s effectively connected eagsiand profits may also be subject to an additioreanch profits tax of 30% (the “net tax
regime”) and (ii) if not considered to be effectiveonnected income, any U.S.-source income woaldubject to a 4% tax on gross income
provided under Section 887 of the Code (the “4%meg).
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The U.S.-source portion of our income that is igpiging income (including our U.S.-flagged operatipis generally subject to the net tax
regime. U.S. Treasury Regulations list several §@fincome which are not considered to be inciadwotthe international operation of ships
and, to the extent derived from U.S. sources, @bgest to U.S. federal income taxes. Income itearsiclered non-incidental to the
international operation of ships include incomenfrihe sale of single-day cruises, shore excursangsnd other transportation, and pre-and
post-cruise land packages. We believe that sulialigrdll of our income currently derived from th@ernational operation of ships is shipping
income.

To the extent funds are legally available, theagreement governing the NCL Corporation Units piesithat NCLC will make cash
distributions, which we refer to as “tax distritarts,”to the holders of the NCL Corporation Units (inghglthe Management NCL Corporat
Units) if ownership of the NCL Corporation Unitsygs rise to U.S. taxable income for the holder. Di@. taxable income attributable to
NCLH'’s ownership of NCL Corporation Units may be diffet from the relative U.S. taxable income attriblgéao the Management NCL
Corporation Units. In that case, tax distributiomay be made on a non-pro rata basis with the tolofevanagement NCL Corporation Units
possibly receiving relative tax distributions gexahan the tax distributions received by NCLH. Emaily, these tax distributions will be
computed based on an estimate of the taxable incdetermined for U.S. federal income tax purpoakscable to the NCL Corporation Unit
holder multiplied by the U.S. federal and stateome tax rate applicable to each holder, as detewdlriimthe sole discretion of NCLH.

Exemption of Operating Income from U.S. Federal Inome Taxation

Under Section 883 of the Code and the related atiguk, a foreign corporation will be exempt fronSUfederal income taxation on its U.S.-
source international shipping income if; (a) ibrganized in a qualified foreign country, whicloise that grants an “equivalent exemption”
from tax to corporations organized in the U.S.dgpect of each category of shipping income for tieixemption is being claimed under
Section 883 of the Code, and to which we refehas'€ountry of Organization Testand (b) either: (1) more than 50% of the valugobtock

is beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, bgdalified shareholders,” which includes individualso are “residents” of a qualified foreign
country, to which we refer as the “50% OwnershigtT,g2) one or more classes of its stock represgnin the aggregate, more than 50% of
the combined voting power and value of all clagfats stock are “primarily and regularly traded @me or more established securities market
in a qualified foreign country or in the U.S. (areftain exceptions do not apply), to which we refethe “Publicly Traded Test”; or (3) itis a
“controlled foreign corporation” and it satisfies awnership test, to which, collectively, we refsrthe “CFC Test.” In addition, U.S. Treasury
Regulations require a foreign corporation and daeéits direct and indirect shareholders to $gtitetailed substantiation and reporting
requirements.

Bermuda, the jurisdiction where we are incorporaled been officially recognized by the IRS as aifjed foreign country that currently
grants the requisite equivalent exemption fromitapespect of each category of shipping income xpeet to earn in the future. Therefore,
NCLH will satisfy the Country of Organization Testd will likely be exempt from U.S. federal incomagation with respect to our U-source
international shipping income if NCLH is able tdisfy any one of the 50% Ownership Test, the Plplicaded Test or the CFC Test. As
discussed further below, as of the date of thisdjlwe expect to satisfy the Publicly Traded Test.

The regulations under Section 883 of the Code pgegin pertinent part, that a corporation will méwt Publicly Traded Test if one or more
classes of stock of a foreign corporation représgnin the aggregate, more than 50% of the contbunding power and value of all classes of
stock are “primarily and regularly traded on onemmre established securities markets” in a quadlifteeign country or in the U.S. A class of
stock will be considered to be “primarily traded? an established securities market in a counttyeifnumber of shares of such class of stock
that are traded during any taxable year on albdéisteed securities markets in that country exceleesumber of shares of such stock that are
traded during that year on established securitikets in any other single country.

Under the regulations, a class of stock will besidered to be “regularly traded” on an establiskeclrities market if (a) such class of stock is
listed on such market, (b) such class of stockaided on such market, other than in minimal quiastibn at least 60 days during the taxable
year or one sixth of the days in a short taxabb yand (c) the aggregate number of shares ofdash of stock traded on such market du

the taxable year is at least 10% of the averagebeuwnf shares of such class of stock outstandimigglguch year, or as appropriately adjustec
in the case of a short taxable year.
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The regulations provide that the trading frequeguog trading volume tests will be deemed satisfiedclass of stock is traded on an establi:
securities market in the U.S. and is regularly qddiy dealers making a market in such stock.

The regulations provide, in pertinent part, thateess of stock will not be considered to be “regyltraded” on an established securities marke
for any taxable year in which 50% or more of théstanding shares of such class of stock are ownedare than half the days during the
taxable year by persons who each own 5% or motleeobutstanding shares of such class of stockhtohwe refer as the “Five Percent
Override Rule.” The “Five Percent Override Rule'llwibt apply if we can substantiate that the nundfeMCLH’s ordinary shares owned for
more than half of the number of days in the taxgbter (1) directly or indirectly applying attribati rules, by its qualified shareholders, and
(2) by its non-5% shareholders, is greater than 60#& outstanding ordinary shares.

As of the date of this filing, we expect that wele eligible to claim the Section 883 tax exerapton the basis of the Publicly Traded Test.
Since NCLH's ordinary shares are traded on the NAQE5Iobal Select Market, which is considered taabeestablished securities market,
NCLH expects that its ordinary shares will be degneebe“primarily traded” on an established securities kearFurthermore, we believe
NCLH will meet the trading volume requirements diésed previously because the pertinent regulatmoside that trading volum
requirements will be deemed to be met with resfreatclass of equity traded on an established gesumarket in the U.S., where the class of
equity is regularly quoted by dealers who regularig actively make offers, purchases and salegalf equity to unrelated persons in the
ordinary course of business.

As of the date of this filing, NCLH’s direct 5% sleaolders may own more than 50% of its ordinaryesha\evertheless, we believe, and have
obtained substantiation supporting such beliet, e number of NCLH'’s ordinary shares owned byis-5% shareholders and NCLH'’s
qualified shareholders is greater than 50% obitsl toutstanding ordinary shares. Based on theyfing, as of the date of this filing, we belit
that NCLH’s ordinary shares will be considered ¢o*primarily and regularly traded on an establishedurities market” and that NCLH and
each of its corporate subsidiaries in which NCLHewnore than 50% of the value of the outstandiogksand that is organized in a qualifyi
foreign country will therefore qualify for the Sext 883 tax exemption. However, there are factiralmstances beyond our control, including
changes in the direct and indirect owners of NCLbtdinary shares or the status of certain of ili§jgd shareholders, which could cause
NCLH or its subsidiaries to lose the benefit okttax exemption. Therefore, we can give no asseramthis regard. Should any of the fa
described above cease to be correct or the diréstimect ownership of NCLH’s ordinary shares cganNCLH and its subsidiaries’ ability to
qualify for the Section 883 tax exemption will bengpromised. Also, it should be noted that Secti®® 8f the Code has been the subject of
legislative modifications in past years that haad the effect of limiting its availability to cemataxpayers, and there can be no assurance th:
future legislation will not preclude us from obtiaig the benefits of Section 883 of the Code.

In addition, because NCLH is relying on the sub&hownership by non-5% shareholders in orderatisf/ the regularly traded test, there is
the potential that if another shareholder becom&®# ahareholder our qualification under the Pupliagladed Test could be jeopardized. If
NCLH were to fail to satisfy the Publicly Tradedstewe could be subject to U.S. income tax on ireassociated with our cruise operatior
the U.S. Therefore, as a precautionary matter, NGasiprovided protections in its bye-laws to rediheerisk of the Five Percent Override
Rule applying. In this regard, NCLH’s bye-laws pigevthat no one person or group of related persathey than the Apollo Funds, the TPG
Viking Funds and Genting HK, may own, or be deettmedwn by virtue of the attribution provisions bktCode, more than 4.9% of its
ordinary shares, whether measured by vote, valmeimber, unless such ownership is approved byaesdof Directors. In addition, any
person or group of related persons that own 3%arertor a lower percentage if required by the Or@asury Regulations under the Code) of
NCLH'’s ordinary shares will be required to meet certaitice requirements as provided for in its byedaWCLH’s byelaws generally restric
the transfer of any of its ordinary shares if strelmsfer would cause NCLH to be subject to U.S@ihig income tax. In general, detailed
attribution rules, that treat a shareholder as ngshares that are owned by certain other perapaspplied in determining whether a persc
a 5% shareholder.

For purposes of the 4.9% limit, a “transfer” inahsdany sale, transfer, gift, assignment, devisgtar disposition, whether voluntary or
involuntary, whether of record, constructively @nieficially, and whether by operation of law orethise. The 4.9% limit does not apply to
the Apollo Funds, the TPG Viking Funds or Genting.Ahese shareholders are permitted to transfér shares without complying with the
limit subject to certain restrictions. We refer yiou‘Certain Relationships and Related Transactiehke Shareholders’ Agreement.”
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NCLH'’s bye-laws provide that its Board of Directors megive the 4.9% limit or transfer restrictionsainy specific instance. The Board of
Directors may also terminate the limit and transéstrictions generally at any time for any readba.purported transfer or other event results
in the ownership of ordinary shares by any shaddrdh violation of the 4.9% limit, or causes NCldibe subject to U.S. income tax on
shipping operations, such ordinary shares in exaket®e 4.9% limit, or which would cause NCLH to $ubject to U.S. shipping income tax
will automatically be designated as “excess sha@#fie extent necessary to ensure that the paghtnansfer or other event does not result in
ownership of ordinary shares in violation of th8%.limit or cause NCLH to become subject to U.8ome tax on shipping operations, and
any proposed transfer that would result in sucbwant would be void. Any purported transferee beopurported holder of excess shares will
be required to give NCLH written notice of a purgartransfer or other event that would result ioemss shares. The purported transferee or
holders of such excess shares shall have no iiigktsch excess shares, other than a right to theeats described below.

Excess shares will not be treasury shares butrratiiecontinue to be issued and outstanding ordirsnares. While outstanding, excess share
will be transferred to a trust. The trustee of stiabt will be appointed by NCLH and will be indeygdent of NCLH and the purported holder of
the excess shares. The beneficiary of such trilsb&bne or more charitable organizations that éggialified shareholder selected by the tru
The trustee will be entitled to vote the excesseshan behalf of the beneficiary. If, after a putpd transfer or other event resulting in excess
shares and prior to the discovery by us of suatsfea or other event, dividends or distributions paid with respect to such excess shares,
dividends or distributions will be immediately dared payable to the trustee for payment to the e beneficiary. All dividends received or
other income declared by the trust will be paithi® charitable beneficiary. Upon liquidation, dission or winding up of NCLH, the purportt
transferee or other purported holder will receiymagment that reflects a price per share for suckss shares generally equal to the lesser of

« the amount per share of any distribution madenugech liquidation, dissolution or winding up, and

« in the case of excess shares resulting from popted transfer, the price per share paid in thiestiction that created such excess shares,
in the case of excess shares resulting from ant @flear than a purported transfer, the market gocéhe excess shares on the date of suct
event.

At the direction of NCLH’s Board of Directors, theistee will transfer the excess shares held st taua person or persons, including NCLH,
whose ownership of such excess shares will noatgédhe 4.9% limit or otherwise cause NCLH to bee@ubject to U.S. shipping income tax
within 180 days after the later of the transfeptirer event that resulted in such excess shange become aware of such transfer or event. If
such a transfer is made, the interest of the cidetbeneficiary will terminate, the designatiorso€h shares as excess shares will cease a
purported holder of the excess shares will rectieegpayment described below. The purported traesfer holder of the excess shares will
receive a payment that reflects a price per shlarsuch excess shares equal to the lesser of:

« the price per share received by the trustee, and

« the price per share such purported transferé®lder paid in the purported transfer that resultethe excess shares, or, if the purported
transferee or holder did not give value for suctess shares, through a gift, devise or other emgnice per share equal to the market price
on the date of the purported transfer or other ethext resulted in the excess shares.

A purported transferee or holder of the excesseshaill not be permitted to receive an amount tefiects any appreciation in the excess
shares during the period that such excess sharesontstanding. Any amount received in excess®ftinount permitted to be received by the
purported transferee or holder of the excess simawnss be turned over to the charitable beneficiditye trust. If the foregoing restrictions are
determined to be void or invalid by virtue of aegél decision, statute, rule or regulation, thenithended transferee or holder of any excess
shares may be deemed, at NCLH's option, to hawerlaat an agent on its behalf in acquiring or hgldinch excess shares and to hold such
excess shares on NCLH's behalf.

NCLH has the right to purchase any excess shatddehe trust for a period of 90 days from theetaof:
« the date the transfer or other event resultingxicess shares has occurred, and
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« the date NCLH’s Board of Directors determinegawod faith that a transfer or other event resuliingxcess shares has occurred.

The price per excess share to be paid by NCLHheiléqual to the lesser of:

« the price per share paid in the transactionchedted such excess shares, or, in the case afrcether events, the market price per share
for the excess shares on the date of such event, or

« the lowest market price for the excess sharasytime after their designation as excess shamgpror to the date NCLH accepts such
offer.

These provisions in NCLH’s bye-laws could haveeffect of delaying, deferring or preventing a chargour control or other transaction in
which NCLH’s shareholders might receive a premiemtheir ordinary shares over the then-prevailiraykat price or which such holders
might believe to be otherwise in their best interébe Board of Directors may determine, in itseestiscretion, to terminate the 4.9% limit and
the transfer restrictions of these provisions. Whibth the mandatory offer protection and 4.9%emtidn remain in place, no third party other
than the Apollo Funds, the TPG Viking Funds or GentK will be able to acquire control of NCLH.

Taxation in Absence of Section 883 Exemption

If NCLH does not qualify for exemption under Sent®83 of the Code as described above, (i) any &b8teed shipping income or any other
income that is effectively connected income (asdlesd below) would be subject to the net tax regand (ii) if not considered to be
effectively connected income, any U.S.-source ineovould be subject to the 4% regime.

NCLH'’s U.S.-source international shipping income wdatdconsidered effectively connected income onitytifis, or is considered to have, a
fixed place of business in the U.S. involved in ¢laening of U.S.-source international shipping megand substantially all of its U.S.-source
international shipping income is attributable tguiarly scheduled transportation, such as the tiperaf a vessel that follows a published
schedule with repeated sailings at regular interldatween the same points for voyages that beginain the U.S. This would likely be the
case.

U.S. Taxation of Gain on Sale of Vessels

Provided we and our subsidiaries qualify for exdompfrom tax under Section 883 of the Code in respéour shipping income, gain from the
sale of a vessel likewise should generally be exdrom tax under Section 883 of the Code. If, hoereWCLH'’s gain does not, for whatever
reason, qualify for exemption under Section 88thefCode, then such gain could be subject to eitfeenet tax regime or 4% regime
(determined under rules different from those disedsabove).

Certain State, Local and Non-U.S. Tax Matters

We may be subject to state, local and non-U.S.nrecor non-income taxes in various jurisdictionsjuding those in which we transact
business, own property or reside. We may be redjtiiréile tax returns in some or all of those jdr@tions. Our state, local or non-U.S. tax
treatment may not conform to the U.S. federal inedax treatment discussed above. We may be recuaingaly non-U.S. taxes on dispositions
of foreign property or operations involving foreigroperty may give rise to non-U.S. income or otherliabilities in amounts that could be
substantial.

The various tax regimes to which we are currenilyject result in a relatively low effective taxeain our world-wide income. These tax
regimes, however, are subject to change, possiibhyratroactive effect. Moreover, we may becomgetitto new tax regimes and may be
unable to take advantage of favorable tax provssafforded by current or future law.
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U.S. Federal Income Taxation—Net Operating Losses

As a result of the corporate reorganization, desdriabove under “Corporate Reorganization,” weinbthcertain net operating losses
(“NOLs") of our shareholders. Section 382 of thed€places a limitation on the amount of taxableine that can be offset by NOL
carryforwards after a change in control (genergtlater than 50% change in ownership) of a logsazation. Generally, after a change in
control, a loss corporation cannot deduct NOL darwyards in excess of the Section 382 limitatiomeDRo these change in ownership
provisions, utilization of our NOL carryforwards ¢éfset future taxable income will be subject toaamual limitation in future periods and r
be limited to a significant extent. Use of our N€arryforwards may be further limited as a resulainy future equity transaction that results in
a greater than 50% change in ownership.

Organizational Structure

Our corporate structure is as follows (1):

1)

(2)
©)

(4)
©®)

Norwegisn Cruise Ling
Hokdings Lid
{Barmudal

RCL Corporation Lid
{Barmuda)

Managamend

Armans Limited
{lele of Man)

NCL
Intaenational, Lid,
(Barrmuda)

[ ]
Ship-hoiding RCL (Bahamas) Lid
companias’ (Barmuda) - Oparating

eompany®

]

NCL Arnedoh Haoldings, LLG

(Detawars)
[ ]
Ship-heldh NCL Amarica LLC
Mﬂg {Dalerwaire) = Oparating
company’

All subsidiaries are 100% owned by their imnageliparent company. NCL Corporation Units held IGLN (as a result of its ownership

of 100% of the ordinary shares of NCLC) currendpnesents a 97.3% economic interest in NC

Shig-holding companies for our Bahar-flagged ships
Operates our Bahamas-flagged fleet and performdgr contract with NCL America LLC certain maiikgt ticket issuance and other

services

Shig-holding company for our U.-flagged ship

Operates our U.-flagged ship
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Available Information

We file or will file annual reports on Form 10-Kuarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current repant&orm 8-K and other information with
the SEC. You may read and copy any document wevftlethe SEC at the SEC's public reference roorh0#t F Street, N.E., Washington,
D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-088fufther information on the public reference ro@ur SEC filings are also available to
the public at the SEC’s website at http://www.see.g

We also maintain an Internet site at http://wwweistor.ncl.com. We will, as soon as reasonably jpaule after the electronic filing of our
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi60-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendmentisose reports if applicable, make
available such reports free of charge on our weliSiir website and the information contained therein o connected thereto are not
incorporated into this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information contained s annual report, you should carefully consider thllowing risk factors in evaluating us a
our business. If any of the risks discussed inahisual report actually occur, our business, finahcondition and results of operations could
be materially adversely affected. In connectiorhulite forward-looking cautionary statements thagpegr in this annual report, you should
also carefully review the cautionary statementmefe to under “Cautionary Statement Concerning FardrLooking Statements.”

Risk factors related to our business

The specific risk factors set forth below, as vesllthe other information contained in this annapbrt, could cause our actual results to differ
from our expected or historical results and indinglly or any combination thereof could adversefgetfour financial position and results of
operations.

The adverse impact of the worldwide economic downtand related factors such as high levels of undimygment and underemployment,
fuel price increases, declines in the securitiedareal estate markets, and perceptions of theseditions that decrease the level
disposable income of consumers or consumer conficeen

The demand for cruises is affected by internatiomational and local economic conditions. Adversanges in the perceived or actual
economic climate, such as higher fuel prices, highterest rates, stock and real estate markeirgschnd/or volatility, more restrictive credit
markets, higher taxes, and changes in governmpaliaies could reduce the level of discretionargoime or consumer confidence in the
countries from which we source our guests. For g@tenthe worldwide economic downturn has had areestveffect on consumer confidence
and discretionary income resulting in decreasedasiehand price discounting. We cannot predict thatthn or magnitude of this downturn or
the timing or strength of economic recovery. If t@vnturn continues for an extended period of tom&orsens, we could experience a
prolonged period of decreased demand and pricewliging. In addition, the economic downturn has aray continue to adversely impact our
suppliers, which can result in disruptions in seevand financial losses.

An increase in cruise capacit

Historically, cruise capacity has grown to meetdhawth in demand. According to CLIA, cruise capyadin terms of Berths, has increased
from 2000 through 2012 at a compound annual groati of 6.2%. CLIA estimates that between 20132015, the North America based
CLIA member line fleet will increase by approximgt&9 ships, representing a compound annual capguitvth of 3.4%. In order to

profitably utilize this new capacity, the cruis@ustry will likely need to improve its percentagese of the U.S. population who has cruised a
least once, which is approximately 24%, accordm@LIA. If there is an industryvide increase in capacity without a correspondimagease il
public demand, we, as well as the entire cruisastrgt, could experience reduced occupancy rate@ahd forced to discount our prices. In
addition, increased cruise capacity could impactanility to retain and attract qualified shipbo@mployees, including officers, at competitive
levels and, therefore, increase our shipboard eyeplgaosts.
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We face intense competition from other cruise comjes as well as non-cruise vacation alternativesdame may not be able to compete
effectively.

We face intense competition from other cruise camgs primarily the other Major North American GraiBrands, which together comprise
approximately 90% of the North American cruise nearks measured by total Berths. These brands m@aanival Cruise Lines and Royal
Caribbean International in the contemporary segrardtHolland America, Princess Cruises and CeleBritiises in the premium segment. As
of December 31, 2012, Norwegian Cruise Line accedifir approximately 11% of the Major North Amenidaruise Brandstapacity in term

of Berths. We compete against all of these opesainncipally on the quality of our ships, our diféntiated product offering, selection of our
itineraries and value proposition of our cruise® &0 face competition for many itineraries frotineo cruise operators as well as competitior
from non-cruise vacation alternatives. In the ewestdo not compete effectively, our business ctelddversely affected.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affest ability to raise additional capital to fund awperations, limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or our industry and prevestfrom making debt service payments.

We are highly leveraged with a high level of valéatate debt, and our level of indebtedness conld €ash flow available for our operations
and could adversely affect our financial conditioperations, prospects and flexibility. As of Det®mn31, 2012, we had approximately $3.0
billion of total debt. Our substantial indebtednessld:

« limit our ability to borrow money for our workingapital, capital expenditures, development projetidt service requirements, strate
initiatives or other purposes;

» make it more difficult for us to satisfy our afplitions with respect to our indebtedness, and aihyré to comply with the obligations of
any of our debt instruments, including restrictbovenants and borrowing conditions, could resuétrirevent of default under the
agreements governing our indebtedness;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portionusfaash flow from operations to the repayment afindebtedness thereby reducing funds
available to us for other purposes;

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactigpto, changes in our operations or business;
» make us more highly leveraged than some of ompatitors, which may place us at a competitivedliaatage;
» make us more vulnerable to downturns in our kessror the economy;
« restrict us from making strategic acquisitiomstaducing new technologies or exploiting busingggortunities;
* restrict us from taking certain actions by meaheestrictive covenants;
» make our credit card processors seek more régtrierms in respect of our credit card arrangesjeand
* expose us to the risk of increased interest l@teaertain of our borrowings are at a variable cdtinterest.
Based on our December 31, 2012 outstanding variatdedebt balance, a one percentage point inciedise LIBOR interest rates would

increase our annual interest expense by approxiyrbi&.2 million, excluding the effects of capitadtion of interest. In addition, future
financings we may undertake may also provide ftesrghat fluctuate with prevailing interest rates.

Increases in fuel prices and/or other cruise opédrag costs.

Fuel expense accounted for 19.2% of our total erafgerating expense in 2012, 16.6% in 2011 andd$4010. Future increases in the cost
of fuel globally would increase the cost of ouriseuship operations. In addition, we could experéeimcreases in other cruise operating costs
due to market forces and economic or politicalab#gity beyond our control.
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Conducting business internationally may result indreased costs and risks.

We operate our business internationally and plarotdinue to develop our international presencesr@jng internationally exposes us to a
number of risks, including political risks, riskEincrease in duties and taxes, risks relatingtd-laribery laws, as well as changes in laws and
policies affecting cruising, vacation or maritimesinesses, or governing the operations of foremgetl companies. Because some of our
expenses are incurred in foreign currencies, wexgpesed to exchange rate risks. Additional risktuide interest rate movements, imposition
of trade barriers and restrictions on repatriatbrarnings.

We have implemented safeguards and policies tceptexiolations of various anti-corruption laws tipadhibit improper payments or offers of
payments to foreign governments and their officiafghe purpose of obtaining or retaining busingg®ur employees and agents. However,
our existing safeguards and any future improvemeatg prove to be less than effective and our eng@eyor agents may engage in conduc
which we might be held responsible. If employeedate our policies or we fail to maintain adequateord-keeping and internal accounting
practices to accurately record our transactionsnag be subject to regulatory sanctions, or sem@n@nal or civil sanctions and penalties.

The agreements governing our indebtedness contastrictions that limit our flexibility in operatingour business.

The agreements governing our indebtedness comtiaihany instruments governing future indebtednéssis would likely contain, a number
of covenants that impose significant operating famehcial restrictions on us, including restrictioor prohibitions on our ability to, among
other things:

* incur additional debt or issue certain preferef@es;

» pay dividends on or make distributions in respéctuy share capital or make other restricted paymeancluding the ability of
NCLC to make distributions or other restricted pays to NCLH;

* make certain investment

» sell certain asset

e create liens on certain asse

« consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of our asse
e enter into certain transactions with our affiligtasd

» designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted sulpsdi

As a result of these covenants, we are limitethénrhanner in which we conduct our business, anchayebe unable to engage in favorable
business activities or finance future operationsagpital needs.

We have pledged a significant portion of our assasscollateral under our existing debt agreemenritsany of the holders of our
indebtedness accelerate the repayment of such ibelditess, there can be no assurance that we willehswfficient assets to repay our
indebtedness.

Under our existing debt agreements we are reqtirsdtisfy and maintain specified financial ratiOsir ability to meet those financial ratios
can be affected by events beyond our control, harktcan be no assurance that we will meet thoigs.ré failure to comply with the
covenants contained in our existing debt agreenmentil result in an event of default under the agrents, which, if not cured or waived,
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition and results of operatiomsthe event of any default under our existing
debt agreements, the holders of our indebtednessuthder:
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» will not be required to lend any additional amoutotsis, if applicable

» could elect to declare all indebtedness outstandaggther with accrued and unpaid interest ansl, fieebe due and payable and
terminate all commitments to extend further crafiipplicable; and/o

» could require us to apply all of our available ctshepay such indebtedne

Such actions by the holders of our indebtedneskl @ause cross defaults under our other indebtedifese were unable to repay those
amounts, the holders of our indebtedness undegxasting senior secured credit facilities couldgaed against the collateral granted to the
secure that indebtedness. If the indebtedness wudexisting debt agreements were to be accetkrdtere can be no assurance that our ass
would be sufficient to repay such indebtednessilin

Despite our substantial indebtedness, we may b#llable to incur significantly more debt. This calintensify the risks described aboy

We may be able to incur substantial indebtedneasyatime in the future. Although the terms of #ygeements governing our indebtedness
contain restrictions on our ability to incur addital indebtedness, these restrictions are sulechtimber of important qualifications and
exceptions, and the indebtedness incurred in camq with these restrictions could be substarial may not be able to generate sufficient
cash to service all of our indebtedness, and mdgroed to take other actions to satisfy our olilayes under our indebtedness that may not b
successful. Our ability to satisfy our debt obligas will depend upon, among other things:

« our future financial and operating performance,chihwill be affected by prevailing economic conditsoand financial, business,
regulatory and other factors, many of which arednelyour control; an

» our future ability to borrow under certain of ouisting senior secured credit facilities, the aahility of which depends on, among
other things, our complying with the covenantsuntsexisting senior secured credit faciliti

There can be no assurance that our business wiirgie sufficient cash flow from operations, oit tha will be able to draw under certain of
our existing senior secured credit facilities drastvise, in an amount sufficient to fund our ligtyicheeds.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to service our indebtedness, we may be fai@eedduce or delay capital expenditures,
assets, seek additional capital or restructurefomance our indebtedness. These alternative messuay not be successful and may not perm
us to meet our scheduled debt service obligatiOns.ability to restructure or refinance our debll dépend on the condition of the capital
markets and our financial condition at such timey Aefinancing of our debt could be at higher ieggrates and may require us to comply witl
more onerous covenants, which could further rdstric business operations. In addition, the terfrexisting or future debt agreements may
restrict us from adopting some of these alternatiliethe absence of such operating results amdiress, we could face substantial liquidity
problems and might be required to dispose of naltassets or operations to meet our debt servidetrer obligations. We may not be able tc
consummate those dispositions for fair market valuat all. Furthermore, any proceeds that we coeddize from any such dispositions may
not be adequate to meet our debt service obligatioen due. Neither our Sponsors nor any of tlespective affiliates has any continuing
obligation to provide us with debt or equity finamg

The impact of volatility and disruptions in the ghal credit and financial markets may adversely aff@ur ability to borrow and could
increase our counterparty credit risks, includingase under our credit facilities, derivative instments, contingent obligations, insurance
contracts and new ship progress payment guarantees.

There can be no assurance that we will be ableimW additional money on terms as favorable ascaaent debt, on commercially
acceptable terms, or at all. As a result of théglaredit crisis, certain financial institutionave filed for bankruptcy, have sold some or all of
their assets, or may be looking to enter into meog®ther transaction with another financial ington. Consequently, some of the
counterparties under our credit facilities, defiwed, contingent obligations, insurance contrants@ew ship progress payment guarantees m:
be unable to perform their obligations or may bhetheir obligations to us under our contracts wligam, which could include
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failures of financial institutions to fund requiredrrowings under our loan agreements and to pamaints that may become due under our
derivative contracts and other agreements. Alsanag be limited in obtaining funds to pay amounis tb our counterparties under our
derivative contracts and to pay amounts that mapie due under other agreements. If we were t¢ ®leeplace any counterparty for their
failure to perform their obligations under suchtinments, we would likely incur significant costsreplace the counterparty. Any failure to
replace any counterparties under these circumsianeg result in additional costs to us or an ir@ffe instrument.

Terrorist acts, acts of piracy, armed conflict atldreats thereof, and other international events iagting the security of travel could
adversely affect the demand for cruises.

Past acts of terrorism have had an adverse effetduwism, travel and the availability of air semviand other forms of transportation. The tr
or possibility of future terrorist acts, an outbted hostilities or armed conflict abroad or thesgibility thereof, the issuance of travel adviss
by national governments, and other geo-politic@leutainties have had in the past and may agaimeifiuture have an adverse impact on the
demand for cruises and consequently the pricingtaises. Decreases in demand and reduced pritirgsponse to such decreased demand
would adversely affect our business by reducingpoafitability.

We rely on external distribution channels for passger bookings, and major changes in the availahjliof external distribution channels
could undermine our customer base.

In 2012, the majority of our guests booked theiisas through independent travel agents. In thatdkat the travel agent distribution channel
is adversely impacted by the worldwide economic wkown, or other reason, this could reduce theibigion channels available for us to
market and sell our cruises and we could be foto@dcrease the use of alternative distributionmneteds

We rely on scheduled commercial airline services jassenger connections, and increases in the pogeor major changes or reduction in,
commercial airline services could undermine our ¢camer base.

A number of our guests depend on scheduled comateiiciine services to transport them to portsrabarkation for our cruises. Increases in
the price of airfare, due to increases in fuelgwior other factors, would increase the overalatian cost to our guests and may adversely
affect demand for our cruises. Changes in commeatiame services as a result of strikes, weathrasther events, or the lack of availability
due to schedule changes or a high level of aibimakings could adversely affect our ability to deti guests to our cruises and/or increase oul
cruise operating expense.

Any delays in the construction and delivery of augse ship.

Delays in the construction, repair, refurbishmerd delivery of a cruise ship can occur as a reddvents such as insolvency, work stoppa
other labor actions or “force majeure” events eigrered by our shipbuilders and other such compdhasare beyond our control. Any
termination or breach of contract following sucheaent may result in, among other things, the faufe of prior deposits or payments made
us, potential claims and impairment of losses.ghificant delay in the delivery of a new ship, aignificant performance deficiency or
mechanical failure of a new ship, particularlyighk of decreasing availability of Dry-dock facidéis, could have an adverse effect on our
business.

Future epidemics and viral outbreaks.

Public perception about the safety of travel andkesk publicity related to passenger or crew iknssich as incidents of HIN1, stomach flu, o
other contagious diseases, may impact demandd@es. If any wideanging health scare should occur, our businessdaiteely be adversel
affected.

The political environment in certain countries whemwe operate is uncertain and our ability to operatur business as we have in the past
may be restricted.

We operate in waters and call at ports throughwaiintorld, including geographic regions that, fromet to time, have experienced political anc
civil unrest as well as insurrection and armediliiss. Adverse international events could affdemand for cruise products generally and
could have an adverse effect on us.
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Adverse incidents involving cruise shig

The operation of cruise ships carries an inheiisktaf loss caused by adverse weather conditioasitime disaster, including, but not limited
to, oil spills and other environmental mishaps,fimechanical failure, collisions, human error, vi@mrorism, piracy, political action, civil
unrest and insurrection in various countries ameotircumstances or events. Any such event maytriedoss of life or property, loss of
revenue or increased costs. The operation of cehiges also involves the risk of other incidentsed or while in port, including missing
guests, inappropriate crew or passenger behaviborinoard crimes, that may bring into question @agsr safety, may adversely affect future
industry performance and may lead to litigationiagfaus. Although we place passenger safety abitfieest priority in the design and opera
of our fleet, we have experienced accidents andratitidents involving our cruise ships and theae be no assurance that similar events will
not occur in the future. It is possible that welddue forced to cancel a cruise or a series okeridue to these factors or incur increased port
related and other costs resulting from such adwarsats. Any such event involving our cruise shipsther passenger cruise ships may
adversely affect guests’ perceptions of safetyesult in increased governmental or other reguladesrsight. An adverse judgment or
settlement in respect of any of the ongoing claagainst us may also lead to negative publicity absuAnything that damages our reputation
(whether or not justified), including adverse patli about passenger safety, could have an adwarssct on demand, which could lead to
price discounting and a reduction in our sales.

There can be no assurance that all risks areifudlyred against or that any particular claim wélfally paid. Such losses, to the extent they ar
not adequately covered by contractual remediessurance, could affect our financial results. Idiidn, we have been and continue to be
subject to calls, or premiums, in amounts basednlyton our own claim records, but also the clagrords of all other members of the
protection and indemnity associations through whiehreceive indemnity coverage for tort liabiliQur payment of these calls and increased
premiums could result in significant expenses twhih could reduce our cash flows. If we wereustain significant losses in the future, our
ability to obtain insurance coverage or coveragmatmercially reasonable rates could be materallersely affected.

Breaches in data security or other disturbancesotar information technology and other networks couilchpair our operations and have a
adverse impact on our financial results.

The integrity and reliability of our informationdienology systems and other networks are crucialtdusiness operations. We have made
significant investments in our information techrgyicsystems to optimize booking procedures, enhdreearketing power of our website and
control costs. Any unauthorized use of our infolioTasystems to gain access to sensitive informatiorrupt data or create general
disturbances in our operations systems could inpaibility to conduct business and damage ouwrtaetion. While we have information
technology security and recovery plans in placecarmot completely insulate ourselves from cybéated risks.

Amendments to the collective bargaining agreemefiatscrew members of our fleet and other employetati®n issues may adversely affe
our financial results.

Currently, we are a party to six collective bargagnagreements. Three of these agreements wenatiyeoenegotiated and are in effect through
2014. Of the three remaining collective bargairdiggeements, two are scheduled to expire in 201&®aads scheduled to expire in 2020. U
appropriate notice, the agreements may be reopnesitain yearly intervals, and we received ndiiom two of the parties to reopen
wage/benefit negotiations in 2012. These negotiatiwere completed and effective from April 2012hwiit material cost to the Company. 4
future amendments to such collective bargainingements or inability to satisfactorily renegotistieh agreements may increase our labor
costs and have a negative impact on our finanoiadlition. In addition, our collective bargainingragments may not prevent a disruption in
work on our ships in the future. Any such disrupsian work could have a material adverse effeaburfinancial results.

Unavailability of ports of call.

We believe that attractive port destinations angagor reason why guests choose to go on a partictiée or on a cruise vacation. The
availability of ports is affected by a number oftfars, including, but not limited to, existing cafig constraints, security concerns, adverse
weather conditions and natural disasters, finanicmiations on port development, local governménggulations and local community
concerns about port development and other advensadts on their communities from additional togrigtny limitations on the availability of
our ports of call could adversely affect our busie
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The loss of key personnel or our inability to redtwr retain qualified personnel.

We rely upon the ability, expertise, judgment, ti$ion, integrity and good faith of our senior mgement team. Our success is dependent
upon our personnel and our ability to recruit agtdin high quality employees. We must continuestwuit, retain and motivate management
and other employees sufficient to maintain ourenirbusiness and support our projected growth.I@seeof services of any of the key
members of our management team could have a matdviarse effect on our business. See “Managenifentidditional information about o
management personnel.

The leadership of our President and Chief Execu@iffecer, Mr. Sheehan, and other executive offideas been a critical element of our
success. The death or disability of Mr. Sheehavttoer extended or permanent loss of his servigesny negative market or industry
perception with respect to him or arising fromlbiss, could have a material adverse effect on osinless. Our other executive officers and
other members of senior management have substarfiatience and expertise in our business andihade significant contributions to our
growth and success. The unexpected loss of servfamse or more of these individuals could alsoeadgly affect us. We are not protected by
key man or similar life insurance covering memhreur senior management. We have employment agnesmwith our executive officers,
but these agreements do not guarantee that any gkexutive will remain with us.

We are controlled by the Sponsors, who hold a siigaint percentage of NCLH'’s ordinary shares and wéminterests may not be aligned
with ours.

The majority of NCLH's voting ordinary shares aeddhby affiliates of Genting HK, the Apollo Fundsdathe TPG Viking Funds. The
shareholders’ agreement governing the relationsimnipng those parties gives the Apollo Funds effeatiintrol over our affairs and policies,
subject to certain limitations. Genting HK and faollo Funds also control the election of our Boafdirectors, the appointment of
management, the entering into of mergers, salsalmdtantially all of our assets and other matémaisactions. The directors appointed by
Genting HK and the Apollo Funds have the authootypur behalf and subject to the terms of our dgbtements and the shareholders’
agreement, to issue additional ordinary shareseim@nt share repurchase programs, declare dividpagtsadvisory fees and make other
decisions, and they may have an interest in ourgiso.

Furthermore, Genting HK engages in the cruise irg@sd leisure, entertainment and hospitalityvétidis and Apollo and TPG are in the
business of managing investment funds which makestments in companies and one or more of whicmbasand may from time to time
acquire hold interests in businesses that compeetly or indirectly with us, as well as businessieat represent major guests of our business
Investment funds managed by Genting HK, Apollo andPG may also pursue acquisition opportunities thay be complementary to our
business, and as a result, those acquisition appties may not be available to us. So long as NGlddrrent shareholders continue to control
a significant amount of its outstanding voting oatly shares, such shareholders will continue talbe to strongly influence or effectively
control our decisions. Additionally, the conceritvatof ownership held by NCLH’s current sharehotdeould delay, defer or prevent a change
of control of us or impede a merger, takeover bepbusiness combination.

Risks related to the regulatory environment in whit we operate
Future changes in applicable tax laws, or our indity to take advantage of favorable tax regimes.

We believe and have taken the position that ownmethat is considered to be derived from the iatéonal operation of ships as well as
certain income that is considered to be incidetotalich income (“shipping income”), is exempt froh®. federal income taxes under
Section 883 of the Internal Revenue Code of 198@naended (the “Code”), based upon certain assangpéis to shareholdings and other
information as more fully described in “ltem 1—Busgss—Regulatory Issues—Taxation—Exemption of Opeydhcome from U.S. Federal
Income Taxation.” The provisions of Section 883h& Code are subject to change at any time, pgssith retroactive effect.
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We believe and have taken the position that subatiyrall of our income derived from the interratial operation of ships is properly
categorized as shipping income and that we do av¢ b material amount of non-qualifying incomas ppossible, however, that a much larger
percentage of our income does not qualify (or malt qualify) as shipping income. Moreover, the egdan for shipping income is only
available for years in which NCLH will satisfy cofeg stock ownership tests under Section 883 ofthde as described in “ltem 1—
Business— Regulatory Issues— Taxation—Exemptio@mdrating Income from U.S. Federal Income Taxatidhere are factual
circumstances beyond our control, including charnigéise direct and indirect owners of NCLH’s ordipahares, that could cause us or our
subsidiaries to lose the benefit of this tax exéompt=inally, any changes in our operations coigdificantly increase our exposure to either
the net tax regime or the 4% regime (each as dkfmé8tem 1—Business—Taxation of Operating IncormeGeneral”), and we can give no
assurances on this matter.

If we or any of our subsidiaries were not to qualdr the exemption under Section 883 of the Cade,or such subsidiary’s U.S.-source
income would be subject to either the net tax regimto the 4% regime (each as defined in “Item Business— Regulatory Issues—
Taxation—Taxation of Operating Income: In Generak3 of the date of this filing, we believe that N€ and its subsidiaries will satisfy the
stock ownership tests imposed under Section 883radfore believe that NCLH will qualify for the@mption under Section 883.

However, as discussed above, there are factuainagimances beyond our control that could cause NLkbt meet the stock ownership tests.
Therefore, we can give no assurances on this méiterefer you to “ltem 1—Business—Regulatory IssueTaxation—Exemption of
Operating Income from U.S. Federal Income Taxation.

We may be subject to state, local and non-U.S.necor non-income taxes in various jurisdictionsjuding those in which we transact
business, own property or reside. We may be redjtiirdile tax returns in some or all of those jdr@tions. Our state, local or non-U.S. tax
treatment may not conform to the U.S. federal inedax treatment discussed above. We may be recuingaly non-U.S. taxes on dispositions
of foreign property or operations involving foreigroperty that may give rise to non-U.S. incometbier tax liabilities in amounts that could
be substantial.

The various tax regimes to which we are currenilyject result in a relatively low effective taxeain our worldwide income. These tax
regimes, however, are subject to change. Moreswemay become subject to new tax regimes and may&ele to take advantage of
favorable tax provisions afforded by current oufetlaw.

We are subject to complex laws and regulations lugting environmental laws and regulations, which glol adversely affect our operations
and any changes in the current laws and regulatiotmuld lead to increased costs or decreased revenue

Some environmental groups have lobbied for morerestte oversight of cruise ships and have genersgdtive publicity about the cruise
industry and its environmental impact. Increasirgiijngent federal, state, local and internatidaals and regulations on environmental
protection and health and safety of workers cofflechour operations. The U.S. Environmental PriddecAgency, the IMO (a United Nations
agency with responsibility for the safety and séguwof shipping and the prevention of marine patatby ships), the Council of the European
Union and individual states are considering, as aslmplementing, new laws and rules to managsehip waste. In addition, many aspect:
of the cruise industry are subject to governmenmtglilation by the U.S. Coast Guard as well asmattional treaties such as the International
Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea (“SOLAS}) international safety regulation, the InternzdicConvention for the Prevention of
Pollution from Ships (“MARPOL"), an internationah@ronmental regulation and the Standard of Trajr@ertification and Watchkeeping for
Seafarers (“STCW?”") and its recently adopted coneastin ship manning. International regulationsareling ballast water and security levels
are currently pending. Additionally, the U.S. aratigus state and foreign government or regulatggnaies have enacted or are considering
new environmental regulations or policies, suchegsiiring the use of low sulfur fuels, increasinglfefficiency requirements or further
restricting emissions, including those of greendeogases. Compliance with such laws and regulat@ysentail significant expenses for ship
modification and changes in operating procedureistwtould adversely impact our operations as wetha competitors’ operations. In
addition, the state of Alaska approved stringegulaions in 2008 concerning waste water dischdrg2010, Alaska issued a final permit that
regulates discharges of treated wastewater froimsecghips for the summer tourist seasons runniomg 2010 to 2012. The permit provides for
the cruise companies to gather data on performafigew shipboard environmental control systemswithiallow a scientific review

committee to advise state officials on improving tegulations. The International Labor Organizasidviaritime Labor Convention, 2006 is
expected to become international law on Augus®2PQ3, now that thirty member countries with a tetare of at least 33% of the world gross
tonnage of ships have signed the agreement. Iteglilate many aspects of maritime crew labor aifldmpact the worldwide sourcing of ne
crewmembers.
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These issues are, and we believe will continueetah area of focus by the relevant authoritiesutpinout the world. This could result in the
enactment of more stringent regulation of cruigpsthat would subject us to increasing compliac@sts in the future.

By virtue of our operations in the U.S., the U.8d€&ral Maritime Commission (“FMC”) requires us taintain a third-party performance
guarantee on our behalf in respect of liabilitiesrfon-performance of transportation and othergaltions to guests. The FMC has proposed
rules that would significantly increase the amarfiur required guarantees and accordingly our @bsbmpliance. There can be no assuranc
that such an increase in the amount of our guaganierequired, would be available to us. For &ddal discussion of the FMC's proposed
requirements, we refer you to “ltem 4—Informatiantbe Company—Regulatory Issues.”

In 2007, the state of Alaska implemented taxes Wwhive impacted the cruise industry operating eskd. It is possible that other states,
countries or ports of call that our ships regulaibit may also decide to assess new taxes ordieelsange existing taxes or fees specifically
applicable to the cruise industry and its employaeor guests, which could increase our operaiisgs and/or could decrease the demand fc
cruises.

Changes in health, safety, security and other regfiary issues.

We are subject to various international, natiostate and local health, safety and security lavdsragulations. For additional discussion of
these requirements, we refer you to “Item 1—BusireRegulatory Issues.” Changes in existing legistatr regulations and the impaosition of
new requirements could adversely affect our busines

Implementation of U.S. federal regulations, reaugriJ.S. citizens to obtain passports for seabamel to all foreign destinations, could
adversely affect our business. Many cruise gueatsmot currently have passports or may not obtgassport card (previously known as the
People Access Security Service Card, or PASS Gard) alternative to a passport. This card wasert¢a meet the documentary
requirements of the Western Hemisphere Traveldtive. Applications for the card have been accepiece February 1, 2008 and the cards
were made available to the public beginning in 2dJ08.

We may become subject to taxes in Bermuda after 8haB1, 2035, which may have a material adverse @ffen our financial results.

Under current Bermuda law, we are not subjectxataincome or capital gains. We have received fioenMinister of Finance under The
Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1966,masraded, an assurance that, in the event that Berewnaktts legislation imposing tax
computed on profits, income, any capital asset) gaappreciation, or any tax in the nature oftestiaity or inheritance, then the imposition of
any such tax shall not be applicable to us or toafrour operations or shares, debentures or athlgations, until March 31, 2035. We could
be subject to taxes in Bermuda after that dates @absurance is subject to the proviso that itigabe construed to prevent the application of
any tax or duty to such persons as are ordinaggident in Bermuda or to prevent the applicatioarof tax payable in accordance with the
provisions of the Land Tax Act 1967 or otherwisgaide in relation to any property leased to us.p& annual Bermuda government fees.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning tfie rules of NASDAQ and, as a result, rely on, exgtions from certain corporate
governance requirement:

On January 18, 2013, NCLH listed its ordinary shame the NASDAQ Global Select Market and Genting, ith€ Apollo Funds and the TPG
Viking Funds, or their respective affiliates, tdget continue to control a majority of its ordinatyares. As a result, we are a “controlled
company” within the meaning of the corporate goaege standards of a national securities exchang@erithe rules of a national securities
exchange, a company of which more than 50% of thieg power is held by an individual, group or dr@tcompany is a “controlled
company” and may elect not to comply with certainporate governance requirements, including thairement:

« that a majority of its Board of Directors consisftsndependent director

« that NCLH have a nominating/corporate governaneeraiitee that is composed entirely of independemtatidrs with a written
charter addressing the commi’s purpose and responsibilitie

« that NCLH have a compensation committee that ispmsed entirely of independent directors with atemitcharter addressing the
committeds purpose and responsibilities; ¢
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» for an annual performance evaluation of the normgéatorporate governance and compensation comrsi

NCLH has utilized these exemptions. As a resultL. N@oes not have a majority of independent directmr is NCLH required to have a
independent directors on its nominating/corporateegnance and compensation committees, and NChdtisequired to have an annual
performance evaluation of the nominating/corpogateernance and compensation committees. Accordiitglghareholders do not have the
same protections afforded to shareholders of corapdhat are subject to a national securities exg&fa general corporate governance
requirements (without giving effect to the “conteal company” exemptions).

Risks related to our ordinary shares
Shareholders of our Company may have greater diffices in protecting their interests than as shamlders of a U.S. corporatior

We are a Bermuda exempted company. The Companiek98¢ of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), which applto our Company, differs in
material respects from laws generally applicablg 8. corporations and their shareholders. Takgeth@r with the provisions of our byews,
some of these differences may result in you hagiegter difficulties in protecting your interestsaashareholder of our Company than you
would have as a shareholder of a U.S. corporalibis affects, among other things, the circumstamiceer which transactions involving an
interested director are voidable, whether an isteedirector can be held accountable for any litereeflized in a transaction with our
Company, what approvals are required for businestmations by our Company with a large sharehadder wholly-owned subsidiary, what
rights you may have as a shareholder to enforcafggaeprovisions of the Companies Act or our bges, and the circumstances under which
we may indemnify our directors and officers.

The market price for our ordinary shares could belgect to wide fluctuations.

The market price for our ordinary shares could dlatie and subject to wide fluctuations in respotwsfactors including the following:
» actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quartedgults;
» the publi’s reaction to our press releases, other publiclammements and filings with the SE

» sales of large blocks of our ordinary shares, erekpectation that such sales may occur, inclusigs by our directors, officers
and controlling shareholde

» market and industry perception of our successaak thereof, in pursuing our growth strate

* announcements of new itineraries or services oimntineduction of new ships by us or our competit

» changes in financial estimates by securities ars!

» conditions in the cruise industr

e price and volume fluctuations in the stock markgtserally;

e announcements by our competitors of significanu&gitions, strategic partnerships, joint venturesapital commitments
e our involvement in significant acquisitions, stgitealliances or joint venture

e changes in government and environmental regula

e changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantegpretations or principle

» additions or departures of key personi

» changes in general market, economic and politicatitions in the U.S. and global economies or fai@mmarkets, including those
resulting from natural disasters, terrorist attackss of war and responses to such even

» potential litigation.

In addition, the securities markets have from ttmé@me experienced significant price and volumetliations that are not related to the
operating performance of particular companies. &market fluctuations may also materially and aselgraffect the market price of our
shares.
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The substantial number of ordinary shares that wilk eligible for sale in the near future may caute market price of our ordinary shares
to decline.

We have an aggregate of 203,997,492 ordinary slesesd and outstanding. Our ordinary shares sdltei IPO were eligible for immediate
resale in the public market without restrictionsd dhose held by our controlling shareholders amddmployees may also be sold in the public
market in the future subject to applicable lockagpeements as well as the restrictions contain®iila 144 under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, or the Securities Act. If our contrglshareholders sell a substantial amount of alinary shares after the expiration of the lock
up period, the prevailing market price for our aatly shares could be adversely affected.

Upon the consummation of the IPO, there were aneagde of 5,761,291 outstanding Management NCL @atjon Units, which represented
a 2.7% economic interest in NCLC. In connectiorhvifite consummation of the IPO, we entered intoxahange agreement with NCLC.
Pursuant to the exchange agreement, and subjeettin procedures and restrictions (includingwbsting schedules applicable to the
Management NCL Corporation Units and any applicédg@l and contractual restrictions), each holddvianagement NCL Corporation Units
has the right to cause NCLC and us to exchanghdlter's Management NCL Corporation Units for otinary shares at an exchange rate
equal to one ordinary share for every Managemerit 8Qrporation Unit (or, at NCLC's election, a cgslyment equal to the value of the
exchanged Management NCL Corporation Units), stitgecustomary adjustments for stock splits, suistims, combinations and similar
extraordinary events. The exchange right descritbewe is subject to (i) the filing and effectivemes an applicable registration statement by
us that, in our determination, contains all th@infation which is required to effect a registerak ®f our shares and (ii) all applicable legal
and contractual restrictions, including those ingabBy the lock-up agreements entered into in cdiorewith the IPO. We have reserved for
issuance a number of our ordinary shares correspgnaol the number of Management NCL Corporationt&lrfrollowing the expiration of the
180-day lock-up agreements entered into in conoretith the IPO, we intend to file a registratidatement with the SEC to register on a
continuous basis the issuance of the ordinary shtarbe received by the holders of Management NGip@ration Units who elect to exchar

We may issue our ordinary shares or other secsifitien time to time as consideration for futurewdsitions and investments. If any such
acquisition or investment is significant, the numbfordinary shares, or the number or aggregateipal amount, as the case may be, of @
securities that we may issue may in turn be subatai/e may also grant registration rights covgrihose ordinary shares or other securitie
connection with any such acquisitions and investmen

We granted approximately 3.3 million options to @icg our ordinary shares to our management teararumg new longerm incentive plan i
connection with the IPO. We have filed a registmatatement on Form S-8 under the Securities é&aring the ordinary shares reserved for
issuance under our new long-term incentive placioling the shares subject to the new option gyaAtordingly, 15,035,106 ordinary
shares registered under such registration statemikie available for sale in the open market upaercise or other acquisition by the hold
subject to vesting restrictions, Rule 144 limitasapplicable to our affiliates and contractuakiop provisions.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our ordinaiyases at any time in the foreseeable future.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends to sliareholders and our Board of Directors may negelage a dividend. Our debt agreements
limit or prohibit, and any of our future debt argements may restrict, among other things, thetghifiour subsidiaries, including NCLC, to
pay distributions to NCLH and our ability to paysbadividends to our shareholders. In addition, @etgrmination to pay dividends in the
future will be entirely at the discretion of our &d of Directors and will depend upon our resuftsperations, cash requirements, financial
condition, business opportunities, contractualriefins, restrictions imposed by applicable lavd ather factors that our Board of Directors
deems relevant. We are not legally or contractuaifyuired to pay dividends. In addition, we arehkling company and would depend upon
our subsidiaries for their ability to pay distrilmrts to us to finance any dividend or pay any otif#igations of NCLH. Investors seeking
dividends should not purchase our ordinary shares.

Provisions in our constitutional documents may pext or discourage takeovers and business combirregithat our shareholders migt
consider to be in their best interests.

Our byelaws contain provisions that may delay, defer, prwr render more difficult a takeover attempt tha shareholders consider to b
their best interests. As a result, these provisinag prevent our shareholders from receiving a prento the market price of our shares offe
by a bidder in a takeover context. Even in the abs®f a takeover attempt, the existence of themagions may adversely affect the prevai
market price of our shares if they are viewed asdaliraging takeover attempts in the future. Theseigions include (subject to the
Shareholders’ Agreement):
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» the ability of our Board of Directors to designatee or more series of preference shares and isetexgnce shares without
shareholder approve

» aclassified board of directol
» the sole power of a majority of our Board of Di@stto fix the number of director

» the power of our Board of Directors to fill any amcy on our Board of Directors in most circumstanaecluding when such
vacancy occurs as a result of an increase in thebauof directors or otherwise; a

» advance notice requirements for nominating directorintroducing other business to be conductethateholder meeting

Additionally, our bye-laws contain provisions thmevent third parties, other than the Apollo Furids, TPG Viking Funds and Genting HK,
from acquiring beneficial ownership of more tha®%4.of its outstanding shares without the consewuoBoard of Directors and provide for
the lapse of rights, and sale, of any shares agdjirirexcess of that limit. The effect of thesevsions as well as the significant ownership of
ordinary shares by our existing shareholders, thelld Funds, the TPG Viking Funds and Genting Higympreclude third parties from seek
to acquire a controlling interest in us in trangats that shareholders might consider to be irr thest interests and may prevent them from
receiving a premium above market price for thearshb.

Any issuance of preference shares could make ifidifit for another company to acquire us or couldherwise adversely affect holders
our ordinary shares, which could depress the prfeour ordinary shares.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to isstefgrence shares and to determine the preferelimo@ations and relative rights of shares of
preference shares and to fix the number of shanmestituting any series and the designation of sectes, without any further vote or action by
our shareholders, subject to the Shareholders’ égent. Our preference shares could be issued withgy liquidation, dividend and other
rights superior to the rights of our ordinary slsafEhe potential issuance of preference sharesdelay or prevent a change in control of us,
discouraging bids for our ordinary shares at a remover the market price, and adversely affecintiaeket price and the voting and other
rights of the holders of our ordinary shares.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

Information about our cruise ships, including treie and primary areas of operation, as well fgrimation regarding our cruise ships under
construction, estimated expenditures and finangiag be found under “ltem 1—Business—Our Fleet” dtein 7— Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations—Future Capital Commitmeritdfdrmation about environmental
regulations and issues that may affect our utithiraaind operation of cruise ships may be found vfitem 1—Business—Regulatory Issues—
Health and Environment.”

Our principal executive offices are located at 7@@Bporate Center Drive, Miami, Florida where wasle approximately 228,000 square fet
facilities. We also lease approximately (i) 24,30@are feet of office space in Sunrise, Floridastdes; (ii) 25,600 square feet of office space
in Honolulu, Hawaii for administrative purposesi) (®,600 square feet of office space in Londongland for sales and marketing in the Uni
Kingdom and Ireland; (iv) 11,000 square feet ofagffspace in Wiesbaden, Germany for sales and tiragka Europe; and (v) 31,000 square
feet of office space in Phoenix, Arizona for a cahter. In addition, we own a private island ia Bahamas, Great Stirrup Cay, which we
utilize as a port-of-call on some of our itinerarigVe believe that our facilities are adequateforcurrent needs, and that we are capable of
obtaining additional facilities as necessary.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In July 2009, a class action complaint was filediagt NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. in the United States istCourt, Southern District of Florida, on
behalf of a purported class of crew members altpgiappropriate deductions of their wages purstatiie Seaman’s Wage Act and wrongful
termination resulting in a loss of retirement bésefn December 2010, the Court denied the pldgtvotion for Class Certification. In
February 2011, the plaintiffs filed a Motion for émsideration as to the CowOrder on Class Certification which was deniede Tlourt triec
six individual plaintiffs’ claims, and in Septemt&d12 awarded wages aggregating approximately $00Qp such plaintiffs. The plaintiffs
have filed an appeal of the Court’s decision inititdvidual actions as well as the denial of thas3l Certification. We intend to vigorously
defend this appeal and are not able at this tinestionate the impact of these proceedings.

In May 2011, a class action complaint was filediagtaNCL (Bahamas) Ltd. in the United States DistGourt, Southern District of Florida, on
behalf of a purported class of crew members alp@iappropriate deductions of their wages purst@tiie Seaman’s Wage Act and breach of
contract. In July 2012 this action was stayed leyGlourt pending the outcome of the litigation comosel with the class action complaint filed
in July 2009. We are vigorously defending this@ttnd are not able at this time to estimate thgagnof these proceedings.

In the normal course of our business, various atleems and lawsuits have been filed or are pendgajnst us. Most of these claims and
lawsuits are covered by insurance and, accorditigéymaximum amount of our liability is typicallyrited to our deductible amount.
Nonetheless, the ultimate outcome of these clamddawvsuits that are not covered by insurance dammdetermined at this time. We hz
evaluated our overall exposure with respect tofadiur threatened and pending litigation and, toaktent required, we have accrued amounts
for all estimable probable losses associated withdeemed exposure. We are currently unable tmastiany other potential contingent losses
beyond those accrued, as discovery is not comptatées adequate information available to estimatghgange of loss or potential recovery.
intend to vigorously defend our legal position dirckaims and, to the extent necessary, seek regove

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issue Purchases of Eqyi Securities Market
Information

NCLH'’s ordinary shares have been listed on the NASDAGb& Select Market under the symbol “NCLH” sinemdary 18, 2013. Prior to
that time, there was no public market for NCLH'slioary shares. As of February 15, 2013, sinceiti@d) of the ordinary shares, the high
sales price was $30.27 and the low sales pricetlrgagpening price of $19.00 per share.

Holders

As of February 15, 2013 there were 108 record leldENCLH's ordinary shares. Since certain okhsires are held by brokers and other
institutions on behalf of shareholders, the foragaiumber is not representative of the number néfieial owners.

Dividends

We intend to retain all currently available funaslas much as necessary of future earnings in tsdand the continued development and
growth of our business. Our debt agreements alposmrestrictions on our ability to pay dividen8iay determination to pay dividends in the
future will be at the discretion of our Board ofr&tors and will depend upon our results of openatj financial condition, restrictions imposed
by applicable law and our financing agreementsathdr factors that our Board of Directors deemavaht.

Significant Changes

Except as identified in this annual report, no gigant change in our financial condition has ocedrsince the date of the most recent
consolidated audited financial statements contaimekis annual report.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On January 24, 2013, NCLH consummated the IPO @587824 of its ordinary shares at a price to thidip of $19.00 per share. The
aggregate offering price for shares sold in theraffy was $514.1 million. The offer and sale ofcdlthe shares in the offering were registered
under the Securities Act pursuant to a registrattatement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175579), whiels declared effective by the SEC on
January 17, 2013. UBS Investment Bank and Bar@ated as bookrunners and the representatives ohtierwriters for the offering. The net
proceeds of the offering, after deducting undemgitiscounts and commissions and estimated expewsee approximately $477.6 million.
The net proceeds from the offering were or willused to (i) prepay an aggregate of $55.6 milliodaxrcertain of our senior secured credit
facilities, (ii) pay $79.7 million principal amourtbgether with accrued interest thereon, of indébéss related to our purchase of Norwegian
Sky, (iii) redeem $122.5 million aggregate print¢igmount of our $350.0 million senior notes, togetwith redemption premiums of $11.6
million for such notes, and (iv) repay certain amswutstanding under our $750.0 million seniowused revolving credit facility. The balance
of the net proceeds were used for general corppragoses.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data presdvetnv for the years 2008 through 2012 and as oétiteof each such year are derived from
NCLC's consolidated financial statements and shoule:aé in conjunction with those financial statememtd the related notes as well as v
“ltem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdficial Condition and Results of Operations.”

The financial statements are those of NCLC, howewnverhave retrospectively applied the exchangedihary shares due to the Corporate
Reorganization as the effect is substantially Hraesas a stock split. The Corporate Reorganizatitbive reflected in NCLH's financial
statements for the first time in the quarter enliadch 31, 2013. In addition, the prior comparaipegiods will be the activity of NCLC during
such periods.
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As of or for the Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except operating data 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Statement of operations data
Total revenus $ 2,276,241 $ 2,219,32 $ 2,012,12 $ 1,855,20. $ 2,106,40
Operating income (loss) (. $ 357,09 $ 316,11 $ 230,60 $ 171,09 $ (63,205
Net income (loss) (z $  168,55¢ $ 126,85 $ 22,98¢ $ 66,95 $ (211,76)
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.9t $ 0.71 $ 0.1z $ 0.3¢ $ (1.2¢€)
Diluted $ 0.94 $ 0.71 $ 0.1z $ 0.3¢ $ (1.26)
Weightec-average share
Basic 178,232,85 177,869,46 177,563,04 174,856,76 168,513,01
Diluted 179,023,68 178,859,72 178,461,21 175,275,44 168,513,01
Balance sheet data
Total asset $ 5,938,42 $ 5,562,41 $ 5,572,37 $ 4,819,83 $ 5,055,911
Property and equipment, r $ 4,960,14 $ 4,640,09: $ 4,639,28 $ 3,836,122 $ 4,119,22:
Long-term debt, including current
portion $ 2,985,35: $ 3,038,08 $ 3,204,08! $ 2,557,69 $ 2,656,50.
Total shareholde’ equity (3) $ 2,018,78 $ 1,844,46: $ 1,740,522 $ 1,713,04i $ 1,558,56!
Operating data:
Passengers carri 1,503,10 1,530,11. 1,404,13 1,318,44 1,270,28:
Passenger Cruise Da 10,332,91 10,227,43 9,559,04 9,243,15. 9,503,83!
Capacity Day: 9,602,73! 9,454,57 8,790,98 8,450,98! 8,900,81!
Occupancy Percentay 107.€% 108.2% 108.7% 109.%% 106.8&%

(1) In 2008, an impairment loss of $128.8 million wasarded as a result of the cancellation of a contoabuild a ship

(2) In 2010, a loss of $33.1 million was recordeidnparily due to losses on foreign exchange congrassociated with the financing of
Norwegian Epic. In 2009 and 2008 foreign curremaypslation and interest rate swap gains (losse${06) million and $101.8 millior
respectively, were recorded primarily due to fladtons in the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate. 0928nd 2008, these amounts were
offset by the change in fair value of our fuel gative contracts of $20.4 million and $(99.9) nailli respectively

(3) In 2009, we received $100.0 million from ounetholders and issued 1,000,000 additional ordishayes of $.0012 par value to our
shareholders pro rata in accordance with theirgreege ownership resulting in an aggregate 21,00Q%@dinary shares of $.0012 par
value issued and outstanding as of December 3B @08 refer you to “Consolidated Statements of @learin Shareholders’ Equitghd
Note t—"Related Party Disclosur” in our notes to our consolidated financial statets)e

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use certain non-GAAP financial measures, sudtieafkevenue, Net Yield, Net Cruise Cost and Adjd€EBITDA to enable us to analyze
our performance. We utilize Net Revenue and Neldvie manage our business on a daylay-basis and believe that they are the most nel
measures of our revenue performance because thegt the revenue earned by us net of significamtable costs and are commonly used in
the cruise industry to measure revenue performanaaeasuring our ability to control costs in a manthat positively impacts net income, we
believe changes in Net Cruise Cost and Net Crugs# Excluding Fuel to be the most relevant inditsatd our performance and are commc
used in the cruise industry as a measurement ¢§.cos

As our business includes the sourcing of guestgdaptbyment of vessels outside of North Americpogion of our revenue and expenses are
denominated in foreign currencies, particularlyoeaind British Pound sterling, which are subjedtuotuations in currency exchange rates
versus our reporting currency, the U.S. dollaroider to monitor results excluding these fluctuagionve calculate certain non-GAAP measure
on a Constant Currency basis whereby current pegeehue and expenses denominated in foreign atieeare converted to U.S. dollars

Currency basis is useful in providing a more corhpresive view of trends in our business.
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We believe that Adjusted EBITDA is appropriate asipplemental financial measure as it is used hyag@ment to assess operating
performance, is a factor in the evaluation of tafgrmance of management and is the primary mes#éd in determining the Company’s
performance incentive bonus paid to its employ@ésbelieve that Adjusted EBITDA is a useful measardetermining the Company’s
performance as it reflects certain operating dewarthe Company’s business, such as sales gropénating costs, marketing, general and
administrative expense and other operating incamdeeapense. You are encouraged to evaluate eacktimeint and the reasons we consider
them appropriate for supplemental analysis. Inuatalg Adjusted EBITDA, you should be aware thathia future we may incur expenses
similar to the adjustments in this presentation: @e of Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an gtiehl tool, and you should not consider
this measure in isolation or as a substitute falyais of our results as reported under GAAP. Gasentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not
be construed as an inference that our future iesiillt be unaffected by unusual or non-recurrirggyis.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a defined term under GAAR]jésted EBITDA is not intended to be a measuraqofidity or cash flows from
operations or measures comparable to net incornt@lass not take into account certain requiremsath as capital expenditures and related
depreciation, principal and interest payments ancbiyments and it includes other supplementakaaents. Our non-GAAP financial
measures may not be comparable to other compdtiessse see a historical reconciliation of thesesomes to items in our consolidated
financial statements below in the “Results of Opiers” section.

Financial Presentation

Revenue from our cruise and cruise-related aativitire categorized by us as “passenger ticketweVemmd “onboard and other revenue.”
Passenger ticket revenue and onboard and otheruewary according to the size of the ship in ofi@nathe length of cruises operated and
markets in which the ship operates. Our revengeasonal based on demand for cruises, which hasibédly been strongest during the
summer months.

Passenger ticket revenue primarily consists ofregdor accommodations, meals in certain restasi@mthe ship, certain onboard
entertainment, and includes revenue for servicegelsaand air and land transportation to and fragrsttip to the extent guests purchase these
items from us. Onboard and other revenue primadlysists of revenue from gaming, beverage salesjapy dining, shore excursions, retail
sales and spa services. We record onboard revesmeshboard activities we perform directly or theg performed by independent
concessionaires, from which we receive a sharbeif tevenue.

Our cruise operating expense is classified asvdio

« Commissions, transportation and other primarilysists of direct costs associated with passendegttievenue. These costs include
travel agent commissions, air and land transporatixpenses, related credit card fees, costs assdevith service charges and certain
port expense:

« Onboard and other primarily consists of direct sdisat are incurred in connection with onboard ather revenue. These include costs
incurred in connection with shore excursions, bagersales and gamir

» Payroll and related consists of the cost of wagesteenefits for shipboard employe

* Fuel includes fuel costs, the impact of certairl hexlges, and fuel delivery cos

» Food consists of food costs for guests and ¢

« Other consists of repairs and maintenance (incuiry-dock costs), ship insurance, Charter costs and stiig expense:
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements have beguapeel in accordance with GAAP in the U.S. The pragian of these consolidated financial
statements requires us to make estimates, judgrapdtassumptions that affect the reported amoudratssets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofcomsolidated financial statements and the redataounts of revenues and expenses durir
periods presented. We rely on historical experier@kon various other assumptions that we belieyetreasonable under the circumstanc
make these estimates and judgments. Actual resalisl differ materially from these estimates. Wéewe that the following critical
accounting policies affect the significant estinsateed in the preparation of our consolidated fir@drstatements. These critical accounting
policies, which are presented in detail in our adteour audited consolidated financial statemestate to ship accounting, asset impairment
and contingencies.

Ship Accounting

Ships represent our most significant assets, anctegrd them at cost less accumulated depreciddiepreciation of ships is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated serviceslivieprimarily 30 years after a 15% reduction fog estimated residual value of the ship.
Improvement costs that we believe add value tosbips are capitalized to the ship and depreciated the improvements’ estimated useful
lives. Repairs and maintenance activities are @thtg expense as incurred. We account for Dry-dosks under the direct expense method
which requires us to expense all Dry-dock cosia@asred.

We determine the useful life of our ships basetharily on our estimates of the average usefuldffthe shipsmajor component systems, si
as cabins, main diesels, main electric, supersire@nd hull. In addition, we consider the impdamticipated changes in the vacation market
and technological conditions and historical uséfgls of similarly-built ships. Given the large acdmplex nature of our ships, our accounting
estimates related to ships and determinationsipfistprovement costs to be capitalized require wmrable judgment and are inherently
uncertain. Should certain factors or circumstameese us to revise our estimate of ship servies lor projected residual values, depreciation
expense could be materially lower or higher. l€emstances cause us to change our assumptionkingreterminations as to whether ship
improvements should be capitalized, the amountexpense each year as repairs and maintenancecoogisncrease, partially offset by a
decrease in depreciation expense. If we reducedsiimated average 30-year ship service life byyaae, depreciation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2012 would have increased dyn$ilion. In addition, if our ships were estimatedhave no residual value, depreciation
expense for the same period would have increas&2byl million. We believe our estimates for ship@unting are reasonable and our
methods are consistently applied. We believe thptetiation expense is based on a rational andragsic method to allocate our ships’ costs
to the periods that benefit from the ships’ usage.

Asset Impairmen

We review our long-lived assets, principally shifos,impairment whenever events or changes in oistances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Assetrauped and evaluated at the lowest level fachvthere are identifiable cash flows that
are largely independent of the cash flows of otfteups of assets. We consider historical perforrmamd future estimated results in our
evaluation of potential impairment and then compheecarrying amount of the asset to the estimfatienle cash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset. If the carrying amount obgset exceeds the estimated expected undiscdutiiee cash flows, we measure the amount
of the impairment by comparing the carrying amaafrthe asset to its fair value. We estimate falugdased on the best information available
making whatever estimates, judgments and projesiiomsidered necessary. The estimation of fairevslgenerally measured by discounting
expected future cash flows at discount rates comsarate with the risk involved.

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived assets, prirallp trade names, are reviewed for impairment oaramual basis or earlier if there is an even
or change in circumstances that would indicate tti@tarrying value of these assets could not berecovered.

We believe our estimates and judgments with redpemtir long-lived assets, principally ships, anddwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are reasonable. Nonethele$®ré ivas a material change in assumptions usée iddtermination of such fair values or if
there is a material change in the conditions aueirstances that influence such assets, we couledgoéred to record an impairment charge. As
of December 31, 2012 our annual review supportsaing/ing value of these assets.
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Contingencies

Periodically, we assess potential liabilities rethto any lawsuits or claims brought against usngrasserted claims, including tax, legal and/o
environmental matters. Although it is typically yetifficult to determine the timing and ultimatetoame of such actions, we use our best
judgment to determine if it is probable that welwitur an expense related to the settlement aif fidjudication of such matters and wheth
reasonable estimation of such probable loss, if eay be made. In assessing probable losses, wéntakconsideration estimates of the
amount of insurance recoveries, if any. In accocdamith the guidance on accounting for continges)ciee accrue a liability when we believ
loss is probable and the amount of loss can b@neédy estimated. Due to the inherent uncertaimgkged to the eventual outcome of
litigation and potential insurance recoveries, @lih we believe that our estimates and judgmentseasonable, it is possible that certain
matters may be resolved for amounts materiallyediffit from any estimated provisions or previousldsires.

Executive Overview

Total revenue increased 2.6% to $2,276.2 milliarttie year ended December 31, 2012 compared td $3 2illion for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Net Revenue for the year endéedber 31, 2012 increased 3.2% to $1,691.8 millimm $1,639.3 million in the same
period in 2011 with an improvement of both Net Wieihd Capacity Days of 1.6%.

Net income increased to $168.6 million in 2012 fi$126.9 million in 2011. Operating income increa$8d% to $357.1 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2012 from $316.1 million ins&me period in 2011. A 9.8% improvement in AdjusE&ITDA (we refer you to our
Results of Operations below for a calculation ofustied EBITDA) was achieved for the same periodeasnue increased primarily due to an
increase in passenger ticket pricing. Our busiimpsovement measures continued to have an impact with the increase in the cost of fuel.
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Results of Operations

We reported total revenue, total cruise operatipgease, operating income and net income as shotire ifollowing table (in thousands):

Total revenue

Total cruise operating expen
Operating incom:

Net income

The following table sets forth operating data g&rentage of revenue:

Revenue
Passenger ticks
Onboard and othe
Total revenue
Cruise operating expense
Commissions, transportation and ot
Onboard and othe
Payroll and relate
Fuel
Food
Other
Total cruise operating expen
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total other operating expen
Operating incom
Non-operating income (expense
Interest expense, n
Other income (expens
Total nor-operating income (expens
Net income
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Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

$2,276,241  $2,219,32.  $2,012,12i
$1,478,43. $1,467,87  $1,347,17
$ 357,090 $ 316,11 $ 230,60¢
$ 168,55¢ $ 126,85¢ $ 22,98¢

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
70.5% 70.%% 70.2%
29.5% 29.6% 29.5%
100.%  100.%  100.%
18.0% 18.59 18.9%
7.7% 7.6% 7.6%
12.9% 13.1% 13.2%
12.5%% 11.0% 10.5%
5.5% 5.6% 5.7%
8.4% 10.% 11.5%
65.(% 66.1% 67.0%
11.0% 11.%% 13.1%
8.2% 8.%% 8.5%
19.5% 19.6% 21.6%
15.7% 14.5% 11.2%
(8.9% (8.6)% (8.6%
—% —% (1.79%
(8.9% 6.6%  (10.9%
7.0% 5.7% 1.1%
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The following table sets forth selected statistin&brmation:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Passengers carried 1,503,10 1,530,11. 1,404,13
Passenger Cruise Da 10,332,91 10,227,43 9,559,04!
Capacity Day: 9,602,73! 9,454,571 8,790,98!
Occupancy Percentay 107.% 108.2% 108.7%

Gross Yield and Net Yield were calculated as foldim thousands, except Capacity Days and Yield)dat

Passenger ticket revenue
Onboard and other reven
Total revenue
Less:
Commissions, transportation and other expt
Onboard and other exper
Net Revenut
Capacity Day:
Gross Yield
Net Yield

Gross Cruise Cost, Net Cruise Cost and Net Cruist Excluding Fuel were calculated as follows fiausands, except Capacity Days and pe

Capacity Day data):

Total cruise operating expense
Marketing, general and administrative expe
Gross Cruise Co:
Less:
Commissions, transportation and other expt
Onboard and other exper
Net Cruise Cos
Less: Fuel expens
Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fu
Capacity Day:
Gross Cruise Cost per Capacity C
Net Cruise Cost per Capacity D
Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel per Capacity |

Year Ended December 31

2012
Constant

2012 Currency 2011 2010
$1,604,56. $1,621,41. $1,563,36: $1,411,78!
671,68 671,68: 655,96. 600,34:
2,276,241 2,293,09' 2,219,320  2,012,12
410,53: 415,03( 410,70¢ 379,53
173,91 173,91¢ 169,32¢ 153,13
$1,691,79° $1,704,14! $1,639,28  $1,479,45!
9,602,73 9,602,73I 9,454,571 8,790,98!
$ 23700 $ 2388( $ 2347: $ 228.8¢
$ 176.1¢ $ 17747 $ 1733¢ $ 168.2¢

Year Ended December 31

2012
Constant
2012 Currency 2011 2010
$1,478,43. $1,487,54. $1,467,871 $1,347,17
251,18: 252,61! 251,35: 264,15;
1,729,61 1,740,15! 1,719,22 1,611,32
410,53: 415,03( 410,70¢ 379,53:
173,91t 173,91¢ 169,32¢ 153,13’
1,145,16! 1,151,21. 1,139,18! 1,078,65!
283,67¢ 283,67¢ 243,50: 207,21(
$ 861,49: $ 867,563! $ 89568t $ 871,44
9,602,73I 9,602,73I 9,454,571 8,790,98I
$ 180.1: $ 181.2: $ 1818 $ 183.2¢
$ 11928 $ 1198 $ 1204¢ $ 122.7(
$ 8977 $ 9032 $ 947/ $ 99.1:
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Adjusted EBITDA was calculated as follows (in thanods):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net income $168,55¢ $126,85¢ $ 22,98¢
Interest expense, n 189,93( 190,18 173,67.
Depreciation and amortization expel 189,53 183,98! 170,19:
Other (income) expen: (1,399 (939 33,952)
Other(1) 9,00¢ 5,94 4,31:
Adjusted EBITDA $555,63:  $506,03¢ $405,11:

(1) Includes no-cash compensation and costs related to the Shipplhetirement Plar
(2) Includes a $33.1 million charge for foreign exchaegntracts associated with the financing of Noiewedpic.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 (“2012") Compared toear Ended December 31, 2011 (“2011")
Revenue

Total revenue increased 2.6% to $2,276.2 millioB042 compared to $2,219.3 million in 2011. Net &awe increased 3.2% in 2012, prima
due to an increase in Net Yield of 1.6% and andase in Capacity Days of 1.6%. The increase inyigt was primarily due to an increase in
passenger ticket pricing and the increase in CapBeiys in 2012 was primarily due to the timingceftain repairs and maintenance. On a
Constant Currency basis, Net Yield increased 2@2012 compared to 2011.

Expense

Total cruise operating expense increased slightR0il2 compared to 2011 due to an increase in @gi2ays as described above and higher
ship operating expenses. The increase in ship tipgexpenses was primarily due to an increaseeéhdxpense as a result of a 16.3% increa:s
in average fuel price to $664 per metric ton in2@bm $571 per metric ton in 2011. Total othermapieag expense increased slightly compi

to 2011 due to an increase in depreciation expexiated to the purchase of Norwegian Sky primarffget by lower general and administra
expenses as a result of ongoing business improvamgatives. Net Cruise Cost increased slightly2012 primarily due to an increase in
Capacity Days. On a Capacity Day basis, Net Crds®t decreased 1.0% primarily due to the decreagerieral and administrative expenses
discussed above substantially offset by an increafiesl expense. Excluding fuel expense, Net @r@sst per Capacity Day decreased 5.3%.
On a Constant Currency basis, Net Cruise Cost ppaéity Day decreased slightly and excluding fupease decreased 4.6%.

Interest expense, net of capitalized interest, $189.9 million in 2012 compared to $190.2 million2011.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 (“2011") Compared toear Ended December 31, 2010 (“2010")
Revenue

Total revenue increased 10.3% to $2,219.3 millioA011 compared to $2,012.1 million in 2010. Netétrie increased 10.8% in 2011,
primarily due to an increase in Net Yield of 3.0#@an increase in Capacity Days of 7.5%. The irsgéa Net Yield was due to an increase ir
passenger ticket pricing and onboard revenue. figrease in onboard revenue was primarily due to@ease in revenue from our gaming
operations, beverage sales and spa. The incre&aparcity Days was due to the addition of Norwegipit to the fleet in late June 2010. On &
Constant Currency basis, Net Yield increased 2@20i11 compared to 2010.

Expense

Total cruise operating expense increased 9.0% 14 20mpared to 2010 due to an increase in CapBeiyg as described above and higher
operating expenses. The increase in ship operatipgnses was primarily due to an increase in f@tese as a result of a 14.2% increase in
average fuel price to $571 per metric ton in 20binf$500 per metric ton in 2010. Total other opgagaéexpense increased slightly compare
2010 due to an increase in depreciation expenatertto Norwegian Epic which entered service ia latne 2010 primarily offset by lower
general and administrative expenses as a resaitgging business improvement initiatives and nansnéng expenses related to the launch of
Norwegian Epic in 201(
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Net Cruise Cost increased 5.6% in 2011 primarily thuan increase in Capacity Days. On a Capacitydaais, Net Cruise Cost decrea
1.8% primarily due to the decrease in general amiiistrative expenses discussed above substgrafdlet by an increase in fuel expense.
Excluding fuel expense, Net Cruise Cost per Capdaty decreased 4.4%. On a Constant Currency BésiCruise Cost per Capacity Day
decreased 2.0% and excluding fuel expense decrdas#d

Interest expense, net of capitalized interestgiased to $190.2 million in 2011 from $173.8 milliarR010 primarily due to an increase in
average outstanding borrowings related to the imagnof Norwegian Epic and higher average interatgs. Other income (expense) was $0.9
million in 2011 compared to $(34.0) million in 20IThe expense in 2010 was primarily due to lossef®reign exchange contracts associatec
with the financing of Norwegian Epic.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

As of December 31, 2012, our liquidity was $470illiom consisting of $45.5 million in cash and casfuivalents and $424.6 million availa
under our $750.0 million senior secured revolvingdit facility. Our main ongoing liquidity requireants are to finance working capital, cap
expenditures, and debt service.

Sources and Uses of Ca

In this section, references to 2012 refer to theayended December 31, 2012, references to 2011 tefthe year ended December 31, 2(
and references to 2010 refer to the year ended Dawer 31, 2010.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $898illion in 2012 as compared to $357.0 millior2@lland $430.4 million in 2010. Tl
change in net cash provided by operating activitieZ)12 reflects the increase in net income ta8#.énillion in 2012 compared to $126.9
million in 2011, as well as timing differences iast receipts and payments relating to operatirgtgasd liabilities and $6.0 million related to
the premium received from the issuance of $100I0omiof senior unsecured notes. In 2010, we reméia release of the cash collateral from
our service providers of $89.3 million. The chamgeet cash provided by operating activities akftects net income of $126.9 million in 20
compared to net income of $23.0 million in 2010wad as timing differences in cash receipts anghpents relating to operating assets and
liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $303./8aniin 2012, primarily related to payments fomstruction of Norwegian Breakaway a
Norwegian Getaway, the purchase of Norwegian Skegt,ather ship improvements and shoreside projblescash used in investing activiti
was $184.8 million in 2011, primarily related toypgents for construction of Norwegian Breakaway Blodwegian Getaway, and $977.5
million in 2010, primarily related to payments fanstruction of Norwegian Epic.

Net cash used in financing activities was $108.@aniin 2012, primarily due to repayments of oavolving credit facilities, other borrowin
and loan arrangement fees which were partiallyedtly borrowings on our revolving credit facilitiasd by the issuance of $100.0 million of
senior unsecured notes. Net cash used in finaradtigities was $168.3 million in 2011, primarilyeto repayments of our revolving credit
facility and repayments of borrowings related ta\wegian Epic partially offset by borrowings relatedhe construction of Norwegian
Breakaway and Norwegian Getaway. Net cash provigeiihancing activities was $551.9 million in 20X0imarily due to borrowings related
to the delivery of Norwegian Epic and the issuaniceur $250.0 million 9.5% senior unsecured nopestially offset by repayments on our
revolving credit facility and payments on otherstanhding loans and loan arrangement fees.

In addition, subsequent to the balance sheet Na&teH completed an IPO (we refer you to our notesupconsolidated financial statements
Note 1-— “Subsequent Events”).

Future Capital Commitments

Future capital commitments consist of contractadmitments, including ship construction contractd &rture expected capital expenditures
necessary for operations. As of December 31, 2@it&ipated capital expenditures were $851.0 nmJI£855.9 million and $888.9 million for
each of the years ending December 31, 2013, 20d2@15, respectively, of which we have export drédancing in place for the expenditu
related to ship construction contracts of $630.[lionifor 2013, $676.3 million for 2014 and $63%@lion for 2015, based on the euro/U.S.
dollar exchange rate as of December 31, 2012.
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In October 2012, we reached an agreement with M@egft to build a new cruise ship for delivery letfourth quarter of 2015 with an option
to build a second ship with an expected deliveng daspring 2017. Currently referred to as “Breaég Plus,” this new ship will be the largest
in our fleet at approximately 163,000 Gross Torg 4200 Berths and will be similar in design anaowation to our Norwegian Breakaway
and Norwegian Getaway, which are currently undastroction. The contract cost of this ship is agpnately €698.4 million, or $921.4
million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange aatef December 31, 2012 of which we have expeditfinancing in place for 80% of the
contract price of the ship. This facility is rephigin twenty-four equal semi-annual installmerggibning on the six month anniversary of the
delivery date and bears interest at a rate of 2.98f@annum. Other material terms and conditionsadoed in this facility are consistent with
those in our Breakaway Newbuild Export Credit Fities.

Norwegian Breakaway and Norwegian Getaway, eaapm@toximately 144,000 Gross Tons and 4,000 Beatlesscheduled for delivery in tl

second quarter of 2013 and the first quarter o#i2@dspectively. The aggregate cost of these twas sk approximately €1.3 billion, or $1.7

billion based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange aatef December 31, 2012. In connection with thereets to build these ships, we do not
anticipate any contractual breaches or cancellatiatcur. However, if any would occur, it couldu# in, among other things, the forfeiture
prior deposits or payments made by us, subjecttiain refund guarantees, and potential claimsimpairment losses which may materially
impact our business, financial condition and resoftoperations.

Capitalized interest for each of the years endeckBer 31, 2012 and 2011 was $22.1 million and7d#llion, respectively, associated with
the construction of Norwegian Breakaway and Norardbetaway. Capitalized interest associated walctnstruction of Norwegian Epic for
the year ended 2010 was $8.8 million.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2012, our contractual obligatjavith initial or remaining terms in excess of gar, including interest payments on long
term debt obligations, were as follows (in thousgnd

Less than More than

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-term debt(1) $2,985,35. $ 221,237 $ 580,71 $1,005,66. $1,177,74

Due to Affiliate (2) 206,06 58,70 117,61! 29,74¢ —
Operating leases(: 38,17( 6,571 11,59 9,62¢ 10,37:

Ship purchases( 2,271,19 705,76! 1,565,43 — —
Port facilities(5) 197,82 23,52 51,16 53,34 69,79:
Interest(6) 721,12- 155,42¢ 284,56t 187,16 93,97(
Other(7) 60,04 36,03¢ 19,31« 4,00( 694
Total $6,479,77.  $1,207,26.  $2,630,39- $1,289,54. $1,352,57!

(1) Net of unamortized original issue discount of $Billion and unamortized premium of $5.4 million.salincludes capital lease

(2) Primarily related to the purchase of Norwedgky (we refer you to our notes to our consoliddieancial statements Note 5— “Related
Party Transactior”).

(3) Primarily for offices, motor vehicles and officelggment.

(4) For Norwegian Breakaway, Norwegian Getaway Brehkaway Plus based on the euro/U.S. dollar exggheate as of December 31,
2012. Financing is in place from a syndicate ofidsaior export credit financing

(5) Primarily for our usage of certain port facilitie

(6) Includes fixed and variable rates with LIBOR hetmhstant as of December 31, 20

(7) Future commitments for service and maintenanceracist

Other

Certain of our service providers have requiredatetal in the normal course of our business indgdiens on certain of our ships. The amoun
of collateral may change based on certain term<anditions.
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As a routine part of our business, depending orketaronditions, exchange rates, pricing and oatetyy for growth, we regularly consider
opportunities to enter into contracts for the biniddof additional ships. We may also consider e sf ships, potential acquisitions and
strategic alliances. If any of these were to octhey may be financed through the incurrence oftaal permitted indebtedness, through cas
flows from operations, or through the issuancesadftdequity or equity-related securities.

Funding Sources

Our debt agreements contain covenants that, antbeg ihings, require us to maintain a minimum leafdiquidity, as well as limit our net
funded debt-to-capital ratio, maintain certain ottagios and restrict our ability to pay dividen@r ships and substantially all other property
and equipment are pledged as collateral for out. #&b believe we were in compliance with these caws as of December 31, 2012.

The impact of changes in world economies and eafhgethe global credit markets has created a chgitey environment and may reduce fu
consumer demand for cruises and adversely affeat@munterparty credit risks. In the event this emwiment deteriorates, our business,
financial condition and results of operations cdogdadversely impacted.

We believe our cash on hand, expected future dpgraash inflows, additional available borrowingslar our existing credit facilities and our
ability to issue debt securities or raise additi@rpity in connection with our recently complet@® (we refer you to our notes to our
consolidated financial statements Note 12—"Subsegdeents”), will be sufficient to fund operatiordgbt payment requirements, capital
expenditures and maintain compliance with covenantier our debt agreements over the next twelvetmuperiod. As a result of the equity
infusion from the IPO and the related use of prdseeur leverage was improved and our balance sfeestrengthened. There is no assur.
that cash flows from operations and additionalritings will be available in the future to fund duture obligations.

Item 7.A Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures @out Market Risk
General

We are exposed to market risk attributable to chariig interest rates, foreign currency exchangesrand fuel prices. We attempt to minimize
these risks through a combination of our normaratieg and financing activities and through the ofderivatives. The financial impacts of
these derivative instruments are primarily offsetbrresponding changes in the underlying exposheas) hedged. We achieve this by clo:
matching the amount, term and conditions of théveves with the underlying risk being hedged. @éenot hold or issue derivatives for
trading or other speculative purposes. Derivatiositipns are monitored using techniques includiragkat valuations and sensitivity analyses.

Interest Rate Risl

From time to time, we consider entering into ing¢rate swap agreements to modify our exposunet¢odst rate movements and to manage
interest expense. As of December 31, 2012, 39%ioflebt was fixed and 61% was variable. Based obeaember 31, 2012 outstanding
variable rate debt balance, a one percentage ipcigase in annual LIBOR interest rates would iasesour annual interest expense by
approximately $18.2 million excluding the effecfsapitalization of interest.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2012, we had foreign currendioap, including call options with deferred premmiand a collar, and foreign currency
forward contracts to hedge the exposure to vaiaiiti foreign currency exchange rates related toship construction contracts denominate
euros. These derivatives hedge the foreign currercliange rate risk on a portion of the final pagte®n our ship construction contracts. For
the call option contracts, if the spot rate atdaee the ships are delivered is less than theegtriice we would pay the deferred premiums and
not exercise the options. For the collar, if thetgpte at the date the ships are delivered is i the put option strike price and less than th
call option strike price, neither the put or caition will be exercised. As of December 31, 20b2, temaining payments not hedged aggregat
€1,029.5 million, or $1,358.2 million based on theaU.S. dollar exchange rate as of December 312 20/e estimate that a 10% change in
the euro as of December 31, 2012 would result$h35.8 million change in the U.S. dollar valuetwd foreign currency denominated
remaining payments.
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Fuel Price Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in fuatgwirelates to the forecasted purchases of fuelioships. Fuel expense, as a percentage of
our total cruise operating expense, was 19.2%%&ed 15.4% for the years ended December 31, 20174, and 2010, respectively. From
time to time, we use fuel derivative agreementsitigate the financial impact of fluctuations irefiprices. As of December 31, 2012, we had
hedged approximately 69%, 48% and 10% of our 22084 and 2015 projected metric tons of fuel purehasespectively. We estimate that a
10% increase in our weighted-average fuel pricelvimcrease our anticipated 2013 fuel expense ®y3Bahillion. This increase would be
partially offset by an increase in the fair valdeor fuel swap agreements and fuel collars antbogtof $18.4 million. Fair value of our
derivative contracts is derived using valuation alsdhat utilize the income valuation approach.sehealuation models take into account the
contract terms such as maturity, as well as othyauts such as fuel types, fuel curves, creditwoess of the counterparty and the Company, &
well as other data points.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
None.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Financial Statements and NClIs@onsolidated Financial Statements and Quartellgcg&d Financial Data are included beginning age
F-1 of this report.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountas on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have evaluated, with the participation of oure€Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officéne effectiveness of our disclosure cont
and procedures as of December 31, 2012. Theralaeesnt limitations to the effectiveness of anyterysof disclosure controls and procedures
including the possibility of human error and theeamvention or overriding of the controls and pihoes. Accordingly, even effective
disclosure controls and procedures can only prosgdsonable assurance of achieving their contijektises. Based upon our evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiasncluded that our disclosure controls and procEsiwere effective to provide reasonable
assurance that the information required to be aésa by us in the reports we file or submit untlerExchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the applicable rules and forms, and thet accumulated and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allonvely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

This annual report does not include a report of NISOmanagement’s assessment regarding internalatanter financial reporting or an
attestation report of the NCLH's registered publcounting firm due to a transition period estdigis by rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission for newly public companies.

As reported in NCLC's annual report on Form 10-Ktfte year ended December 31, 2012, NCLC’s manageisieesponsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control overrfaial reporting, as such term is defined in ExcleaAgt Rule 13a-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of NCLC’smagement, including NCLC’s Chief Executive Offieard Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of @Glinternal control over financial reporting basedthe framework itnternal Control-
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on NCLC's
evaluation under the frameworklimernal Control- Integrated FrameworklCLC’s management concluded that NCLC'’s internaitca over
financial reporting was effective as of DecembefB12.

The effectiveness of the NCLEinternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2012, has been audited by Pricewatszlimopel
LLP, an independent registered certified publicoaeting firm, as stated in their report, which irséd on page F-4.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting during the quarter endest®mber 31, 2012 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

It should be noted that any system of controls, énaw well designed and operated, can provide @dganable, and not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the system will be met.ddition, the design of any control system is basgghrt upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events. Because of these ahéminherent limitations of control systems, thisrenly the reasonable assurance that our
controls will succeed in achieving their goals unalépotential future conditions.

Item 9B. Other Information

On February 18, 2013, our compensation committézrméned the final amount of each Named Executiffec@’s driving demand program
incentive bonus opportunity. Each Named Executiffec€’s driving demand bonus is reported in th@12 Summary Compensation” table
included in this annual report, and each Named &kez Officer’s total compensation for 2012 repdrie the “2012 Summary Compensation”
table has been updated to reflect this paymentébnuary 18, 2013, our compensation committeeddsermined not to increase the amount
of any Named Executive Officer’s estimated 2012usamount that was previously paid in December 28%2 result, the estimated 2012
bonus amount previously disclosed for each Namezt@ibive Officer in the “2012 Summary Compensatiabl&” presented in the filings
made in connection with the IPO was determinecetthle final 2012 bonus amount for each Named Ekex@fficer.

Disclosure pursuant to Section 219 of the Iran Thrat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act

On February 12, 2013, certain investment funds$iatid with Apollo Global Management, LLC benefibtyzoowned approximately 19.6% of
the ordinary shares of LyondellBasell Industrie¥ N:'LyondellBasell”) and have certain director nimation rights. LyondellBasell may be
deemed to be under common control with the Complaumythis statement is not meant to be an admigh@Eincommon control exists. As a
result, it appears that we are required to prodidelosures as set forth herein pursuant to Se2tl®nof the new Iran Threat Reduction and
Syria Human Rights Act of 2012 and Section 13(rhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeel Ahnual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2012 filed by Lyondesiél with the SEC on February 12, 2013 contaiheddisclosure set forth below (with all
references contained therein to “the Company” beéfigrences to LyondellBasell and its consolidatelolsidiaries).

The disclosure below does not relate to any avitonducted by the Company and does not invble€ompany or the Company’s
management. The disclosure relates solely to &ieswtonducted by LyondellBasell and its consoédagubsidiaries.

“Disclosure pursuant to Section 219 of the Iran Theat Reduction & Syria Human Rights Act

Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of our predecess@ndellBasell AF, licensed processes to constmdta@erate manufacturing plants in
Iran that produce polyolefin plastic material, whis used in the packaging of household and consgows. The subsidiaries also
provided engineering support and supplied catgisatucts to be used in these manufacturing opastia 2009, the Company made the
decision to suspend the pursuit of any new busideakngs in Iran.

As previously disclosed by the Company, in 2010,oanagement made the further decision to termiatausiness by the Company
and its direct and indirect subsidiaries with tog@rnment, entities and individuals in Iran. Thert@ation was made in accordance with
all applicable laws and with the knowledge of US®vernment authorities. As part of the terminatiwa,entered into negotiations with
Iranian counterparties in order to exit our cortiratobligations. As described below, two transattioccurred under settlement
agreements in early 2012, although the agreememisase our activities with these counterpartiegwatered into in 2011. In January
2012, one of our non-U.S. subsidiaries receiveda payment of approximately €3.5 million for d@ghent of catalyst from an entity
that is 50% owned by the National Petrochemical Gamy of Iran.

Our shipment of the catalyst was in February 2Gslgaat of the agreement related to our terminadimh cessation of all business under
agreements with the counterparty. In 2012, theggregenue from this limited activity was approxigigt €4.2 million and profit
attributable to it was approximately, €2.4 million.

In January and February of 2012, one of the Conmiparon-U.S. subsidiaries provided certain engimeedocuments relating to a
polyolefin plastic process to a licensee comprishrge Iranian companies, one of which is 20% owmethe National Oil Company of
Iran. The provision of documents was the Compafig& act with respect to the termination and cdesaof all business under
agreements with the counterparties. No gross revenprofit was attributable to this activity inZ2 The transactions disclosed in this
report do not constitute violations of applicabigisanoney laundering laws or sanctions laws adnenésl by the U.S. Department of the
Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFA&)d are not the subject of any enforcement actioder the Iran sanction laws.

We have not conducted, and do not intend to condugtfurther business activities in Iran or withrlian counterparties.”
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PART III.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
Directors and Senior Management
Our business and affairs are managed by our Bddbitectors consisting of seven members, one ottvig an independent director.

The following table sets forth certain informatiggarding our directors, executive officers and &mployees as of February 15, 2013:

Name Age Position

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay 61 Chairman of our Board of Directo

David Chua Ming Hua 50 Director

Marc J. Rowatr 50 Director

Steve Martine: 44  Director

Adam M. Aron 58 Director

Walter L. Revell 78 Director, Chairman of the Audit Committ

Karl Petersor 42 Director

Kevin M. Sheehal 59 President and Chief Executive Offic

Wendy A. Beck 48  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Andrew Stuar 49  Executive Vice President, Global Sales and Pass&Swgwices
Daniel S. Farka 44  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segr
Maria Miller 56  Senior Vice President, Marketit

Robert Becke 52  Senior Vice President, Consumer Rese:i

All the executive officers and key employees listbdve hold their offices at the pleasure of ouamoof Directors, subject to rights under any
applicable employment agreements. There are ndyfaelationships between or among any directorsetutive officers.

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay became the Chairman of our Board of Directors ef@mpany on December 16, 2003. Since 2007, Tdnr8rhas
been Chairman and Chief Executive of Genting Berhatbmpany listed on Bursa Malaysia Securitieh8er Genting Berhad is an investn
holding and management company and is principailglived, through its subsidiaries, in leisure andgitality; gaming and entertainment
businesses; development and operation of integrasext; plantation; generation and supply of elegtower; property development and
management; tours and travel-related services;mgmsaesearch and development; investments; arahdilgas exploration and development
activities. Since 2006, 2008 and 2005, respectjviedy Sri Lim has also been Chairman and Chief ke of Genting Malaysia Berhad, the
Chief Executive of Genting Plantations Berhad, hufttvhich are publicly listed companies in Malaysiad the Executive Chairman of
Genting Singapore PLC, a public company listedh@nSingapore Stock Exchange. Genting Malaysia,iGgRiantations, and Genting
Singapore are subsidiaries of Genting Berhad. Si88@, Tan Sri Lim has been a director of Goldepdibimited (acting as trustee of the
Golden Hope Unit Trust) which is the principal staolder of Genting HK; he is also the Chairman @hikf Executive Officer of Genting HI
where he focuses on long-term policies and newbstilgings. Tan Sri Lim has been with Genting HKcgrits formation in 1993. Tan Sri Lim
was also involved in the development of ResortsliV@enting in Malaysia, formerly known as Gentinghlands Resort, and the overall
concept and development of the Burswood ResoreithPAustralia and the Adelaide Casino in Soutlstfalia. Tan Sri Lim graduated with a
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering) degree friva University of London in 1975 and attendedRinegram for Management Development
at the Harvard Graduate School of Business in 19@8.Sri Lim has over 30 years of experience inmgsh, managing and/or serving on the
boards of directors of companies operating in theel and leisure industries and has served asnchaiof board of directors of several entit
In light of our ownership structure and Tan Sri ISmosition with Genting HK and his experience, mgdieve that it is appropriate for Tan Sri
Lim to serve as Chairman of our Board of Directafrthe Company.
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David Chua Ming Huat became a director of the Company in 2008. He ha®deas President of Genting HK since May 2007/rmRd that
time, he was the Chief Operating Officer of GentBerhad from September 2006 to February 2007. Bafmat he held key management
positions in various international securities conipa in Malaysia, Singapore and Hong Kong with esiee knowledge in the management of
securities/futures/derivatives trading, asset antlttusts management, corporate finance and catp@dvisory business, and had served as ¢
director and member of the Listing Committee of MiESDAQ market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhidel possesses a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Political Science and Economics fromG@hdeton University, Ottawa, Canada. Mr. Chua has 45 years of management
experience in a diverse range of industries withigaar emphasis in securities trading and investts, corporate finance and corporate
advisory work and has significant experience iwvisgron boards of directors. In light of our owr@sstructure and Mr. Chua’s position with
Genting HK and his business experience, we belieakit is appropriate for Mr. Chua to serve asraador of the Company.

Marc J. Rowan became a director of the Company in January 2008Rdwan co-founded Apollo in 1990 and has beerrdad® Managing
Director of Apollo Global Management, LLC since Z00n addition, Mr. Rowan currently serves on tleafas of directors of the general
partner of AP Alternative Assets, L.P., Apollo GidiManagement, LLC, Athene Group Ltd. and Caesatsriainment Corporation, as well as
on the boards of certain other Apollo entities.Hds previously served on the boards of directoSME Entertainment, Inc., Cannondale
Bicycle Corp., Countrywide Holdings, Ltd., Cullig&dater Technologies, Inc., Furniture Brands Intéomal, Mobile Satellite Ventures, LLC,
National Cinemedia, Inc., National Financial Parsnénc., New World Communications, Inc., Qualitis@ibution, Inc., Samsonit

Corporation, SkyTerra Communications Inc., Unitydi&eSCA, Vail Resorts, Inc. and Wyndham Internalpimc. Mr. Rowan is also active in
charitable activities. He is a founding member seves on the executive committee of the Youth RehEund and is a member of the board:
of directors of the National Jewish Outreach Progead the Undergraduate Executive Board of the &fsity of Pennsylvania’s Wharton
School of Business and is a member of the Boaiidustees of the New York City Police Foundation. Rowan graduated summa cum laude
from the University of Pennsylvania’s Wharton SchafdBusiness with a BS and an MBA in Finance. Rowan has over 20 years of
experience in the private equity industry, has $etlion the analysis, assessment and capitalizatioew acquisitions and existing portfolio
companies and has significant experience in sewimpoards of directors. In light of our ownerskipucture and Mr. Rowan’s position with
Apollo and his business experience, we believeith&iappropriate for Mr. Rowan to serve as adweof the Company.

Steve Martinezbecame a director of the Company in January 2008M¥értinez is a Senior Partner and Head of AskiffeaPrivate Equity

for Apollo. Mr. Martinez currently serves on thedod of directors of Prestige Cruise Holdings, lan upscale cruise line operating the Oce
and Regent Seven Seas brands; the parent comp&gxobrd Industries, a diversified manufactureemdineered products; Veritable
Maritime, an owner of crude oil tankers; and Nimgdttainment, an Australia-based television brostlaad media company. He has
previously served on the boards of directors ofeliWaste Industries, Goodman Global, Hayes-Lemimeeznational, Hughes Telematics,
and Jacuzzi Brands. Prior to joining Apollo, Mr. ez was a member of the mergers and acquisitiepartment of Goldman, Sachs & Co.
with responsibilities in merger structure negotiatand financing. Before that he worked at Bain &rany Tokyo advising U.S. corporations
on corporate strategies in Japan. Mr. Martinezivedea Mastess of Business Administration from the Harvard Bess School and a Bache
of Arts and Bachelor of Science from the UniversityPennsylvania and the Wharton School of Busirmespectively. Mr. Martinez has over
15 years of experience analyzing and investinguinlip and private companies and has significaneerpce in serving on boards of directors.
Mr. Martinez participated in the diligence of thpdllo Funds’investment in the Company and provides our Boarfdicgctors with insight int
strategic and financial matters of interest to@wenpany’s management and shareholders. In lightiobwnership structure and

Mr. Martinez’s position with Apollo and his busirsesxperience, we believe that it is appropriatdMarMartinez to serve as a director of the
Company.

Adam M. Aron became a director of the Company in January 20@8eSSeptember 2011, Mr. Aron has served as CECCan@wner of the
Philadelphia 76ers, a professional U.S. basketbaih and in that capacity also serves as an Ate@avernor of the National Basketball
Association. In addition, since 2006 he has beeair@tan and CEO of World Leisure Partners, Inc.es@nal consultancy for matters related
to travel and tourism and high-end real estate ldpweent and which acts in partnership with ApoMr. Aron has previously served as
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Office¥ail Resorts, Inc., from 1996 to 2006; Presidamd CEO of Norwegian Cruise Line,
from 1993 to 1996; Senior Vice President of Markgtior United Airlines, from 1990 to 1993; and
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Senior Vice President-Marketing for Hyatt Hotelsr@aration, from 1987 to 1990. Mr. Aron currentlynges on the board of directors of
Starwood Hotels and Resorts Worldwide and Presligése Holdings, Inc., the parent company of Oce&@hrilises, Inc. and Regent Seven
Cruises. He is a member of the Council on Foreiglations, and is a former member of the Young Eeggs’ Organization and Business
Executives for National Security. He also formestyved as First Vice Chairman of the Travel Induéissociation of America; and Vice
Chairman of the National Finance Committee of tleenidcratic Senatorial Campaign Committee for theB2&l8ction cycle. Mr. Aron was
selected by the U.S. Secretary of Defense to f@atie in the Joint Civilian Orientation Confererice004, was appointed by the U.S.
Secretary of Agriculture to serve on the boardiddaors of the National Forest Foundation from@@frough 2006, and was a delegate to
President Clinton’s 1995 White House Conferenc@m@vel and Tourism. Mr. Aron received a Master' 8osiness Administration degree
with Distinction from the Harvard Business Schootl@ Bachelor of Arts degree cum laude from Han@@atlege. Mr. Aron has 33 years of
experience managing companies operating in theltemd leisure industries and provides our Boar@icéctors with, among other skills,
valuable insight and perspective on the travellaistire operations of the Company. In light of Mron’s business experience, we believe tha
it is appropriate for Mr. Aron to serve as a diogaif the Company.

Walter L. Revell became a director of the Company and ChairmaneoAtidit Committee in June 2005, having served @diseztor of Kloster
Cruise Line and other predecessor companies sB@e. Since 1984, Mr. Revell has been ChairmaneBihard and Chief Executive Officer
of Revell Investments International, Inc., a divféed investment, development and management coynjozated in Coral Gables, Florida.
Since 1994 and 2002, respectively, Mr. Revell Hss served as a director of The St. Joe Compapybbcly traded company that is Florida’'s
largest private land owner and a major real estateloper and as a director of International FieaBank in Miami, Florida. Since 1990, he
has also served as Chairman of the Board and Ekexfutive Officer of Pinehurst Development, Incfamily owned company, and serves on
the Executive Committee, the Board of Trusteesan@hairman of the Construction Committee of tharMiScience Museum. He formerly
was a director of Calpine Corporation, Dycom Indest Rinker Materials and Sun Banks of Florida. Revell served as Secretary of
Transportation for the State of Florida in the Agki&dministration. He is a past Chairman of the llarChamber of Commerce and was a
member of The Florida Council of 100 for 37 ye&ts.served as Chairman and CEO of H.J. Ross Asssgiac., consulting engineers,
planners and scientists, and continues as Seniiséwto T.Y. Lin International, the new parent qmany, in San Francisco. Mr. Revell has 40
years of business experience investing and opgratia diverse range of industries and has sigmfiexperience serving on boards

directors. In light of Mr. Revell’'s business experte, we believe that it is appropriate for Mr. &eto serve as a director of the Company.

Karl Peterson became a director of the Company in July 2008.44TPG Partner, a member of that firm’'s Manager@emmittee and head
of the firm's EMEA efforts. Since rejoining TPG 2004, Mr. Peterson has led TPG’s investment a@#/in travel and leisure and media and
entertainment sectors. Prior to 2004, he was Ressihd Chief Executive Officer of Hotwire, Inc. Mieterson led Hotwire, Inc. from
inception through its highly successful sale to Il@rActiveCorp for $680 million in 2003. Beforéstwork at Hotwire, Inc., Mr. Peterson v
a TPG Principal in San Francisco. Prior to joiniigG in 1995, Mr. Peterson was an investment bainkitle Mergers & Acquisitions
Department and the Leveraged Buyout Group of GotgrBachs & Co. from 1992 to 1995. He graduated high honors from the University
of Notre Dame, where he earned a B.B.A. in finaaro# business administration and was elected to Batama Sigma. Mr. Peterson currently
serves on the board of directors of Caesars Emterémt Corporation, Sabre Holdings Corporation 8ago Bank. Mr. Peterson has over 15
years of experience in analyzing and investingublisc and private companies and has significaneggpce in serving on boards of directc
Mr. Peterson participated in the diligence of th&GTViking Funds’ investment in the Company and ffes our Board of Directors with
insight into strategic and financial matters otneist to the Company’s management and shareholddight of our ownership structure and
Mr. Peterson’s position with TPG and his businegmeeence, we believe that it is appropriate for Feterson to serve as a director of the
Company.

Kevin M. Sheehanhas served as the President and Chief Executivieddfff the Company since August 2010. He has semgahe Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since November&80d as President since August 2010 and previdusty August 2008 through March
2009. Mr. Sheehan also served as Chief Financiadédfof the Company from November 2007 throught&eer 2010. Prior to joining us,
spent two and a half years consulting to privatgtgdirms including Cerberus, Fortress and Clayfrbilier & Rice and lecturing full time at
Adelphi University in New York as Distinguished Wtiag Professor of Accounting, Finance and Econamirrior to that, Mr. Sheehan serve
nine-year career with Cendant as Chairman and @&xecutive Officer of their
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Vehicle Services Division including responsibilityr Avis Rent A Car, Budget Rent A Car, Budget TepeHH Fleet Management and Wright
Express. Prior to that he was Cendsu@hief Financial Officer and initially served a§ldent and Chief Financial Officer of Avis Grote i<

a graduate of Hunter College and the New York Ursite Graduate School of Business. Mr. Sheeharesamm the board of directors of
GateHouse Media (NYSE: “GHS"), Dave and Buster'd X®JET, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of thadéddaCaribbean Cruise
Association’s Executive Committee and on the ExgeuCommittee of the Cruise Line International Asiation.

Wendy A. Beckhas served as the Executive Vice President and Elmancial Officer since September 2010. Priojofaing us, Ms. Beck
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Fiah@ificer of Domino’s Pizza, Inc. from May 2008 August 2010. Prior to that she servec
as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officed dreasurer of Whataburger Restaurants, LP from 2084 through April 2008 and served
as their Vice President and Chief Accounting Offitem August 2001 through April 2004. Ms. Beck vadso employed at Checkers Drive-In
Restaurants, Inc. from 1993 through July 2001,isgras their Vice President, Chief Financial Offieed Treasurer from 2000 through July
2001. Ms. Beck currently sits on the board of dwexand audit committee for Spartan Stores, RASDAQ: SPTN). Ms. Beck holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from timéversity of South Florida and is a Certified PalAiccountant.

Andrew Stuart has served as Executive Vice President, Globak%ald Passenger Services of the Company since Nevet@08. From

April 2008 through September 2008, he held thetjprsof Executive Vice President and Chief ProdDfficer. From September 2003 through
March 2008, he served as Executive Vice Presidekanketing, Sales and Passenger Services. Pritvato he was our Senior Vice President
of Passenger Services as well as Vice Presidedalets Planning. He joined us in August 1988 inlaandon office holding various Sales and

Marketing positions before relocating to our heaadtgrs in Miami. Mr. Stuart earned a Bachelor déSce degree in Catering Administration

from Bournemouth University, United Kingdom.

Daniel S. Farkashas served as Senior Vice President and Generaisgbaf the Company since February 2008 and asegrof the
Company since 2010. Since Mr. Farkas joined usiutudry 2004, he has held the positions of Viceiéeasand Assistant General Counsel
from 2005 to 2008, and Assistant General Counsat) £004 to 2005. Mr. Farkas was formerly a parineéhe Miami offices of the law firm
Mase and Gassenheimer specializing in maritimgelitbn. Before that he was an Assistant State Adpfor the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in
and for Miami-Dade County, Florida. Mr. Farkas euntly serves on the board of directors of the @rinslustry Charitable Foundation.

Mr. Farkas earned a Bachelor of Arts degree Cundéavith honors in English and American Literatiani Brandeis University and a Juris
Doctorate degree from the University of Miami.

Maria Miller has served as Senior Vice President, Marketingesinae 2009. Prior to joining us, Ms. Miller senasdSenior Vice President,
Marketing for Dave & Buster's Inc., from May 200&ough May 2009. Before that she was Principal@ad-ounder of the marketing
consulting firm Sage Partners, LLC from Februar@2¢hrough April 2003 and served as Vice PresidéMarketing for Elance from July
2000 through September 2001. Ms. Miller also seag&&enior Vice President, Marketing for Avis Grétgidings, Inc., from January 1998
through July 2000 and held several marketing pmsitat American Express Company including Vice iBlegd, Platinum Card Operations
from April 1987 through October 1995. Ms. Millerltle a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Aditnation from New York University
and an MBA from Stanford University.

Robert Beckerhas served as Senior Vice President, Consumer Rbesafathe Company since March 2008. Prior to jognus, Mr. Becker he
the same position at Carnival Cruise Lines from &ober 1999 through February 2008. Before that Mck@r served as Director of Consu
Research/National Accounts at Renaissance Crureslfrom November 1996 through October 1999 anceaéManager of R Travel from
August 1994 through September 1996. Mr. Beckerdhal8achelor of Arts from St. Bonaventure Univgraind an MBA from Florida Atlanti
University.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Prior to the consummation of NCLH'’s IPO on Janu24y 2013, we did not have a class of equity sdéeariegistered pursuant to Section 12 of
the Exchange Act and as a result the requiremér@saiion 16(a) of the Exchange Act were not agyblie to our directors, executive officers
and persons who own more than 10% of a class oéquity securities for our most recent fiscal year.
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Board of Directors

Upon consummation of the IPO, NCLH’s Board of Dires was divided into three classes, each of whommbers will serve for staggered
three-year terms. Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay and MarBdwan are Class | directors, whose initial termi§exipire at the first annual general
meeting of shareholders that is held following ¢tbeasummation of the IPO; Walter L. Revell, who is mdependent director, and Adam M.
Aron are Class Il directors, whose initial termd @xkpire at the second annual general meetindnafeholders that is held following the
consummation of the IPO; and Steve Martinez, Kateson and David Chua Ming Huat are Class lllaies, whose initial terms will expire
at the third annual general meeting of shareholttetsis held following the consummation of the IPO

We avail ourselves of the “controlled company” eptéen under the NASDAQ rules, which eliminates tbgquirement that NCLH have a
majority of independent directors on our Board @&btors and that NCLH have compensation and naimim@and governance committees
composed entirely of independent directors. NCLkeuired, however, to have an audit committee with independent director during the
90-day period beginning on the date of effectiver@she registration statement filed with the SEConnection with the IPO (January 18,
2013). After such 90-day period and until one yeamn the date of effectiveness of the registratitatement, NCLH is required to have a
majority of independent directors on its audit caittee. Beginning one year after the date of effeetess of this registration statement, NCLH
is required to have an audit committee compriseiledy of independent directors. Pursuant to thenteof the Shareholder8greement, withi
90 days following the consummation of the IPO, NCi. Board of Directors will consist of nine direcspincluding five directors designated
by the Apollo Funds, two directors designated bytieg HK and two independent directors (one degigghly the Apollo Funds and one
designated by Genting HK). Within one year follogithe consummation of the IPO, NCLH’s Board of Biogs will consist of eleven
directors, including six directors designated by &pollo Funds, two directors designated by Gentigand three independent directors (two
designated by the Apollo Funds and one designatdésiemting HK).

If at any time we cease to be a “controlled compamgler the NASDAQ rules, NCLH’s Board of Directosdl take all action necessary to
comply with such NASDAQ rules, including appointiagnajority of independent directors to the Bodr®ioectors and establishing certain
committees composed entirely of independent dirsectn each case subject to the terms of the Shhtets’ Agreement.

In accordance with NCLH's bye-laws, the numberioéctors comprising its Board of Directors will be determined from time to time by
resolution of its Board of Directors, provided, tthizere shall be at least seven but no more threreeldirectors. Each director is to hold office
until his or her successor is duly elected andifiedlor until his or her earlier death, resignatiar removal. At any meeting of NCLH’s Board
of Directors, except as otherwise required by ligswhye-laws provide that a majority of the totahmber of directors then in office, including a
majority of the directors designated by the Apdililnds and at least one director designated by @ehtK, will constitute a quorum for all
purposes. The composition of NCLH's Board of Diogstand committees of its Board of Directors atgett to requirements in the
Shareholders’ Agreement.

We refer you to “Certain Relationships and Relatethsactions—The Shareholders’ Agreement” for nimi@mation regarding the
governance arrangements for NCLH among its prin@pareholders, Genting HK, the Apollo Funds are TRG Viking Funds, and the
process for selection of directors by its princigladreholders.

Committees of our Board of Directors
Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of Walter L. Revelev@ Martinez and Adam M. Aron. Our Board of Diggsthas determined that Walter L.
Revell qualifies as an audit committee financigdext as defined in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation SAalter L. Revell is independent as
independence is defined in Rule 10A-3 under theifées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the HBrge Act”) and under the NASDAQ
rules. We intend to take such actions as may bessacy to ensure that a majority of the membeosiohudit committee are independent
directors no later than 90 days after the consumomaf the IPO and that all members of our audihotttee are independent directors no late
than one year after the consummation of the IPQedgt one of these additional independent directdli satisfy the NASDAQ standard of
possessing accounting or related financial manageexpertise and qualify as an independent audiincittee financial expert under the
Exchange Act. The principal duties and responsiédiof our audit committee are as follows:

» to oversee and monitor the integrity of our finahstatements

59



Table of Contents

» to monitor our financial reporting process andrin& control systerr

» to appoint our independent registered public actiogriirm from time to time, determine their comgsation and other terms of
engagement and oversee their we

» to oversee the performance of our internal audittion; anc
» to oversee our compliance with legal, ethical saglutatory matters

The audit committee has the power to investigayenaatter brought to its attention within the scapés duties. It also has the authority to
retain counsel and advisors to fulfill its respdilgies and duties.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of Steve MaztiMarc J. Rowan and Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay. Thegipal duties and responsibilities of
our compensation committee are as follows:

» to provide oversight and make recommendations tdoard of Directors on the development and impletaton of the
compensation policies, strategies, plans and pnogifar our key employees, executive officers andide directors and disclosure
relating to these matters and to establish andr@dtar incentive compensation, benefit and relatads;

» toreview and make recommendations to our Boaim@ctors regarding corporate goals and objectipesformance and the
compensation of our chief executive officer, ctileéincial officer and the other executive officefus and our subsidiaries; a

» to provide oversight and make recommendations tdoard of Directors concerning selection of offi&seregarding performance
individual executives and related matte

NCLH avails itself of the*controlled company” exemption under the NASDAQesilwhich exempts it from the requirement thatitha
compensation committee composed entirely of indépendirectors.

Nominating and Governance Committe

Our nominating and governance committee consisBaefd Chua Ming Huat, Steve Martinez and Adam Mo The principal duties and
responsibilities of our nominating and governanm@ittee are as follows:

» to establish criteria for the board of directors @ommittee membership and recommend to our Bdadrectors proposed
nominees for election to our Board of Directors &rdnembership on committees of our Board of Diives;

* to make recommendations regarding proposals swdahtitf our shareholders; a
» to make recommendations to our Board of Directegarding our Board of Direct¢ governance matters and practic

NCLH avails itself of the*controlled company” exemption under the NASDAQesilwhich exempts it from the requirement thatitha
nominating and governance committee composed Bntiféndependent directors.

Board compensation

NCLH’s directors are entitled to reimbursement for tloeit-ofpocket expenses. Beginning upon consummation dPe each of its directo
receives an annual retainer fee of $50,000. Begghnpon consummation of the IPO, the chairman efildit committee receives an annual
retainer fee of $10,000. Beginning upon consummatitthe IPO, directors also receive a fee of $1 26 committee meeting attended. Unde
NCLH’s new long-term incentive plan, upon consummatibthe IPO, its independent director received atime grant of $200,000 of
restricted ordinary shares (based on the initifdrofg price of NCLH’s ordinary shares in the IPO).

Compensation committee interlocks and insider partiipation

None of our executive officers serves as a membeuoBoard of Directors or compensation commiti@eother committee performir
equivalent functions) of any entity that has onenore executive officers serving on our Board afbiors or compensation committee. No
interlocking relationship exists between any mendfeyur Board of Directors or any member of the pemsation committee (or other
committee performing equivalent functions) of atlyay company.
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Code of ethical business conduct

NCLH’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code of EttBeainess Conduct that is applicable to all officelirectors and employees, which is
available on our website: www.investor.ncl.com urif@orporate— About Norwegian—Corporate Governah@ée will provide a copy of
these documents to any person, without charge, tgmprest, by writing to us at Norwegian Cruise Ladings Ltd., Investor Relations
Department, 7665 Corporate Center Drive, Miamififlen33126. We intend to satisfy the disclosuraimremment under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K
regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a prorisf our Code of Ethical Business Conduct by jpgssuch information on our website at
the address and the location specified above.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This section describes each of the material elestompensation awarded to, earned by or pasdit@xecutive officers identified in the
“2012 Summary Compensation” table, which we refeintthis section as our “Named Executive Officass*NEOs.” This section also
describes the role and involvement of various patiith our executive compensation analysis and idesisand provides a discussion of the
process and rationale for the decisions of our 8c&Directors to compensate our Named Executifiee€@t with specific types and amounts
of compensation. The Named Executive Officers fit2were:

Kevin M. Sheehal President and Chief Executive Offic

Wendy A. Beck Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Andrew Stuar Executive Vice President, Global Sales and Pass&weices
Maria Miller Senior Vice President, Marketit

Robert Becke Senior Vice President, Consumer Rese:

Although following the IPO we now have a separampensation committee, our executive compensatiograms have historically been
determined and approved by our entire Board ofddars. Our Board of Directors historically had #nghority to determine all aspects of our
executive compensation program, and made all cosgtiem decisions affecting the Named Executived@f prior to the IPO. None of the
Named Executive Officers are members of our Bo&idiectors or otherwise had any role in determgnihe compensation of other Narr
Executive Officers, although our Board of Directdid consider the recommendations of our PresidedtChief Executive Officer (the
“CEQ") in setting compensation levels for our extiai officers other than the CEO. Following the |R@r compensation committee has the
authority to determine all aspects of our executivmpensation program and make all compensatiosides affecting the Named Executive
Officers, and will take over the compensation-rsfiatesponsibilities previously performed by the i8loaf Directors.

Executive Compensation Program Objectives and Pédphy
The Company’s executive compensation arrangemeatgaded by the following principles and businebgectives:

* We believe that a capable, experienced and higbljvated executive management team is criticaltosoiccess and to the crea
of long-term shareholder valu

* We believe that the most effective executive corspgaon program is one that is designed to rewagdhtthievement of annual,
long-term and strategic goals and aligns the istsref our executives with those of our sharehsldeith the ultimate objective of
improving lon¢-term shareholder valu

The Company’s executive compensation program igded according to these principles and is interidesthieve two principal objectives:
(1) effectively attract and retain executives wvitth requisite skills and experience to help useahbur business objectives and develop,
expand and execute business opportunities thabiagdong-term shareholder value; and (2) encouexgeutives to achieve our shegtm ant
long-term business objectives and increase long-gdrareholder value by linking executive compensatd Company performance, increases
in long-term shareholder value and individual parfance.
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The Company'’s current compensation program has #eg elements, which are designed to be consigtiémthe Company’s compensation
philosophy and business objectives: (1) base sa@rannual and medium-term incentive cash bonuses (3) long-term equity awards that
are subject to both time and performance-basedhgasiquirements. The Company also provides noifipchleferred compensation plan
benefits, 401(k) retirement benefits, perquisited severance benefits to the executive officeduding the Named Executive Officers.

In structuring executive compensation arrangementsBoard of Directors considers how each compbmesets these objectives. Base
salaries, severance, retirement and nonqualifiéetidel compensation benefits are primarily intentdedttract and retain highly qualified
executives. These are the elements of our execoivgensation program where the value of the bieinediny given year is not dependent on
performance (although base salary amounts andibedefermined by reference to base salary maygehfitom year to year depending on
performance, among other things). We believe thatder to attract and retain top executives, waglre provide our executives with
compensation levels that reward their continuediserand are competitive. Some of the elementd) agdase salaries, are paid out on a sho
term or current basis. Other elements, such aditepeovided upon termination of employment andequaalified deferred compensation are
paid out on a longer term basis. We believe thatrtiix of short and long-term elements allows uadbieve our goals of attracting and
retaining top executives.

Annual and medium-term incentive bonuses and lengr-equity incentives are the elements of our exeesgompensation program that are
designed to reward performance and thus the creafishareholder value. Annual incentive bonusepamarily intended to motivate the
Named Executive Officers to achieve the Com|'s annual financial objectives, although we alsheve they help us attract and retain top
executives. Medium-term incentive bonuses are fremd time to time as an additional performance imive and are primarily intended to
motivate the Named Executive Officers to achievecHir performance objectives. Our long-term equitgentives are primarily intended to
align Named Executive Officers’ long-term interesith shareholders’ long-term interests, althoughalso believe that they play a role in
helping us to attract and retain top executives.

Our Board of Directors believes that performanceeldlacompensation such as annual and medium-teantine bonuses and long-term equity
incentives play a significant role in aligning mgeaents interests with those of our shareholders. Farridson, these forms of compense
constitute a significant portion of each of our Nahixecutive Officerscompensation opportunity. In determining the appetp mix for eacl
of our Named Executive Officers, our Board of Dimgs considers and assesses, among other facolsNamed Executive Officer’'s
responsibilities, background and experience, ahgevia the Company, as well as each offiserxpected level of contribution toward achie\
the Company’s long-term objectives.

Compensation Consultants; Review of Relevant Congaion Data

Consistent with past practice, in 2012 neitherBoard of Directors hor management retained a cosgigm consultant to review or
recommend the amount or form of compensation ma@lt executive officers, including our Named Exe®iOfficers, or our directors. If and
when we decide to retain a compensation consttibeadsist us with our executive compensation progriaa the future, we will conduct an
independence assessment of any such compensatisultemt (including an assessment of any confti€iaterest) as and to the extent requ
under applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules.

Our Board of Directors believes that, in orderffe&ively attract and retain high level executtaéent, each element of the compensation
program should establish compensation levels #hat into account current market practices. Our @ofDirectors does not “benchmark”
executive compensation at any particular levebimparison with other companies. Rather, our Bo&iiiectors familiarizes itself with
compensation trends and competitive conditionsuiifinche review of non-customized third-party masduatveys and other publicly available
data about relevant market compensation practicestting compensation levels for 2012, our Ba#rBirectors considered publicly availal
compensation data to determine the relative sthergtd weaknesses of our compensation packagesagyeegate basis solely as a validatior
after determining the types and amount of comp@nsagsed on its own evaluation. In addition tedew of the general market compensa
levels and practices, in setting compensation $fiegl 2012, our Board of Directors also relied @neixtensive experience managing private
equity entities and considered each executive'sllef/responsibility and performance for the ovieogkrations of the Company, historical
Company practices, long-term market trends, intgrag equity, expectations regarding the indivitgiaiture contributions, our own
performance, budget considerations, and succepioning and retention strategies.
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Prior to the IPO, there was no public market forllHG ordinary shares, and as a result we have eenlvequired to hold a shareholder
advisory vote on our executive compensation (a tsapay” vote). NCLH will hold a “say on pay” vo# its first annual shareholders’
meeting, and intends to consider the outcome ofdag on pay” vote when making its executive congadion decisions.

Executive Compensation Program Elements
Base Salarie:

Each Named Executive Officer is party to an empleghagreement that provides for a fixed base sadaityject to annual review by our Board
of Directors. The initial base salary level for e@&tamed Executive Officer was negotiated in coninaatith the executive joining the
Company or upon a change of their responsibilifiEisions regarding adjustments to base salareemade at the discretion of our Board of
Directors. In reviewing base salary levels for blamed Executive Officers, our Board of Directorsasiders and assesses, among other fa
each Named Executive Officerturrent base salary, their job responsibilitiesdership and experience, and value to our Compamddition
as noted above, base salary levels are genertdlydad to be consistent with competitive markeelsadary levels, but are not specifically
targeted or “bench-marked” against any particutamgany or group of companies.

After reviewing the Named Executive Officers’ basdaries in light of the current economic environtrend considering the Company’s
financial position, our Board of Directors deteretinto increase the base salaries of our Named Exeddfficers by 2.5%6% from their 201
levels effective April 1, 2012.

Annual Performance Incentive:

Each of our Named Executive Officers, with the gatimn of Mr. Becker, are eligible for an annualfpemance incentive cash bonus
opportunity pursuant to the terms of their emplogtgreements. The employment agreements for ddblese Named Executive Officers
provide that for each fiscal year of the Compahg, éxecutive is eligible to earn an incentive bahetermined by our Board of Directors in its
discretion based on the attainment of performaigectives established for the fiscal year by ouamloof Directors. For 2012, our Board of
Directors established the applicable performangectives under the 2012 Management Incentive Alaa.2012 performance objectives were
based upon the achievement of certain performaoaks @f the Company and the individual. The anpeaiormance incentive is used to
ensure that a portion of our Named Executive Officeompensation is at risk, and that each Namestitkve Officer has the opportunity to
receive a variable amount of compensation basemipBoard of Directors’ evaluation of our and thdividual's performance. Mr. Becker’s
employment agreement provides for an annual boh$850,000.

Each year, our Board of Directors establishes tiergial value of the executives’ incentive bonppartunity, as well as the performance
targets required to achieve these opportunitieg;iwimay include one or any combination of the failog: (i) net income, operating income or
EBITDA, (ii) return on assets, return on capita&turn on equity, return on economic capital, retumrother measures of capital, return on sale
or other financial criteria; (iii) revenue or neflas; (iv) budget and expense management; or 6tpmer or product measures. In determining
the extent to which the performance measures aréama given period, our Board of Directors exeeds its judgment whether to reflect or
exclude the impact of extraordinary, unusual oregfiently occurring events.

Each year, our Board of Directors also establisteesfinancial performance measures for our Chief Exgeudfficer, and our Chief Executi\
Officer establishes the non-financial performan@asures for each of the other applicable execoffieers, including the Named Executive
Officers. These measures are used by our Boardrettors to evaluate performance beyond purelynfingl measures, and include one or any
combination of the following: (i) exceptional penfieance of each individual's area of responsibilitly;leadership; (iii) creativity and
innovation; (iv) collaboration; (v) development antplementation of growth initiatives; (vi) guestgerience and loyalty; (vii) employee
engagement; and (viii) other activities that afigaal to driving long-term value for shareholders.

Our Board of Directors sets the value of the anpealormance incentive opportunity as a percentddiee executive’s base salary. However,
the actual amount that becomes payable to an exeésitdetermined by our Board of Directors, insitde discretion, based on the level of
achievement of the Company performance goal andoard of Directors’ assessment of the executiirelsvidual performance. After the end
of the year, our Board of Directors reviews the @any’s actual performance against the performaneéagtablished at the beginning of the
year. Our Board of Directors also makes an assegaheerformance against the I-financial goals set at the outset of the year dsagecacl
Named Executive Offic's performance in relation to any extraordinaryréseor transactions.
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For 2012, our Board of Directors established a Camgperformance target based on EBITDA, as defoetdw for purposes of the
management incentive plan, with the amount of &émimed Executive Officer's annual performance opputy to be determined based on the
Company’s actual EBITDA for the year as comparetth wie target EBITDA established by our Board ofdotors. If the actual EBITDA for
2012 was less than 95% of the target EBITDA, nauses would be paid. If the actual EBITDA for 2012snat least 105% of the target
EBITDA, each Named Executive Officer would be dligito receive up to their maximum bonus opporjurkior purposes of our management
incentive plan, we define EBITDA as earnings befaterest, other income (expense) including taaasd, depreciation and amortization before
or after nonrecurring, uncontrollable or unusuairis. Our Board of Directors believes that EBITDA isseful measure as it reflects certain
operating drivers of the Company’s business, ssctaées growth, operating costs, selling, generdlaaministrative expense and other
operating income and expense. In setting the t&BEIDA for 2012, our Board of Directors considemsleral factors, including a careful
review of the annual budget and the desire to ensomtinued improved performance on a year over lyasis. Our Board of Directors reser
the right to adjust the goals to take into accalnainges in deployment of the fleet, major unforese®l uncontrollable events and other non-
recurring and extraordinary costs and revenuesreqped by the Company during the year, and mayena@ipropriate adjustments for certain
non-recurring items consistent with this authority.

The following chart sets forth the EBITDA levelsvatich various levels of incentive payout would dee available to our Named Executive
Officers for 2012, with the bonus percentage amoeRrpressed as a percentage of the Named ExeQfficer’s base salary for 2012.
Between these points the payout is calculatedslidilg straight line basis. The bonus opportusiy forth in the following chart for each of
the Named Executive Officers was determined byBmard of Directors, in its judgment, to be appraf@ibased on the target bonus amount
that was negotiated by each executive in theiraetbge employment agreement, each executive’'s exper and position, and general
competitive practices.

2012
Percentage o Financial
EBITDA Goal Performance Non-Financial Total Maximum
Performance

Name Achieved Bonus Bonus Bonus
Kevin M. Sheehan 95% 40% 1C% 50%
10C% 80% 2C% 10(%
102.5% 13(% 2C% 15(%
105% 18(% 2C% 200%
Wendy A. Beck 95% 20% 5% 25%
10(% 40% 1C% 50%
102.5% 65% 1C% 75%
105% 90% 1C% 10(%
Andrew Stuar 95% 20% 5% 25%
10C% 40% 1C% 50%
102.5% 65% 1C% 75%
105% 90% 1C% 10C%
Maria Miller 95% 14% 3.5% 17.5%
10(% 28% 7% 35%
102.5% 45.5% 7% 52.5%
105% 63% 7% 70%

Robert Becke — — — —

For 2012, our Board of Directors established anTEB\ goal of $553.0 million which the Company detémed was achieved. Estimated 2012
bonus amounts for each Named Executive Officer \wai@ in December of 2012, and on February 18, 26Bcompensation committee
determined not to increase the amount of any Nafxedutive Officer’s estimated bonus amount. Thalftonus amounts are reported in the
“2012 Summary Compensation” table below.
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Driving Demand Bonus Opportunit

In 2011, the Board of Directors approved a spawia-time incentive opportunity designed to drivended and pricing. Each one of our
Named Executive Officers was granted an incentp@oatunity under the program in 2011. The targetusoopportunity for each Nam
Executive Officer was determined in 2011 by our iBoaf Directors, in its judgment, to be appropriaésed on each executive’s overall
responsibilities, position in the Company and gaheompetitive practices. Any bonus that becomgslple is based on a percentage of the
Named Executive Offic's base salary as of April 1, 2011, and ranges éetw25%-100% of the executive’s base salary atithat

Under the driving demand program, each Named Ekec@fficer is eligible to receive a cash bonusdthon performance during a single
performance period that covers the 2011 and 20&Bsythat is based on the Company: (i) achievingBETDA budget for 2011 and 2012;

(i) improving its net ticket per diem; (iii) impwing its guest satisfaction as measured by the @oiyip Guest Satisfaction survey results; and
(iv) improving its travel agent advocacy as meagimg Norwegian's Travel Agent survey results. E tiompany fails to achieve its EBITDA
budget for 2011 and 2012, no bonuses will be payttbthe Named Executive Officers. If the Compadlyieves its EBITDA budget, the
Named Executive Office’ bonus amounts will be determined based on théeesement of the three other performance factoryalfalthough
Mr. Becker’'s bonus will be determined solely on neyements to our net ticket per diem).

The amount of each Named Executive Officer’'s bgmaygnent under the driving demand program was déatedrby our compensation
committee in the first quarter of 2013 and is régein the “2012 Summary Compensation” table below.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

Our policy has been that the loterm compensation of our executives, includingamed Executive Officers, should be directly linkedhe
value provided to shareholders. Accordingly, oumglderm equity incentive program is intended t@dily align a significant portion of the
compensation of our Named Executive Officers whit interests of our shareholders by motivatingraméarding creation and preservation of
long-term shareholder value with measurement tali4year performance period.

In 2009, we adopted the Profits Sharing Agreemdrithvauthorized us to grant profits interests mfibrm of Ordinary Profits Units in NCLC
to certain key employees, including the Named EtteeOfficers. Each award of Ordinary Profits Uniépresented a share in any future
appreciation of NCLC after the date of grant, sabje vesting conditions and once certain sharedrateturns have been achieved.

On September 4, 2012, the Board of Directors gthkte Sheehan certain awards of Ordinary Profitédn the amounts set forth in the
“Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 201t2ble below. In determining the level of awardsnged to Mr. Sheehan, the Board of Directors todé
account his responsibilities, background and egpeg as well as his expected level of contributbwvard achieving the Company’s long-term
objectives and the Board's expectations as todhg-term Company performance. No Ordinary Profitstd¢)were granted to any of the other
Named Executive Officers during 2012; however, eafdine Named Executive Officers was granted arrdw&Ordinary Profits Units in pric
years, and these awards continued to serve aegachtiv(s long-term compensation opportunity.

The Ordinary Profits Units were generally subjectine-based vesting requirements (“TBUs") and grenfance-based vesting requirements
(“PBUSs"). The TBUs were scheduled to vest ratahigrdive years, subject to the executive’s contthamployment with the Company. In
general, the PBUs were scheduled to vest, if aipthn a “realization event” (which is generallyfided to mean any receipt of cash dividends,
distributions or sale proceeds with respect toavdiary shares) for the Apollo Funds if the foliog levels of invested capital are returned to
the Apollo Funds in connection with the realizat@arent: 50% of the PBUs will vest if the Apollo Flsreceive 100% of their invested capital
in the Company and the remaining 50% will veshé Apollo Funds receive 200% or more of their ingd<apital in the Company. These
vesting provisions were established to ensurethigavalue realized by the Named Executive Offigensild increase as the final cash return
ultimately realized by the Apollo Funds and ourestburrent shareholders increases.
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In addition, during 2010, Mr. Sheehan was gran@@ 00 PBUs that were scheduled to vest upon tberemce of a “realization event”
provided that the amount of realized cash recelyethe Apollo Funds is greater than two and onetgudimes (2.25x) the capital invested in
the Company by the Apollo Funds. This award of PBlds granted to Mr. Sheehan as a special perfornacentive to motivate him to
achieve a superior cash return for the Apollo Fuamtts NCLH’s other shareholders.

As part of the Corporate Reorganization, all outsiiag profits interests granted under the Profitarig Agreement, including the Ordinary
Profits Units described above, were exchangedrf@anomically equivalent number of Management NEokporation Units. The
Management NCL Corporation Units received uporetkehange of outstanding profits interests will @mm to be subject to the same time-
based vesting requirements and performance-bastidyeequirements described above. Subject taicgprocedures and restrictions
(including the vesting schedules applicable toNtamagement NCL Corporation Units and any applicédg@l and contractual restrictions),
each holder of Management NCL Corporation Unitsthasight to cause NCLC and NCLH to exchange thiddr’'s Management NCL
Corporation Units for NCLH’s ordinary shares atexthange rate equal to one ordinary share for eMaryagement NCL Corporation Unit
(or, at NCLC'’s election, a cash payment equal ¢govilue of the exchanged Management NCL Corporafitts), subject to customary
adjustments for stock splits, subdivisions, comtimes and similar extraordinary events. Any non-@ia tax distributions made to a
Management NCL Corporation Unit Holder will redube amount of NCLHs ordinary shares (or cash) that the holder wothdravise receiv
upon exchange. The exchange right described alsaugbject to (i) the filing and effectiveness ofeguplicable registration statement by NC
that, in its determination, contains all the infation which is required to effect a registered sdligs shares and (ii) all applicable legal and
contractual restrictions, including those imposgdhe lockup agreements entered into in connection with B@. INCLH reserved for issuar
a number of its ordinary shares correspondingamtimber of Management NCL Corporation Units. Reihg the expiration of the 180-day
lock-up agreements, NCLH intends to file a registrastatement with the SEC to register on a caittirs basis the issuance of the ordinary
shares to be received by the holders of Manageh@htCorporation Units who elect to exchange.

To the extent funds are legally available, theagreement governing the NCL Corporation Units ptesithat NCLC will make cash
distributions, which we refer to as “tax distritauts,”to the holders of the NCL Corporation Units (inghglthe Management NCL Corporat
Units) if ownership of the NCL Corporation Unitsvgs rise to U.S. taxable income for the holder® ULS. taxable income attributable to
NCLH’s ownership of NCL Corporation Units may be diéfat from the relative U.S. taxable income attribigao the Management NCL
Corporation Units. In that case, tax distributiomsy be made on a non-pro rata basis with the t®lofeManagement NCL Corporation Units
possibly receiving relative tax distributions gexahan the tax distributions received by NCLH. Emaily, these tax distributions will be
computed based on our estimate of the taxable iacdatermined for U.S. federal income tax purposhscable to the NCL Corporation Unit
holder multiplied by the U.S. federal and stateome tax rate applicable to each holder, as detedimthe sole discretion of NCLH.

We will not grant any additional profits interestsder the Profits Sharing Agreement, and new lengrincentive awards have been and will
be granted under our new long-term incentive pkscdbed under “New Long-Term Incentive Plan” below

Severance Arrangements and Change in Control Betw

Each of our Named Executive Officers is employedspant to an employment agreement that providesdegrance benefits upon an
involuntary termination of the Named Executive ©dfi's employment by us without cause or, for Mre&tan, a termination by the executive
as a result of a constructive termination. The swe benefit in each employment agreement wastiaggghin connection with the
commencement of each executive’s employment wghbmpany, or upon a change of their responséslitin each case, our Board of
Directors determined that it was appropriate tovjgf® the executive with severance benefits undectttcumstances in light of each of their
respective positions with the Company, general aitipe practices and as part of each of their aWeompensation package. The severance
benefits payable to each of our Named Executivee@® upon a qualifying termination of employmeangrally includes a cash payment
based on the executive’s base salary (and in sasescincluding bonus), and continued medical ltsrfef the applicable severance period at
the Company’s expense.

The Company does not believe that the Named Exex@ificers should be entitled to any cash severdrenefits merely because of a change
in control of the Company. Accordingly, none of tiemed Executive Officers are entitled to any sp@yiments or benefits upon the
occurrence of a change in control of the Comparigssrithere is an actual or constructive terminatfoemployment following the change in
control.

66



Table of Contents

The material terms of these benefits are desciib#tk “Potential Payments Upon a Termination oai@je in Control” section of this annual
report below.

Other Elements of Compensation
Share Option Scheme for Shares of Genting |

Certain directors and employees of Genting HK &edQompany, including Mr. Stuart, were grantedanstito purchase shares of Genting HK
under the Share Option Scheme adopted by GentingrHKugust 23, 2000 (as effected on November 3002hd amended on May 22,
2002). None of the Named Executive Officers othantMr. Stuart have been granted awards undepldnis The Share Option Scheme exg
on November 29, 2010, whereupon no further opteamsbe granted under this plan. All options outditagnunder this plan are vested and
exercisable. These options do not relate to NCldiinary shares, and are not considered a patdrofwrent executive compensation
program.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Pl

We maintain a Supplemental Executive Retiremem PBERP”), which is a legacy unfunded defined citwition plan for certain of our
executives who were employed by the Company inxacgive capacity prior to 2008. The SERP was fnapefuture participation following
that date. Messrs. Sheehan and Stuart are théNamhed Executive Officers who are eligible to papate in the SERP. The SERP provides
Company contributions on behalf of the participaotsompensate them for the benefits that aredinitnder our 401(k) Plan. We credit
participants under the SERP for amounts that wbalte been contributed by us to the Company’s pusvidefined Contribution Retirement
Plan and our former 401(k) Plan without regardrtg Emitations imposed by the Code. Participantsidbmake any elective contributions
under this plan.

In 2012, the Company made a contribution to the BER Messrs. Sheehan and Stuart, and certain asaane paid to Messrs. Sheehan and
Stuart, in lieu of being contributed to the SERPgiider to comply with and avoid adverse conseceenader recently enacted applicable tax
rules. The Company contribution amount for MesSkheehan and Stuart for 2012 is included in the 22Bdmmary Compensation” table
below and the footnotes thereto. Additional infotima about the SERP is provided in the “Nonquatifigeferred Compensation Tablafid the
narrative to the table below.

Senior Management Retirement Savings Pl

We maintain a Senior Management Retirement Sawteys (‘SMRSP”) which is a legacy unfunded defined contributiomdiar certain of oL
employees, including Mr. Stuart, who were emploggdhe Company prior to 2001. Mr. Stuart is theyddamed Executive Officer who is
eligible to participate in the SMRSP. The SMRSPvtes for Company contributions on behalf of thetipgpants to compensate them for the
difference between the qualified plan benefits thate previously available under the Company’s dashnce pension plan and the redesigne
401(k) Plan. We credit participants under the SMR&# for the difference in the amount that woudetdnbeen contributed by us to the
Company’s previous Norwegian Cruise Line Pensi@nRnd the qualified plan maximums of the new 4DR(&n.

The amount of the contribution for 2012 was pait¥ito Stuart in 2012 in order to comply with and Evadverse consequences under recently
enacted applicable tax rules. The Company contabwmount for Mr. Stuart for 2012 is included lret'2012 Summary Compensation” table
below and the footnotes thereto. Additional infotima about the SMRSP is provided in the “NonquetifDeferred Compensation” table and
the narrative to the table below.

Benefits and Perquisite

We provide our Named Executive Officers with ratient benefits under our 401(k) Plan, participatioour medical, dental and insurance
programs and vacation and other holiday pay, aitcordance with the terms of such plans and pnagjia effect from time to time and
substantially on the same terms as those genefdlsed to our other employees.
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In addition, the Named Executive Officers receiveaah automobile allowance, as well as coveragentheé Company’s Medical Executive
Reimbursement Plan which provides them with reiraborent of certain medical, dental and vision expgnBhe Company believes that the
level and mix of perquisites it provides to the NahiExecutive Officers is consistent with market pemsation practices.

Share Ownership Prograr
We do not currently have a share ownership prognapface for our Named Executive Officers.

Compensation Risk Assessment

The Company conducted a risk assessment of the &uoyispcompensation policies and practices and concltiidgduch policies and practic
do not create risks that are reasonably likelyateeha material adverse effect on the Company. tiiicpéar, our Board of Directors believes tl
the design of the Company’s annual and medium-f@rformance incentive programs and long-term ednigntives provides an effective
and appropriate mix of incentives to ensure oucetiee compensation program is focused on long-t@rareholder value creation and does
not encourage the taking of short-term risks aettygense of long-term results.

Compensation Committee Report

The compensation committee of the Board of Dirextas reviewed and discussed with managementsbslires contained in the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis section efdhnual report. Based upon this review and digmusthe compensation committee
recommended to the Board of Directors that the Gomegtion Discussion and Analysis section be indudehis annual report.

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay
Marc J. Rowan
Steve Martinez

The foregoing report of the compensation commitees not constitute soliciting material and shait be deemed filed, incorporated by
reference into or a part of any other filing by tRegistrant (including any future filings) undeetBecurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, etcém extent the Registrant specifically incogies such report by reference therein.

Compensation of Executive Officers

The “2012 Summary Compensatida@able below quantifies the value of the differemifis of compensation earned by or awarded to oore¥
Executive Officers for 2012, 2011 and 2010. Thenay elements of each Named Executive Officer'altodmpensation reported in the table
are base salary, an annual bonus, long-term eipgigntives consisting of profits interest awardd anonqualified deferred compensation
benefits.

The “2012 Summary Compensation” table should be re@onjunction with the tables and narrative digsions that follow. The Grants of
Plan-Based Awards table, and the accompanying igéiscr of the material terms of our profits inteiegrants, provides information regarding
the cash and long-term equity incentives awardeditdNamed Executive Officers. The sections emtitle-Outstanding Equity Awards at
December 31, 2012” and “—Option Exercises and Stéedted in 2012” provide further information on tiamed Executive Officers’
potential realizable value and actual value redliziéh respect to their equity awards.
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2012 Summary Compensation

The following table presents information regardomgnpensation of each of our Named Executive Offi¢er services rendered during 2012,

2011 and 2010.

Non-Equity

Incentive Plan

All Other

Stock Compensation (§  Compensation ($
Bonus ($) Awards ($)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) 1) (2 3) (4) Total ($)
Kevin M. Sheehan 201z 1,113,42 4,358,38.
President and Chief Executive Officel _ 589,33! 2,078,23 577,38
2011 1,060,39 166,66 — 2,057,15! 566,61¢ 3,850,83
201C 1,018,03¢ 166,66 1,693,04 2,036,07. 427,39. 5,341,20
Wendy A. Beck 201z 1,384,23
Executive Vice President and Chief 515,33 — — 721,56t 147,33
Financial Officer 2011  504,50° — — 484,32 70,577 1,059,41
201( 125,00  250,00( 704,72( — 37,11¢ 1,116,83
Andrew Stuart 201z 1,348,25I
Executive Vice President, Global Sale 488.63¢ — — 684,21: 175,40
and Passenger Services 2011 476,77.  133,33: — 452,93. 177,33( 1,240,37
201C 465,82¢ 133,33 — 465,82t 151,090 1,216,08
Maria Miller 201z
Senior Vice President, Marketing 372,37! — — 465,58¢ 22,81¢ 860,78:
2011 363,36 — — 241,64( 24,19¢ 629,20¢
201C 355,03! — — 248,52! 24,98 628,54:
Robert Becker 2012 350,00
Senior Vice President, Consumer 268,69¢ — 256,74( 21,76( 897,19¢
Research 2011 262,16:  350,00( — — 14,30¢ 626,47:
201C 256,13.  350,00( — — 9,981 616,11:

1)

(2)

The amounts reported for 2011 and 2010 in Bantis” column of the table above represent theigrodf the leadership retention awards
that were earned in connection with their servineég011 and 2010 for Mr. Sheehan and Mr. Stuaré dimounts for Mr. Becker repres
his annual bonus. The amount for Ms. Beck in 2@&f0esents the bonus that was guaran

The amounts reported in the “Stock Awards” amtuof the table above reflect the fair value onghent date of the profits interests
awards granted to our Named Executive Officerss&halues have been determined under the prinaigkx$ to calculate the value of

equity awards for purposes of our financial statetsie-or a discussion of the assumptions and metbgigs used to calculate the
amounts referred to above, please see the disouskibe profits interests awards contained in NgtEmployee Benefits and Share
Option Plans, to our consolidated financial statetséor the year ended December 31, 2012 inclutssdvlere in this annual repa

(3) Please see the Compensation Discussion ang#isakection above for a description of (1) theeiritve bonuses awarded to the Named

Executive Officers for 2012 and (2) the driving demd program incentive bonuses awarded to the N&wredutive Officers in 2011 for
single performance period that covers 2011 and z
(4) The following table provides detail for the amourgported for 2012 in th* All Other Compensatic’ column of the table

Contributions

Contributions

Relocation to SERP to SMRSP Other Total
Name Auto ($)(1) Assistance ($)(z $)(3) ($)(4) Perquisites ($)(5 ($)
Kevin M. Sheehan 27,00( — 538,13: — 12,25] 577,38¢
Wendy A. Beck 14,40( 125,34 — — 7,59: 147,33t
Andrew Stuar 14,40( — 141,93¢ 10,99¢ 8,06¢ 175,40(
Maria Miller 14,40( — — — 8,41¢ 22,81¢
Robert Becke 14,40( — — — 7,36( 21,76(

(1) Represents a cash automobile allowa
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(2) Represents amounts paid directly to the Named ExecOfficer as well as relocation expenses paidaliy by the Compan!
(3) Represents the Company contribution to the Comn’s Supplemental Executive Retirement P

(4) Represents the Company contribution to the Con’s Senior Management Retirement Savings F

(5) Represents medical executive reimbursement, flexalddits and life insurance premiur

Description of Employment Agreemer—Salary and Bonus Amounts
Kevin M. Sheeha

Mr. Sheehan is employed as our President and Exetutive Officer pursuant to an employment agregmgth the Company. The initial
term of Mr. Sheehan’s employment under the agreémdour years. The agreement will automaticadigew for an additional year on
November 5, 2013 and each anniversary thereattbject to the same terms and conditions, unlebsreite or Mr. Sheehan gives notice
non-renewal within ninety days prior to the endh# term. The agreement provides for a minimum ahbase salary of $1,000,000, annual
performance-based bonus with a target amount e@qu#l0% of base salary, long-term incentive comatos as determined by our Board of
Directors and participation in employee benefihgland perquisite programs generally availableutcegecutive officers.

Wendy A. Beck

Ms. Beck is employed as our Executive Vice Pregidad Chief Financial Officer pursuant to an empient agreement with the Company
effective as of September 20, 2010. The initiahtef Ms. Beck’s employment under the agreemenhéyear. The agreement renewed for an
additional year on September 19, 2012 and willweaach anniversary thereafter, subject to the dames and conditions, unless either we or
Ms. Beck gives notice of non-renewal within nindgys prior to the end of the term. The agreememtiges for a minimum annual base salary
of $500,000, annual performance-based bonus wihget amount equal to 50% of base salary, long-tecentive compensation as
determined by our Board of Directors, relocatiosistance and participation in employee benefitpkamd perquisite programs generally
available to our executive officers.

Andrew Stuar

Mr. Stuart is employed as our Executive Vice PresidGlobal Sales and Passenger Services purguantdmployment agreement with the
Company. The initial term of Mr. Stuastemployment agreement is one year. The agreemestved for an additional year on July 8, 2012
will renew each anniversary thereafter, subjet¢héosame terms and conditions, for additional oge-yerms unless either we or Mr. Stuart
gives notice of non-renewal within ninety days ptmthe end of the term. The agreement providea fainimum annual base salary of
$455,620, annual performance-based bonus wittgattamount equal to 50% of base salary, long-teraritive compensation as determined
by our Board of Directors, and participation in dayee benefit plans and perquisite programs gelyeaahilable to our executive officers.

Maria Miller

Ms. Miller is employed as our Senior Vice Presiddmarketing pursuant to an employment agreemertt thid Company. The initial term of
Ms. Miller's employment under the agreement is pear. The agreement automatically renewed for alitiadal year on May 31, 2012 and
will renew each anniversary thereafter, subjethéosame terms and conditions, for additional oee-yerms unless either we or Ms. Miller
gives notice of non-renewal within ninety days ptmthe end of the term. The agreement providea fainimum annual base salary of
$350,000, annual performance-based bonus withgattamount equal to 35% of base salary, long-tagentive compensation as determined
by our Board of Directors, relocation assistanag garticipation in employee benefit plans and pisitpiprograms generally available to our
executive officers.

Robert Becke

Mr. Becker is employed as our Senior Vice Presidénhsumer Research pursuant to an employmentragregavith the Company. The initial
term of Mr. Becker's employment agreement is twargeThe agreement renewed for an additional yedarch 16, 2012 and will renew
each anniversary thereafter, subject to the samestand conditions, for additional one-year termiess either we or Mr. Becker gives notice
of non-renewal within ninety days prior to the exfdhe term. The agreement provides for a minimamual base salary of $250,000, annual
bonus of $350,000, long-term incentive compensa®determined by our Board of Directors, and pgition in employee benefit plans and
perquisite programs generally available to our atiee officers.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012

The following table presents all plan-based awagrdsited to our Named Executive Officers duringytear ending December 31, 2012.

All
Other
Stock
Awards: Grant
Number Date
of Fair
Shares Value
of Stock of Stock
Estimated Potential Payouts Estimated Future Payouts Undet or Units Awards(4)
Under Non-Equity Incentive Equity Incentive Plan 3)
Plan Awards(1) Awards(2) (#) ($)
Thresh- Thresh-
Maximum
Grant old Target Maximum old Target
Name Date (%) () (%) #) #) #)
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ® @ (h) 0] [0)
Kevin M. Sheehal
2012 Bonus 1/1/12 — 1,113,42. 2,226,84 — — — — —
Ordinary Profits Unit: 9/4/1z — — — — 15,00( — 15,00C 589,33!
Wendy A. Beck
2012 Bonus 1/1/1z2 — 257,66! 515,33° — — — — —
Andrew Stuar
2012 Bonus 1/1/1z2 — 244,31 488,63¢ — — — — —
Maria Miller
2012 Bonus 1/1/12 — 130,33: 260,66 — — — — —

Robert Becke — — — — — — — _ _

(1) Amounts in these columns show the range ofiplestuture payouts under the Company’s annualgoerance incentive cash bonus
program based on performance during 2012, as teescim the Compensation Discussion and Anal

(2) The amounts in these columns represent the aunflOrdinary Profits Units subject to the profitterest award granted in 2012 that are
subject to performan-based vesting condition

(3) The amounts in this column represent the nurab@rdinary Profits Units subject to the profitddrest award granted in 2012 that are
subject to tim-based vesting condition

(4) The amounts in this column represent the aggeegrant date fair value of the profits interagaals. These values have been determine
under the principles used to calculate the valuegoity awards for purposes of our financial staets. For a discussion of the
assumptions and methodologies used to calculatentlweints referred to above, please see footnatel2t'2012 Summary
Compensatic” table above

Description of Pla-Based Awards
Nor-Equity Incentive Plan Awards

The material terms of the non-equity incentive marards reported in the above table are describdteiCompensation Discussion and
Analysis section above under the heading “—Exeeuffempensation Program Elements—Annual Performbmtentives.”

Equity Incentive Plan Awarc

On September 4, 2012, the Board of Directors gthkte Sheehan certain awards of Ordinary ProfitédJn the amounts set forth in the
“Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012" table abdN@ Ordinary Profits Units were granted to any af tther Named Executive Officers
during 2012; however, each of the Named Execultiffie€s was granted an award of Ordinary Profitst&)m prior years, and these awards
continued to serve as each executive’s long-temmpemsation opportunity. Each of these awards wastgd under, and was subject to the
terms and conditions of, the Profits Sharing Agreethwhich was adopted by NCLC in 2009.

Under the Profits Sharing Agreement, our Board iné&ors was authorized to grant profits interéstCLC to certain key employees,
including the Named Executive Officers, in the foofrOrdinary Profits Units. Each award of Ordin&nofits Units represented a share in any
future appreciation of NCLC after the date of granbject to vesting conditions and once certaaredtolder returns have been achieved.
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Generally, 50% of the Ordinary Profits Units subjeceach award was subject to time-based vestiggirements (“TBUs”) and 50% of the
Ordinary Profits Units subject to each award wdgestt to performance-based vesting requirement8§4?). In addition, in 2010 Mr. Sheeh
was granted 100,000 PBUs that were scheduled taipes the occurrence of a “realization event” @bhis generally defined to mean any
receipt of cash dividends, distributions or salecpeds with respect to our ordinary shares) foAi@lo Funds provided that the amount of
realized cash received by the Apollo Funds is greiian two and one-quarter times (2.25x) the ahpivested in the Company by the Apollo
Funds.

The TBUs generally were scheduled to vest ratabdy &ive years, subject to the executive’s contthamployment with the Company. The
PBUs were scheduled to vest, if at all, upon altzation event” for the Apollo Funds if the follong levels of invested capital are returned to
the Apollo Funds in connection with the realizat@arent: 50% of the PBUs will vest if the Apollo Flsreceive 100% of their invested capital
in the Company and the remaining 50% will veshé&@ AApollo Funds receive 200% or more of their ingd<apital in the Company.

If there is a “sale of the company” (as definedhia Profits Sharing Agreement), all of the therstanding unvested TBUs (after giving effect
to any TBUs that vest in connection with the tramiem) would automatically have been forfeited ba tate of the sale and any outstanding
and unvested PBUs would have vested, if at aledas the level of the Apollo Funds’ return on thevested capital as a result of the sale.
Any unvested PBUs that did not vest would be foefki If the Named Executive Officer's employmentitmates, the award, to the extent it is
then unvested, would generally have been forfeggdept as described in the “Potential Payments\Umwmination or Change in Control”
section below.

As part of the Corporate Reorganization, all outdilag profits interests granted under the Profitarig Agreement, including the Ordinary
Profits Units described above, were exchangedrf@cmnomically equivalent number of Management NEokporation Units. The
Management NCL Corporation Units received uporetkehange of outstanding profits interests will o to be subject to the same time-
based vesting requirements and performance-bastidgeequirements described above. Subject taioeprocedures and restrictions
(including the vesting schedules applicable toMfamagement NCL Corporation Units and any applicédaal and contractual restrictions),
each holder of Management NCL Corporation Unitsthagight to cause NCLC and NCLH to exchange thiddr's Management NCL
Corporation Units for NCLH's ordinary shares atethange rate equal to one ordinary share for eMaryagement NCL Corporation Unit
(or, at NCLC's election, a cash payment equal éeovlue of the exchanged Management NCL Corporéatiuts), subject to customary
adjustments for stock splits, subdivisions, comtiames and similar extraordinary events. Any non-@ia tax distributions made to a
Management NCL Corporation Unit Holder will redube amount of NCLHS ordinary shares (or cash) that the holder wothdravise receiv
upon exchange. The exchange right described alsauhject to (i) the filing and effectiveness ofaguplicable registration statement by NC
that, in its determination, contains all the infation which is required to effect a registered sdiligs shares and (ii) all applicable legal and
contractual restrictions, including those imposegdre lock-up agreements entered into in connegtiitim the IPO. NCLH has reserved for
issuance a number of its ordinary shares correspord the number of Management NCL Corporationttlrfrollowing the expiration of the
180-day lock-up agreements, NCLH intends to fitegistration statement with the SEC to registea@ontinuous basis the issuance of the
ordinary shares to be received by the holders df B@rporation Units who elect to exchange.

To the extent funds are legally available, theagreement governing the NCL Corporation Units piesithat NCLC will make cash
distributions, which we refer to as “tax distritmrts,”to the holders of the NCL Corporation Units (indhglthe Management NCL Corporat
Units) if ownership of the NCL Corporation Unitsrgs rise to U.S. taxable income for the holderg LS. taxable income attributable to
NCLH'’s ownership of NCL Corporation Units may be diffet from the relative U.S. taxable income attriblgéao the Management NCL
Corporation Units. In that case, tax distributiomay be made on a non-pro rata basis with the t®lofevanagement NCL Corporation Units
possibly receiving relative tax distributions gerahan the tax distributions received by NCLH. €y, these tax distributions will be
computed based on our estimate of the taxable iacdetermined for U.S. federal income tax purpoakscable to the NCL Corporation Unit
holder multiplied by the U.S. federal and stateome tax rate applicable to each holder, as detewdfriimthe sole discretion of NCLH.

We will not grant any additional profits interestsder the Profits Sharing Agreement, and new lamgrtincentive awards have been and will
be granted under NCLH’s new long-term incentivenpdascribed under “New Long-Term Incentive Plarfbhe
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Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2012

The following table presents information regarding outstanding equity awards held by each of améd Executive Officers as of
December 31, 2012. The number of shares reportegkitable below represent Ordinary Profits Unitd aot Management NCL Corporation
Units.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Equity Incentive
Incentive Plan
Plan Awards:
Number Awards: Market
of Number or Payout
Shares of Value of
or Market Unearned Unearned
Number of Number of Units Value of Shares, Shares,
Securities Securities of Shares Units or Units or
Underlying Underlying Stock or Units Other Other
Unexercise( Unexercised That of Stock Rights Rights
Options Option Have That That That
Award Options Unexercisabl¢ Option Expiration Not Have Not Have Not Have Not
Grant Exercisable Exercise Vested Vested($) Vested Vested
Name Date (#)(1) (#) Price ($)(2 Date #(3) (4) (#)(5) ($)(4)
Kevin M. Sheehan 15,00( 1,615,59i 8,077,98.
7/23/0¢ - - - - (6) 75,00(
10/13/1( — — — — 15,00((7) 1,428,53. 25,00 2,380,89.
10/13/1( - - - - = — 100,00 9,523,56:
9/4/1z — — — — 15,00((11) 1,110,46! 15,00C 1,110,46!
Wendy A. Beck 10/13/1( — — — —  18,00((8) 1,714,24 30,000 2,857,06!
Andrew Stuart 4,308,25
7/23/0¢ — — — — 8,00((6) 861,65  40,00(
8/23/0¢ 126,54¢ — .209C  8/24/1¢ — — — —
Maria Miller 6/1/0¢ — — — — 6,00((9) 646,23t 15,00C 1,615,591
Robert Becker 1,346,33!
7123/0¢ — — — — 2,50((10) 269,26¢ 12,50(
12/18/0¢ — — — — 70((10) 75,39+ 3,50C  376,97:

(1) Represents fully vested stock options to puselmommon shares of Genting HK granted to Mr. $twader the Share Option Scheme
adopted by Genting HK on August 23, 2000 (as effdcin November 30, 2000 and amended on May 22)20082se options do not
relate to the Compa’s ordinary share:

(2) The amount in this column was converted to U.Sadelusing the exchange rate as of December 32, @01 Hong Kong = U.S. $.129

(3) Represents unvested Ordinary Profits Units thatwebject to tim-based vesting requirements (TBL

(4) The market value of the Ordinary Profits Units walkculated based on the IPO price of $19.00 panard share

(5) Represents unvested Ordinary Profits Unitswhexe subject to performance-based vesting reqeintsi(PBUs). These performance-
based Ordinary Profits Units vest upon a “real@atvent” for the Apollo Funds if, and to the extdrat, the Apollo Funds receive
specified levels of their invested capital in then@pany in connection with the realization et

(6) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units vested on January 7, 2(

(7) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units that vest on each of September 15,, 203! and 201¢

(8) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units that vest on each of September 20,, 213! and 201¢

(9) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units that vest on each of June 1, 2013 ahd.

(10) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units that vest on March 17, 20

(11) 20% of the number of Tin-Based Units that vest on each of September 4, ZIM31, 2015, 2016 and 201

Options Exercises and Stock Vested in 2012

The following table presents information regardatigstock options exercised and value received p@ncise, and all stock awards vested
the value realized upon vesting, by the Named BikexOfficers during 2012. The number of shareoragal in the table below represent
Ordinary Profits Units and not Management NCL Coation Units.
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OPTION AWARDS STOCK AWARDS
Number of Value Number of
Realizec
Shares Shares Value
Acquired on Acquired Realized
on Exercise on Vesting on
Exercise Vesting
Name (*#) (%) (#) ®)()
Kevin M. Sheehan — — 20,00( 440,44(
Wendy A. Beck — — 6,00( 52,80(
Andrew Stuar — — 8,00( 211,44(
Maria Miller — — 3,00(¢ 65,70(
Robert Becke — — 3,20( 70,09:

(1) During 2012, a portion of the Ordinary Profitsit awards that were subject to time-based vegfiigiJs) became vested. The value
ascribed to the units that vested during the coofr$iee year was calculated by an independent fhartly valuation firm

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

The following table presents information on conitibns to, earnings accrued under and distributiormir Named Executive Officers from
our nonqualified defined contribution plans durthg year ended December 31, 2012.

Executive Registrant
Contributions in Contributions in Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Earnings in Withdrawals/ Balance

Name Plan Name FY 2012 ($) FY 2012 ($)(1) FY 2012 ($)(2 Distributions ($)(3) at End FY 2012 ($
Kevin M. Sheehan SERP — 538,13: 3,26 758,91( —

SMRSP — — — — —
Wendy A. Beck SERP — — — — —

SMRSP — — — — —
Andrew Stuar SERP — 141,93¢ 6,362 141,93¢ 430,50(

SMRSP — 10,99: 1,23 10,99¢ 83,68¢
Maria Miller SERP — — — — —

SMRSP — — — — —
Robert Becke SERP — — — — —

SMRSP — — — — —

(1) Company contributions in this column are reportethe All Other Compensation Column in the Sumn@oynpensation Table abo\

(2) Aggregate earnings in the last year are not incudéhe Summary Compensation Table because tleeyarabove market or preferen
as determined by SEC rule

(3) Represents amounts credited to plan accouatyésted in 2012 and were distributed in 2012rdteoto comply with and avoid adverse
tax consequences under applicable tax ri

The Company maintains the Supplemental ExecutitgdReent Plan (“SERP”), which is an unfunded defimentribution plan for certain of
our executives, including Messrs. Sheehan and Stwho were employed by the Company in an execuagacity prior to 2008. The
Company made contributions on behalf of the paugicts to compensate them for the benefits thatraited under the 401(k) Plan. We credit
participants under the SERP Plan for amounts tloaidvhave been contributed by us to the Compangsipus Defined Contribution
Retirement Plan and the former 401(k) Plan withregeard to any limitations imposed by the Code.iEipeints do not make contributions to
this plan. Participant accounts are credited wétlnimgs based upon the rate of return in the JPMo@hase Bank Stable Asset Income Fund,
subject to a 5% maximum. For 2012, the rate ofrretised was 1.50%. In order to comply with and éaalverse consequences under recentl
enacted applicable tax rules, plan accruals fariges performed or payments which become vested Bftcember 31, 2008 will be distributed
in the year that services were performed. Vestectuad balances for services performed prior toeldaer 31, 2008 continue to accrue inte
and will be distributed upon the first to occurtefmination, death or disability or December 311 20No withdrawals are permitted under the
SERP.
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The Company also maintains the Senior ManagemeireRent Savings Plan (*SMRSP”), which is an unfeddiefined contribution plan for
certain of our employees, including Mr. Stuart, wirre employed by the Company prior to 2001. Mua8tis the only Named Executive
Officer who is eligible to participate in the SMRSFhe Company made contributions on behalf of gmtigipants to compensate them for
difference between the qualified plan benefits thate previously available under the Company’s daghnce pension plan and the redesigne
401(k) Plan. We credit participants under the SMR&# for the difference in the amount that woudstdnbeen contributed by us to the
Company’s previous Norwegian Cruise Line Pensi@nRind the qualified plan maximums of the new 4pB(kn. Participants do not make
contributions to this plan. Participant accountsaedited with earnings based upon the rate ofméh the JPMorgan Chase Bank Stable A
Income Fund, subject to a 5% maximum. For 2012rdkeof return used was 1.50%. In order to comaptli and avoid adverse consequences
under recently enacted applicable tax rules, ptanuals for services performed or payments whictobee vested after December 31, 2008
be distributed in the year that services were peréal. Vested, accrued balances for services pegibprior to December 31, 2008 continue to
accrue interest and will be distributed upon tingt fio occur of termination, death or disabilityl@cember 31, 2017. No withdrawals are
permitted under the SMRSP.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Cotrol

The following section describes the benefits thayinecome payable to the Named Executive Officec®nnection with a termination of their
employment and/or a change in control of the CompaAt of the benefits described below would bepded by us. Please seEdmpensatio
Discussion and Analysis” above for a discussiohav the level of these benefits was determined.

In addition to the benefits described below, oudilag performance-based profits interest awardsJ@mBeld by our Named Executive
Officers on December 31, 2012 may also have bec@sied in connection with a change in control & thhange in control constituted a
“realization event” under the Profit Sharing Agresrh(which is generally defined to mean any receffmash dividends, distributions or sale
proceeds with respect to our ordinary shares)ier&pollo Funds and the applicable vesting condgtizvere satisfied. Our Named Executive
Officers will also be entitled to receive any a@uibenefits disclosed above under “2010 Nonqudlifleferred Compensation” in connection
with a termination of their employment.

Kevin M. Sheehar

Mr. Sheehan’s employment agreement with the Compaescribed above under the heading “DescriptidBroployment AgreementsSalary
and Bonus Amounts,” provides for certain benefitbe¢ paid to Mr. Sheehan in connection with a teatidn of his employment with the
Company under the circumstances described beloeadh case, Mr. Sheehan is entitled to receivenatiunts that he has earned but are
unpaid regardless of the circumstances under wiighmployment terminates (his “accrued obligatipns

Severance Benefits—Termination of Employménthe event that Mr. Sheehan’s employment isitesited during the employment term eithel
by the Company without “cause” or by Mr. Sheehaa assult of a “constructive termination” (as th¢esens are defined in the employment
agreement) or because the Company elects notéaatie term of his employment agreement, Mr. Shreelill be entitled to receive:

e alump sum payment equal to two times the sum®€Ethirent base salary, plus his target bonus yéar in which the termination
occurs; ant

e continuation of medical and dental coverage for $freehan and his eligible dependents on substgritialsame terms and
conditions provided to active employees of the Canypuntil the first to occur of: (i) the end of thnth in which he turns 65;
(i) the date of his death; (iii) the date he beesmligible for Medicare benefits under the So8mdurity Act, or; (iv) the date he
becomes eligible for coverage under the health ptanfuture employe!

In addition, if Mr. Sheehan’s employment is ternt@thby the Company without cause or by Mr. Sheelsaa result of a constructive
termination, Mr. Sheehan is entitled to acceleratesting of one-third of the total number of OrdinRrofits Units originally granted to

Mr. Sheehan in July 2009 that are outstanding awested on his severance date. In connection withla of the company” (as defined in the
Profits Sharing Agreement, but which generally wlo@sult in a change in control of the Company), $treehan is entitled to accelerated
vesting of any then outstanding and unvested OrgliReofits Units originally granted in July 200%thare subject to time-based vesting
requirements (TBUS).
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Mr. Sheehan’s right to receive the severance bisnadiscribed above is subject to him executindease of claims in favor of the Company.

Severance Benefits—Other Terminatidnghe event that Mr. Sheehan’s employment is teateid for any other reason (death, disability, by
the Company for cause or by Mr. Sheehan otherfihraconstructive termination), he will only be dlgd to receive his accrued obligations.

Restrictive CovenantPursuant to Mr. Sheehan’s employment agreememtasi@greed not to disclose any confidential infeioneof the
Company and its affiliates at any time during deahis employment with the Company. In additionr, Bheehan has agreed that for a period
of one year after his employment terminates henatlcompete with the business of the Companysafitliates, for a period of two years a
his employment terminates, he will not solicit #raployees of the Company or its affiliates andaf@eriod of one year after his employment
terminates, he will not solicit the guests of thenfpany or its affiliates.

Other Named Executive Officers

The employment agreement of each of the Named HxedDfficers (other than Mr. Sheehan) with the @amy, described above under the
heading “Description of Employment Agreements—Satard Bonus Amounts,” provides for certain bendfitbe paid to the Named
Executive Officer in connection with a terminatiohhis or her employment with the Company underdiheumstances described below. In
each case, the Named Executive Officer is enttbe@ceive all amounts that he or she has earnearbwnpaid regardless of the circumsta
under which his or her employment terminates (hises “accrued obligations”).

Severance Benefits—Termination of Employmerhe event that the Named Executive Officer's Emyment is terminated during the
employment term by the Company without “cause”,Ntaened Executive Officer will be entitled to receiv

* an amount equal to one times the executive’s toerect base salary at the annualized rate in effie¢he severance date, payable
over a twelve month period in accordance with then@any' s regular payroll cycle practices following terntioa, and;

e continuation of medical and dental coverage forethecutive and his or her eligible dependents tstamtially the same terms and
conditions in effect on his or her termination utfte first to occur of: (i) twelve months followgrtermination, (ii) the date of his or
her death; (iii) the date he or she becomes eéiditnl coverage under the health plan of a futurpleyer; or (iv) the date the
Company is no longer obligated to offer COBRA couétion coverage to the executi

Each Named Executive Officer’s right to receive skgerance benefits described above is subjedtt@hher executing a release of claims in
favor of the Company.

Severance Benefits—Other Terminatiohsthe event that the Named Executive Officertppoyment is terminated by the Company for any
other reason (death, disability, by the Companycéarse or by the Named Executive Officer other floagonstructive termination), he or she
will only be entitled to receive his or her accrugigations.

Restrictive Covenan. Pursuant to each Named Executive Officer's emplanyt agreement, each Named Executive Officer haesdagot to
disclose any confidential information of the Compand its affiliates at any time during or aftes br her employment with the Company. In
addition, each Named Executive Officer has agrhatlfor a period of one year after his or her emplent terminates he or she will not
compete with the business of the Company or iiaaéfs and for a period of two years after hisier employment terminates, the executive
will not solicit the employees or guests of the Qxamy or its affiliates.

Estimated Severance and Change in Control Benefits

The following table presents the Company’s estinoatiie amount of the benefits to which each ofNlagned Executive Officers would have
been entitled had his or her employment been text@éhor a change in control occurred on Decembge2@112 under scenarios noted below.
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Death, Disability or Without Cause ot Change in Control
Voluntary

Name Termination or Cause Retirement Good Reason (No Termination)
Kevin M. Sheehal

Severance Payme — — 3,387,001 —

Insurance Continuati — — 100,09« —

Equity Acceleratior — — 3,231,19/(2) 1,615,59(2)
Wendy A. Beck

Severance Payme — — 519,00( —

Insurance Continuatic — — 18,89¢ —

Equity Acceleratior — — — —
Andrew Stuar

Severance Payme — — 492,10( —

Insurance Continuati — — 18,89¢ —

Equity Acceleratior — — — —
Maria Miller

Severance Payme — — 375,00( —

Insurance Continuatic — — 12,43: —

Equity Acceleratior — — — —
Robert Becke

Severance Payme — — 270,60( —

Insurance Continuati — — 18,89¢ —

Equity Acceleratior — — — _

(1) Value was determined by taking the value (dated based on the IPO price of $19.00 per ordishaye) associated with Mr. Sheehan’s
July 2009 aggregate unvested Ordinary Profits Unitgect to acceleration as of December 31, 2

(2) Value was determined by taking the value (dated based on the IPO price of $19.00 per ordishaye) associated with Mr. Sheehan’s
July 2009 unvested Tir-Based Units subject to acceleration as of Dece®bg?012
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New Long-Term Incentive Plan

Prior to the consummation of the IPO, NCLH’s Boafdirectors adopted, and its shareholders appraveeéw long-term incentive plan to
provide an additional means through the grant afrd/to attract, motivate, retain and reward seteemployees and other eligible persons.
Employees, officers, directors, and consultantspghavide services to us or one of our subsidiameay be selected to receive awards under th
plan.

The compensation committee will administer the plme administrator of the plan has broad authaoity
» select participants and determine the types of dsvdrat they are to receiv

» determine the number of shares that are to be aubjawards and the terms and conditions of awandkiding the price (if any)
be paid for the shares or the awards and estahkshesting conditions (if applicable) of such &saor awards

» determine the terms of any cash incentive or bamerds under the pla

» cancel, modify or waive our rights with respectdomodify, discontinue, suspend or terminate angllooutstanding awards,
subject to any required conser

» construe and interpret the terms of the plan aydagreements relating to the pl:
» accelerate or extend the vesting or exercisallitgxtend the term of any or all outstanding awardgect to any required conse

e subject to the other provisions of the plan, makeain adjustments to an outstanding award andaaththe termination,
conversion, substitution or succession of an awamd

» allow the purchase price of an award or NCLH’s oady shares to be paid in the form of cash, che@itextronic funds transfer, by
the delivery of previously-owned shares or by aiotidn of the number of shares deliverable purstatite award, by services
rendered by the recipient of the award, by notiwe third party payment or cashless exercise on &rafis as the administrator m
authorize, or any other form permitted by ¢

A total of 15,035,106 of NCLH'’s ordinary shares arghorized for issuance with respect to awardstgchunder the plan. Any shares subject
to awards that are not paid, delivered or exerdigddre they expire or that are canceled or tertathdail to vest, as well as shares used to pa
the purchase or exercise price of awards or relatedithholding obligations, will become availalfte other award grants under the plan.

Awards under the plan may be in the form of inagntir nonqualified stock options, stock appreciatights, stock bonuses, restricted stock,
stock units, performance stock, phantom stockdend equivalents and other forms of awards inclyudesh awards (such as annual bonuses
or other types of cash incentives). Awards undemtlan generally will not be transferable othentbs will or the laws of descent and
distribution, except that the plan administratoryraathorize certain transfers.

Nonqualified and incentive stock options may noghkanted at prices below the fair market valuehefunderlying ordinary shares on the ¢

of grant. Incentive stock options must have an@serprice that is at least equal to the fair mavkéue of the underlying ordinary shares, or
110% of fair market value for incentive stock optigrants to any 10% owner of ordinary shares, erdtte of grant. These and other awards
may also be issued solely or in part for serviéegards are generally paid in cash or NCLH’s ordynsinares. The plan administrator may
provide for the deferred payment of awards and detgrmine the terms applicable to deferrals.

As is customary in incentive plans of this nattine, number and type of shares available underlgreand any outstanding awards, as well as
the exercise or purchase prices of awards, wiluigect to adjustment in the event of certain rapizations, mergers, combinations,
recapitalizations, stock splits, stock dividendsopiter similar events that change the numberma kif shares outstanding, and extraordinary
dividends or distributions of property to the sliaelers. In no case (except due to an adjustmésree to above or any repricing that may be
approved by our shareholders) will any adjustmentiiade to a stock option or stock appreciationt gard under the plan (by amendment,
cancellation and regrant, exchange or other mehasjvould constitute a repricing of the per-stexercise or base price of the award.

Generally, and subject to limited exceptions sehft the plan, if NCLH dissolves or undergoesaercorporate transactions such as a
merger, business combination, consolidation, oemtiorganization; exchange of NCLH's ordinary slsaa sale of substantially all of its
assets; or any other event in which it is not tmiging entity, all awards then-outstanding untter plan will become fully vested or payable,
as applicable, and will terminate or be terminatesuch circumstances, unless the plan administpativides for the assumption, substitution
or other continuation of the award.
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The plan administrator also has the discretiorstal#ish other change in control provisions witbpect to awards granted under the plan. For
example, the administrator could provide for theederation of vesting or payment of an award innantion with a corporate event that is not
described above and provide that any such accelerstall be automatic upon the occurrence of ach ®vent.

NCLH'’s Board of Directors may amend or terminate ttant any time, but no such action will affect aaystanding award in any manner
materially adverse to a participant without thesemt of the participant. Plan amendments will Henstied to shareholders for their approval
as required by applicable law or any applicablénigsagency. The plan is not exclusive—the Boar®ioéctors and compensation committee
may grant stock and performance incentives or athepensation, in stock or cash, under other maasithority.

The plan will terminate ten years following the ption of the plan. However, the plan administratdl retain its authority until all outstandil
awards are exercised or terminated. The maximum ¢doptions, stock appreciation rights and otlgnts to acquire ordinary shares undel
plan is ten years after the initial date of the @va

NCLH granted approximately 3.3 million options wyaire its ordinary shares to our management teahanthe plan in connection with t
IPO.

Director Compensation

The following table presents information on comzios to the following individuals for the servicesovided as a director during the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Change in
Pension Value
Non-Equity and
Fees Incentive Plan Nonqualified
Earned Stock Option Deferred All Other
or Paid Awards Awards Compensatior Compensatior Compensatior
in Cash Total
Name (%) (%) $) (%) Earnings ($) (%) ($)
(@) (b) (© (d) (e) ® @ (h)
Walter L. Revell (1) 95,80( — — — — — 95,80(

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay — — — — — — _
David Chua Ming Hua — — — = — — —
Marc J. Rowar — — — —_ _ _ _
Steve Martine: — — — — _ _ _
Adam M. Aron — — — _ _ _ _
Karl Petersor — — — — — _ _

(1) Mr. Revell's compensation relates to his radedaector, as well as Chairman of the Audit Conteait No other directors received any
form of compensation for their services in the ciiyaas a director
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
The table below sets forth information regarding leneficial ownership of the equity securitietNGfLH as of February 15, 2013 by:
» each person that is a beneficial owner of more &#%rof NCLF s outstanding equity securitie
+ each of NCLFs Named Executive Officer
+ each of NCLF s directors; an
» all directors and executive officers as a grc

The information in the table below gives effecttte Corporate Reorganization.

On January 7, 2008, the Apollo Funds became theepwfi50% of the then outstanding ordinary shafé$@_C pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement (as defined in “Certain Relationships Bethted Transactions—The Subscription Agreemett) an assignment agreement datec
January 7, 2008 by and among NCLC, NCL Investménited and NCL Investment Il Ltd. (with respectttee assignment agreement only),
each an affiliate of the Apollo Funds, and Gentitiy On January 8, 2008, the TPG Viking Funds aagliin the aggregate, 12.5% of the ther
outstanding ordinary shares of NCLC from the Apéllods for $250.0 million. Prior to these transasi Genting HK owned 100% of our
ordinary shares. Additional information with resperGenting HK, the Apollo Funds and the TPG VikiRunds and their relationship with us
is provided under the caption “Certain Relationstapd Related Transactions, and Director IndeperedeRursuant to a shareholders’
agreement, dated August 17, 2007, among NCLC, @ghtKk and NCL Investment Limited (the “Original $bholders’ Agreement”)Xzenting
HK, subject to certain consent rights, grantechApollo Funds the right to vote its ordinary sarThe Original Shareholders’ Agreement
became effective on January 7, 2008. Both NCL limest Il Ltd. and Star NCLC Holdings Ltd. (on Janud, 2008), along with the TPG
Viking Funds (on January 8, 2008), became parti¢le Original Shareholders’ Agreement through sspgoinder agreements. Each of the
TPG Viking Funds which purchased ordinary share®isidered a permitted transferee of the Apollodsuand all ordinary shares purchased
by the TPG Viking Funds are deemed owned by thdldpainds under the Original Shareholders’ Agreetm&he Original Shareholders’
Agreement was amended and restated in connecttbrié consummation of the IPO (such agreementAhended and Restated
Shareholders’ Agreement”), and now relates to NGLétdinary shares rather than the ordinary shdr€aC. Unless otherwise indicated by
the context, references in this annual report ¢0‘8hareholders’ Agreement” refer, prior to the sammation of the IPO, to the Original
Shareholders’ Agreement, and upon and after thewsomation of the IPO, to the Amended and RestataegdeBoldersAgreement. The Apoll
Funds, Genting HK and the TPG Viking Funds or tladfitiates became beneficial owners of the eqségurities of NCLH pursuant to the
Corporate Reorganization. We refer you to “CerRatationships and Related Transactions” and “CatgoReorganization” for more details
on the Shareholders’ Agreement and the Corporavegaaization.

There are 203,997,492 ordinary shares issued asthading as of February 15, 2013.

The amounts and percentages of NCLH’s ordinaryeshbeneficially owned are reported on the basiegilations of the SEC governing the
determination of beneficial ownership of securifiegluding as further described in the footnotethee following table). Under the rules of the
SEC, a person is deemed to be a “beneficial owoies’security if that person has or shares “vofioger,”which includes the power to vote
to direct the voting of such security, or “investthpower,” which includes the power to dispose ofoodirect the disposition of such security.
A person is also deemed to be a beneficial ownangfsecurities of which that person has a riglatciquire beneficial ownership within 60
days. Under these rules, more than one person mdgdmed a beneficial owner of the same secuaitidsa person may be deemed a
beneficial owner of securities as to which he hmgeonomic interest. Except as otherwise indicatede footnotes below and except as
provided in the Shareholders’ Agreement descritedovp, each of the beneficial owners has, to oumkedge, sole voting and investment
power with respect to the indicated ordinary shddedess indicated otherwise, the address of eatikidual listed in the table is c/o
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., 7665 Corpor@enter Drive, Miami, Florida 33126. Management NCarporation Units beneficiall
owned by our executive officers are also reponteithé following table on a basis consistent witkwhmeneficial ownership of NCLH' ordinan
shares is reported under the SEC rules.
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Percent

Percfent Numfber of
o 0 Shares
Nmberof | Shares MATGETEN  peneicialy
Beneficially Corporation
Name and Address Owned Owned(1) Units Owned Owned(2)
Genting HK(3) 88,469,33 43.2% —
Apollo Funds(4; 66,352,00 32.5% —
TPG Viking Funds(5 22,117,33 10.8% —
Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay(3)(6 — —
David Chua Ming Huat(3)(€ — —
Marc J. Rowan(4)(7 — —
Steve Martinez(4)(7 — —
Adam M. Aron(4)(7) — —
Karl Peterson(8 — —
Walter L. Revell 1,31¢ * —
Kevin M. Sheehan(¢ 240,89¢ * 475,28 *
Wendy A. Beck(10 40,95¢ * 60,14¢ *
Andrew Stuart(11 110,27¢ * 226,75( *
Maria Miller(12) 33,08t * 68,02t *
Robert Becker(13 44,11 * 90,70( *
* 954,26 *

All directors and executive officers as a group ff&Bsons)(14 487,84

*

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

Indicates less than one perce

The percentage of NCLEl'ordinary shares reported as held by each hofdedmary shares assumes that none of the NCL@dZation
Units are exchanged for NCI's ordinary share:

The percentage of NCLH's ordinary shares reggbas held by each holder of Management NCL Cofioor&nits assumes that the
holder's Management NCL Corporation Units repodbdve are exchanged for NCLH’s ordinary sharesthaidno other Management
NCL Corporation Units are exchanged for NC's ordinary share:

Genting HK owns NCLH's ordinary shares indifg¢hrough Star NCLC Holdings Ltd., a Bermuda wiethwned subsidiary. The
address of each of Genting HK and Star NCLC Holglibggl. is c/o Suite 1501, Ocean Centre, 5 CantadRdsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong SAR. As of December 31, 2012, the priatghareholders of Genting HK a

Percentage Ownershi

in Genting HK
Golden Hope Limited (“GHL")(a) 45.31%
Genting Malaysia Berha GENM")(b) 18.41%

(8) GHL is a company incorporated in the Isle off\&ting as trustee of the Golden Hope Unit Trugtivate unit trust which is held
directly and indirectly by IFG International TruSbmpany Limited as trustee of a discretionary trilnt beneficiaries of which are
Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay and certain members of hisifgrithe “Lim Family”).
(b) GENM is a Malaysian company listed on the Main Marf Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad in whichkiigw Management Sc
Bhd as trustee of a discretionary trust, the bereafes of which are the Lim Family, has a substhimdirect beneficial interes
As a result, an aggregate of 63.72% of Gertik{s outstanding shares is owned by GENM and GHlrastee of the Golden Hope Unit
Trust, directly or indirectly, as of December 30]12.
AAA Guarantor Co-Invest VI (B), L.P., AIF VI NC(AIV), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV II), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV Ill), L.P., AIF VI NCL
(AIV IV), L.P., Apollo Overseas Partners (Delawa¥d) L.P., Apollo Overseas Partners (Delaware 88R) .P., Apollo Overseas
Partners VI, L.P. and Apollo Overseas Partnersrt@eay) VI, L.P own of record an aggregate of 66,868Q,ordinary shares of NCLH
and have the right to vote the 88,469,334 of NCLbtinary shares held by affiliates of Genting H¥lahe 22,117,334 ordinary shares
held by the affiliates of the TPG Viking Funds mnoection with certain transactions that requieeutbte of our shareholders (or those of
NCLH, as applicable), and to consent to certaingfexrs of such shares. £‘Certain Relationships and Related Transactions—The
Shareholders’ Agreement.” The Apollo affiliate tisarves as the general partner or managing ggueataler of each of Apollo Overseas
Partners (Delaware) VI, LP., Apollo Overseas PastiiBelaware 892) VI. L.P., Apollo Overseas Pagnél, L.P. and Apollo Overseas
Partners (Germany) VI. L.P. is an affiliate of AjpdPrincipal Holdings I, L.P. Apollo Principal Hdltgs | GP, LLC is the general partner
of Apollo Principal Holdings I, L.F
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

The Apollo affiliate that serves as the generatrgarof AIF VI NCL (AlV), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV II), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV 1), L.P.
and AIF VI NCL (AIV IV), L.P. is an affiliate of Apllo Principal Holdings Ill, L.P. Apollo Principafoldings 1l GP, Ltd. is the general
partner of Apollo Principal Holdings IlI, L.P. Thpollo affiliate that serves as the general parbfekAA Guarantor Co-Invest VI (B),
L.P. has entered into a management services agnéevite an affiliate of Apollo Management HoldindsP. Apollo Management
Holdings GP, LLC is the general partner of Apollahhgement Holdings, L.P. The address for each oflé@verseas Partners
(Delaware) VI, L.P., Apollo Overseas Partners (Belee 892) VI, L.P., Apollo Principal Holdings I,R.. and Apollo Principal Holdings |
GP, LLC is One Manhattanville Road, Suite 201, Rase, New York 10577. The address for each of Agllerseas Partners VI, L.P.,
Apollo Overseas Partners (Germany) VI, L.P., AIFNCL (AlV), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV II), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV IIl), L.P., AIF VI
NCL (AIV IV), L.P., Apollo Principal Holdings Il1L.P. and Apollo Principal Holdings 11l GP, Ltd. &0 Intertrust Corporate Servic
(Cayman) Limited (f/k/a Walkers Corporate Servicd$0 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman K¥08) Cayman Islands. The
address for AAA Guarantor Co-Invest VI (B), L.Pcie Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltédtand, Majuro, Marshall
Islands, MH 96960. The address for Apollo Manageriidings, L.P. and Apollo Management Holdings GEC is 9 W. 57t Street,
434 Floor, New York, New York 1001¢

TPG Viking, L.P., a Delaware limited partnegskiiViking L.P.”), TPG Viking AlV I, L.P., a Caymaislands exempted limited
partnership (“Viking AIV 1), TPG Viking AIV 1I, LP., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnerskifig AlV 11") and TPG

Viking AIV 1ll, L.P., a Delaware limited partnerghi“Viking AlV 111") hold an aggregate of 22,117,33ordinary shares of NCLH. The
general partner of Viking L.P. is TPG GenPar V,.L@Delaware limited partnership, whose generghpais TPG GenPar V Advisors,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, whosdesanember is TPG Holdings I, L.P., a Delaware lgdipartnership, whose general
partner is TPG Holdings I-A, LLC, a Delaware lindtkability company, whose sole member is TPG Grblafdings (SBS), L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership (“Group Holdings”), @gde general partner is TPG Group Holdings (SBS)igats, Inc., a Delaware
company (“Group Advisors”). The general partneeath of Viking AlV I, Viking AIV 1l and Viking AIV 1l is TPG Viking AlV

GenPar, L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limitetheeship, whose general partner is TPG Viking Algn®Bar Advisors, Inc., a Cayn
Islands exempted company, whose sole sharehold@&GsHoldings 111, L.P., a Delaware limited partsieip, whose general partner is
TPG Holdings IlI-A, L.P., a Delaware limited partakip, whose general partner is TPG Holdings lllh#., a Cayman Islands exempted
company, whose sole shareholder is Group HoldiDgsid Bonderman and James G. Coulter are direaffisers and sole shareholders
of Group Advisors and may therefore be deemed tihddeneficial owners of the ordinary shares bgl¥iking L.P., Viking AlV I,
Viking AIV Il and Viking AlV 11l (the “TPG Shares”) Messrs. Bonderman and Coulter disclaim benefaiaiership of the TPG Shares
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestem. The address of each of the TPG Viking Fu@dsup Advisors and Messrs.
Bonderman and Coulter is c/o TPG Global, LLC, 3@intherce Street, Suite 3300, Fort Worth, Texas 7€

Although each of Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay and Da@tiua Ming Huat may be deemed a beneficial ownshafes of NCLH beneficially
owned by Genting HK due to his status as a diremtarfficer (and, in the case of Tan Sri Lim Kokah his status as a shareholder) of
Genting HK, each such person disclaims beneficiadership of any such shares, except in the ca$amSri Lim Kok Thay, to the
extent of any indirect pecuniary interests ther&he address of Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay and David Chiag Huat is c/o Suite 1501,
Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowldong Kong SAR

Each of Messrs. Rowan, Martinez and Aron igiaféd with Apollo as a consultant, partner oriseipartner of Apollo Management, L.P.
or another affiliate of Apollo. Each such persoscthims beneficial ownership of any of our ordinsimares or of the ordinary shares of
NCLH that are beneficially owned by any of the Apdrunds or Apoll’s other affiliates. The address of Messrs. Rowdartinez and
Aron is c/o Apollo Management, L.P., 9 Westth Street, 4Zdfloor, New York, New York 1001¢

Mr. Peterson is one of our directors and al3®& Partner. Mr. Peterson does not have votirigvastment power over, and disclaims
beneficial ownership in, the TPG Shares. The addvéMr. Peterson is c/o TPG Global, LLC, 301 Comaéstreet, Suite 3300, Fort
Worth, Texas 7610:

Reflects vested options and Management NCL @atmn Units, and options and Management NCL Crafpan Units scheduled to vest
within 60 days. Does not include an additional 3,784 Management NCL Corporation Units and 820dfitions held by Kevin M.
Sheehan that are currently unvested and not satlulest within 60 days. Each holder of Managemmigi Corporation Units has the
right (subject to certain restrictions and potdra@justments) to exchange each Management NCLdZatipn Unit for, at the election of
NCLC, either (i) one of NCLI's ordinary shares or (ii) cash equal to the faarket value of one of NCLH’s ordinary shares. See
“Corporate Reorganizatic’ Includes 22,000 Management NCL Corporation Unitd bg Mr. Sheehe's family trust.
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Reflects our ordinary shares, vested optiosManagement NCL Corporation Units, and optiorss ianagement NCL Corporation
Units scheduled to vest within 60 days. Does nduite an additional 240,595 Management NCL Corpamdtnits and 163,836 options
held by Wendy A. Beck that are currently unvested aot scheduled to vest within 60 days. Each mafi&anagement NCL
Corporation Units has the right (subject to certaefstrictions and potential adjustments) to exchazarh Management NCL Corporation
Unit for, at the election of NCLC, either (i) onENCLH’s ordinary shares or (ii) cash equal to thie market value of one of NCLH’s
ordinary shares. See “Corporate Reorganizatiorluttes 1,200 of our ordinary shares held by MskBechildren for which she serves
as custodiar

Reflects vested options and Management NClp@ation Units, and options and Management NCL @aipon Units scheduled to vest
within 60 days. Does not include an additional 286,Management NCL Corporation Units and 110,27#oop held by Andrew Stuart
that are currently unvested and not scheduledgbwighin 60 days. Each holder of Management NCkpBmation Units has the right
(subject to certain restrictions and potential atfients) to exchange each Management NCL Corporéliit for, at the election of
NCLC, either (i) one of NCLI's ordinary shares or (ii) cash equal to the faarket value of one of NCLH’s ordinary shares. See
“Corporate Reorganizatic”’

Reflects vested options and Management NClp@ation Units, and options and Management NCL @aion Units scheduled to vest
within 60 days. Does not include an additional 088,Management NCL Corporation Units and 49,624baptheld by Maria Miller that
are currently unvested and not scheduled to vabim60 days. Each holder of Management NCL CongmmaJnits has the right (subject
to certain restrictions and potential adjustmetdt®xchange each Management NCL Corporation Unjtafathe election of NCLC, either
(i) one of NCLH’s ordinary shares or (ii) cash elquethe fair market value of one of NCLH'’s ordigahares. See “Corporate
Reorganizatior”

Reflects vested options and Management NClp@ation Units, and options and Management NCL @aion Units scheduled to vest
within 60 days. Does not include an additional 80,Kanagement NCL Corporation Units and 44,110cmgtiheld by Robert Becker t
are currently unvested and not scheduled to vabim60 days. Each holder of Management NCL CongmmaUnits has the right (subject
to certain restrictions and potential adjustmett®xchange each Management NCL Corporation Unjtafithe election of NCLC, either
(i) one of NCLH’s ordinary shares or (ii) cash elquethe fair market value of one of NCLH'’s ordigahares. See “Corporate
Reorganizatior”

Reflects our ordinary shares, vested optiosManagement NCL Corporation Units, and optiorss ianagement NCL Corporation
Units scheduled to vest within 60 days. Does nduitie an additional 1,958,106 Management NCL Ceatpam Units and 1,222,577
options collectively held by our executive officéghat are currently unvested and not schedule@sbwithin 60 days. Each holder of
Management NCL Corporation Units has the right jesttito certain restrictions and potential adjusttagto exchange each Managen
NCL Corporation Unit for, at the election of NCLE&lther (i) one of NCLI's ordinary shares or (ii) cash equal to the fadrket value of
one of NCLF' s ordinary shares. S*Corporate Reorganizatic”’

Equity Compensation Plan Information

As of December 31, 2012, NCLH did not have any ggeompensation plans or individual compensatioaragements under which equity
securities of NCLH were authorized for issuancé&mRo the consummation of the IPO, NCLH’s Boardifectors adopted, and its
shareholders approved, a new long-term incentige. A total of 15,035,106 of NCLH'’s ordinary shavesre authorized for grants of awards
under the long-term incentive plan. In connectigthwthe IPO, weNCLH granted 3,251,052 options tguaie ordinary shares to our
management team, with each option having an exepeise of $19.00 per share. There are currently841054 of NCLH'’s ordinary shares
that remain available for future issuance undetdhg-term incentive plan.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence
Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions

The audit committee of our Board of Directors ispensible for the review and approval of all redgparty transactions; however, the audit
committee does not have a written policy regardiregapproval of related party transactions. As phits review and approval of a related
party transaction, the audit committee considers:

» the nature of the related pé's interest in the transactic

» the material terms of the transaction, including @mount involved and type of transacti

» the importance of the transaction to the relatety@nd to us

« whether the transaction would impair the judgméra director or executive officer to act in our biegerest; anc
e any other matters the audit committee deems apiater

The Company believes that each of the followinggetions was on terms at least as favorablea®ébuld have been obtained from an
unaffiliated third party.

Transactions with Genting HK, Apollo and TPG

In January 2013, NCLC'’s shareholders entered imtatidution and Exchange Agreements whereby imntelgi@rior to the consummation of
the IPO, they contributed all of their shares oflldo NCLH in exchange for a number of shares oL NCAfter giving effect to the
Contribution and Exchange Agreements and certdae internal share transfers among their resgeefffiliates, the Apollo Funds, the TPG
Viking Funds and Genting HK will own shares in #maounts and manner described in “Security Ownersh{pertain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters.” Seeui®y Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dt@hagement and Related
Stockholder Matters.”

In May 2011, we entered into an agreement with Staise Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidat Genting HK, whereby Star
Cruise Management Limited will provide sales, mérigeand promotional services in the Asia Pacifigion. We will pay a monthly
commission fee based on net cruise revenue gedaratier the agreement. We have made no paymengs tiedcontract; approximately $1.3
million has been accrued as of December 31, 2012.

In January 2011, we entered into an agreement@vigbtal Aim Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary oe@ing HK, for the operation of a call
center. Compensation under the agreement will bedan an hourly rate for the services provided.hétee paid approximately $0.5 million
under the contract from January 2011 until Decerdie2012.

In July 2010, we agreed to extend the Charter gf\dgian Sky from Genting HK to December 31, 201ZisTagreement includes two opeat
extension options which require the mutual conséetich party. The new agreement also provideditiisam option to purchase the ship
during the Charter period. In June 2012, we exedcisur option with Genting HK to purchase Norwediky pursuant to the Norwegian Sky
Agreement. The purchase price was $259.3 millidriclvconsisted of a $50.0 million cash payment@$209.3 million payable to Genting
HK, which is to be repaid over seven equal semiahpayments beginning June 2013 and has a weiglvierdige interest rate of 1.52%
through maturity. The fair value of the payable 8265.5 million based on discounting the futurememts at an imputed interest rate of
2.26% per annum, which was commensurate with thapg2oy’s borrowing rate for similar assets. $79.7 millafrsuch amount was payable
Genting HK within fourteen days of the consummatbthe IPO, together with accrued interest theyama the remaining balance is to be
repaid in seven equal semi-annual payments begjrhine 2013. The payable is collateralized by agage and an interest in all earnings,
proceeds of insurance and certain other interekdsed to the ship.

In July 2009, we entered into an agreement witlrddes Operating Company, Inc. (now known as Cadsatsrtainment Operating
Corporation) establishing a marketing alliance Whicorporates marketing resources and cross comparketing, purchasing and loyalty
programs as well as customer and business inteti@geapabilities. Caesars Entertainment OperatorgdZation is owned by Affiliates of bo
Apollo and TPG.
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In November 2006, we entered into an agreement3attre Inc., an affiliate of TPG, for the use cfarwation software. We pay a commission
fee based on the number of annual bookings madaghrthe system. We have paid approximately $3llfomiunder the contract from
January 1, 2009 until December 31, 2012.

The Shareholders’ Agreement

On August 17, 2007, NCLC, NCL Investment LimitedBermuda company and an affiliate of the Apollo #sjrand Genting HK entered into
the Shareholders’ Agreement to regulate the affeleting to the Company’s management and thegightl obligations of NCL Investment
Limited and Genting HK as shareholders. The Shddelns Agreement became effective on January 782B0th NCL Investment Il Ltd., a
Cayman Islands company and an affiliate of the Apbunds, and Star NCLC Holdings Ltd., a Bermudagany and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Genting HK, became parties to ther&malders’ Agreement through separate joinder agesés on January 7, 2008; TPG Viking
I, L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partmprsTPG Viking II, L.P., a Cayman Islands limitpdrtnership, and TPG Viking AlV I,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, each aniafélof TPG, also became parties to the Sharersildgreement through separate joinder
agreements on January 8, 2008.

In connection with the consummation of the IPO, MCthe Apollo Funds, the TPG Viking Funds and GemtiK entered into an amended
and restated shareholders’ agreement on termsastiadiiy similar to the existing shareholders’ Agmeent. The following description is of the
amended and restated version of the Shareholdgrg'einent and is qualified in its entirety by refexe to the Shareholders’ Agreement.

Subject to the terms and conditions described itgrecluding with regard to the nomination of ipdadent directors, the Apollo Funds
maintaining the Apollo Minimum Ratio (as definedd), and Genting HK maintaining the GHK Minimum tRe(as defined below), the
Shareholders’ Agreement entitles the Apollo Furdsdminate for election a majority of the directorsNCLH’s Board of Directors and
Genting HK to nominate for election the remaindeowr non-independent directors to NCLH’s Boardafectors.

For so long as the Apollo Minimum Ratio is maintdnthe number of independent directors shall bataiaed at an odd number and the
majority of independent directors so required t@appointed shall be nominated for election to NCi Bbard of Directors or appointed to the
applicable committee thereof by the Apollo Funds] the remainder of independent directors so reduiv be appointed shall be nominatet
election to NCLH'’s Board of Directors or appointedhe applicable committee thereof by Genting HK.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, NCLH badhareholders party thereto are required todhlketions as may be required to ensure
that the number of directors will consist of semeembers and that the members of NCLH'’s Board oé®@ars shall be comprised of Marc J.
Rowan, Steve Martinez, Adam M. Aron and Karl Peteras nominees of the Apollo Funds; Tan Sri LinkKRthay and David Chua Ming

Huat as nominees of Genting HK; Walter L. Revelhasndependent director nominated by Genting HK.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, NCLH hadshareholders party thereto took such actionscasred to ensure that the directors of
NCLH are classified with respect to the time forieththey severally hold office into three classesnearly equal in number as possible,
each director being elected to a three-year temhttzat such nominees to NCLH's Board of Directors dassified as follows:

Class | directors: Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay and Mar®éwan, whose terms will expire at the first anrgetieral meeting of shareholders
that is held following the consummation of the IPO;

Class Il directors: Walter L. Revell and Adam M.ofir whose terms will expire at the second annuaége meeting of shareholders that
is held following the consummation of the IPO; and

Class Ill directors: Steve Martinez, Karl Petersod David Chua Ming Huat, whose terms will expir¢he third annual general meeting
of shareholders that is held following the consurtiomaof the IPO.
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The term of each director shall continue until ¢tection and qualification of a successor and lgestito such director’s earlier death,
resignation or removal. Thereafter, at each angeaéral meeting of shareholders of NCLH, the sismrssof the directors whose term expires
at that meeting shall be elected to hold officedfderm expiring at the annual general meetindhafeholders held in the third year following
the year of their election.

The Shareholders’ Agreement provides that NCLH thedshareholders party thereto will take such astias may be required to ensure that
within 90 days of the consummation of the IPO,nheber of directors shall be increased to a tdtalree members, (i) an individual
designated by the Apollo Funds shall be appointesktve as an independent director pursuant teethérements of applicable law (including
the rules of NASDAQ) and a Class | director anfiginominee of the Apollo Funds shall be appoimnteserve on NCLH'’s Board of Directors
as a Class Il director to fill the vacancies raaglfrom such increase, and within one year ofdtiesummation of the IPO, the number of
directors shall be increased to a total of elevemivers, (i) an individual designated by the Apélimds shall be appointed to serve as an
independent director pursuant to the requiremeapplicable law (including the rules of NASDAQ)dha Class Il director and (ii) a nominee
of the Apollo Funds shall be appointed to serv@enBoard of Directors as a Class Il directoritotifie vacancies resulting from such incre

Additionally, pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreamihe chief executive officer of NCLH is desigaditas a non-voting observer to be presel
at all meetings of our Board of Directors and alintnittees thereof (other than the audit committekexecutive sessions of our Board of
Directors and all committees thereof) and one iidial designated by the TPG Viking Funds is dediggthas a non-voting observer to be
present at all meetings of our Board of Directard all committees thereof (other than the auditmittee) and receive the same notice and
information at substantially the same time as neinof the Apollo Funds.

Following the consummation of the IPO, pursuarthioShareholders’ Agreement, the audit committ@eisposed of three members, who
shall initially be Walter L. Revell, Steve Martinand Adam M. Aron. Within 90 days of the consumoaif the IPO, NCLH and the
shareholders party to the Shareholders’ Agreeméhtake, or cause to be taken, such action agiessary to ensure that a majority of the
members of our audit committee are independenttdire and within one year of the consummation eflfO, NCLH and the shareholders
party to the Shareholders’ Agreement will takecause to be taken, such action as is necessangtioeethat all of the members of the audit
committee are independent directors.

Following the consummation of the IPO, pursuarthedShareholders’ Agreement, the compensation ctiseris composed of three members
who shall initially be Marc. J. Rowan, Steve Magtirand Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay.

Following the consummation of the IPO, pursuarthioShareholders’ Agreement, the nominating aneég@nce committee is composed of
three members who shall initially be David Chua $lkunt, Steve Martinez and Adam M. Aron.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, GentingthiéiKApollo Funds and the TPG Viking Funds wiltegnot to acquire any publicly
traded equity securities of the Company withoutgher written consent of (a) the Apollo Funds,wiespect to any proposed acquisitions by
Genting HK, (b) Genting HK, with respect to any posed acquisitions by the Apollo Funds, (c) Gentikgand the Apollo Funds, with
respect to any proposed acquisitions by the TP@yikunds; provided, however, that no consent sfetequired with respect to the
acquisition of any publicly traded equity secustis the Company by Genting HK, the Apollo Fundsher TPG Viking Funds if, at least ten
business days prior to the proposed acquisitioch shareholder provides the Company (and the Bafairectors in the case of clauses (i)
(i) with (i) written notice of the maximum numbef shares it proposes to acquire, (ii) a writtertification stating that the consummation of
such acquisition will not result in the Companyihgsits exemption from taxation on gross incomewt from the international operation of a
ship or ships within the meaning of Section 888hef Code and (iii) any additional forms or certfies reasonably requested by the Company
and the audit committee reasonably determinesydgakio account the information provided by sucarsholder and such additional
information as the audit committee deems relewhat, such acquisition will not result in the Compdwsing its exemption from taxation on
gross income derived from the international operatif a ship or ships within the meaning of Sec888 of the Code. No shareholder party to
the Shareholders’ Agreement other than GentingtH& Apollo Funds and the TPG Viking Funds will mitted to acquire any publicly
traded equity securities of the Company withoutghier written consent of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Shareholdefgireement, the shareholders party thereto will fg@information or certifications as are reasonabbjuested b
the Company or as are required under the terntsecBhareholders’ Agreement in order for NCLH to pbnwith any regulatory filing or
withholding requirements, including forms requit®dSection 883 of the Code; provided, however, pkt®the extent reasonably requeste
the Company, a shareholder owning less than 5%eofdte and value of NCLH, including for avoidaméeoubt, shares held by attribution,
shall not be required to provide such forms orrtwvjale the identity of its direct or indirect ower

Subject to Genting HK'’s consent rights as descrixdw, the Apollo Funds have the right to votedhares of NCLH held by Genting HK. In
the event that the ratio of the aggregate numbenoity securities of the Company held by the Apélinds (and certain of their permitted
transferees, which includes the TPG Viking Fundshe aggregate number of equity securities of NQell by Genting HK (and certain of
their permitted transferees) falls below 0.6 (tAgdllo Minimum Ratio”), these voting rights of tigollo Funds will cease. Additionally, if
the Apollo Minimum Ratio is no longer maintaineldetApollo Funds’ right to appoint a majority of theembers of NCLHs Board of Director
will immmediately terminate and from that time untie time, if any, that the NASDAQ listing rulegjtére that a majority of the members of
NCLH'’s Board of Directors be independent, Genting HKlshave the right to nominate for election a migyoof the directors on NCLH’s
Board of Directors and the Apollo Funds shall htheeright to nominate for election one or two dioes based on the combined ownership
percentage of the Apollo Funds and the TPG Vikiogds. The Apollo Funds also have the right to woéeTPG Viking Funds’ shares of
NCLH; such voting rights will terminate when thentbined ownership of NCLH shares by the Apollo Fuadd Genting HK (and certain
their respective permitted transferees, which idely with respect to the Apollo Funds, the TPG MikiFunds) falls below 25% of the then t
outstanding equity securities of NCLH.

For as long as the ratio of the aggregate numbequoity securities held by Genting HK (and cert@fitheir permitted transferees) to the
aggregate number of equity securities held by tpelld Funds (and certain of their permitted transés, including the TPG Viking Funds) i
least 0.6 (the “GHK Minimum Ratio”) and there had heen a change of control of Genting HK, certaatters may not be carried out by the
Company without the prior written consent of GegtifK, which include, among others, the following:

» sale of NCLH (except any sale effected througtritet of first offer, drag along and tag along saations pursuant to the
Shareholder Agreement)

e any acquisitions or divestitures with the aggregatesideration paid or received, together withdtwsideration paid or received in
respect of all other acquisitions and divestitwafsr the date of the Amended and Restated ShaleisdlAgreement, exceeding
$200.0 million;

» subject to limited exceptions, the primary issuamg&CLH of equity securities in a public offerir
» subject to limited exceptions, the issuance by NQifldquity securities in a private offering to thparties

» capital expenditures if the aggregate amount ofi @apital expenditures (or a series of separatedbatied capital expenditures),
together with all other capital expenditures maftier ahe date of the Amended and Restated Sharefsldlgreement, is in excess
of $20.0 million;

» the declaration or payment of any -pro rata dividends or distributior
» change of the independent accountants of the Coyrgoachits subsidiarie:
« the issuance or authorization of new equity comatms plans or amendment of existing equity comptos plans

* subject to limited exceptions, the entrance intp @ntract or agreement with any officer, directdrareholder or affiliate or
employee of Apollo

» any changes to NCL's memorandum of association or -laws; anc
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» the hiring of a new chief executive officer of t@@empany or any of its subsidiaries (provided thahis case only Genting HK’s
consent shall not be unreasonably withhe

Provided the GHK Minimum Ratio is maintained andrthhas not been a change of control of GentingdtdiK Board of Directors must also
provide reasonable advance written notice to Ggritil{ of and consult with (but is not required taah the consent of) Genting HK regard
certain actions including, but not limited to, tfie approval of the Company’s or any of its sulagids’ consolidated annual budget and any
material action taken which deviates from such letid@) the incurrence of any debt of the Company its subsidiaries outside that of which
is allocated in the annual budget that, togethdn @li other incurrence of debt outside of thawbich is allocated in the annual budget, is in
excess of $100.0 million, (iii) the issuance of @ity securities of the Company or any of itssidiaries, including the identity of
participants and the allocation of such securi(i@3,the declaration of any dividends or distriloats on any equity securities and (v) the
commencement or termination of employment of argcative or key employee of the Company or any$ithsidiaries.

Genting HK’s consent and consultation rights désatiabove would also terminate when the combinateaship of the ordinary shares of the
Company held by the Apollo Funds and Genting HKd(eertain of their respective permitted transferedsch includes, in the case of the
Apollo Funds, the TPG Viking Funds) falls below 2%8¥%the then total outstanding equity securitiethef Company.

Additionally, for so long as the TPG Viking Fundsdatheir permitted transferees continue to hold %nore of the amount of ordinary
shares of NCLH that are collectively held by theGI?iking Funds and their affiliates on the dateh# consummation of the IPO, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries shall be peetito engage in any material transaction invohang affiliate of the Apollo Funds (other
than the Company and its subsidiaries) withoufptti@r written consent of the TPG Viking Funds, seomsent not to be unreasonably
withheld.

Each shareholder of NCLH that is a party to ther&talders’ Agreement has the right to participaiegro-rata basis in any issuance of new
shares of NCLH, subject to limited exceptions, ullithg, but not limited to equity securities issigdNCLH in an underwritten public offerin
The shareholders will not be entitled to particgpiat, or require the registration of other secesitin connection with, this offering. In addition,
each of the Apollo Funds and Genting HK has thietrig make written requests in unlimited numberbl@L_H to register and thereby transfer
all or a portion of its ordinary shares of NCLHahgh share offerings, provided each written requélsspecify an aggregate offering price of
at least $20.0 million for the ordinary shares beiegistered and will specify the intended methbdigposition. At any time following the date
that is eighteen months from the consummation @10, the TPG Viking Funds also have the righthtke one written request to NCLH to
register and thereby transfer all or a portiont®brdinary shares of NCLH through a share offerfdgditionally, if NCLH at any time propos
for any reason to register ordinary shares, eatheoApollo Funds, Genting HK and the TPG VikinghBa shall have the right to cause NCLH
to include in such registration all or a portionitsfordinary shares of NCLH.

Subject to the Apollo Funds' right to sell as désed below, each of the Apollo Funds, the TPG Mikifunds and Genting HK (and certain of
their respective permitted transferees) is probibftom transferring their equity securities of dmenpany without the written mutual conser
the Apollo Funds and Genting HK, other than trarsste certain permitted transferees or transfeceitain registered offerings. These transfe
restrictions will immediately terminate in the evémat either the Apollo Minimum Ratio or the GHKildmum Ratio are not maintained.

Unless the Apollo Funds (or certain of its pernditteansferees, which includes the TPG Viking Furds)e previously sold any of their shares
of NCLH in a registered public offering effectedrpuant to the terms of the registration rights mions of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the
Apollo Funds are entitled to sell all, but not I#san all, of the shares of NCLH held by the Apdtiends (and certain of their permitted
transferees, which includes the TPG Viking Funds) third party in cash at any time, provided thatApollo Funds first offer Genting HK t
right to acquire such shares of NCLH on terms amdlitions as may be specified by the Apollo Furahs] subject to lock-up agreements
entered into in connection with the IPO. In thergwbat Genting HK declines such offer to purchidieeApollo Fundsshares of NCLH and tt
Apollo Funds receive a bona fide offer from a thpadty to purchase its shares of NCLH, (i) Gentiti§ shall have the right to sell to such tF
party its pro rata portion of the shares of NCLHbé&osold in such transaction and (ii) the Apollmési shall have the right to cause Genting Hk
and the other shareholders of NCLH party to the&imders’ Agreement to consent to such transacéind to sell all of their shares of NCLH
in such transaction on the same terms and conditarwhich the Apollo Funds are selling their seareNCLH.
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The Subscription Agreement

On August 17, 2007, Genting HK, NCL Investment Ltediand NCLC entered into a subscription agreeifteat'Subscription Agreement”)
which set out the terms for the equity investmeantamd issuance of shares to, NCL Investment LunidCL Investment Limited assigned to
NCL Investment Il Ltd. a portion of its rights anblligations under the Subscription Agreement purst@an assignment agreement d:
January 7, 2008.

Under the Subscription Agreement, we and Gentingagkeed to cooperate with each other in developingespective cruise line businesses
provided that such obligations to cooperate doemt#nd to any such efforts that could reasonablgxdpected to have an adverse effect on the
operation or prospects of such party’s respectiuese line business.

In addition, subject to the terms below, NCL Invesht Limited and Genting HK indemnified each otfwgrcertain losses arising from
breaches of representations, warranties and cotensde by us, Genting HK and NCL Investment Lichi®oth NCL Investment Limited’s
and Genting HK’s indemnity obligations relatingtieeaches of representations and warranties teredrmat April 30, 2008, subject to certain
exceptions for fraudulent or knowing and intentiomésrepresentations. Genting HK may elect in dle gliscretion to satisfy all or a portion of
its indemnity obligations in cash or by causing @@npany to issue additional ordinary shares ofdbmpany to NCL Investment Limited.

Tax Agreement and Exchange Agreement

In connection with the consummation of the IPO, MGéntered into an amended and restated tax agredoneMiCLC, which sets forth the
terms of the partnership agreement governing the 8@rporation Units. To the extent funds are legallailable, the tax agreement provides
that NCLC will make cash distributions, which wéereto as “tax distributions,” to the holders 0étNCL Corporation Units (including the
Management NCL Corporation Units) if ownershiploé NCL Corporation Units gives rise to U.S. taxahtmme for the holders. The U.S.
taxable income attributable to the ownership of NQirporation Units may be different from the relatU.S. taxable income attributable to
Management NCL Corporation Units. In that case digkibutions may be made on a non-pro rata haisisthe holders of Management NCL
Corporation Units possibly receiving relative tastdbutions greater than the tax distributionseieed by NCLH. Generally, these tax
distributions will be computed based on an estinohtbe taxable income, determined for U.S. federame tax purposes, allocable to the
NCL Corporation Unit holder multiplied by the U féderal and state income tax rate applicable tb batder, as determined in the s
discretion of NCLH.

As part of the tax agreement, NCLH entered int@xrhange agreement with NCLC. Under the exchangeeagent, subject to certain
procedures and restrictions (including the vessicligedules applicable to the Management NCL Corjporatnits and any applicable legal and
contractual restrictions), each holder of ManagamiZL Corporation Units has the right to cause NGir@l NCLH to exchange the holder’s
Management NCL Corporation Units for ordinary skas€NCLH at an exchange rate equal to one ordishaye for each Management NCL
Corporation Unit (or, at NCLC's election, a caslympent equal to the value of the exchanged Managel@h Corporation Units), subject to
customary adjustments to the exchange rate fok sfolits, subdivisions, combinations and similatraardinary events. As a holder of
Management NCL Corporation Units exchanges hiseotManagement NCL Corporation Units, NCLH’s econoimterest in NCLC is
correspondingly increased.

The exchange right described above is subjec) tbifiling and effectiveness of an applicableisggtion statement by NCLH that, in its
determination, contains all the information thatdgguired to effect a registered sale of ordin&igres of NCLH and (ii) all applicable legal and
contractual restrictions, including those imposgdre lock-up agreements entered into in connectim the IPO. Following the expiration of
the 180-day lock-up agreements, NCLH intends #difregistration statement with the SEC to registea continuous basis the issuance of th
ordinary shares to be received by the holders afdgament NCL Corporation Units who elect to excleang

Director Independence

We refer you to “ltem 10—Directors, Executive Offis and Corporate Governance” for further infororatiegarding the independence of our
directors.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Total Fees
Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
(in thousands)
Fees:
Audit $ 1,54: $ 1,582
Audit related — 25
Tax 34 58
All other 2 2
Total $ 1,57¢ $ 1,667

Audit fees are the aggregate fees billed by PriteskauseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) in connection with thalit of our regulatory and statutory
reports, issuance of comfort letters and our Sab#@xley 404 attestation.

Audit related fees in 2011 were in connection wish assessments performed.
Tax fees in 2012 and 2011 were in connection veithréturn preparation and other tax services.
All other fees for 2012 and 2011 related to the Pm@ual on-line subscription research tool.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedurs

Pursuant to the terms of its charter, the auditrodtae approves all audit and non-audit servicesiged by PwC. Any services provided by
PwC that are not specifically included within tloege of the audit must be pre-approved by the aoditmittee prior to any engagement. The
audit committee has considered and determinedhbatervices provided by PwC are compatible witintaaing PwC'’s independence.

90



Table of Contents

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(1) Financial Statements

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and Norwe@iase Line Holdings Ltd. balance sheets have Ipeepared in accordance with Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and@tgled beginning on page F-1 of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
None.

(3) Exhibits
The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index thibits are filed or incorporated by reference a$ phthis Annual Report on Form 1-and
such Index to Exhibits is hereby incorporated hebsi reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused
Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its Hdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorizadyliami, Florida, on February 20, 2013.

NORWEGIAN CRUISE LINE HOLDINGS LTD.

By: /sl Kevin M. Sheeha
Name: Kevin M. Sheehan
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below coesténd appoints Kevin M. Sheehan, Wendy A. Beckj@®&. Farkas and Howard L.
Flanders, and each of them, his true and lawfaladlys-in-fact and agents, each with full poweswbstitution and resubstitution, for him or
her and in his or her name, place and stead, imadyall capacities, to signh any and all amendrteetitis Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to
file the same, with exhibits thereto and other doents in connection therewith, with the Securiied Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of thdhpower and authority to do and perform eant avery act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done, as fully to all intents amggses as he or she might or could do in persmebly ratifying and confirming all that each
of said attorneys-in-fact and agents or their stitistor substitutes may lawfully so or cause talbee by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual RepoRaym 10-K has been signed
below by the following persons in the capacitied an the date indicated.

Signature

/sl Kevin M. Sheeha

Kevin M. Sheehan
/s/ Wendy A. Becl

Wendy A. Beck
/sl Tan Sri Lim Kok Tha

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay
/s/ David Chua Ming Hug

David Chua Ming Huat
/s/ Marc J. Rowa

Marc J. Rowan
/sl Steve Martine

Steve Martinez
/s Adam M. Aron

Adam M. Aron
/s/ Walter L. Revel

Walter L. Revell

/s/ Karl Peterso

Karl Peterson

Title
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer)

Director, Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee

Director
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February 20, 2013

February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013
February 20, 2013

February 20, 2013
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Exhibit
Numbel

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description of Exhibi

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

9.1

10.1

10.2

Memorandum of Association of Norwegian Cruise Litadings Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xibit 3.1 to
amendment no. 5 to Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings’s registration statement on Form S-1 filed anubry 8, 2013 (File No.
33:-175579))

Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Norwegian Cruise Holdings Ltd. (incorporated herein by referet@w&xhibit 3.1 to
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings L’s Form {-K filed on January 30, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

Indenture, dated November 12, 2009, by and among i@ poration Ltd. as Issuer and Norwegian Dawnitgéay, Norwegian
Sun Limited, Norwegian Spirit, Ltd. and NorwegiaaiSLimited as subsidiary guarantors and U.S. Bdational Association as
Indenture Trustee with respect to $450.0 million75% Senior Notes due 2016 (incorporated hereirefgrence to Exhibit 2.5 to
NCL Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on February 24, 2010 (File No. :-128780))

Indenture, dated November 9, 2010, by and among @@iporation Ltd. as Issuer and U.S. Bank Natidkslociation as
Indenture Trustee with respect to $250.0 millids09 Senior Notes due 2018 (incorporated hereirefgrence to Exhibit 4.3 to
amendment no. 1 to NCL Corporation Ltd.’s registrastatement on Form S-1 filed on December 150261e No. 333-
170141))

Supplemental Indenture, dated February 29, 2012denture, dated November 9, 2010, by and betwgin Corporation Ltd. a
Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association as Ingdentrustee, with respect to $100.0 million 9.508fi8r Notes due 2018
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8I@L Corporation Ltd.'s registration statement ari F-4 filed on March 22,
2012 (File No. 33-180281))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 2222by and between NCL Corporation Ltd. and DéhgdBank Securities In
with respect to $100.0 million 9.50% Senior Notee @018 (incorporated herein by reference to ExHilsi to NCL Corporation
Ltd.’s registration statement on Fori-4 filed on March 22, 2012 (File No. 3-180281))

Indenture, dated February 6, 2013, by and among 8@iporation Ltd. as issuer and U.S. Bank Natidwssdociation as trustee
with respect to $300.0 million 5.00% Senior Notee @018 (incorporated herein by reference to ExHildi to the Norwegian
Cruise Line Holdings Lt’'s Form K filed on February 8, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 6320y and among NCL Corporation Ltd. and Deutdghek Securities Inc.
with respect to $300.0 million 5.00% Senior Notas @018 (incorporated herein by reference to ExHildi to the Norwegian
Cruise Line Holdings Lt’'s Form K filed on February 8, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

Form of Certificate of Ordinary Shares (incorpodaterein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to amendmenbrto the Norwegian
Cruise Line Holdings Lt’s registration statement on Fori-1 filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -175579))

Deed of Trust, dated January 24, 2013, by and stWeorwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd. and StateiséoTrust Company
Limited (incorporated herein by reference to Exhébl to the Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd=arm 8K filed on Februan
8, 2013 (File No. 0C-35784))

€298.0 million Pride of America Loans, dated as pfifd, 2003, by and among Ship Holding LLC and/adicate of
international banks and related Guarantee by NCip@ation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xibit 4(e) to NCL
Corporation Ltc's registration statement on Fori-4 filed on October 3, 2005 (File No. :-128780)) +

Supplemental Amendments, dated June 1, 2005, ®.€28illion Pride of America Loans, dated as of ifdr 2003, by and
among Pride of America Ship Holding, Inc., NCL Cargtion Ltd. and a syndicate of international bafiksorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to NCL Corporation I's annual report on Form -F filed on March 29, 2006 (File No. 3- 128780))
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.1C

Seventh Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million Prid&émerica Loan and Sixth Supplemental Deed to €46il0on Pride of
America Loan, both dated November 13, 2006, to €288llion Pride of America Loans, dated as of Agti2003, as amended, by
an agreement dated April 20, 2004, by and amordgRrii America Ship Holding, Inc. and a syndicatéintérnational banks and
related Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incogbed herein by reference to Exhibit 4.27 to NCLg@wation Ltd.'s annual
report on Form 2-F filed on March 6, 2007 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Eighth Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million Pridéoferica Loan and Seventh Supplemental Deed tad&#dlion Pride of
America Loan, each dated December 21, 2007, to.8288lion Pride of America Loans, dated as of A@i2003, as amended, by
and among Pride of America Ship Holding, Inc., NCarporation Ltd. and a syndicate of internatioreatks and related amended
and restated Guarantees by NCL Corporation Ltdofjmorated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.58 @_NCorporation Ltd.’'s
annual report on Form -F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Ninth Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million Pride of Amaifi®an and Eighth Supplemental Deed46.©€ million Pride of Americ
Loan, each dated April 2, 2009, to €298.0 milliordP of America Loans, dated as of April 4, 2008 amended, by and among
Pride of America Ship Holding, Inc., NCL Corporatibtd. and a syndicate of international banks ahated amended and restated
Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateceireby reference to Exhibit 4.36 to Amendment Néo NCL Corporation
Ltd.’s annual report on Form -F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Tenth Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million Pridéwferica Loan and Ninth Supplemental Deed to €40lIlom Pride of America
Loan, each dated July 22, 2010, to €298.0 milliddd*of America Loans, dated as of April 4, 2008 amended, by and among
Pride of America Ship Holding, LLC, NCL Corporatittd. and a syndicate of international banks (ipooated herein by referen
to Exhibit 10.6 to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corpanatitd.’s registration statement on Form S-1 filedJune 9, 2011 (File No.
33:-170141)) +

Eleventh Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million Patildmerica Loan and Tenth Supplemental Deed to&#dllion Pride of
America Loan, each dated November 18, 2010, to £29dlion Pride of America Loans, dated as of Ag(i2003, as amended, by
and among Pride of America Ship Holding, LLC, NCarforation Ltd. and a syndicate of internationailksa(incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to amendment no. M@i. Corporation Ltd.’s registration statement onris-1 filed on June 9, 2011
(File No. 33-170141))

Twelfth Supplemental Deed to €258.0 million PridéAmerica Loan and Eleventh Supplemental Deed th@&#illion Pride of
America Loan, each dated as of June 1, 2012, t8.621illion Pride of America Loans, dated as of ihr 2003, as amended, by
and among Pride of America Ship Holding, LLC, NCar@oration Ltd. and a syndicate of internationailksaand related amended
and restated Guarantees by NCL Corporation Ltdofjmorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 @_NCorporation Ltd$ repor
on Form (-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. :-128780)) +

$334.1 million Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated as ofil’lg0, 2004, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limiged a syndicate of
international banks and related Guarantee by NGip@ation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xibit 4(h) to NCL
Corporation Ltc's registration statement on Fori-4 filed on October 3, 2005 (File No. -128780)) +

First Supplemental Deed, dated as of Septembe2(85, to $334.1 million Norwegian Jewel Loan, bg among Norwegian Jew
Limited, NCL Corporation Ltd. and a syndicate akimational banks (incorporated herein by referéadexhibit 4.11 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 29, 2006 (File No. 3-128780))
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10.11

10.1z

10.15

10.14

10.15

10.1€

10.17

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

Second Supplemental Deed, dated April 4, 2006, Tamdl Supplemental Deed, dated November 13, 2@0$384.1 million
Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated as of April 20, 20@4amended, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limitedaasyhdicate ¢
international banks and related Guarantee by NCip@ation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xdibit 4.30 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 6, 2007 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Fourth Supplemental Deed, dated December 21, 2086334.1 million Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated aspifil 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limited, lGLtporation Ltd. and a syndicate of internatioreatks and related
amended and restated Guarantee by NCL Corporatthr{ihcorporated herein by reference to Exhitit74to NCL Corporation
Ltd.’s annual report on Form -F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Fifth Supplemental Deed, dated April 2, 2009, t842 million Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated as of Ap@, 2004, as amended, by
and among Norwegian Jewel Limited, NCL Corporatitth and a syndicate of international banks anateel amended and reste
Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateceireby reference to Exhibit 4.35 to Amendment Néo NCL Corporation
Ltd.’s annual report on Form -F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Sixth Supplemental Deed, dated July 22, 2010, 81#3million Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated as of Apéi, 2004, as amended, by
and among Norwegian Jewel Limited, NCL Corporatitsh and a syndicate of international banks (incoaped herein by referer
to Exhibit 10.17 to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporattd.’s registration statement on Form S-1 fitedJune 9, 2011 (File No.
333-170141)) +

Seventh Supplemental Deed, dated November 18, 208%334.1 million Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated BAmril 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limited, ’Btporation Ltd. and a syndicate of internatioreails (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to amendmentrto NCL Corporation Ltd.’s registration staterhen Form S-1 filed on June
9, 2011 (File No. 33-170141))

Eighth Supplemental Deed, dated June 1, 2012,34.$3nillion Norwegian Jewel Loan, dated as of Ap#, 2004, as amended,
and among Norwegian Jewel Limited, NCL Corporatitth and a syndicate of international banks anateel amended and reste
Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateceireby reference to Exhibit 10.2 to NCL Corporatldd.’s report on Form 6-
K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. =-128780)) +

€308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated as of tAf20, 2004, as amended, by and among Pride ofdiiawnc. and a syndicate
of international banks and related Guarantee by Gtporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referetc&xhibit 4(i) to NCL
Corporation Ltc's registration statement on Fori-4 filed on October 3, 2005 (File No. :-128780)) +

Second Supplemental Deed, dated as of Septemb20@5, to €308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, Bpd among Pride of
Hawal'i, Inc., NCL Corporation Ltd. and a syndicateinternational banks (incorporated herein bgrefice to Exhibit 4.13 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 29, 2006 (File No. 3-128780))

Third Supplemental Deed, dated November 13, 2@06308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated asAgdril 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawai'i, Inc. asgiralicate of international banks and related Guasaby NCL Corporation
Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhib®14to NCL Corporation Ltd.’s annual report on F&@:F filed on March 6, 2007
(File No. 33:--128780)) +

Fourth Supplemental Deed, dated December 21, 20€308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated dsAgril 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawai'i, Inc., NQirgdration Ltd. and a syndicate of internationaiksaand related amended
and restated Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltdofiporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.59 td_NEbrporation Ltd.$ annua
report on Form 2-F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +
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Fifth Supplemental Deed, dated February 10, 2@D8308.1 million Pride of HawaiLoan, dated as of April 20, 2004, as amen
by and among Pride of Hawali'i, Inc., NCL Corporatiotd. and a syndicate of international banks (ipooated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.60 to NCL Corporation L{'s annual report on Form -F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Sixth Supplemental Deed, dated April 2, 2009, t0&3 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated as of Af20, 2004, as amended, by
and among Pride of Hawai'i, Inc., NCL CorporatiorLand a syndicate of international banks andedlamended and restated
Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateceireby reference to Exhibit 4.37 to Amendment Néo NCL Corporation
Ltd.’s annual report on Form -F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Seventh Supplemental Deed, dated October 19, 20@308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated dsApril 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawai'i, Inc., NQirgdration Ltd. and a syndicate of internationaiksa(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to amendment no. 4 td KDGrporation Ltd.’s registration statement on F@ri filed on June 9, 2011
(File No. 33:--170141))

Eighth Supplemental Deed, dated July 22, 20103@8€L million Pride of Hawaii'Loan, dated as of April 20, 2004, as amende
and among Pride of Hawali'i, LLC, NCL CorporatiordLind a syndicate of international banks (inccaafem herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.26 to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporatiteh’s registration statement on Form S-1 filedJome 9, 2011 (File No. 333-
170141)) +

Ninth Supplemental Deed, dated November 18, 2@1€308.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated as gbrh 20, 2004, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawai'i, LLC, NClLritwation Ltd. and a syndicate of internationalksaincorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to amendment no. M@ Corporation Ltd.’s registration statement arri S-1 filed on June 9,
2011 (File No. 33-170141))

Tenth Supplemental Deed, dated June 1, 2012, 8. €30illion Pride of Hawai'i Loan, dated as of A@2D, 2004, as amended, by
and among Pride of Hawai'i, LLC, NCL CorporatiordLind a syndicate of international banks andedlamended and restated

Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporatecehreby reference to Exhibit 10.3 to NCL Corporatldd.’s report on Form 6-

K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. =-128780)) +

Up to €624.0 million Norwegian Pearl and Norweg@em Revolving Loan Facility Agreement, dated Octohe2005, by and
among NCL Corporation Ltd. and a syndicate of mitional banks (incorporated herein by referendextuibit 4.24 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 29, 2006 (File No. 3-128780))

First Supplemental Deed, dated November 13, 2@06p tto €624.0 million Norwegian Pearl and Norwegizem Revolving Loan
Facility Agreement, dated October 7, 2005, as aménioly and among NCL Corporation Ltd. and a syrdio&international banks
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4@NCL Corporation Ltd.’s annual report on FormR®ed on March 6, 2007 (Fi
No. 33:-128780)) +

Second Supplemental Deed, dated December 21, 806824.0 million Norwegian Pearl and Norwegian Geavolving Loan
Facility Agreement, dated as of October 7, 200%masnded, by and among NCL Corporation Ltd., Noraeearl, Ltd.,
Norwegian Gem, Ltd. and a syndicate of internatibvasaks and related amended and restated Guardntéésrwegian Pearl, Ltc
and Norwegian Gem, Ltd. (incorporated herein bgnefice to Exhibit 4.55 to NCL Corporation Ltd.’snaal report on Form 20-F
filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Third Supplemental Deed, dated April 2, 2009, t846 million Norwegian Pearl and Norwegian Gem Rewng Loan Facility
Agreement, dated as of October 7, 2005, as amebhgieayd among NCL Corporation Ltd., Norwegian Pdad., Norwegian Gen
Ltd. and a syndicate of international banks (inooaped herein by reference to Exhibit 4.34 to Ammeadt No. 1 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +
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Fourth Supplemental Deed, dated July 22, 20106248® million Norwegian Pearl and Norwegian Gem ¢teing Loan Facility
Agreement, dated as of October 7, 2005, as amebgiexhd among NCL Corporation Ltd., Norwegian Pdad., Norwegian Gen
Ltd. and a syndicate of international banks (inooaped herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to aingent no. 4 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's registration statement on Forr-1 filed on June 9, 2011 (File No. :-170141)) +

Fifth Supplemental Deed, dated June 1, 2012, td.€6@illion Norwegian Pearl and Norwegian Gem Reva Loan Facility
Agreement, dated as of October 7, 2005, as amebgieayd among NCL Corporation Ltd., Norwegian Pdad., Norwegian Gen
Ltd. and a syndicate of international banks (incoaped herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to NGiroration Ltd.’s report on
Form €-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -128780)) +

€662.9 million Syndicated Loan Facility, dated Septer 22, 2006, by and among F3 Two, Ltd. and aisgtel of international
banks and related Guarantee by NCL Corporation Eddthe construction of Hull D33 at Aker YardsAS(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.34 to our annual report omi2(-F filed on March 6, 2007 (File No. 3-128780)) +

First Supplemental Deed, dated December 21, 2066662.9 million F3 Two Loan, dated as of Septen#2r2006, as amended,
by and among F3 Two, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltd. @anslyndicate of international banks and relatednai®e and restated
Guarantee by NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateceireby reference to Exhibit 4.63 to NCL Corporatldd.’s annual report on
Form 2(-F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Second Supplemental Deed, dated April 24, 2008662.9 million F3 Two Loan, dated as of Septemi&r2D06, as amended, by
and among F3 Two, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltd. anslyadicate of international banks (incorporated inelog reference to Exhibit
4.70 to NCL Corporation Lt's annual report on Form -F filed on April 7, 2009 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Third Supplemental Deed, dated April 2, 2009, t6Z6 million F3 Two Loan, dated as of September22®6, as amended, by and
among F3 Two, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltd. and a sgate of international banks and related amendeddestated Guarantee by
NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by refaze to Exhibit 4.33 to Amendment No. 1 to NCL Cagiton Ltd’s annual
report on Form 2-F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Fourth Supplemental Deed, dated June 9, 201062.8 million F3 Two Loan, dated as of September2B®6, as amended, by ¢
among Norwegian Epic, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltddansyndicate of international banks (incorpordieckin by reference to
Exhibit 10.41 to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporatiteh’s registration statement on Form S-1 filedJome 9, 2011 (File No. 333-
170141)) +

Fifth Supplemental Deed, dated July 22, 2010, €2€Bmillion F3 Two Loan, dated as of September22®6, as amended, by and
among Norwegian Epic, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltddansyndicate of international banks (incorpordteckin by reference to
Exhibit 10.42 to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporatiteh’s registration statement on Form S-1 filedJome 9, 2011 (File No. 333-
170141)) +

Sixth Supplemental Deed, dated June 1, 2012, t8.8646illion F3 Two Loan, dated as of SeptemberZ2®6, as amended, by and
among F3 Two, Ltd., NCL Corporation Ltd. and a sgatk of international banks and related amendéd@stated Guarantee by
NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by refere to Exhibit 10.5 to NCL Corporation L's report on Form 6-K/A filed on
January 8, 2013 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Office Lease Agreement, dated as of November 206 20y and between NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. and Hines Agort Corporate
Center LLC and related Guarantee by NCL Corpordtitoin, and First Amendment, dated November 27, J0@brporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.46 to NCL Corporation 's annual report on Form -F filed on March 6, 2007 (File No. 3-128780))
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Amendment No. 1, dated December 1, 2006, Amendiden®, dated March 20, 2007, Amendment No. 3, daidyl 31, 2007, and
Amendment No. 4, dated December 10, 2007, to Offezese Agreement, dated December 1, 2006, as amhdndand between
Hines Reit Airport Corporate Center LLC and NCL (Baas) Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference toilkik4.64 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Amendment No. 5, dated February 2, 2010, to Offiease Agreement, dated December 1, 2006, as amdndadd between Hin
Reit Airport Corporate Center LLC and NCL (Bahamiats). (incorporated herein by reference to Exhifit45 to amendment no. 2
to NCL Corporation Ltc s registration statement on Fori-1 filed on January 31, 2011 (File No. -170141))

Amendment No. 6, dated April 1, 2012, and AmendnNmt7, dated June 19, 2012, to Office Lease Agezgntdated December 1,
2006, as amended, by and between Hines Reit Aifpamporate Center LLC and NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. (ipooated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to NCL Corporation I's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. :-128780)) +

Shareholders’ Agreement, dated August 17, 200anoyamong NCL Investment Ltd., Star Cruises Limaad NCL Corporation
Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhib#8to NCL Corporation Ltd.’s annual report on F&@:F filed on March 13,
2008 (File No. 33-128780))

Joinder, dated January 7, 2008, to the Shareholigreement, dated August 17, 2007, by and among BGrporation Ltd. and
Star NCLC Holdings Ltd. (incorporated herein byerehce to Exhibit 4.52 to NCL Corporation Ltd.’snaal report on Form 20-F
filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780))

Joinder, dated January 7, 2008, to the Shareholdlgreement, dated August 17, 2007, by and among RGrporation Ltd. and
NCL Investment Il Ltd. (incorporated herein by mefiece to Exhibit 4.53 to NCL Corporation L's annual report on Form 20-F
filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780))

Joinder, dated January 8, 2008, to the Shareholigreement, dated August 17, 2007, by and among BGrporation Ltd. and
TPG Viking I, L.P., TPG Viking II, L.P. and TPG Mikg AIV lll, L.P. (incorporated herein by referenteExhibit 4.51 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's annual report on Form -F filed on March 13, 2008 (File No. 3-128780))

Shareholders’ Agreement, dated January 24, 2018nbdyamong Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., 8®nHong Kong
Limited, Star NCLC Holdings Ltd., AAA Guarantor Govest VI (B), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AlV), L.P., AIF VINCL (AIV 1), L.P.,
AIF VI NCL (AIV 1), L.P., AIF VI NCL (AIV IV), L. P., Apollo Overseas Partners (Delaware) VI, L.pholo Overseas Partners
(Delaware 892) VI, L.P., Apollo Overseas Partnekrsl\MP., Apollo Overseas Partners (Germany) VI,.L TG Viking, L.P., TPG
Viking AIV |, L.P., TPG Viking AlIV Il, L.P. and TPGViking AIV IlI, L.P. ((incorporated herein by refence to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings L’"s Form K filed on January 30, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

$750.0 million Credit Agreement, dated OctoberZ®)9, by and among NCL Corporation Ltd., variouslkrs and Nordea Bank
Norge ASA (incorporated herein by reference to Bitl#.39 to Amendment No. 1 to NCL Corporation 's annual report on Fol
2C-F filed on May 25, 2010 (File No. 3-128780)) +

First Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to $750.0iomlCredit Agreement, dated October 28, 2009, asnaled, by and among
NCL Corporation Ltd., various lenders and NordealBHorge ASA (incorporated herein by reference xbikit 10.7 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. -128780)) +

First Lien Intercreditor Agreement, dated Novemb2r2009, by and among Nordea Bank Norge ASA ai®l Bank National
Association (incorporated herein by reference thikik4.38 to NCL Corporation Ltd.’s annual report Form 20-F filed on
February 24, 2010 (File No. 3-128780))
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Shipbuilding Contract for Hull No. S.678, dated &apber 24, 2010, by and among Meyer Werft GMBH aResvay One, Ltd. and
NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by refere to Exhibit 10.55 to amendment no. 2 to NCL ©aafion Ltd’s registration
statement on Form-1 filed on January 31, 2011 (File No. -170141)) +

Shipbuilding Contract for Hull No. S.692, dated &epber 24, 2010, by and among Meyer Werft GMBH aBesvay Two, Ltd. an
NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by refeze to Exhibit 10.56 to amendment no. 2 to NCL ©ecaifion Ltd’s registration
statement on Form-1 filed on January 31, 2011 (File No. -170141)) +

Shipbuilding Contract for Hull identified thereidated September 14, 2012, by and among Meyer \@&8H, Breakaway Three,
Ltd. and NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herbinreference to Exhibit 10.8 to NCL Corporation I$deport on Form 6-K/A
filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -128780)) +

Addendum No. 1, dated October 12, 2012, to Shigdingl Contract for Hull identified therein, datedpBember 14, 2012, as
amended, by and among Meyer Werft GMBH, Breakawang#, Ltd. and NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporatestdin by reference
to Exhibit 10.9 to NCL Corporation L{'s report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. :-128780)) +

Addendum No. 2, dated October 15, 2012, to Shidmgl Contract for Hull identified therein, datedpamber 14, 2012, as
amended, by and among Meyer Werft GMBH, Breakawang#, Ltd. and NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporatestdin by reference
to Exhibit 10.10 to NCL Corporation L’s report on Form-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -128780)) +

Shipbuilding Contract for Hull identified thereidated September 14, 2012, by and among Meyer \GMBH, Breakaway Four,
Ltd. and NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated herbjnreference to Exhibit 10.11 to NCL Corporatiomnl.L$ report on Form 6-K/A
filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -128780)) +

Addendum No. 1, dated October 15, 2012, to Shidmgl Contract for Hull identified therein, datedpamber 14, 2012, as
amended, by and among Meyer Werft GMBH, Breakawayr A.td. and NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporateddia by reference t
Exhibit 10.12 to NCL Corporation Lt's report on Form-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. :-128780)) +

€529.8 million Breakaway One Credit Agreement, dddedember 18, 2010, by and among Breakaway One dridl a syndicate
international banks and related Guarantee by NGip@ation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xbibit 10.57 to amendme
no. 4 to NCL Corporation Lt’'s registration statement on Fori-1 filed on June 9, 2011 (File No. :-170141)) +

First Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, &28.8 million Breakaway One Credit Agreement, d&iedember 18, 2010, as amenc
by and among Breakaway One, Ltd. and a syndicatgeriational banks (incorporated herein by refeesto Exhibit 10.13 to NC
Corporation Ltc's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. :-128780)) +

€529.8 million Breakaway Two Credit Agreement, daascf November 18, 2010, by and among Breakaway, Ttd. and a
syndicate of international banks and related Guaeaby NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated hereinréference to Exhibit 10.58
to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporation I's registration statement on Fori-1 filed on June 9, 2011 (File No. --170141)) +

First Amendment, dated December 21, 2010, to €5281®n Breakaway Two Credit Agreement, dated islovember 18, 2010,
by and among Breakaway Two, Ltd. and a syndicatetefnational banks and a related Guarantee by N@iporation Ltd.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Gd@mendment no. 2 to NCL Corporation Ltd.’s ragion statement on Form5-
filed on January 31, 2011 (File No. -170141))
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Second Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to €529 lBmBreakaway Two Credit Agreement, dated as oféober 18, 2010, by
and among Breakaway Two, Ltd. and a syndicatetefiational banks (incorporated herein by refereéadexhibit 10.14 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. -128780)) +

126.1 million Pride of Hawai'i Credit Agreement,tdd November 18, 2010, by and among Pride of HawhiC and a syndicate of
international banks and related Guarantee by NCip@ation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referenc&xbibit 10.60 to amendme
no. 4 to NCL Corporation Lt's registration statement on Fori-1 filed on June 9, 2011 (File No. -170141)) +

First Amendment, dated November 29, 2011, to €1&8llion Pride of Hawai'i Credit Agreement, datedWember 18, 2010, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawaii, LLC andaispate of international banks (incorporated hebgimeference to Exhibit
4.59 to NCL Corporation Lt's annual report on Form -F filed on February 22, 2012 (File No. -128780))

Second Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to €126.iomiPride of Hawai'i Credit Agreement, dated Novsen 18, 2010, as
amended, by and among Pride of Hawaii, LLC andnalieate of international banks (incorporated hebgimeference to Exhibit
10.15 to NCL Corporation Lt's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. -128780)) +

€126.1 million Norwegian Jewel Credit Agreement,ediiNovember 18, 2010, by and among Norwegian Jeweled and a
syndicate of international banks and related Guaeabhy NCL Corporation Ltd. (incorporated hereinréference to Exhibit 10.61
to amendment no. 4 to NCL Corporation I's registration statement on Fori-1 filed on June 9, 2011 (File No. --170141)) +

First Amendment, dated November 29, 2011, to €1&tllion Norwegian Jewel Credit Agreement, dated/dlmber 18, 2010, as
amended, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limited asyhdicate of international banks (incorporatecelmeby reference to
Exhibit 4.58 to NCL Corporation Lt's annual report on Form -F filed on February 22, 2012 (File No. -128780))

Second Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to €126 liomiNorwegian Jewel Credit Agreement, dated NoverritB, 2010, as
amended, by and among Norwegian Jewel Limited asyhdicate of international banks (incorporatectireby reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to NCL Corporation Lt's report on Form-K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. -128780)) +

€590.5 million Breakaway Three Credit AgreementedaDctober 12, 2012, by and among Breakaway Thtdeand various othe
lenders therein defined and a related Guaranty®l Norporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referemo Exhibit 10.17 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's report on Form-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. 3-128780)) +

€590.5 million Breakaway Four Credit Agreement, daBetober 12, 2012, by and among Breakaway Fodr,dnd various other
lenders therein defined and a related Guaranty®l Norporation Ltd. (incorporated herein by referemo Exhibit 10.18 to NCL
Corporation Ltc's report on Form-K/A filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. =-128780)) +

Employment Agreement by and between NCL (Bahamtk)dnd Kevin M. Sheehan, entered into on May 892@nd effective o
November 6, 2008 (incorporated herein by referéadexhibit 10.62 to amendment no. 3 to NCL Corpiorat_td.’s registration
statement on Form-1 filed on February 11, 2011 (File No. -170141))*
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Employment Agreement by and between NCL (Bahamts)dnd Wendy A. Beck, entered into on October2210 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to amendmenBrito NCL Corporation Ltd.’s registration statethen Form S-1 filed on
February 11, 2011 (File No. 3-170141))*

Employment Agreement by and between NCL (Bahamts)dnd Andrew Stuart, entered into on July 9, 200&orporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to amendment no. 8@ Corporation Ltd.’s registration statement i S-1 filed on February
11, 2011 (File No. 3z-170141))*

Employment Agreement by and between NCL (Bahamtks)dnd Maria Miller, entered into on June 1, 2(i@@orporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to amendment no. R@ Corporation Ltd.’s registration statement @i S-1 filed on February
11, 2011 (File No. 3:-170141))*

Employment Agreement by and between NCL (Bahamts)dnd Robert Becker, entered into on March 19824thcorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.66 to amendmenBrto NCL Corporation Ltd.’s registration staternen Form S-1 filed on
February 11, 2011 (File No. 3-170141))*

NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. Senior Management Retiremeningawlan, amended and restated as of Januar&,(®@orporated here
by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to amendment no. 8@ Corporation Ltd.’s registration statement mrf S-1 filed on February
11, 2011 (File No. 3:-170141))

NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. Supplemental Executive Retirenfain, amended and restated as of January 1,(R@@Bporated herein k
reference to Exhibit 10.68 to amendment no. 3 td KIGrporation Ltd.’s registration statement on F@ri filed on February 11,
2011 (File No. 33-170141))

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweemidaian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd. and each of itectors, executive
officers and certain other officers (incorporateddin by reference to Exhibit 10.89 to amendmentrto the Norwegian Cruise
Line Holdings Ltd's registration statement on Fori-1 filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -175579))

Memorandum of Agreement, dated June 1, 2012, amddlim No. 1 thereto, dated June 1, 2012, entetedy and among
Norwegian Sky, Ltd. and the parties named theiieco(porated herein by reference to Exhibit 104 8I€L Corporation Lt('s
report on Form -K filed on November 2, 2012 (File No. 3-128780)) +

Driving Demand Bonus Program (incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 10.91 to amendment no. théoNorwegian Cruise
Line Holdings Ltd's registration statement on Fort-1 filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -175579))*

Form of Profits Sharing Agreement Award Notice ¢imorated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.92n@adment no. 5 to the
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ls registration statement on Fori-1 filed on January 8, 2013 (File No. -175579))*

Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd. 2013 Performauhtcentive Plan (incorporated herein by refereéndexhibit 10.93 tc
amendment no. 5 to the Norwegian Cruise Line Hgslintd.’s registration statement on Form S-1 fibledJanuary 8, 2013 (File
No. 33-175579))*

Contribution and Exchange Agreement by and amomgvigian Cruise Line Holdings, Ltd., TPG Viking I,R., TPG Viking I,
L.P. and TPG Viking AIV 1ll, L.P. ((incorporated rein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Norweg@mise Line Holdings Ltd.’s
Form &K filed on January 30, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

Contribution and Exchange Agreement by and amomgvigian Cruise Line Holdings, Ltd., NCL Investméihited and NCL
Investment Il Ltd. ((incorporated herein by refareno Exhibit 10.2 to the Norwegian Cruise Line diogs Ltd.’'s Form 8-K filed
on January 30, 2013 (File No. (-35784))
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Contribution and Exchange Agreement by and betvésmwegian Cruise Line Holdings, Ltd., and Star NCHGIdings Ltd.
((incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 110.8he Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.’s ForaK8iled on January 30, 2013
(File No. 00--35784))

Amended and Restated United States Tax Agreemeht@t Corporation Ltd. (including Annex A-Form Exaihge Agreement for
NCL Corporation Ltd.) ((incorporated herein by refece to Exhibit 10.5 to the Norwegian Cruise Litwdings Ltd’'s Form 8-K
filed on January 30, 2013 (File No. (-35784))

List of Subsidiaries of Norwegian Cruise Line Holgs Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Eixt2ib.1 to amendment no. 2
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings L’s registration statement on Fori-1 filed on November 1, 2012 (File No. -175579))

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, indepemndgigtered accountants (filed herewi
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, indepemndgigtered accountants (filed herewi
Power of Attorney (included on the Signatures pafghis Annual Report on Form -K)

Certification of the Annual Report Pursuant to 88t802 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by thesiient and Chief Executive
Officer (filed herewith)

Certification of the Annual Report Pursuant to 88t802 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by thedtrive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer (filed herewitt

Certification of Annual Report Pursuant to Sect@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chiedcutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer (filed herewith

+ Confidential treatment has been granted witheesip certain portions of this exhibit. Omittedpans have been filed separately with the

SEC.

* Management contract or compensatory p
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ngiam Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheetseptefairly, in all material respects, the finahgiasition of Norwegian Cruise Line Holdir
Ltd. at December 31, 2012 and 2011, in conformithh\@ccounting principles generally accepted intimited States of America. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements based ol
our audits. We conducted our audits of the statésriaraccordance with the standards of the Puldim@any Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial staterr
are free of material misstatement. An audit includeamining, on a test basis, evidence suppotti@gmounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementgaaldating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida
February 20, 2013
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Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.

Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Deferred asse!

Total asset

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Liabilities:
Due to NCLC

Total liabilities

Shareholder equity:

Ordinary shares, $.001 par value; 10,000 sharémaréd; 10,000 shares issued and outstanding (N«

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

The accompanying note is an integral part of tfiesecial statements.

F-2

December 31

2012

$5,94:¢
$5,94:

$5,94:¢

‘ o
(o)
| |1 3

&
15
©
S
.\

2011

&
~

3,68
3,68

&+
—~



Table of Contents

Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Note to the Financial Statements

1.

Basis of Presentation and Corporate Reorganizain

Our financial statements have been prepared inrdanoe with accounting principles generally acagjotethe United States of America
and contain all normal recurring adjustments nergd®er a fair statement of the results for thequs presented. Estimates are required
for the preparation of consolidated financial stegats in accordance with generally accepted acoa@uptinciples and actual results
could differ from these estimates.

On January 24, 2013, Norwegian Cruise Line Holdintgls (“NCLH"), which was formed with the issuano&10,000 ordinary shares at
$.001 per share in February 2011, completed anoif”23,058,824 of its ordinary shares. In connectugth the consummation of the IP
NCLC's ordinary shares were exchanged for the amgishares of NCLH, and NCLH became the owner 624@f the ordinary shares
(representing a 97.3% economic interest) and pamnpany of NCLC (the “Corporate Reorganizatioihe Corporate Reorganization
was effected solely for the purpose of reorganizingcorporate structure. NCLH has not, prior t® ¢bmpletion of the Corporate
Reorganization, conducted any activities other thase incidental to its formation and to preparaifor the Corporate Reorganization
and the IPO. Following the IPO, NCLH Sponsors anblip shareholders and the relative ownership peacges of NCLH's ordinary
shares were as follows: Genting HK (43.4%), the ligpBunds (32.5%), the TPG Viking Funds (10.8%) andlic shareholders (13.3%).
NCLH is treated as a corporation for U.S. fedemabime tax purposes.

Economic interests in NCLC are represented by pestip interests, which are referred to as “NCLgoeoation Units”. Upon the
consummation of the IPO, the NCL Corporation Uhitd by NCLH, (as a result of its ownership of 1006f4he ordinary shares of
NCLC) represented a 97.3% economic interest in N@k@iscussed above. In connection with the Cotpdtaorganization, NCLC'’s
outstanding profits interests granted to managemverg exchanged for an economically equivalent remobNCL Corporation Units.
The NCL Corporation Units received upon the excleapfgoutstanding profits interests continue to ligexct to the same time-based
vesting requirements and performance-based vestmgrements applicable to the profits interestsafbich they were exchanged. Upon
the consummation of the IPO, the NCL Corporatioiitdissued in exchange for the profits interesgsasented a 2.7% economic interes
in NCLC.

The Corporate Reorganization resulted in all pattieing in the same economic position immediatabyr po the IPO. As the economic
position of the investors did not change as pathefCorporate Reorganization it is consideredresubstantive merger from an
accounting perspective. The operations of NCLH héltome the operations of the Company for the genwior to the date of the
Corporate Reorganization. The deferred assets asouthe balance sheets represent the costs @tttor the IPO. The due to NCLC
amounts represent payments made by NCLC on behiIEbH for the IPO costs and costs related to tirenfation of NCLH.

The exchange of NCL Corporation profits interesented to management for NCL Corporation Unitste®an interest in the equity of
NCLC that is not attributable to NCLH and will becaunted for as a noncontrolling interest.

There are no operations of NCLH or cash flows,dfeee, statements of operations and statementssof ftows have been intentionally
omitted. The Corporate Reorganization will be reiféel in NCLH's financial statements for the firigh¢ in the quarter ended March 31,
2013. In addition, the prior comparative periodf e recast to reflect the activity of NCLC duriagch periods.
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of N@ipGration Ltd.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bz#asheets and the related consolidated statenmfeop®i@tions, comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equityeptdairly, in all material respects, the finangalsition of NCL Corporation Ltd. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, anck$dts of their operations and their cash flowrsglach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accawngrinciples generally accepted in the Unitede&tatf America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting &sDecember 31, 2012, based on criteria
established imnternal Control- Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtee Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company’s management is responsiblidnése financial statements, for maintaining eféecinternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingelided in Management's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undeml©A. Our responsibility is to express opiniongloese financial statements and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our integrated audits. We conducteduitsain accordance with the standards o
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (BdiStates). Those standards require that we pthpeniorm the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatahsénts are free of material misstatement andhgheffective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all matergdpects. Our audits of the financial statememisiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the iahstatements, assessing the accounting prirscyled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordxa@r financial reporting included obtain
an understanding of internal control over finanogdorting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrcbibiased on the assessed risk. Our audits altadiext performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wayé¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basiedo opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdimpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioazations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida
February 20, 2013
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NCL Corporation Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenue
Passenger ticks
Onboard and othe
Total revenus
Cruise operating expenst
Commissions, transportation and ot
Onboard and othe
Payroll and relate
Fuel
Food
Other

Total cruise operating expen
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total other operating expen
Operating incom
Non-operating income (expense
Interest expense, n
Other income (expens
Total nor-operating income (expens

Net income
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average shares outstanding (1
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ 160456 $ 156336  $ 1,411,78
671,68 655,96 600,34
2,276,24 2,219,32. 2,012,12:
410,53 410,70 379,53
173,91 169,32 153,13°
293,05 290,82 265,39
283,67t 243,50 207,21
125,80° 124,93 114,06«
191,44: 228,58 227,84
1,478,43 1,467,87 1,347,17
251,18: 251,35 264,15:
189,53° 183,98! 170,19:
440,72( 435,33 434,34
357,09 316,11 230,60
(189,93() (190,18 (173,67)
1,39: 934 (33,95Y)
(188,53) (189,25 (207,62)
$ 16855t $ 12685 $ 22098
$ 095 % 071 % 0.1%
$ 09/ $ 071 % 0.1%
178,232,85 177,869,46 177,563,04
179,023,68 178,859,72 178,461,21

(1) We have retrospectively applied the exchange dharg shares due to the Corporate Reorganizatidheasffect is substantially the sa

as a stock splii

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NCL Corporation Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands)

Net income

Other comprehensive income (los
Shipboard Retirement Pl:

Cash flow hedge:
Net unrealized gain related to cash flow hec
Amount realized and reclassified into earni

Total other comprehensive income (lo
Total comprehensive incon

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$168,55( $126,85¢ $22,98¢
(1,330) (2,615) 34¢
19,90° 15,19¢ 4,72¢
(16,40) (36,680 (3,06
217 (24,10  2,0(
$170,73:  $102,75(  $24,99¢
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NCL Corporation Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill and tradename
Other lon¢-term asset

Total asset

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl

Accrued expenses and other liabilit

Due to Affiliate
Advance ticket sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Due to Affiliate
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Shareholder equity:

Ordinary shares, $.0012 par value; 40,000,000 starthorized; 21,000,000 shares issued and ouistg

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Retained earnings (defic
Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

December 31

2012 2011
$ 4550 $ 58,92
15,06: 8,15¢
39,68 36,23
64,68¢ 48,82
164,92 152,14:
4,960,14.  4,640,09:
611,33( 602,79:
202,02 167,38:
$5,938,42  $5,562,41
$ 22123 $ 200,58
79,12¢ 80,32
231,04( 208,10:
59,89’ 2,96:
353,79 325,47,
945,08 817,44¢
2,764,120  2,837,49
147,36« —
63,07 63,00
3,010,64  3,717,94
25 25
2,335,556,  2,331,97
(17,619 (19,799
(299,18)  (467,74)
2,018,78  1,84446
$5,938,42  $5,562,41

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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NCL Corporation Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortization expel
Loss (gain) on derivative
Write-off of deferred financing fee
Shar-based compensation expel
Premium on debt issuan
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Advance ticket sale
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipme
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of lor-term deb
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Other, primarily deferred financing fe
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures (Note 10)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$168,55( $126,85¢ $ 22,98
216,13 211,04 191,91
1,94¢ (2,339 602
2,35¢ — 6,41(
5,16( 1,211 2,52(
6,00( — —
(4,597) (280) (11)
(3,44 (3,479 (3,899)
(3,490) (4,262) 128,99:
(1,229) 15,92¢ 36,02
(3,107) (15,876) 6,13¢
14,30: 28,17. 38,74
398,59 356,99( 430,42:
(303,84)  (184,79) (977,460)
(303,84)  (184,79) (977,460)
(859,42) (439,959 (955,78
800,61 273,37" 1,601,65!
(49,376) (1,730) (93,94)
(108,18) (168,319 551,93
(13,429 3,87¢ 4,89¢
58,92¢ 55,04 50,15:
$ 4550 $ 5892 $ 5504

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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NCL Corporation Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersguity

(in thousands)

Accumulated
Other

Total

Ordinary Additional Comprehensive Retained Earnings Shareholders’
Paid-in
Shares Capital Income (Loss) (Deficit) Equity
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 25 $2,328,30: $ 2,29¢ $ (617,58¢) $1,713,04
Sharebased compensatic — 2,52( — — 2,52(
Transactions with Affiliates, net (Note — (30 — — (30)
Other comprehensive incor — — 2,01cC — 2,01
Net income — — — 22,98t 22,98t
Balance, December 31, 201 25 2,330,79; 4,30¢ (594,600 1,740,52
Sharebased compensatic — 1,211 — — 1,211
Transactions with Affiliates, net (Note — (30 — — (30
Other comprehensive lo — — (24,107 — (24,1079
Net income — — — 126,85! 126,85¢
Balance, December 31, 2011 25 2,331,97. (19,799 (467,74)) 1,844,46.
Shar+-based compensatic — 66C — — 66C
Transactions with Affiliates, net (Note — 2,93( — — 2,93(
Other comprehensive incor — — 2,17t — 2,17¢
Net income — — — 168,55¢ 168,55¢
Balance, December 31, 201 $ 25 $2,335,56. $ (17,619 $  (299,18) $2,018,78.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)Hernyear ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:
Change
Accumulated Change Related to
Other Related to Shipboard
Comprehensive Cash Flow Retirement
Income (Loss) Hedges Plan
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) gihiéng of year $ (19,799 $(11,377) $ (8,41))
Current period other comprehensive income (I 2,17t 3,50¢ (1,330
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) aiéyear $ (17,619 $ (7,879 $ (9,74)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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NCL Corporation Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Description of Business and Organization

Norwegian Cruise Line commenced operations out iafMlin 1966. On December 15, 2003, the Companyim@sporated in Bermuda
as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Genting Hong Konignited and its affiliates (“Genting HK”).

In January 2008, the Apollo Funds acquired 50%unfoutstanding ordinary share capital. As parhef investment, the Apollo Funds
assumed control of our Board of Directors. AlsoJamuary 2008, the TPG Viking Funds acquired, énatgregate, 12.5% of our
outstanding share capital from the Apollo FundsaAssult of the aforementioned transactions, bareholders and their relative
ownership percentages of our ordinary shares, Beoémber 31, 2012, were as follows: Genting HK{%®), the Apollo Funds
(37.5%) and the TPG Viking Funds (12.5%) (we refau to Note 12— “Subsequent Events” for more onarganization).

We are a leading global cruise line operator, offgcruise experiences for travelers with a widgets of itineraries. We strive to offer
an innovative and differentiated cruise vacatiothwhe goal of providing our guests the higheselewf overall satisfaction on their
cruise experience. In turn, we aim to generaténitjeest customer loyalty and greatest numberspefatguests. We created a distinctive
style of cruising called “Freestyle Cruising” o afl our ships, which we believe provides our gaegith the freedom and flexibility
associated with a resort style atmosphere and iexperas well as more dining options than a trawiiti cruise. As of December 31, 2C
we operated 11 ships offering cruises in Alaska,Bahamas, Bermuda, the Caribbean, Europe, Havixiico, New England, Central
and South America, North Africa and Scandinavia.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements have beepapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States
of America and contain all normal recurring adjusins necessary for a fair statement of the refurlthe periods presented. Estimates
are required for the preparation of consolidatadritial statements in accordance with generallg@ted accounting principles and ac
results could differ from these estimates. All #igant intercompany accounts and transactionsehngnated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at costneludé cash and investments with original matwgitiEthree months or less at
acquisition and also include amounts due from ¢ieatid processors.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash collateral inaetspf certain agreements and is included in ptepapenses and other assets and other
long-term assets in our consolidated balance sheets

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are shown net of an allowaocédubtful accounts of $1.4 million and $1.9 noiflias of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of provisions, suppbesl fuel and are carried at the lower of cost otketausing the first-in, first-out method
of accounting.
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(1)

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs incurred that result in tangiasets, including brochures, are treated as prepaighses and charged to expense as
consumed. Advertising costs of $8.3 million andd®%illion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, re$pelgt are included in prepaid
expenses and other assets. Expenses related tisidgecosts totaled $83.7 million, $79.9 milliand $87.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividingnumme by the weighted-average number of sharestanding during each period.
Diluted earnings per share incorporates the incnéahshares issuable upon conversion of potentililllitive shares. A reconciliation
between basic and diluted earnings per share wiadl@ss (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net income $  168,55¢ $ 126,85¢ $ 22,98¢
Basic weighte-average shares outstanding 178,232,85 177,869,46 177,563,04
Diluted weighte-average shares outstanding 179,023,68 178,859,72 178,461,21
Basic earnings per she $ 0.9t $ 0.71 $ 0.1z
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.94 $ 0.71 $ 0.12

We have retrospectively applied the exchange dhargl shares due to the Corporate Reorganizatidheasffect is substantially the sa
as a stock spli

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Majewals and improvements that we believe add valoer ships are capitalized as a
cost of the ship while costs of repairs and maiatee, including Dry-docking costs, are chargedkfzease as incurred. During ship
construction, certain interest is capitalized asst of the ship. Gains or losses on the saleagarty and equipment are recorded as a
component of operating income (expense) in our@aleted statements of operations.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basir the estimated useful lives of the assetsaftied a 15% reduction for the estimated
residual values of ships as follows:

Useful Life
Ships 30 years
Buildings 15-30 years
Computer hardware and softwz 3-5 years
Other property and equipme 3- 40 years
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of lease term or asset

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a stréiigitasis over the shorter of the lease termlataé asset life.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment, daseestimated future cash flows, whenever evanthanges in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nudyoa recoverable. Assets are grouped and evalaatbed lowest level for which there
are identifiable cash flows that are largely indefent of the cash flows of other groups of as8#&sconsider historical performance and
future estimated results in our evaluation of ptééimmpairment and then compare the carrying amotithe asset to the estimated fut
cash flows expected to result from the use of §sefa If the carrying amount of the asset excestilmated expected undiscounted future
cash flows, we measure the amount of the impairfagibmparing the carrying amount of the assefstéair value. We estimate fair
value based on the best information available ngakihatever estimates, judgments and projectionsa@rsidered necessary. The
estimation of fair value is generally measured isgalnting expected future cash flows at discoatds commensurate with the risk
involved.
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Goodwill and Tradenames

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over thevédue of net assets acquired. We review gooawitl our tradenames for impairment
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstindicate that the carrying amount of goodavilli our tradenames may not be
fully recoverable.

We have concluded that our business has a singtetadle segment, with each ship considered todmrgonent. Each component
constitutes a business for which discrete finarinf@rmation is available and management regulanyews the operating results and,
therefore, each component is considered a repantiitgOur reporting units have similar economiau@tteristics, including similar
margins and similar products and services, theeefoe aggregate all of the reporting units in asagsgoodwill.

The impairment review of goodwill is based on tkpexted future cash flows of our ships to deternairfi@ir value of our aggregate
reporting unit. Our discounted cash flow valuatiefiects our projection for growth and profitahjlitaking into account our assessment
of future market conditions and demand, as we#l dstermination of a cost of capital that incorpesaoth business and financial risks.
We believe that the discounted cash flow approathe most representative method to assess faie vas it utilizes expectations of long-
term growth whereas a market-based approach isljessnic, especially in light of recent negativerkes conditions, the uncertainty in
credit and capital markets and the resulting weatestonomic environment.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Deposits received from guests for future voyageseacorded as advance ticket sales and are sulmslygeeognized as passenger ticket
revenue along with onboard and other revenue, bhiadsociated direct costs of a voyage are recegiés cruise operating expenses,
pro rata basis over the period of the voyage.

Revenue and expenses include taxes assessed bgramgental authority that are directly imposed aewgenue-producing transaction
between a seller and a customer. The amounts iedlad a gross basis are $133.6 million, $129.4anithnd $110.0 million for the ye:
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsactivel

Foreign Currency

The majority of our transactions are settled in.d@&lars. We translate assets and liabilitieswofforeign subsidiaries at exchange rates
in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or $agseilting from transactions denominated in otluerencies are recognized in our
consolidated statements of operations within oith@@me (expense) and such gains or losses weretenalaas of December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

From time to time we enter into derivative contsagtrimarily forward, swap, option and three-wailaracontracts, to reduce our
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exa®nnterest rates and fuel prices. The criteraue determine whether a transaction
qualifies for hedge accounting treatment includhesdorrelation between fluctuations in the fairueadf the hedged item and the fair vi
of the related derivative instrument and its effesiess as a hedge. As the derivative is markéairtgalue, we elected an accounting
policy to net the fair value of our derivatives wihee master netting arrangement exists with our eoparties.

A derivative instrument that hedges a forecastastiction or the variability of cash flows related recognized asset or liability may be
designated as a cash flow hedge. Changes in faie wé derivative instruments that are designatedash flow hedges are recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoes) until the underlying hedged transactioresracognized in earnings. To the
extent that an instrument is not effective as ajeedains and losses are recognized in other in¢expense) in our consolidated
statements of operations. Realized gains and losk®ed to our fuel hedges are recognized indupkense. For presentation in our
statement of cash flows, we have elected to clatisif cash flows from our cash flow hedges in e category as the cash flows from
the items being hedged.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

We monitor concentrations of credit risk associatéll financial and other institutions with whicheveonduct significant business. Cr¢
risk, including but not limited to counterparty nparformance under derivative instruments, our Isgrg credit facility and new ship
progress payment guarantees, is not considerefficigm, as we primarily conduct business with &rgell-established financial
institutions and insurance companies that we haleeagtablished relationships with and that hawalitrisks acceptable to us or the
credit risk is spread out among a large numberaditors. We do not anticipate non-performancey @ our significant counterparties.

Insurance

We use a combination of insurance and self-ins@wdmca number of risks including claims relateditew and guests, hull and
machinery, war risk, workers’ compensation, propdemage and general liability. Liabilities asstaibwith certain of these risks,
including crew and passenger claims, are estimattdarially based upon known facts, historicaldseeand a reasonable estimate of
future expenses. While we believe these accrualadequate, the ultimate losses incurred may diifen those recorded.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculateztcordance with the liability method. Deferraslds are recorded using the currently
enacted tax rates that apply in the periods theatlifierences are expected to reverse. Deferragbstase not discounted.

We provide a valuation allowance on deferred taetsswhen it is more likely than not that such &ssél not be realized. With respect
to acquired deferred tax assets, future revergalseoraluation allowance will first be applied agst goodwill and other intangible assets
before recognition of a benefit in our consolidastéatements of operations.

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize expense for our share-based compensatiards using a fair-value-based method. Shaedoeompensation expense is
recognized over the requisite service period foarals that are based on service period and notngmrit upon any future performance.
We refer you to Note 7— “Employee Benefits and 8Haption Plans.”

Segment Reporting

We have concluded that our business has a singtetadle segment, with each ship considered todmrgponent. Each component
constitutes a business for which discrete finariof@rmation is available and management regulayews the operating results and,
therefore, each component is considered a repautitgOur reporting units have similar economiaccteristics, including similar
margins and similar products and services, theeefoe aggregate all of the reporting units.

Although we sell cruises on an international basis,passenger ticket revenue is primarily attedub guests who make reservations in
North America. Revenue attributable to North Amaniguests was 82% for the year ended Decembe032,ghd 83% for each of the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Subshaatiadf our longived assets are located outside of the U.S. andisoprimarily of
our ships.
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3.  Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the followingl{ousands):

December 31

2012 2011

Ships $5,601,37! $ 5,314,65.
Ships under constructic 376,00 184,49
Land 1,00¢ 1,00¢
Other 233,23! 202,92

6,211,62! 5,703,08!
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (1,251,48) (1,062,99)
Total $ 4,960,14. $ 4,640,09:

Depreciation and amortization expense for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $&88idn, $184.0 million and
$170.2 million, respectively. Repairs and maintegaexpenses including Dry-docking expenses werer$adlion, $64.7 million and
$60.9 million for the years ended December 31, 22021 and 2010, respectively.

Ships under construction include progress paynterttse shipyard, planning and design fees, loagrést and commitment fees and o
associated costs. Interest costs associated vatbatstruction of ships that were capitalized dythre construction period amounted to
$22.1 million, $16.7 million and $8.8 million fon¢ years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2GH&atévely.

4. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following (we refeu to Note 12— “Subsequent Events”):

Interest Rate Maturities Balance
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 Through 2012 2011
(in thousands)
€662.9 million Norwegian Epic Term Loan (1) 2.19% 2.46% 2022 $662,72¢ $723,99(
€624.0 million Norwegian Pearl and Norwegian Gem
Revolving Credit Facility (1 3.40% 3.35% 201¢ 549,02: 623,67¢
$450.0 million 11.75% Senior Secured Notes 11.75% 11.75% 201¢ 446,57: 445,91
€308.1 million Pride of Haw'’i Loan (1) 2.18% 2.20% 201¢ 232,58: 284,44¢
$350.0 million 9.50% Senior Unsecured Note: 9.50% 9.50% 201¢ 355,41¢ 250,00(
$334.1 million Norwegian Jewel Term Lo 3.06%- 6.86% 3.18%- 6.86% 2017 150,35¢ 188,21t
€258.0 million Pride of America Hermes Loan 3.06%-6.47% 3.28%- 6.47% 2017 133,46¢ 172,46:
$750.0 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit figc 4.25% 4.31% 201t 91,00( 128,00(
€529.8 million Breakaway One Loan ( 1.91% 2.18% 202t 150,99¢ 118,65:
€529.8 million Breakaway Two Loan ( 4.50% 4.50% 202¢ 112,80¢ 49,76¢
€590.5 million Breakaway Three Loan ( 2.98% — 2021 34,04 —
€40.0 million Pride of America Commercial Loan 3.06%- 7.35% 3.28%- 7.35% 2013 20,28¢ 26,21
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(1)
(3)

Interest Rate Maturities Balance
December 31 December 31
2012 2011 Through 2012 2011
(in thousands)
€126 million Norwegian Jewel Term Loan 1.92% 2.11% 201¢ 22,13 10,21:
€126 million Norwegian Jade Term Lo 1.92% 2.11% 2017 22,13¢ 10,21:
Capital lease obligatior 3.00%- 5.00% 3.75%- 5.00% 201¢ 1,79¢ 6,31:
Total debt 2,985,35: 3,038,08.
Less: current portion of lor-term deb (221,23)) (200,585
Total lon¢-term debi $2,764,12 $2,837,49

Currently U.S. dolle-denominated
Net of unamortized original issue discount of $3ilion and $4.1 million as of December 31, 2012 2011, respectively
Net of unamortized premium of $5.4 million as ofd@mber 31, 201:

Costs incurred in connection with the arrangingpah financing have been deferred and are amortizedthe life of the loan agreeme
The amortization included in interest expense weet $28.2 million (including a $2.4 million writdf@f deferred financing fees), $26.1
million and $26.8 million (including a $6.4 millionrite-off of deferred financing fees) for the ye@nded December 31, 2012, 2011 anc
2010, respectively.

Our debt agreements contain covenants that, antbeg things, require us to maintain a minimum lesfdiquidity, as well as limit our
net funded debt-to-capital ratio, maintain certatimer ratios and restrict our ability to pay divids. Our ships and substantially all other
property and equipment are pledged as collateraidodebt. We believe we were in compliance whiksse covenants as of December 31
2012. There are no restrictions in the agreeméatdimit intercompany borrowings or dividends beém our subsidiaries that would
impact our ability to meet our cash obligations.

The following are scheduled principal repaymentsomg-term debt including capital lease obligatiassof December 31, 2012 for each
of the next five years (in thousands):

Year Amount

2013 $ 221,23¢
2014 239,98t
2015 340,72«
2016 727,87
2017 277,79(
Thereaftel 1,177,741
Total $2,985,35:

We had an accrued interest liability of $20.9 raitliand $22.3 million as of December 31, 2012 aridl 26espectively.
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5.

(1)
(2)

(3)

Related Party Disclosures
Transactions with Genting HK, the Apollo Funds andthe TPG Viking Funds
As of December 31, 2012, our shareholders and sheire ownership were as follows (we refer you deN.2— “Subsequent Events”):

Percentagt
Number of
Shareholder Shares Ownership
Genting HK (1) 10,500,00 50.(%
Apollo Funds (2 7,875,001 37.5%
TPG Viking Funds (3 2,625,001 12.5%

Genting HK owns their ordinary shares indirectlgotingh Star NCLC Holdings Ltd., a Bermuda wh-owned subsidiary

The Apollo Funds own their ordinary shares indisettirough NCL Investment Ltd., a Bermuda compaty 95,968 ordinary shares) ¢
NCL Investment Il Ltd., a Cayman Islands compan®19,032 ordinary share:

The TPG Viking Funds own their ordinary shatesugh TPG Viking I, L.P., a Cayman Islands exesdgdimited partnership (1,957,525
ordinary shares), TPG Viking IlI, L.P., a Caymarafgls exempted limited partnership (576,118 ordisagres) and TPG Viking AlIV-III,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (91,357 ordjrehares)

In May 2011, we entered into an agreement with Staise Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsid@ Genting HK, whereby
Star Cruise Management Limited will provide salaarketing and promotional services in the Asia fRagion. We will pay a monthly
commission fee based on net cruise revenue gedearatier the agreement. We have made no paymengs tivedcontract; approximate
$1.3 million has been accrued as of December 312.20

In January 2011, we entered into an agreement@vigbtal Aim Limited, a whollygwned subsidiary of Genting HK, for the operatidra
call center. Compensation under the agreemenbwibased on an hourly rate for the services prdvidée have paid approximately $0.5
million under the contract from January 2011 ubglcember 31, 2012.

In July 2010, we agreed to extend the Charter gf\dgian Sky from Genting HK to December 31, 201f2isTagreement includes two
one-year extension options which require the mutaakent of each party. The new agreement alsadadws with an option to
purchase the ship during the Charter period. Ire 2012, we exercised our option with Genting Htochase Norwegian Sky pursuant
to the Norwegian Sky Agreement. The purchase pviee $259.3 million, which consisted of a $50.0 imillcash payment and a $209.3
million payable to Genting HK, which is to be regp@ver seven equal semi-annual payments beginnimg 2013 and has a weighted-
average interest rate of 1.52% through maturitye Tir value of the payable was $205.5 million loase discounting the future payme
at an imputed interest rate of 2.26% per annum¢hvhias commensurate with the Company’s borrowitg fiaxr similar assets. In the
event that an IPO is effectuated on or before MBy2B13 by Norwegian Cruise line Holdings Ltd.,rt$¥9.7 million shall become
payable to Genting HK within fourteen days of tR®©l effective date, and the remaining balance Ietoepaid over seven equal semi-
annual payments beginning June 2013. The payabldléteralized by a mortgage and an interestlirahings, proceeds of insurance
and certain other interests related to the ship.

In July 2009, we entered into an agreement withréhés Operating Company, Inc. (now known as Cadsatsrtainment Operating
Corporation) establishing a marketing alliance \Wwhiworporates marketing resources and cross cogmparketing, purchasing and
loyalty programs as well as customer and busingstligence capabilities. Caesars Entertainment&ijogy Corporation is owned by
Affiliates of both Apollo and TPG.
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In November 2006, we entered into an agreement3athre Inc., an affiliate of TPG, for the use aferwation software. We pay a
commission fee based on the number of annual bgskimade through the system. We have paid approgiyn®8.7 million under the
contract through December 31, 2012.

6. Fair Value Measurements and Derivative:

Fair value is defined as the price at which an dydeansaction to sell an asset or to transféafaillty would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under cumrarket conditions (that is, an exit price at theasueement date from the perspective o
a market participant that holds the asset or ohedidbility).

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following hierarchy for inputs used in measgrair value should maximize the use of observaipets and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most oladde inputs be used when available:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities that are accessible at the measarg dates

Level 2 Significant other observable inputs that are usetharket participants in pricing the asset or lifbbased on market de
obtained from independent sourc

Level 3 Significant unobservable inputs we believarket participants would use in pricing the assdiability based on the best
information available

Our derivatives and financial instruments were gattized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, aredhad no derivatives or financial
instruments categorized as Level 1 or Level 3.

Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk attributable to charig interest rates, foreign currency exchangssramd fuel prices. We attempt to
minimize these risks through a combination of cormmal operating and financing activities and thitotige use of derivatives. We assess
whether derivatives used in hedging transactioaskighly effective” in offsetting changes in thash flow of our hedged forecasted
transactions. We use regression analysis for #dgé relationship and high effectiveness is acllievteen a statistically valid relations|
reflects a high degree of offset and correlatioiwien the fair values of the derivative and thegeeforecasted transaction. Cash flows
from the derivatives are classified in the samegatty as the cash flows from the underlying hedgausaction. The determination of
ineffectiveness is based on the amount of dollsetbetween the cumulative change in fair valuthefderivative and the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged transactioh@end of the reporting period. If it is determinledt a derivative is not highly effective
as a hedge, or if the hedged forecasted transastitmlonger probable of occurring, then the ant@ecognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) is released to earningaldition, the ineffective portion of our highéffective hedges is recognized in
earnings immediately and reported in other incoexpénse) in our consolidated statements of opasatithere are no amounts excludec
from the assessment of hedge effectiveness anel éinemo credit-risk-related contingent featuresuinderivative agreements.

We monitor concentrations of credit risk associatitl financial and other institutions with whicheveonduct significant business. Cr¢
risk, including but not limited to counterparty nparformance under derivatives and our revolviregitrfacility, is not considered
significant, as we primarily conduct business vattge, well-established financial institutions that have established relationships with
and that have credit risks acceptable to us ocribdit risk is spread out among a large numbereditors. We do not anticipate non-
performance by any of our significant counterpattie
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The following table sets forth our derivatives meas at fair value and discloses the balance $beation (in thousands):

December 31

2012 2011

Fuel swaps designated as hedging instrum

Prepaid expenses and other as $ 5,07¢ $ 5,48¢

Other lon¢-term asset 3,581 —

Accrued expenses and other liabilit (16) —

Other lon¢-term liabilities 34¢ (440
Fuel collars designated as hedging instrume

Prepaid expenses and other as 1,08t 4,37

Other lon¢-term asset — 74C

Accrued expenses and other liabilit (18) —

Other lon¢-term liabilities 67¢ —
Fuel options not designated as hedging instrum

Prepaid expenses and other as (309) —

Accrued expenses and other liabilit — (1,27¢)

Other lon¢-term liabilities (1,23)) (1,670
Foreign currency options designated as hedginguimsnts:

Accrued expenses and other liabilit (20,267 —

Other lon¢-term liabilities (16,447 (15,929
Foreign currency forward contracts designated dgihg instruments

Prepaid expenses and other as 11,68t —
Foreign currency collar designated as a hedgirtguiment:

Other lon¢-term asset 8,152 —

The fair values of swap and forward contracts aterhined based on inputs that are readily availetbpublic markets or can be derived
from information available in publicly quoted matkeThe Company determines the value of optionscaftidrs utilizing an option

pricing model based on inputs that are either hpadiilable in public markets or can be derivazhfrinformation available in publicly
guoted markets. The option pricing model used kyGbmpany is an industry standard model for valoipiions and is used by the
broker/dealer community. The inputs to this opteiting model are the option strike price, undertyprice, risk free rate of interest,
time to expiration, and volatility. The fair valo& option contracts considers both the intrinsilugaand any remaining time value
associated with those derivatives that have nosgled. The Company also considers counterpaegitaisk and its own credit risk in

its determination of all estimated fair values. @arivatives and financial instruments were categdras Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy, and we had no derivatives or financiatriuments categorized as Level 1 or Level 3.

Fuel Swaps

As of December 31, 2012, we had fuel swaps matuhrmugh December 31, 2015 which are used to niétitiee financial impact of
volatility in fuel prices pertaining to approximté34,000 metric tons of our projected fuel pusd® The effects of the fuel swaps on

the consolidated financial statements, which wesgghated as cash flow hedges were as followsignsands):
Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
Gain recognized in other comprehensive income Ylegsfective portion $ 18,90¢ $ 29,92¢ $ 5,851
Gain (loss) recognized in other income (exper ineffective portior (509) 457 14C
Amount reclassified from accumulated other compnehe& income (loss) into fuel
expense (14,449 (36,686 (3,06%)

$ 3,94¢ $ (6,300 $ 2,92¢
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Fuel Collars and Options

As of December 31, 2012, we had fuel collars ard dptions maturing through December 31, 2014 whichused to mitigate the
financial impact of volatility in fuel prices pentang to approximately 91,000 metric tons of ounjpcted fuel purchases. The effects of
the fuel collars on the consolidated financialestatnts, which were designated as cash flow hedgesas follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive irefioss) — effective portion $ 592 $(147)
Gain (loss) recognized in other income (exper ineffective portior 16E (302 —
Amount reclassified from accumulated other compnehe income (loss) into fuel exper (1,959 — —

$(1,197)  $(449) $—

The effects of the fuel options on the consoliddileancial statements, which were not designatdukeaging instruments were as follows
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Gain recognized in other income (expense) $3,21¢ $2,42: $—

Foreign Currency Options

As of December 31, 2012, we had foreign currenciwdtves consisting of call options with deferqg@miums which are used to
mitigate the financial impact of volatility in faign currency exchange rates related to our shigtcaction contracts denominated in
euros. If the spot rate at the date the ships ereated is less than the strike price under tlhgdg®n contracts we would pay the deferred
premium and not exercise the foreign currency ostidhe notional amount of our foreign currencyiap was 895.0 million, or $521.
million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange aatef December 31, 2012. The effects of the foreigrency options on the
consolidated financial statements, which were dedid as cash flow hedges were as follows (in tuds):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Loss recognized in other comprehensive income)(leesffective portion $(19,42¢)  $(14,58Y)  $(1,12%
Gain (loss) recognized in other income (exper ineffective portior (864) (239 2C

$(20,297)  $(14,82)  $(1,109

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

As of December 31, 2012, we had foreign currenew#od contracts which are used to mitigate therfoa impact of volatility in

foreign currency exchange rates related to our ahistruction contracts denominated in euros. Ti®mal amount of our foreign
currency forward contracts was €197.0 million, 86$.9 million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exclearage as of December 31, 2012.
The effects of the foreign currency forward contsamn the consolidated financial statements, whiehe designated as cash flow hedges
were as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Gain recognized in other comprehensive income Ylesgfective portion $11,68: $— $ —
Loss recognized in other income (exper— ineffective portior — — (33,069
$11,688 $— $(33,067)

Foreign Currency Collar

As of December 31, 2012, we had a foreign currexathar used to mitigate the volatility of foreignreency exchange rates related to oul
ship construction contracts denominated in eurbs. Aotional amount of our foreign currency collasw100.0 million, or $131.9
million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange aatef December 31, 2012.

The effects of the foreign currency collar on tbesolidated financial statements, which was deséghas a cash flow hedge was as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Gain recognized in other comprehensive income Ylesgfective portion $8,15:2 $— $—

Interest Rate Swap
We had an interest rate swap which matured in @ct@B10 and we recognized a loss of $623,000 ieratitome (expense).

Other
The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrite sheets of all other financial assets ahilitias approximate fair value.

Long-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair valueuwflong-term debt, including the current portiags $3,106.9 million and $3,113.9
million, respectively, which was $121.5 million afid5.8 million higher, respectively, than the cargyvalues. The difference between
the fair value and carrying value of our long-tetabt is due to our fixed and variable rate debigalibns carrying interest rates that are
above or below market rates at the measuremerg.délie fair value of our long-term debt was caltdebased on estimated rates for the
same or similar instruments with similar terms amthaining maturities resulting in Level 2 inputglie fair value hierarchy. Market risk
associated with our long-term variable rate dekitéspotential increase in interest expense fronmenease in interest rates. The
calculation of the fair value of our long-term débtonsidered a Level 2 input.

Non-recurring Measurements of Non-financial Assets

Goodwill and other long-lived assets, principatigdenames, are reviewed for impairment on an arbasis or earlier if there is an event
or change in circumstances that would indicatettitarrying value of these assets could not erecovered.

If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds thmattd expected undiscounted future cash flowsywasure the amount of the
impairment by comparing the carrying amount ofdbeet to its fair value. We estimate fair valuesbdasn the best information available
making whatever estimates, judgments and projestionsidered necessary. The estimation of fairevaleasured by discounting
expected future cash flows at discount rates corsarate with the risk involved are considered L&&iputs. We do not believe that we
have any impairment to our goodwill or tradenangefeDecember 31, 2012. We believe our estimatdgualgments with respect to our
goodwill and tradenames are reasonable. Nonethdi¢ssre was a material change in assumptiond irsthe determination of such fair
values or if there is a material change in the @@t or circumstances that influence such assetgould be required to record an
impairment charge.

In February 2012, we acquired Sixthman, a compgaeygializing in developing and delivering music oted Charters. The purchase
price was $7.5 million, consisting of $4.0 milliancash and $3.5 million in contingent considenatids of September 30, 2012, we
completed our allocation of the purchase pricechviias resulted in recording $8.5 million of godtlemd tradenames related to the
acquisition.
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7.

Employee Benefits and Share Option Plan
Profits Sharing Agreement

In 2009, we adopted a profits sharing agreementiwauthorizes us to grant profits interests inGoenpany to certain key employees.
These interests generally vest with the holdersdhas a combination of performance-based and tiased vesting metrics, each as
specified in the Profits Sharing Agreement and daxttier's award agreement. Genting HK, the Apollméis and the TPG Viking Funds
are entitled to initially receive any distributiomsde by the Company, pro rata based on their isblgiags in the Company. Once
Genting HK, the Apollo Funds and the TPG Viking Bameceive distributions in excess of certain reiathounts specified in the Profits
Sharing Agreement and each holder’'s award agreemacth vested profits interest award generallytlestthe holder of such award to a
portion of such excess distribution amount.

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization LG outstanding profits interests granted underRhofits Sharing Agreement to
management (or former management) of NCLC, inclyidire Ordinary Profits Units, are exchanged foeamnomically equivalent
number of NCL Corporation Units. We refer to thelNCorporation Units exchanged for profits interggtanted under the Profits
Sharing Agreement as “Management NCL CorporatioitsdlriThe Management NCL Corporation Units receivg@dn the exchange of
outstanding profits interests are subject to tteesime-based vesting requirements and performbased vesting requirements
applicable to the profits interests for which thvegre exchanged. The Management NCL CorporationsUssued in exchange for the
profits interests represent a 2.7% economic intémedCLC, based on the IPO price of $19.00 peiran share.

The Management NCL Corporation Units, generallysisting of fifty percent of “Time-Based Units” (“T&s") and fifty percent of
“Performance-Based Units” (“PBUs”).The TBUs genlrakst over five years and upon a distributionrgyéhe vesting amount of the
PBUs is based on the amount of proceeds that alieed above certain hurdles.

The termination of employment results in forfeitafeany non-vested TBUs and all PBUs. TBUs thatvasted can be either continued
by the Company or cancelled and paid to the emplo@ancellation can take place anytime after temtion but not before two years
after the grant date.

The fair value of the profits interests was comguising a binomial (lattice) model using the follogzassumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatilil 50.0(% 50.0(% 50.0(%
Risk-free interest rat 1.3€% 1.41% 1.41%
Expected unit life 3 year 3 year 3 year

Expected stock price volatility was based on anwoHdtilities of comparable companies in our indy&tased on three years of historical
data. Risk-free interest rates were adjusted tateeage risk-free rates applicable at the gratet ddne expected unit life was calculated
with the expectation of a distribution event ocgrwithin a three-year period. We estimated faufieds based on our historical
termination rates for the last three years.

The aggregate fair value for the profits interest®f December 31, 2012 was comprised of $13.8omifbr PBUs and $8.6 million for
TBUSs. Total share-based compensation expense rieaolfor the years ended December 31, 2012, 20d 2@h0 was $0.7 million, $1.2
million and $2.5 million, respectively, and wasoeted in marketing, general and administrative azpeAs of December 31, 2012, tr
was $0.6 million of total unrecognized compensaggpense related to TBU non-vested shares. As oéidber 31, 2012, there was no
aggregate intrinsic value of options outstandind exercisable. Pertinent information covering thefits interests pursuant to the Profits
Sharing Agreement was as follows:
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1)

TBUs PBUs
Weighted- Weighted-
Number of
Management Average Average
NCL Corporation Units (1) Price Price
TBUs PBUs
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011 2,087,28: 3,328,54. $ 3.5 $ 3.4z
Grantec 186,05: 186,05: $ 344 $ 5.9¢
Forfeited (7,787) (18,85¢) $ 3.1¢ $ 3.72
Outstanding as of December 31, 2( 2,265,55. 3,495,73 $ 3.5 $ 3.5¢
Vested as of December 31, 2C 1,425,25! 966,06 $ 3.8¢ $ 341
Non-vested as of December 31, 2( 840,29t 2,529,67. $ 2.9¢ $ 3.61

Share amounts reflect the exchange of prafterést for Management NCL Corporate Units in catina with the Corporate
Reorganization

Employee Benefit Plans

Certain of our employees are employed pursuangteements that provide for severance paymentsr&seis generally only payable
upon an involuntary termination of the employeetgoyment by us without cause or a terminationHeyémployee for good reason.
Severance generally includes a cash payment bastt @mployee’s base salary (and in some casessh@nd our payment of the
employee’s continued medical benefits for the ayatlie severance period. During 2008, we enteredairseverance agreement with our
former chief executive officer. As of December 3012, the remaining liability was $15.0 million, wh includes a fully vested co-
investment profits interest award granted undeiPttedits Sharing Agreement described above.

We maintain annual incentive bonus plans for o@cetive officers and other key employees. Bonuséguthese plans become earned
and payable based on both the Company’s and ediidual’s performance during the applicable perfance period and the
individual's continued employment. Company perfoneecriteria include the attainment of certain flicial targets and other strategic
objectives.

We maintain a 401(k) Plan for our shoreside empsy@cluding our executive officers. Participamigy contribute up to 100% of
eligible compensation each pay period, subjecettai limitations. We make matching contributi@ugial to 100% of the first 3% and
50% of the next 4%—10% of each participant’s cdmitiions. In addition, we may make discretionaryptemental contributions to the
Plan, which shall be allocated to each eligibldipigant on a pro-rata basis based on the compensaitthe participant to the total
compensation of all participants. Our matching dbations are vested according to a figear schedule. The 401(k) Plan is subject tc
provisions of ERISA and is intended to be qualifiedier section 401(a) of the U.S. Internal Revebaoeée (the “Code”).

Our contributions are reduced by contributionsditefd by those employees who leave the 401(k) pian to vesting fully in the
contributions. Forfeited contributions of $0.1 raiti were utilized in the year ended December 3122ihd $0.2 million were utilized in
each of the years ended December 31, 2011, and 2010

We maintain a Supplemental Executive Retirement PBERP”), which is a legacy unfunded defined citmttion plan for certain of our
executives who were employed by the Company inxagudive capacity prior to 2008. The SERP was fndpefuture participation
following that date. Messrs. Sheehan and Stuarth@enly Named Executive Officers who are eligifalgarticipate in the SERP. The
SERP provides for Company contributions on behflfie participants to compensate them for the hengsfat are limited under the 401
(k) Plan. We credit participants under the SERPafapunts that would have been contributed by tlsecCompany’s previous Defined
Contribution Retirement Plan and the former 40Klan without regard to any limitations imposed by €Code. Participants do not make
any elective contributions under this plan. As ecBmber 31, 2012 and 2011, the aggregate balampatafipants’ deferred
compensation accounts under the SERP Plan wasriligh and $0.7 million, respectively.

We recorded expenses related to the above 401¢k)d@ld SERP of $2.8 million, $2.6 million and $&hiflion for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

F-22



Table of Contents

We maintain a Senior Management Retirement Sawhgs (“SMRSP”), which is a legacy unfunded defiedtribution plan for certain
of our employees, who were employed by the Compainy to 2001. The SMRSP provides for Company dbations on behalf of the
participants to compensate them for the differdretveen the qualified plan benefits that were pnasly available under the Company’s
cash balance pension plan and the redesigned 4BIEtk) We credit participants under the SMRSP Riathe difference in the amount
that would have been contributed by us to the Cayiggrevious Norwegian Cruise Line Pension Plaah e qualified plan maximums
of the new 401(k) Plan.

Effective January 2009, we implemented the Shipb&atirement Plan which computes benefits basegkars of service, subject to
eligibility requirements of the Shipboard RetirernBtan. The Shipboard Retirement Plan is unfundigl mo plan assets. The current
portion of the projected benefit obligation of $@illion and $1.0 million was included in accruegenses and other liabilities as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and $t8libn and $12.3 million was included in othentpterm liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,&012011, respectively. The amounts related t&thipboard Retirement Plan were
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Pension expense
Service cos $ 1,365 $ 1,07: $ 98C
Interest cos 604 531 481
Amortization of prior service co: 37¢ 37¢ 37¢
Amortization of actuarial loss (gai 13 — (29
Total pension expen: $ 2,362 $ 1,987 $ 1,81(
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $13,32¢ $ 9,47¢ $ 8,017
Service cos 1,367 1,07z 98(
Interest cos 604 531 481
Actuarial loss 1,721 2,99¢ —
Direct benefit payment (800 (745 —
Projected benefit obligation at end of y $16,22: $13,32¢ $9,47¢
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance shse
Projected benefit obligatic $16,22: $13,32¢ $9,47¢
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreheng income (loss)
Prior service cos $(6,427) $(6,805) $(7,187)
Accumulated actuarial gain (los (3,320 (1,617) 1,381
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It $(9,749) $(8,417) $(5,807)

The discount rates used in the net periodic benefit calculation for the years ended Decembe2@12, 2011 and 2010 were 4.7%,
5.5% and 6.0%, respectively, and the actuarialiasnortized over 18.86 years. The discount sateséd to measure and recognize
obligations, including adjustments to other compretive income (loss), and to determine expensagltine periods. It is determined by
using bond indices which reflect yields on a brosturity and industry universe of high-quality corgte bonds.

The pension benefits expected to be paid in eatieafiext five years and in aggregate for the yars thereafter are as follows (in

thousands):

Year Amount
2013 $ 71¢
2014 767
2015 794
2016 807
2017 873
Next five years 5,607

8. Income Taxes

We are incorporated in Bermuda, and our subsidiamgsas Limited, is incorporated in the Isle ofiM&enerally, we are not subject to
income tax in respect of activities undertaken idetshese countries.
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Under current Bermuda law, we are not subjectstamtaincome or capital gains. We have received floenMinister of Finance under
The Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1@86mended, an assurance that, in the event thauBa enacts legislation
imposing tax computed on profits, income, any @pisset, gain or appreciation, or any tax in #ieine of estate duty or inheritance,
then the imposition of any such tax shall not bgliapble to us or to any of our operations or skadebentures or other obligations, until
March 31, 2035.

We previously had operations in Norway through Ndxildings ASA (“NCLHA") and its subsidiaries. Defed tax assets and liabilities
that relate to these prior operations are compiageke following (in thousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Loss carryforward $ 30,94t $32,73¢
Shares in NCL Cruises Lt 81,71t 64,61¢
Pension obligatiol 422 41¢
Other 113 14C
113,19! 97,91
Valuation allowanct (113,199 (97,91)
Total net deferred taxe $ — $ —

Taxable losses in Norway can be carried forwaréfinitely. Total losses available for carry forwasdated to NCLHA as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are $110.5 million di®b$ million, respectively.

In January 2008, NCLC became a partnership for féral income tax purposes and therefore incoild.8. Federal or State income
tax liability. Each partner is required to takeoimiccount its allocable share of items of inconaén,doss and deduction of the partnershig
in computing its U.S. federal income tax liabilitggardless of whether or not cash distributioesnaade.

Through 2009, income derived from our U.S.-flaggedration, net of applicable deductions, generatiyld have been subject to U.S.
federal income taxation (generally at a rate of Ba¥d state and local taxes. U.S.-sourced dividandsinterest paid by our U.S.-flagged
operation generally would have been subject to% @@hholding tax, unless exempt under one of wagiexceptions.

In December 2009, NCL America Holdings, Inc., te dwner of the assets of our U.S.-flagged operati@s converted to a limited
liability company under Delaware law which resuliré complete liquidation for U.S. income tax pegps. Thus, subsequent to
December 2009, taxes on the income from our Udggiéd operation are imposed on our shareholderaramday distribute funds to our
shareholders to pay such taxes, or in some casessjgnt to section 1446 of the Code, withhold dagks at the partnership level.

F-24



Table of Contents

9.

Commitments and Contingencie:
Operating Leases

Total expense under non-cancelable operating ls@senitments, primarily for offices, motor vehiclasd office equipment was $9.5
million, $9.1 million and $12.4 million for the yesaended December 31, 2012, 2011and 2010, resekyctiv

As of December 31, 2012, minimum annual rentalsifor-cancelable leases with initial or remainimgnzin excess of one year were as
follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2013 $ 6,571
2014 6,24:
2015 5,351
2016 4,80(
2017 4,82¢
Thereaftel 10,37:
Total $38,17(

Rental payments applicable to such operating lemsegecognized on a straight-line basis overgha bf the lease.

Ship Construction Contracts

In September 2010, we reached an agreement withpgasd to build two new next generation Frees@taising ships Norwegian
Breakaway and Norwegian Getaway with financing cétmments in place from a syndicate of banks for ekpredit financing. These
ships, each at approximately 144,000 Gross TongldiD Berths, are scheduled for delivery in treoad quarter of 2013 and first
quarter of 2014, respectively. The aggregate conpmace of the two ships is approximately €1.3iduil, or $1.7 billion based on the
euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of December @12 .2

In October 2012, we reached an agreement with Mé4eft GmbH of Papenburg, Germany to build a newiser ship for delivery in the
fourth quarter of 2015 with an option to build @@ed ship with an expected delivery date in sp2@d7. Currently referred to as
“Breakaway Plus,” this new ship will be the largesour fleet at approximately 163,000 Gross Tams 4,200 Berths and will be similar
in design and innovation to our current Breakawlagsships which are currently under constructidre contract cost of this ship is
approximately €698.4 million, or $921.4 million lealson the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of Mbee31, 2012. We entered into an
export credit facility that provides financing 0% of the contract price of the ship. In additive, have an option in place for export
credit financing for the second ship on similamntsr

In connection with the contracts to build the thsb@s, we do not anticipate any contractual brescin cancellation to occur. Howeve
any would occur, it could result in, among othengs, the forfeiture of prior deposits or paymemtsde by us and potential claims and
impairment losses which may materially impact ousibess, financial condition and results of opergti

As of December 31, 2012, minimum annual paymentsdn-cancelable ship construction contracts wittial or remaining terms in
excess of one year were as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2013 $ 705,76
2014 773,06:
2015 792,36¢
2016 —
2017 —
Thereaftel —
Total $2,271,19!
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Port Facility Commitments
As of December 31, 2012, future commitments tofpayisage of certain port facilities were as follo(in thousands):

Year Amount

2013 $ 23,52:
2014 25,15k
2015 26,00¢
2016 26,68(
2017 26,66
Thereaftel 69,79:
Total $197,82:

The U.S. Federal Maritime Commission requires awgeof financial responsibility for those offeritrgnsportation on passenger ships
operating out of U.S. ports to indemnify passengetbe event of non-performance of the transpomatAccordingly, we are required to
maintain a $15.0 million third-party performanceagantee on our behalf in respect of liabilitiesifonperformance of transportation a
other obligations to passengers. Proposed regatatiould revise the financial requirements withpeas to both death/injury and non-
performance coverages. Also we have a legal remeiné for us to maintain a security guarantee baseztuise business originated from
the United Kingdom and have a bond with the Asgamieof British Travel Agents currently valued atitish Pound Sterling 3.2 million.
We also are required to establish financial resibditg by other jurisdictions to meet liability ithe event of non-performance of our
obligations to passengers from those jurisdictions.

Litigation

In July 2009, a class action complaint was filediagt NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. in the United States isttourt, Southern District of
Florida, on behalf of a purported class of crew rbera alleging inappropriate deductions of their @agursuant to the Seaman’s Wage
Act and wrongful termination resulting in a lossrefirement benefits. In December 2010, the Coenietl the plaintiffsMotion for Clas
Certification. In February 2011, the plaintiffsefil a Motion for Reconsideration as to the Courrdedon Class Certification which was
denied. The Court tried six individual plaintiffsfaims, and in September 2012 awarded wages aggrgggproximately $100,000 to
such plaintiffs. The plaintiffs’ have filed an agp®f the Court’s decision in the individual actioas well as the denial of the Class
Certification. We intend to vigorously defend thjgpeal and are not able at this time to estimaténtipact of these proceedings.

In May 2011, a class action complaint was filediagiaNCL (Bahamas) Ltd. in the United States DistGourt, Southern District of
Florida, on behalf of a purported class of crew rhers alleging inappropriate deductions of their @agursuant to the Seaman’s Wage
Act and breach of contract. In July 2012 this attias stayed by the Court pending the outcomeeofitigation commenced with the
class action complaint filed in July 2009. We aigovously defending this action and are not abléiattime to estimate the impact of
these proceedings.

In the normal course of our business, various atleems and lawsuits have been filed or are pendgajnst us. Most of these claims and
lawsuits are covered by insurance and, accorditigéymaximum amount of our liability is typicallyriited to our deductible amount.
Nonetheless, the ultimate outcome of these clamddawvsuits that are not covered by insurance dammdetermined at this time. We
have evaluated our overall exposure with respeall {of our threatened and pending litigation aodhe extent required, we have acci
amounts for all estimable probable losses assatcigith our deemed exposure. We are currently unabdstimate any other potential
contingent losses beyond those accrued, as digcs/eot complete nor is adequate information add to estimate such range of loss
or potential recovery. We intend to vigorously defeur legal position on all claims and, to theeexinecessary, seek recovery.

F-26



Table of Contents

10.

11.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@\#8paid interest and related fees of $240.6 oni)l$186.7 million and $254.8
million, respectively. For the year ended Decen8ier2012, we had a non-cash investing activityonnection with the Norwegian Sky
purchase agreement of $206.1 million.

Guarantor Subsidiaries

The $450.0 million 11.75% Senior Secured Notes2lli6 issued by us are guaranteed by certain ofuhsidiaries with first-priority
mortgage liens on four of our ships, Norwegian Stlrwegian Spirit, Norwegian Sun and Norwegian Daand a first-priority security
interest in all earnings, proceeds of insurancecanthin other interests related to these shiggestito certain exceptions and permitted
liens. These subsidiary guarantors are 100% owulesidiaries of NCLC and we have fully and uncomdiéilly guaranteed these notes,
subject to customary automatic release provisions joint and several basis.

The following condensed consolidating financiatetaents for NCLC, the non-guarantor subsidiaries@mbined guarantor
subsidiaries presents condensed consolidatingretats of operations for the years ended Decemhe&2@P, 2011 and 2010, condensec
consolidating balance sheets as of December 32 &0d December 31, 2011, and condensed consotidstitements of cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 28ih@; the equity method of accounting, as well asiahtion entries necessary to
consolidate the parent company and all of its sliéses.

The outstanding debt resides with the primary ablignterest expense was allocated based on ttraiapg value of the ships, and
marketing, general and administrative expense Wasaded based on Capacity Days. Management feegepts the charge for the
allocation of interest expense to the subsidigresrefer you to Note 12— “Subsequent Events”).
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
(in thousands) Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenue
Passenger ticke $ — $462,46:. $ 1,142,10. $ — $1,604,56:
Onboard and othe — 190,11! 481,56¢ — 671,68:
Total revenue — 652,57 1,623,66! — 2,276,241
Cruise operating expenst
Commissions, transportation and ot — 122,88: 287,65( — 410,53:
Onboard and othe — 45,84¢ 128,07( — 173,91¢
Payroll and relate — 85,88¢ 207,17( — 293,05¢
Fuel — 98,28¢ 185,39( — 283,67¢
Food — 39,94 85,86¢ — 125,80°
Other — 54,44( 137,00: — 191,44
Total cruise operating expen — 447,28t 1,031,14 — 1,478,43.
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrati — 96,26¢ 154,91. — 251,18:
Depreciation and amortizatic — 56,04¢ 133,48t — 189,53
Total other operating expen — 152,31¢ 288,40: — 440,72(
Operating incom: — 52,97 304,12( — 357,09:
Non-operating income (expense
Interest expense, n (106,63() (29,577 (160,35 106,63( (189,93()
Management fe 106,63( — — (106,63() —
Other income (expens 2,03¢ 91 (739 — 1,39:
Equity in earnings of subsidiari 166,52( — — (166,52() —
Total nor-operating income (expens 168,55¢ (29,486) (161,08) (166,52() (188,53)
Net income $ 168,55t $ 23,48 $ 143,03 $(166,520 $ 168,55¢
Comprehensive income
Net income $ 168,55t $ 23,48% $ 143,03 $(166,520) $ 168,55t
Total other comprehensive incot 2,17¢ (5,98%) (10,417 16,40: 2,17¢
Total comprehensive incon $170,73: $ 17,50: $ 132,61 $(150,119) $ 170,73
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in thousands)
Revenue
Passenger ticks
Onboard and othe
Total revenue
Cruise operating expenst
Commissions, transportation and ot
Onboard and othe
Payroll and relate
Fuel
Food
Other

Total cruise operating expen
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total other operating expen
Operating incom:
Non-operating income (expense
Interest expense, n
Management fe
Other income (expens
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Total nor-operating income (expens
Net income
Comprehensive income
Net income
Total other comprehensive incot
Total comprehensive incon

Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ — $443,69: $ 1,119,67. $ — $1,563,36.
— 196,63( 459,33: — 655,96

— 640,32: 1,579,00. — 2,219,32.

— 117,15¢ 293,55( — 410,70¢

— 53,11; 116,21 — 169,32¢

— 87,19: 203,63( — 290,82:

— 89,09! 154,41: — 243,50:

— 38,55( 86,38: — 124,93:

— 73,77¢ 154,80 — 228,58(

— 458,88! 1,008,99 — 1,467,871

— 94.,47: 156,87¢ — 251,35:

— 55,93¢ 128,04¢ — 183,98!

— 150,41. 284,92! — 435,33t

— 31,02¢ 285,08 — 316,11:
(83,57 (30,470 (159,71) 83,57t (190,18)
83,57¢ — — (83,57Y) —
2,32¢ 52 (1,447 — 934
124,53 — — (124,53() —
126,85¢ (30,419 (161,16)  (124,53() (189,257
$126,85¢ $ 607 $ 123,920 $(124,53) $ 126,85¢
$126,85¢ $ 607 $ 123,920 $(124,53() $ 126,85
(24,10  (13,29) (23,389 36,68¢ (24,109
$102,75¢ $(12,690 $ 100,53 $ (87,849 $ 102,75
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in thousands)
Revenue
Passenger ticks
Onboard and othe
Total revenue

Cruise operating expenst
Commissions, transportation and ot
Onboard and othe
Payroll and relate
Fuel
Food
Other
Total cruise operating expen
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total other operating expen
Operating incom:
Non-operating income (expense
Interest expense, n
Management fe
Other expens
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Total nor-operating income (expens
Net income
Comprehensive income
Net income
Total other comprehensive incot
Total comprehensive incon

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ — $458,76: $ 953,02 $ — $1,411,78!
— 193,07! 407,26¢ — 600,34

— 651,83 1,360,29I — 2,012,12

— 129,74 249,78t — 379,53.

— 51,94 101,19¢ — 153,13

— 83,27: 182,11¢ — 265,39(

— 82,07: 125,13¢ — 207,21(

— 39,16¢ 74,90( — 114,06:

— 73,04+ 154,79¢ — 227,84

— 459,23 887,94( — 1,347,171
106,52¢ 157,62: — 264,15:

— 56,027 114,16 — 170,19:

— 162,55¢ 271,78 — 434,34

— 30,04¢ 200,56 — 230,60¢
(107,63) (29,854 (143,819 107,63: (173,67)
107,63: — (107,63)) —
(33,49) (192) (262) — (33,95))
56,48 — — (56,487 —
22,98¢ (30,046 (144,08() (56,487) (207,622
$ 22,98¢ $ — $ 56,48 $ (656,48 $ 22,98¢
$ 22,98¢ $ — $ 56,48: $ (56,48Y) $ 22,98¢
2,01( (1,187 (1,87¢) 3,06¢ 2,01(

$ 2499 $ (1,18) $  54,60° $ (53,41) $ 24,99¢
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands)
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Due from Affiliate
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill and tradename
Other lon¢-term asset
Investment in subsidiarie

Total asset

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Due to Affiliate
Advance ticket sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Due to Affiliate
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Ordinary share
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Retained earnings (defic
Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ — $ 746z $ 38,03t % — $ 45,50(
— 1,747 13,31¢ — 15,06:
2,457,34i — — (2,457,34) =
— 13,44t 26,23¢ — 39,68
18,00¢ 2,272 44,41 = 64,68¢
2,475,35. 24,92¢ 122,00( (2,457,34) 164,92
— 1,182,921 3,777,211 — 4,960,14.
602,79: — 8,53t — 611,33(
61,07( — 140,95t — 202,02¢
385,45: — — (385,457 —
$3,524,661  $1,207,85. $ 4,048,711  $(2,842,80) $5,938,42
$ 5354 % — $ 167,690 $ — $ 221,23
— 884 78,24: — 79,12¢
47,22¢ 47,32¢ 136,49: — 231,041
— 691,21t 1,826,02! (2,457,34) 59,897
— — 353,79 — 353,79:
100,76° 739,42! 2,562,24! (2,457,34) 945,08
1,388,46! — 1,375,65. — 2,764,121
— — 147,36- — 147,36
16,64¢ 4,60¢ 41,81¢ — 63,07(
1,505,88: 744,03 4,127,071 (2,457,34) 3,919,64
25 24 87,81t (87,847 28
2,335,56: 379,94t 235,78t (615,739  2,335,56:
(17,619 — (9,747 9,747 (17,619
(299,18)) 83,84¢ (392,225 308,37t (299,18Y)
2,018,78 463,81¢ (78,36¢) (385,45) 2,018,78
$3,524,66 $1,207,85. $ 4,048,711  $(2,842,80) $5,938,42
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands)
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Due from Affiliate
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill and tradename
Other lon¢-term asset
Investment in subsidiarie

Total asset

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Due to Affiliate
Advance ticket sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Ordinary share
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive i
Retained earnings (defic
Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ — $ 7,13 $ 51,79t % — $ 58,92
— 1,852 6,307 — 8,15¢
2,451,06: = = (2,451,06) -
— 10,98 25,25! — 36,23«
13,28 5,84( 29,69: — 48,82:
2,464,34 25,80¢ 113,04 (2,451,06) 152,14
— 1,227,08. 3,413,01. — 4,640,09:
602,79: — — — 602,79:
56,97 — 110,41: — 167,38:
215,96 — — (215,969 —
$3,340,08: $1,252,891 $ 3,636,471 $(2,667,03) $5,562,41
$ 46,02¢ % — $ 154550 § — $ 200,58:
— 60¢ 79,71¢ — 80,321
26,81¢ 44,55¢ 136,73: — 208,10:.
— 764,97t 1,689,04 (2,451,06) 2,96:
— — 325,47. — 325,47.
72,84¢ 810,14: 2,385,552,  (2,451,06) 817,44t
1,401,56: — 1,435,93i — 2,837,49
21,21; 2,41¢ 39,37¢ = 63,00:
1,495,61! 812,55t 3,860,83. (2,451,06) 3,717,94
25 24 87,81¢ (87,847 25
2,331,97. 379,94t 231,49! (611,44)  2,331,97:
(19,799 - (8,419 8,41¢ (19,799
(467,74 60,36: (535,25 474,89 (467,74)
1,844,46: 440,33: (224,36 (215,969 1,844,446
$3,340,08: $1,252,891 $ 3,636,471 $(2,667,03) $5,562,41
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel
Loss on derivative
Write-off of deferred financing fee
Sharebased compensation expel
Premium on debt issuan
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Advance ticket sale
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipme
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of lor-term debr
Proceeds from lor-term debi
Other, primarily deferred financing fe

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of "

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidatec
$ 168,55t¢ $ 23,487 $ 143,03 $(166,52() $ 168,55¢
11,62¢ 56,05( 148,46: — 216,13
1,94¢ — — — 1,94t
91¢ — 1,44( — 2,35¢
— — 5,16( — 5,16(
6,00( — — — 6,00(
(166,520 - - 166,52( -
- 10t (4,697) - (4,597)
— (2,467) (98¢) — (3,447
1,24¢ 3,56¢ (8,302 — (3,490
— 27€ (1,504) — (1,22¢)
(9,052 (68,802 74,74¢ — (3,107)
— — 14,30: — 14,30:
14,71 12,22 371,65¢ — 398,59«
— (11,89/) (291,941 — (303,84()
— (11,894 (291,94f) — (308,84()
(658,979 — (200,44.) — (859,42;)
647,32: — 153,29t — 800,61
(3,06)) — (46,315 — (49,376
(14,717 - (93,469 - (108,18()
32¢ (13,75Y) — (13,426)
— 7,13 51,79:¢ — 58,92¢
$ — $ 746 $  3803% $ — $ 45,50
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel
Gain on derivative
Shar-based compensation expel
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Advance ticket sale
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipme
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of lor-term deb
Proceeds from lor-term debi
Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidatec
$ 126,85¢ $ 607 $ 123,92 $(124,53() $ 126,85¢
11,40¢ 55,93¢ 143,70! — 211,04¢
(2,339 — — — (2,339
— — 1,211 — 1,211

(124,53() — = 124,53 —
1,31¢ (1,449 (145) - (280)
— 132 (3,609 — (3,47))
(3,840 (751) 327 - (4,269
— (390 16,31¢ — 15,92¢
171,86( (18,98() (168,75() — (15,876
— — 28,17: — 28,17:
180,73( 35,10¢ 141,15: — 356,99(
- (35,809 (148,989 - (184,79)
— (35,809 (148,98 — (184,79)
(363,000 — (76,959 — (439,95¢)
184,00( — 89,37t — 273,37!
(1,730) — — — (1,730)
(180,73() — 12,41¢ — (168,31
— (700) 4,57¢ — 3,87¢
— 7,83: 47,21¢ — 55,04
$ — $ 7,13t $ 51,79:¢ $ — $ 58,92¢
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NCL CORPORATION LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel
Loss on derivative
Write-off of deferred financing fee
Sharebased compensation expel
Equity in earnings of subsidiari
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Advance ticket sale
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipme
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of lor-term deb
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Other, primarily deferred financing fe
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ 2298 $ — $ 5648 $(56,48) $ 22,98
10,76¢ 56,02’ 125,11¢ — 191,918
602 — — — 602
1,751 — 4,65¢ — 6,41(
— — 2,52( — 2,52(

(56,48() — — 56,48( —
(25) 77¢ (76E) — (11)
- 1,10¢ (5,007) - (3,89¢)
(3,849 5,10¢ 127,73 — 128,99:
— (4,94) 40,96 — 36,02
118,77 (37,74%) (74,899 — 6,13¢
— — 38,74¢ — 38,74¢
94,53 20,33« 315,55t — 430,42:
— (22,40/) (955,06:) — (977,46()
— (22,409 (955,06) — (977,46¢)
(774,52 - (181,25 - (955,78()
689,00( — 912,65¢ — 1,601,65
(9,007 - (84,939 - (93,947
(94,539 — 646,47 — 551,93t
— (2,070) 6,96¢ — 4,89t
— 9,90: 40,24¢ — 50,15:
— $ 783 $ 4721t $ — $ 55,04
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13.

1)

Subsequent Event:

On January 24, 2013, Norwegian Cruise Line Holdintgls (“NCLH"), which was formed with the issuano&10,000 ordinary shares at
$.001 per share in February 2011, completed anofRt3 ordinary shares. In connection with the eonmation of the IPO, NCLC's
ordinary shares were exchanged for the ordinargeshaf NCLH, and NCLH became the owner of 100%hefdrdinary shares
(representing a 97.3% economic interest) and pamnpany of NCLC (the “Corporate Reorganizatioihe Corporate Reorganization
was effected solely for the purpose of reorganizingcorporate structure. NCLH has not, prior t® ¢bmpletion of the Corporate
Reorganization, conducted any activities other thase incidental to its formation and preparatifumshe Corporate Reorganization and
the IPO. Following the IPO, the relative ownershicentages of NCLH's ordinary shares were asv@idgsenting HK (43.4%), the
Apollo Funds (32.5%), the TPG Viking Funds (10.88ayl public shareholders (13.3%). NCLH is treated aesrporation for U.S. federal
income tax purposes.

In February 2013, we issued $300.0 million aggregaincipal amount of Senior Notes. The Notes bdlr interest at a rate of 5.00%
annum and will mature on February 15, 2018. Intesaghe Notes will be payable semiannually on Babr 15 and August 15 of each
year, commencing on August 15, 2013. The notes igsued at 99.451%.

We used the net proceeds that we received frorfPBeand notes offering, aggregating approximat&ys0 million, to pay down debt;
including (i) a prepayment of an aggregate $55lanithat became payable upon the consummatighedfPO consisting of $21.3
million on our €624.0 million Norwegian Pearl andMegian Gem Revolving Credit Facility, $14.7 nuflion our €308.1 million Pride
of Hawai'i loan, $8.0 million on our $334.1 milliddorwegian Jewel loan, $10.1 million on o@58.0 million Pride of America loan, a
$1.5 million on our €0.0 million Pride of America commercial loan, @)payment to Genting HK of $79.7 million in contiec with the
Norwegian Sky purchase agreement, (i) a full raggon of our $450.0 million 11.75% senior secunetes due 2016, (iv) a partial
redemption of $122.5 million aggregate principaloamt of our $350.0 million 9.50% senior notes. REgpremiums, breakage fees and
expenses associated with the IPO, notes offeridglaredemptions of our notes are estimated &ppeoximately $104.0 million.

Quarterly Selected Financial Data (Unaudited) (in housands, except per share dat:

First Quarte! Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Total revenue $515,43( $495,51( $583,23: $568,58t $674,41. $666,63: $503,17: $488,59:
Operating incom 46,44« 37,50¢ 87,00¢ 76,25( 174,13¢  160,01¢ 49,50¢ 42,33¢
Net income (loss 3,28¢ (7,939 36,03  29,22¢ 128,18t 107,50 1,0541)  (1,94))
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic and Dilutec $ 00z $ (00 $ 020 $ 016 $ 072 $ 06C $ 001 $ (0.0

The seasonality of the North American cruise indugenerally results in the greatest demand foiseruduring the summer months. This
predictable seasonality in demand has resulteldigtufations in our revenue and results of operatidine seasonality of our results is
increased due to ships being taken out of seraicesularly scheduled Dry-docks, which we typigalthedule during non-peak demand
periods.

Includes a nc-recurring shar-based compensation charge of $4.5 million relateaformer CEO
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-B38184) of Norwegian Cruise Line

Holdings Ltd. of our report dated February 20, 20&Rting to the financial statements of Norwedtanise Line Holdings Ltd., which appears
in the Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida

February 20, 2013



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 of (B88-186184) Norwegian Cruise Line
Holdings Ltd. of our report dated February 20, 20&Bting to the consolidated financial statemeamis the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of NCL Corporation Ltd.cagubsidiaries, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida

February 20, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Kevin M. Sheehan, certify the
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffierperiods presented in this rep:

4. | am responsible for establishing and maintgrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defin&kamange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15c¢-15(e)) for the company and ha

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the company'slasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeghort my conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; an

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the camgjzinternal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period cover
by the annual report that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpany’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

5. | have disclosed, based on my most recent eN@tuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the company’s auditors and the audit
committee of the compa’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: February 20, 2013 /sl Kevin M. Sheeha
Name Kevin M. Sheehal
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Wendy A. Beck, certify tha
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffierperiods presented in this rep:

4. | am responsible for establishing and maintgrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defin&kamange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15c¢-15(e)) for the company and ha

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the company'slasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeghort my conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; an

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the camgjzinternal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period cover
by the annual report that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpany’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

5. | have disclosed, based on my most recent eN@tuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the company’s auditors and the audit
committee of the compa’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva@veanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reportin

Dated: February 20, 2013 /s/ Wendy A. Becl
Name Wendy A. Beck
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedignir$o Section 906 of the Sarbaiidey Act of 2002, each of Kevin M. Sheehan,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and WendBAck, the Executive Vice President and Chief FaierOfficer, of Norwegian Cruise
Line Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”), does herebytifgr that, to such officer's knowledge:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company therfiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (the “Fib#K"), fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of theusities Exchange Act of 1934 and information eord in the Form 16 fairly presents, i
all material respects, the financial condition agsults of operations of the Company.

Date: February 20, 2013
By: /s/ Kevin M. Sheehan

Name: Kevin M. Sheeha
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

By: /s/ Wendy A. Becl

Name: Wendy A. Beck

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer




